
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 

 
Meeting of the London Legacy Development Corporation Planning Decisions 
Committee 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday 24 July 2018 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Rooms 1, 2 & 3, LLDC, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, 

London E20 1EJ 

 
 
Members of the London Legacy Development Corporation Planning Decisions Committee 
are hereby notified and requested to attend the meeting of the Planning Decisions 
Committee of the Corporation at 6.00 pm on Tuesday 24 July 2018 to transact the business 
set out below. 
 

Chief Executive 
Monday 16 July 2018 

 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being 
discussed as noted on the agenda. A guide for the press and public on attending and 
reporting meetings of local government bodies, including the use of film, photography, 
social media and other means is available at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/open-and-accountable-local-government-plain-
english-guide  
 
 
 
Committee Members: 
 
Philip Lewis (Chair) 
Pam Alexander OBE 
Councillor James Beckles 
Emma Davies MRICS 
James Fennell MRTPI MRICS 
Piers Gough CBE RA 
Councillor Jenny Gray 
Sukhvinder Kaur-Stubbs 
Councillor Dan Tomlinson 
Councillor Rachel Tripp 
Louise Wyman MRICS MLA 
 
 
 



�

2 
�

1 Updates, Order of Business and Requests to Speak   
 

2 Apologies for Absence   
 

3 Declarations of Interest  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 22 May 2018  (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

5 Clarnico Quay 18/00171/FUL  (Pages 19 - 70) 
 

6 Land at Marshgate Lane 17/00669/VAR  (Pages 71 - 
148) 
 

7 Meridian Square 18/000225/ADV  (Pages 149 - 
164) 
 

8 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM  (Pages 165 - 
236) 
 

9 11 Burford Road 18/00293/FUL  (Pages 237 - 
288) 
 

10 Annual review of Planning Decisions Committee's Terms of Reference 
 (Pages 289 - 
292) 
 

11 Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority  (Pages 293 - 
304) 
 

12 Any Urgent Business   
 

 



 
 
 
Subject:  Declarations of Interests Received for the 63rd meeting of the 

Planning Decisions Committee  

Date:  24 July 2018 

Venue: Rooms 1, 2, 3 & Marketing Suite, LLDC, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, 
Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ 

 
FOR NOTING 

This report will be considered in public 

 
1. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

1.1 For the purposes of transparency, where a Member of the Committee is an 
elected Member of a Host Borough to which a planning application and/or other 
matter to be dealt with at this meeting relates, that fact will be set out in this report, 
noting that being an elected Member of a Host Borough in itself does not 
constitute a disclosable pecuniary interest. However, if the Member concerned 
does have a disclosable pecuniary interest for the reasons set out in section 3 of 
this report he/she will need to declare it prior to and/or at the meeting and take the 
necessary consequential actions. Any Member in attendance as a substitute will 
similarly need to declare any interests in the business on the agenda, including 
disclosable pecuniary interests, at the meeting.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1  In light of the items of business listed on the agenda for this meeting of the 
Committee, the relevant Members are asked to declare any disclosable 
interests and state whether or not any of the interests declared are or could:  

2.1.1 fall within the definition of pecuniary interests as set out in The Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Regulations) (as the same may be 
amended); or  

2.1.2  If they are not disclosable pecuniary interests are classed as interests 
which are material and which conflict or may conflict with the interests of 
the Corporation.  

 
2.2 That the interests set out below be noted. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



3. EXPLANATION OF INTERESTS 
 
3.1 A Member of this Planning Decisions Committee who is present at a meeting of 

this Committee and who has and/or may reasonably be considered to have a 
pecuniary interest in any item of business before the meeting, shall at the meeting 
and as soon as practicable after its commencement disclose the nature and 
extent of his or her interest. Provided that, with regard to any disclosable 
pecuniary interest that falls within the definition of a sensitive interest (as set out in 
regulation 32 of the Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Regulations), the Member 
shall be permitted to disclose not the interest but the fact that he or she has a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concerned.  

 
3.2 A Member who has and/or may reasonably be considered to have a disclosable 

pecuniary interest shall not unless he or she is granted a dispensation pursuant to 
regulation 33 of the Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Regulations:  

 
 (a) participate, or participate further, in the consideration or discussion of the 

matter and shall leave the meeting during its consideration; and  
 
 (b) vote, or further vote, on any question or matter with respect to it.  
 
3.3  A Member of this Planning Decisions Committee who is present at a meeting of 

this Committee and who has an interest that is not a disclosable pecuniary interest 
but is an interest (whether held directly or indirectly) which is material and which 
conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Corporation shall at the meeting 
and as soon as practicable after its commencement disclose the nature and 
extent of that interest.  

 
3.4  A Member who has disclosed an interest that is not a disclosable pecuniary 

interest but which is material and which conflicts or may conflict with the interests 
of the Corporation may, notwithstanding his or her interest, participate in the 
consideration or discussion and vote on the matter and be included for the 
purposes of a quorum at any meeting at which the matter is considered provided 
that: 

a) the Member or a Connected Person does not have a Registrable Interest in the 
matter, other than, in accordance with SO 6.4(a), where the Registrable 
Interest constitutes the holding of office as an elected member of one of the 
Growth Boroughs who is appointed to sit on the Committee, in which case the 
holding of that office of itself shall not constitute a matter which is material and 
which is considered to conflict with the interests of the Corporation; and 

b) his/her interest does not give rise to a real danger of bias or is one which a 
member of the public aware of all the facts will regard as so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of how to act in the public interest. 

 
3.5 For the purposes of determining whether or not a Member has an interest which is 

material and which conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Corporation 
the meanings given to the terms "Registrable Interest" and "Connected Person" 
are set out in the Corporation's Standing Orders (approved September 2012, 
updated March 2017). 

 

Page 2



3.6  A Member shall not be counted in the quorum present at a meeting in relation to a 
resolution upon which s/he is not entitled to vote (SO6.2).  

 
4 FOR INFORMATION  
 
4.1 Elected Members of Host Boroughs to which planning applications relate (where 

applicable) 
 

London Borough of Hackney 

• ITEM 5 – Clarnico Quay (Makeshift) – 18-00171-FUL 
 

• ITEM 6 – Marshgate – 17-00669-VAR 
 Councillor Rachel Tripp, London Borough of Newham 
 Councillor James Beckles, London Borough of Newham 
  

• ITEM 7 – Meridian Steps advert – 18-00225-ADV 
 Councillor Rachel Tripp, London Borough of Newham 
 Councillor James Beckles, London Borough of Newham 
  

• ITEM 8 – IQL Pavilion – 18-00252-REM 
 Councillor Rachel Tripp, London Borough of Newham 
 Councillor James Beckles, London Borough of Newham 
  

• ITEM 9 – 11 Burford Road – 18-00293-FUL 
 Councillor Rachel Tripp, London Borough of Newham 
 Councillor James Beckles, London Borough of Newham 

 
4.2 Independent Members 

• James Fennel is Chief Executive Officer of Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners and 
Emma Davies is Managing Director of CBRE Planning UK.  

• Neither member has been involved in decision making on any of the matters 
listed in the Decisions Made under Delegated Authority item on this agenda. 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

MINUTES

Minutes of the Meeting of the London Legacy Development Corporation Planning 
Decisions Committee 

Date: Tuesday 22 May 2018 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: LLDC meeting rooms 1 and 2, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, 
Montfichet Road, London, E20 1EJ

Present: Philip Lewis (Chair) 
Emma Davies MRICS 
Piers Gough CBE RA 
Sukhvinder Kaur-Stubbs 
Councillor Terry Wheeler 
Councillor Rachel Blake 
Councillor Julianne Marriott 
Councillor Nick Sharman 
Councillor Rachel Tripp 
Councillor Terry Wheeler 

In Attendance: Anthony Hollingsworth, Director of PPDT 
Catherine Smyth, Head of Development Management, PPDT 
Josh Hackner, Planning Development Manager 
Sara Dawes, Principal Planning Development Manager 
Richard McFerran, Principal Planning Development Manager 
Anne Ogundiya, Principal Planning Development Manager 
Russell Butchers, Senior Planning Development Manager 
Susanne Andreasen, Legal advisor, Pinsent Masons 
Zena Hassan, Assistant Committee Secretary 
Jamie Mordue, Committee Secretary, GLA

1 Updates, Order of Business and Requests to Speak

1.1 The Chair stated there were update reports for: Item 5 - Land adjacent to Rick Roberts 
Way, E15 2LH RRW 18/00162/FUL & 18/00163/ADV; Item 6 - Wickside (McGraths) 
16/00451/OUT; Item 7 - 25 Trego Road, London, E9 5HJ 17/00225/FUL; and Item 10 - 
Cherry Park, Stratford City, Zone 1 18/00061/REM & 18/00067/NMA 

1.2 The Chair stated that the order of business would be as set out on the agenda. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 
 

1.3 The Chair stated that the following request to speak had been received: 

 Item 5 - Land adjacent to Rick Roberts Way, E15 2LH RRW 18/00162/FUL & 
18/00163/ADV

In support of Officers’ recommendation: 

Michael Doyle (Wildstone Planning) 

Javier Fernandez (Padel Solutions UK Ltd) 

David Mansilla (Padel Solutions UK Ltd) 

 Item 6 - Wickside (McGraths) 16/00451/OUT

In support of Officers’ recommendation: 

Guy Forrester (BUJ Architects) 

Robert Sakula (Ash Sakula Architects) 

Phil Chadda (Project Planning Manager) 

Frank Green (BUJ Architects) 

Sven Munder (Creative Industries) 

Cany Ash (Ash Sakula Architects) 

 Item 7 - 25 Trego Road, London, E9 5HJ 17/00225/FUL

In support of Officers’ recommendation: 

Glen Charles (City & Suburban Homes) 

Gavin Henneberry (pH+ Architects) 

Alex Russ (pH+ Architects) 

Andy Love (XCO2) 

Tim Gaskell (CMA Planning) 

Adam Williams (CMA Planning) 

 Item 9 - 55 - 69 Rothbury Road, E9 5HA 17/00112/FUL

In support of Officers’ recommendation: 

Jan Donovan (Rolfe Judd) 

Nick Makasis (Rolfe Judd) 

 Item 10 - Cherry Park, Stratford City, Zone 1 18/00061/REM & 18/00067/NMA

In support of Officers’ recommendation: 

Chris Goddard (DP9) 

Carolyn Ouwehand (Glen Howells Architects) 

Scott Cromack (PRP Architects) 

Kieran Hobbs (Westfield) 

Ryan Goghlan (Gillespies) 

Matthew Booley (Steer Davis Gleave) 

David Thompson (RPS) 

Page 6



 
 

2 Apologies for Absence

2.1 Apologies for absence were received from James Fennell MRTPI MRICS and Louise 
Wyman MRICS MLA. 

3 Declarations of Interest

3.1 The Committee received the report of the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions which 
set out, for the purposes of transparency, where a Member of the Committee was an 
elected Member of a Host Borough to which a planning application and/or other related 
matters were to be dealt with at the meeting. 

3.2 Resolved (unanimously): 

3.2.1 That the following declarations of interest be noted: 

Councillor Julianne Marriott, London Borough of Newham, Elected Member (item 5 - 
Land adjacent to Rick Roberts Way, E15 2LH RRW 18/00162/FUL & 18/00163/ADV, 
item 8 – Marshgate 17/00669/VAR, and item 10 – Cherry Park 18/00061/REM & 
18/00067/NMA)

Councillor Rachel Tripp, London Borough of Newham, Elected Member (item 5 - 
Land adjacent to Rick Roberts Way, E15 2LH RRW 18/00162/FUL & 18/00163/ADV, 
item 8 – Marshgate 17/00669/VAR, and item 10 – Cherry Park 18/00061/REM & 
18/00067/NMA)

Councillor Rachel Blake, London Borough of Tower Hamlets, Elected Member (item 
6 – Wickside (McGraths) 16/00451/OUT, item 7 – Trego 17/00225/FUL, and item 9 – 
55 – 69 Rothbury Road 17/00112/FUL) 
 

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 30 April 2018

4.1 The Committee received the minutes of the Planning Decisions Committee meeting held 
on 30 April 2018. 

4.2 Resolved: 

4.2.1 That the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 30 April 2018 be signed as a 
correct record. 

5 Land adjacent to Rick Roberts Way, E15 2LH RRW 18/00162/FUL & 
18/00163/ADV

5.1 The Committee received the update report of the Planning Development Manager. A 

presentation was also provided, which included photographs of the location and the existing 

and proposed front and rear elevations. 

5.2 Committee was told that the applicant sought temporary planning permission for five years 

for a padel tennis facility in a single storey building, and that the site was a vacant plot that 

had previously been used for coach parking. The applicant also sought permission for 

Page 7



 
 

illuminated advertising banners on the north, south and west sides of the building, up to a 

maximum level of 300cdm. 

5.3 Officers informed the Committee that temporary planning permission had been granted for 

five years (ref:17/00126/FUL) on land at Rick Roberts Way comprising the application site 

being considered. This was due to expire on 3 July 2022 but the applicant, Adidas UK Ltd, 

had not implemented the permission and had advised they were not intending to implement 

in the future. 

5.4 The Committee heard that a public notice had been placed in the Newham Recorder 

newspaper and that one letter of support had been received. Three site notices were placed 

around the application site and notification letters were sent to 669 neighbouring properties. 

5.5 Officers told the Committee that the applicant had provided an update to the Construction 

Management Plan. This had been found to be acceptable by PPDT’s environmental 

consultants. It was recommended that condition four, which had required a submission of a 

Construction Management Plan, be removed. 

5.6 The Committee heard that the hours of operation in condition seven should be from 10:00 to 

22:30 Monday to Friday, 09:00 to 21:00 on Saturday and Sunday. This was a typographical 

error in the report. 

5.7 Officers considered that the application was considered to support the principle of the 

sporting legacy of the Olympic Games. 

5.8 The Committee heard from the applicant, Javier Fernandez. Mr Fernandez thanked LLDC 

staff for their support of the application. Mr Fernandez said that a padel tennis facility would 

be accessible for people from differing economic backgrounds, as little equipment was 

required, and it was a social sport, as it was played in pairs. The Committee was told that it 

was considered vital the facility have a positive impact on the community and emphasis was 

placed on encouraging all people to play the sport; female only tournaments would be held 

and the Wheelchair Tennis Association had been contacted for its input. Discounted rates 

would be given to local people and students, and local schools would be encouraged to use 

the facility. 

5.9 The Committee noted the low response rate to the notification in the Newham Recorder and 

questioned whether the applicant could make sufficient money within three years, should 

the three-year break clause be activated. The applicant believed that they would, given the 

addition of a fitness area and café, and that they had had experience running previous 

padel tennis clubs and fitness facilities. 

5.10 The Committee asked Officers whether this application would impede future applications. 

Officers confirmed that this scheme should not stop other schemes coming forward in the 

future.

5.11 The Committee requested Condition 4 (Luminance) of application 18/00163/ADV include 

restrictions on the hours of luminance during night time hours associated with the 

Page 8



 
 

proposed advertisements.

5.12 Resolved (unanimously): 

5.11.1 To APPROVE the applications 18/00162/FUL & 18/00163/ADV, for the reasons 
given in the report and grant planning permission and advertisement consent 
subject to the conditions set out in the report.

5.11.2 To DELEGATE AUTHORITY to the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions to 
finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report including such 
refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the Director of Planning 
Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary. 

6 Wickside (McGraths) 16/00451/OUT

6.1 The Committee received the update report of the Principal Planning Development 

Manager.  A presentation was also provided. The Committee noted that the application 

had been deferred from the meeting of the Committee on 27 February 2018. It had been 

deferred:

1. To allow the Quality Review Panel (QRP) to fully assess the proposal, including 

whether the tall buildings were outstanding and met policy for BN.10; 

2. For consideration of affordable housing, including the affordability of intermediate 

units and pepper potting of affordable units; 

3. For consideration of Creative Employment, Commercial and Community uses 

(CECC);

4. Further consideration of any potential harm from the loss of waste capacity at this 

location; 

5. Further consideration of on-site sports provision; and 

6. To consider reducing the number of car parking spaces. 

6.2 Officers showed the Committee which of the buildings were taller than 20m and gave the 

QRP comments, which detailed how each building met the criteria to be considered to 

exhibit outstanding architecture. The Committee heard that QRP supported the approval 

of the planning application. The Committee noted that the ‘Bridge House’ building had 

been submitted in outline, and the detailed design would be fully considered at reserved 

matters stage, where it would be reviewed by QRP. The draft Heads of Terms include a 

design competition for that building and it was anticipated that this would ensure an 

exceptional design. 

6.3 The Committee was told that the overall amount of affordable housing offered had 

remained at 35 per cent, however the proportion of habitable rooms offered for London 

affordable rent had increased from 30 to 35 per cent. Intermediate housing had decreased 

from 70 to 65 per cent. This represented a good offer that would satisfy the fast-track 

planning process requirements. The Committee heard that the Registered Providers’ 

preference was for affordable units to be in single tenure cores. 

Page 9



 
 

6.4 Further discussions had taken place with the applicant regarding CECC, and outlined 

which workspaces it had been agreed would be offered at a discount for ten years, on a 

shell and core basis. This represented approximately 20 per cent of CECC floorspace. 

6.5 The Committee was told that the Greater London Authority were satisfied that there would 

be no harm from the loss of waste capacity at this location but that the London Borough of 

Tower Hamlets had objected. 

6.6 The Committee heard that Officers had further considered the need for on-site sport 

facilities and concluded that it was not necessary for such facilities to be provided on the 

site. 

6.7 Provision of car parking space had been reduced to 0.25 space per dwelling to comply 

with the emerging draft London Plan, and this reduction had meant 40 additional cycle 

parking spaces could be provided. 48 parking bays would be provided for wheelchair 

users/disabled people. 

6.8 Members questioned what salary level the intermediate housing would be provided for. 

Officers told the Committee: 30 per cent was aimed at households with salaries up to 

£50,000; 30 per cent was aimed at households with salaries between £50,000 and 

£65,000; and 40 per cent was aimed at households with salaries over £75,000. 

6.9 Members were disappointed that progress had not been made on pepper potting 

affordable homes. Officers conceded that this element had not changed but that the 

location of the proposed affordable homes was well related to play spaces and mixed with 

market housing. The Committee also noted that there was no specific policy on pepper 

potting and therefore no policy basis to insist on this, or to robustly defend an appeal 

should permission be refused on the basis of the scheme not proposing this. 

6.10 Some Members were disappointed that concerns regarding the height of the buildings had 

not been addressed. The Committee was reminded that BN10 was not a blanket restriction 

and that QRP were comfortable with the height of the building considered against the 

requirements of policy BN10. 

6.11 Resolved (five votes in favour; three against; one abstention): 

6.11.1 To APPROVE the application for the reasons given in the report and grant planning 
permission subject to:

1. Referring the Application to the Mayor of London and any direction of the 
Mayor of London;  

2. The satisfactory completion of a legal agreement under s.106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers to secure the 
planning obligations set out in the recommended heads of terms which are 
set out in this report; and

3. The conditions and informatives set out in this report.  

Page 10



 
 

a) CONFIRM that their decision had taken into consideration the environmental 
information submitted in relation to the application as required by Regulation 3(4) of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2011 and AGREE that following the issue of the decision a statement be placed on 
the Statutory Register confirming the details as required by Regulation 24(1)(c) of 
the Town and Country Planning (EIA) Regulations 2011 including that the main 
reasons and considerations on which the Committee’s decision was based were 
those set out in the Planning Officer’s report to Planning Decisions Committee;

b)  AGREE TO DELEGATE AUTHORITY to the Director of Planning Policy and 
Decisions to:

i. Consider any direction from the Mayor of London and to make any 
consequential or necessary changes to the recommended conditions 
and/or informatives and/or recommended s.106 heads of terms as set out 
in this report;

ii. Finalise the recommended conditions and informatives (including relevant 
definitions and annexes) as set out in this report including such 
refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions (including to 
dovetail with and where appropriate, reinforce, the final planning 
obligations to be contained in the s.106 legal agreement) as the Director of 
Planning Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary;  

iii. Finalise the recommended legal agreement under s.106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this 
report, including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the 
obligations detailed in the heads of terms set out in this report (including 
to dovetail with and where appropriate, reinforce the final conditions and 
informatives to be attached to the planning permission) as the Director of 
Planning Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary; and  

iv. Complete the s.106 legal agreement referred to above and issue the planning 
permission.

7 25 Trego Road, London, E9 5HJ 17/00225/FUL

7.1 The Committee received the update report of the Principal Planning Development 

Manager. A presentation was also provided. 

7.2 The Committee noted that the application was for the demolition of existing buildings and 

for the erection of one building, ranging between one and six storeys in height. The 

building was to provide 52 residential units, of which 35 per cent was affordable housing, 

and 1,915 sqm of office/light industrial floorspace. 

7.3 The development would rise to 20.4m, from ground to parapet, and to 21m to lift overrun 

height. QRP had considered the architecture to be outstanding and Policy BN10 compliant. 

7.4 The provision of affordable housing was 35 per cent of dwellings and would satisfy the 

fast-track planning process requirements. Of the 35 per cent affordable tenures: 37.5 per 

Page 11



 
 

cent were London Living Rent; 31.25 per cent were London Affordable Rent; and 31.25 per 

cent were Shared Ownership. 

7.5 Officers told the Committee that the redevelopment proposals would re-provide the existing 

commercial floorspace, in accordance with policy B1 of the Local Plan, which would be 

located at ground and basement levels. Different styles of brick would distinguish between 

commercial and residential space. 

7.6 The Committee heard that four site notices had been placed around the site, a newspaper 

advert had been taken out in the Docklands and East London Advertiser and that 32 

consultation letters were sent out. 

7.7 The Committee heard from the planning agent, Adam Williams. Mr Williams briefly outlined 

the history of the planning application for the site and told the Committee that the applicant 

had worked closely with Officers to create a scheme that was fully integrated into the 

Wickside Master Plan. 

7.8 The Committee noted that 35 per cent of dwellings could be categorised as affordable, and 

questioned the level and type of actual need for affordable housing in the area. Officers 

reminded the Committee that the scheme was policy compliant and that on the issue of 

wider housing need, officers would be briefing members on the Local Plan review and, in 

particular, the recent evidence work on housing need and on affordable housing, at their 

briefing meeting in June. 

7.9 The Committee asked what consideration had been given to safety lighting in and around 

the area. The Committee noted that the scheme forms part of the Wickside Master Plan, 

which included a landscaping strategy on lighting, and that a s. 278 agreement for 

improvements to the public highway, which included lighting and improvements to the 

footpaths, would form part of the permission. 

7.10 The Committee asked what was the plan for the existing tenants. Officers told the 

Committee that a relocation strategy had been provided and Strettons had been appointed 

to help the tenant find suitable work space accommodation elsewhere. 

7.11 Members discussed concerns over whether the level of affordable housing was 

appropriate to meet local needs. The Chair commented that the LLDC was working within 

the guidelines and GLA recommendations. 

7.12 Resolved (seven votes in favour; none against; two abstentions): 

7.12.1 To APPROVE the application for the reasons given in the report and grant 
planning permission subject to: 

1. the satisfactory completion of a legal agreement under s.106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers to secure the planning 
obligations set out in the recommended heads of terms which are set out in 
this report; and 

Page 12



 
 

2. the conditions set out in this report. 

7.12.2 To AGREE to delegate authority to the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 
to:

1. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report including such 
refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions (including to dovetail 
with and where appropriate, reinforce, the final planning obligations to be 
contained in the s.106 legal agreement) as the Director of Planning Policy 
and Decisions considers reasonably necessary; 

2. finalise the recommended legal agreement under s.106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this 
report,  including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the 
obligations detailed in the heads of terms set out in this report (including to 
dovetail with and where appropriate, reinforce the final conditions and 
informatives to be attached to the planning permission) as the Director of 
Planning Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary; and 

3. complete the s.106 legal agreement referred to above and issue the planning 
permission.

8 Land at Marshgate, Pudding Mill, E15 2NH 17/00669/VAR

8.1  The Committee received the update report of the Principal Planning Development 

Manager. A presentation was also provided. 

8.2  The Committee heard that the application was for a variation to condition 2 of planning 

permission reference 14/00422/FUL to increase commercial floorspace from 4,257sqm to 

5,671 sqm; decrease residential floorspace from 28,00sqm to 27,210sqm; optimise 

residential floorspace to increase units from 254 to 275; and make alterations to the 

façades. Changes had been proposed to six of the eight buildings in the scheme. 

Members noted that there was no proposed change to the height, number of storeys or 

footprint of the buildings. Members noted that the percentage of affordable housing (per 

unit) had increased from 17.7 per cent (45 units) to 19.6 per cent (54 units). 

8.3 Officers detailed the proposed variation for each of the buildings, in turn. It was proposed 

that the fourth floor in buildings 1 and 2 would be all commercial space, not residential as 

was consented; the residential units lost from the fourth floor would be re-provided on the 

upper floors. 

8.4 In buildings 3, 4 and 6, it was proposed that the number of cores be reduced from two to 

one. This was to increase the number of residential units in the block. In building 3 it was 

proposed that the number of units increase from 60 to 64 and contain a number of market 

and affordable units. In building 4 it was proposed that the number of units increase from 

20 to 29; in building 6 that the number of units increase from 22 to 29. 

8.5 In building 7 it was proposed that a party wall be introduced and the refuse stores site be 

divided. The Committee noted that access to the refuse stores would remain as consented 

and that a detailed waste management strategy had been submitted. The proposed new 

Page 13



 
 

layout would result in the loss of one of the four duplex units on the ground floor, which 

would be re-provided as an additional single unit on an upper floor. The remaining three 

duplex units would be dual aspect. 

8.6 The Committee noted that the application was advertised in the Newham Recorder in 

January 2018, four site notices were displayed in and around the site and that 368 

neighbouring residential and commercial properties were consulted by post. No objections 

were received and there was general support for the scheme. 

8.7 Officers explained to the Committee that 60 percent of the units, which had been 

consented as Affordable Rent, were now proposed to be London Affordable Rent and that 

circa half of the 40 percent Shared Ownership units were offered at London Living Rent. 

There was also a degree of pepper potting in the variation, as nine additional units were 

proposed within building 3 and 45 units in building 7; as opposed to the extant consent 

where all the affordable housing was contained within just one building (building 7). 

8.8  Members noted that amendments had been made to the triggers to the remediation 

conditions 13 and 14 and that an informative on fire safety had been added. The applicant 

had submitted a section 96a non-material amendment application, which was to change 

the description of the development. Members queried whether the reduction in the number 

of cores would cause an increased fire risk. Officers reassured the Committee that the 

cores were fire protected and ventilated but that an informative had been included to the 

section 73 variation application reminding the applicant of their responsibilities for fire 

safety under the Building Regulations legislation. 

8.9 The Committee noted that the level of affordable housing, although it had been increased, 

was still relatively low and that the number of three bed units had been reduced. Officers 

advised Members that the 3 bedroom units in the affordable tenure had not been reduced. 

Members commented that three bed units were often not being sold because they were 

too expensive, developers were therefore reluctant to build them, which maintained the 

price of three bed units. Officers told the Committee that policy required 50 percent of 

units to be two beds or more and that the proposed units were of a good size meeting or 

exceeding policy requirements. The density of the scheme was in accordance with The 

London Plan. 

8.10 Ian Dubber, applicant, advised the Committee that the proposed increase in commercial 

space would partly form an operational base for the applicant and was partly as a result of 

growing demand within the LLDC area. In a response to Members questions regarding 

current occupation he said that sixty percent of the current commercial space was vacant 

as it was unfit for purpose. Existing tenants would be offered the chance to return to the 

proposed business space as required under the existing s106 legal agreement. 

8.11 Members commented that, whilst there were some positive aspects, overall the s. 73 

proposals were disappointing. The Committee had liked the previous architectural designs 

which included a recess between the commercial and residential floors to buildings 1 and 

2, which had been removed under the current proposals.  They also considered that the 

proposed changes to the mix of housing would not be advantageous. 

Page 14



 
 

8.12 Resolved (unanimously): 

8.12.1 The Committee resolved to defer the s. 73 application to allow officers to work with 
the applicant to consider the proposed architectural expression; to consider the 
proposed mix of units; and to consider how the development would provide a high 
quality living environment for future residents; to review the reduction in 3 bed 
units; and to reconsider the proposed amendments to the appearance of the 
amended buildings. 

9 55 - 69 Rothbury Road, E9 5HA 17/00112/FUL

[Councillor Terry Wheeler left the meeting at this point]

 
9.1 The Committee received the report of the Senior Planning Development Manager. A 

presentation was also provided. 

9.2 The Committee heard that the application was for the demolition of existing buildings and 

structures on the site and the erection of a five-storey building, plus basement level, with a 

total gross interior floorspace of 2,630 sqm. The application was for class B1 (business) 

floorspace. Growing businesses would be offered small units and shared services, and 

would be able to increase their unit size as the business grew. 

9.3 Consultation letters had been sent in March 2017 and a further consultation was 

undertaken in November 2017, following amendments to the scheme. Site notices were 

erected in April 2017 and again in November 2017. A press notice was published in April 

2017. Six neighbouring properties were consulted by post. No objections from the public or 

statutory and non-statutory organisations were received. 

9.4 The Committee was told that the application was supported by the LLDC. The building was 

proposed to be 22.25m to the top of the fifth storey and 23.8m to the top of the lift overrun, 

but this could largely be attributed to the fact that the Hackney Wick Design Code required 

generous floor to ceiling heights for business units. Sunlight test results against 

neighbouring blocks were acceptable and the QRP considered the application to have the 

potential to satisfy the requirements for BN10, subject to further refinements, which have 

now been incorporated into the scheme to the satisfaction of officers. 

9.5 An 8m gap between plot K1 and K2 had been proposed. It was envisaged that this would 

allow for off street cycle parking and access to bins and the heavy goods lift. The 

Committee noted the potential future use of the gap between blocks as a shared space or 

working yard. Officers felt that if the gap were to be required to be wider, it would change 

the proportions of the building development. 

9.6 The Committee received a presentation from Jan Donovan of Rolfe Judd Planning and 

Nick Makasis of GML Architects. Ms Donovan and Mr Makasis told the Committee that the 

applicant had successfully operated a similar site in Waltham Abbey for over three years. 

The Committee’s attention was drawn to the fact that two lifts had been proposed: a goods 

Page 15



 
 

lift and a regular lift, which gave opportunities for occupiers to move heavier goods and 

equipment.

9.7 Members asked whether the windows were considered to be too close to the shared 

property boundary. Officers confirmed that the windows would look over a courtyard space, 

as envisaged by the approved Hackney Wick Masterplan. The surrounding land is owned 

by LLDC and it was satisfied that   this would not prejudice future sites coming forward for 

development in the future as the parameters of this development were broadly in 

accordance with those proposed within the HW masterplan.  

9.8 Members heard that rents would be set at roughly £30sq foot and that five per cent of 

overall workspace would be offered at affordable rates, for five years. This was the 

equivalent of 3 units.  

9.9 Resolved (seven votes in favour; one against): 

9.9.1 To APPROVE the application for the reasons given in the report and grant planning 
permission subject to: 

1. the conditions set out in this report; and 

2. the satisfactory completion of a legal agreement under s.106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers to secure the planning 
obligations set out in the recommended heads of terms which are set out in 
this report.

9.9.2 to DELEGATE AUTHORITY to the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions to: 

1. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report, including such 
refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the Director of 
Planning Policy and Decisions considers necessary;

2. finalise the recommended legal agreement under s.106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this report,
including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the obligations 
detailed in the heads of terms set out in this report as the Director of Planning 
Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary; and

3. complete the s.106 agreement and issue the decision notice. 

10 Cherry Park, Stratford City, Zone 1 18/00061/REM & 18/00067/NMA

10.1 The Committee received the update report of the Senior Planning Development Manager. 

A presentation was also provided. 

10.2 The Committee heard that the applications were for non-material amendments to a hybrid 

(part full/part outline) planning consent 15/00358/OUT and a reserved matters application 

Page 16



 
 

for the residential, commercial and landscaping that was given outline planning permission 

in the hybrid planning consent. 

10.3 The Officer detailed changes under the non-material amendment application. Namely an 

increase in height to Blocks A1, A3 and A4 - small amendments to the location of Blocks 

A1, A3 and A4 - reconfiguration of Block A2 commercial floorspace - amendments to the 

massing of Block C - amendments to the basement levels. 

10.4 Members were shown the details of the reserved matters scheme proposal. This included 

the layout and spacing of the blocks, public realm layout, layouts and facades of the 

towers, mansion blocks, and amenity space for residents. The Committee noted that the 

QRP supported the façade as a simple and non-fussy way to crown the building. 

10.5 Consultation letters for the reserved matters application were sent out in February 2018. 

The Committee heard that the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority had 

submitted an objection. The issues raised would form part of the building regulations 

approval.

10.6 The Committee heard from the applicant, Mr Chris Goddard, DP9. Mr Goddard told the 

Committee that the residential scheme is 100 per cent private rental and that off-site 

affordable housing had been agreed with the GLA and the LLDC in the outline consent. 

There was no planned increase in the number of units or floors; the increase in height was 

for the installation of comfort cooling and to improve the quality of the units. 

10.7 Members queried how the extensive gates and railings would be used through the 

scheme. The applicant confirmed that gates and railings would be in place to control 

access to Cherry Park during night time hours. During the day it would be freely 

accessible. 

10.8 The Committee asked, given the size of the development, what was planned to ensure that 

a community developed. The applicant told the Committee that the residents’ hub would 

form the focal point of community events and people would be encouraged to be a resident 

for the long term. 

10.9 The applicant told the Committee that there were no single-aspect, north-facing units. All 

units were proposed to be north west or north east facing. In response to a question by a 

member regarding the high number of units off a core in one of the tall buildings, Officers 

told the Committee that they had gone through the Housing Supplementary Planning 

Guidance (SPG) and determined that deviations from the SPG were not adverse, and nor 

would they result in low quality units. Officers were satisfied with the overall architectural 

impact and that the mansion blocks contrasted well with the towers.

10.10 Resolved (two votes in favour; five abstentions): 

10.10.1To AGREE 18/00067/NMA Non-Material Amendments to application 15/00358/OUT 
being an increase in height to Blocks A1, A3 and A4, small amendments to the 
location of Blocks A1, A3 and A4, reconfiguration of Block A2 commercial 

Page 17



 
 

floorspace, amendments to the massing of Block C, amendments to the basement 
levels with the amended drawings as set out in section 13 of this report. 

10.10.2 To APPROVE 18/00061/REM the Reserved Matters application in respect of access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the development comprising 1,224 
residential units (101,639 sqm GEA) and 3,300sqm GEA of commercial floorspace 
with landscaped public realm and private amenity space, ancillary residential 
amenity space, basement car and cycle parking, residential servicing, plant and 
storage.

11 Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority

11.1 The Committee received the report of the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions and 

its appendices, which listed all the decisions taken by officers between 1 and 30 April 

2018. Officers highlighted that 37 decisions had been taken, 94 per cent of applications 

were dealt with within target time and only one refusal had been issued.

11.2 Resolved: 

11.2.1 That the report and attached appendix be noted.  

12 Any Urgent Business

12.1 There was no urgent business. 

13 Close of Meeting

13.1 The meeting ended at 9.29 pm. 

Chairman  Date 

Contact Officer: Zena Hassan, Assistant Committee Secretary; Tel: 020 3288 8834; 
Email: planningcommittee@londonlegacy.co.uk

Page 18



Subject: Clarnico Quay, Eastwick, Development Parcel 5.3A, Planning 
Delivery Zone 5 (PDZ 5), Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park (ref: 
18/00171/FUL)

Meeting date: 24 July 2018 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anne Ogundiya, Principal Planning Development Manager 

FOR DECISION  

This report would be considered in public 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. The application seeks permission for an interim period for a variety of commercial 
uses arranged in 5 separate buildings, and envisaged to be in place for a 7-year 
period.  The buildings would be between 2 and 3 storeys in height providing 
776m² GIA of workshops/studios (B1); 131m² GIA of maker/retail space (B1/A1); 
417m² GIA of shops, cafes and bars (A1/A3/A4); 633m² GIA of pop-up shops, 
food hall and market stalls (A1/A3/A4); 490m² GIA event/community space (Sui 
Generis); 37m² GIA of community meeting rooms (D1). The proposals also 
include a mobile garden, and associated, landscape, cycle parking, 5 accessible 
parking bays and servicing.

1.2. The application site is located within Planning Delivery Zone 5 (PDZ 5), which is 
part of the Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) residential led mixed use outline 
planning permission approved under planning permission reference 
11/90621/OUTODA.  PDZ 5 comprises eleven Development Parcels of varying 
size.

1.3. The application site relates to Development Parcel 5.3A which is sited to the west 
of the Copper Box and the south-western end of the Here East development. 
Development Parcel 5.3A is part of the wider LCS Sweetwater and East Wick 
development. It is approximately 0.5 ha and is within the final phase of the East 
Wick and Sweetwater development (Phase 4) which is due to commence circa 
2026. The application has been submitted by Make Shift East Wick & Sweetwater 
Projects and LLDC. The proposals would not adversely affect delivery of LCS 
development at this plot. 

1.4. The proposed uses would provide a mix of co-working workshops, a community 
use unit, food and food/beverage outlets that would act as a stepping stone for 
businesses currently operating within Hackney Wick and Fish Island and seeking 
to relocate, or for those looking to locate to the area.  The employment offer has 
been designed to complement that proposed as part of the East Wick scheme 
and would, amongst other things, seek to nurture small businesses and 
independents - SMEs + retailers. The proposal is expected to generate up to 250 
full time equivalent jobs.   

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



1.5. The proposals would be managed by the Make Shift (joint applicant), including 
overseeing the construction. Make Shift would lease the Mobile Garden to Our 
Park Life. A management agreement would be in place between Make Shift and 
LLDC, as landowners.

1.6. The key issues to be considered in this application are: 

 Compliance and compatibility with the LCS outline planning permission; 

 Scale and urban design, including impact on the setting of the Hackney Wick 
Conservation Area and the Fish Island and White Post Lane Conservation 
Area;

 Impact on neighbouring properties (including hours of operation and noise); 

 Landscape and biodiversity; 

 Commercial impact; and 

 Transport and access arrangements. 

1.7. In summary, the layout, design, scale and height, appearance, means of access 
and landscaping of the proposed development are considered to be in 
accordance with the design principles approved as part of the LCS outline 
planning permission.  

1.8. Overall the proposals are considered to help to foster and encourage small 
businesses within the local area without having an adverse impact on the viability 
of existing town centre uses. The design is well-thought-out and would result in 
an attractive interim use and focus for the emerging LCS community. New jobs 
would be created, the development would provide affordable workspace for start-
up businesses and arts groups, and the increased footfall would result in an 
improved economic outlook for neighbouring businesses looking to relocate 
within the area. The proposal would also result in positive enhancements to the 
character and, appearance of the area and would enhance the setting of the 
adjacent Hackney Wick Conservation Area and the White Post Lane and Fish 
Island and Conservation Area, which is 38m to the south west of the site. The 
proposed development is not considered to cause material harm to the amenities 
of nearby residents both existing and emerging.  

1.9. The NPPF promotes economic growth (such as new employment and 
commercial uses), in order to enhance their vitality and to create jobs and 
prosperity. The London Plan promotes the provision of new employment and 
cultural development particularly where they, ’address deficiencies in facilities 
and provide a cultural focus to foster more sustainable local communities.’  

1.10. The proposals are strongly supported by the LLDC Quality Review Panel. The 
application demonstrates that the development is acceptable. No objections have 
been received.

1.11. The application is recommended for approval for a temporary period.  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. The Committee is invited to: 

(a) APPROVE the application 18/00171/FUL for the reasons given in the 
report and grant full planning permission subject to the conditions set 
out in this report.

(b) AGREE TO DELEGATE AUTHORITY to the Director of Planning Policy 
and Decisions to approve the application subject to the conditions and 
informatives set out in section 13 of the report including refinements, 

Page 20



amendments, additions and/or deletions as the Director of Planning 
Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary. 

3.   FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1. There are no financial implications

4.   LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. The recommendation is that planning permission be granted, subject to 
conditions.

Site Plan 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100050265

Location:  Clarnico Quay Development Parcel 5.3A, Planning 
Delivery Zone 5, Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park 

London Borough:   Hackney

Proposal:   Application for full planning permission for the construction 
of five buildings between 2 and 3 storeys high providing 
776m²  GIA of workshops/studios (B1); 131m²  GIA of 
maker/retail space (B1/A1); 417m²  GIA of shops, cafes 
and bars (A1/A3/A4); 633m²  GIA of pop-up shops, food 
hall and market stalls (A1/A3/A4); 490m²  GIA 
event/community space (Sui Generis); 37m²  GIA of 
community meeting rooms (D1); and associated cycle 
parking, servicing, management, lighting and landscape, a 
mobile garden, including associated buildings and 
structures, such as raised planters, storage containers, 
flexible programming space, boundary treatment and 
associated infrastructure. The buildings, structures and 
uses would cease on or before 30th September 2025. No 
later than 3 months after that date the land would be 
reinstated in accordance with a scheme which would have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

Page 21



Applicants:  Make Shift, East Wick and Sweetwater Projects and the 
London Legacy Development Corporation 

Agent:    Quod

Architecture &   Carl Turner Architects 

Design Lead

5. SITE & SURROUNDINGS  

5.1. The site comprises an irregular piece of land of approximately 0.5ha.  It is located 
within Development Parcel 5.3A of Planning Delivery Zone (PDZ) 5 of the Legacy 
Communities Scheme., and is located to the south west of East Wick Phase 1, 
west of the Copper Box Arena and to the east of Canal Park.  

5.2. PDZ 5 is located within the north-western part of the LCS site and comprises 11 
development parcels. It is located to the north west of the Queen Elizabeth Olympic 
Park within the London Borough of Hackney. PDZ5 measures approximately 16.7 
hectares and is bounded to the west by the River Lea Navigation; to the south by 
the London Overground Railway Line; to the east by the Parklands and to the north 
by the Eastway. PDZ5 excludes the Copper Box, Press and Broadcast Centres 
(Here East) and Multi-Storey Car Park.  

5.3. Waterden Road is the primary access road through the area, with tertiary roads 
running east to west providing access to the Copper Box and the new primary 
school in development parcel 5.10. A new north south tertiary road is also located 
between the school site and Development Parcel 5.5. There are currently two bus 
stops located on Waterden Road and Hackney Wick Station is located within a 
short walk of the Wallis Road (H10) Bridge on the western edge of the site. 

6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) – 11/90621/OUTODA

6.1. On 28th September 2012, planning permission was granted for the following 
development on ‘Land within The Olympic Park and Land at Pudding Mill Lane; 
Land at Bridgewater Road; and Land at Rick Roberts Way’: 

6.2. ‘Comprehensive, phased, mixed use development within the future Queen 
Elizabeth Olympic Park, as set out in the Revised Development Specification & 
Framework (LCS-GLB-APP-DSF-002). The development comprises up to 641,817 
m²  of residential (C3) uses, including up to 4,000 m²  of Sheltered Accommodation 
(C3); up to 14,500m²  of hotel (C1) accommodation; up to 30,369 m²  (B1a) and up 
to 15,770 m²  (B1b/B1c) business and employment uses; up to 25,987 m²  (A1-A5) 
shopping, food and drink and financial and professional services; up to 3,606 m²  
(D2) leisure space and up to 31,451m²  (D1) community, health, cultural, assembly 
and education facilities, including two primary schools and one secondary school; 
new streets and other means of access and circulation, construction of open and 
covered car parking; landscaping including laying out of open space with provision 
for natural habitats and play space; new and replacement bridge crossings, re-
profiling of site levels, demolition and breaking out of roads and hardstanding, 
utilities diversions and connections; and other supporting infrastructure works and 
facilities’.

6.3. The quantum of development was to be distributed across seven Planning Delivery 
Zones (PDZs) and the Revised Development Specification and Framework 
specifies the floorspace for each use in each of the PDZs. 

6.4. In respect of Planning Delivery Zone 5 (East Wick) the LCS outline planning 
permission grants outline approval for a maximum of 116,711m2 of floor space to 
include the following m2 and GEA: 

Page 22



Table 1 - LCS Planning Permission 

Residential Retail Employmen
t

Leisure Community 
facilities

C3 A1-
A2

A3/A4/A5 A1-
A5

B1a B1 
b/c

D2 D1 

96,097 1,000 2,850 3,268 5,389 3,612 1,457 6,888 

6.5. The consent also requires provision of a primary school, two nursery schools, 
flexible cultural space and flexible community space in PDZ5.  

6.6. Four door-step play spaces are also to be provided, each with a minimum of 
100sqm and jointly providing a minimum of 523sqm within PDZ5. A minimum of 
828sqm of Local Play Space shall be provided and two Youth Play Spaces each 
with a minimum of 500sqm and jointly providing 1,150sqm are also required. 

6.7. LCS Accelerated Delivery (14/00036/VAR): On 11 August 2014, the LLDC 
approved the acceleration of the delivery of Planning Delivery Zones 4 and 5 of the 
LCS through the approval of two applications to (i) vary the outline site wide 
phasing plan pursuant to condition LCS0.49 of the LCS outline planning permission 
(14/00035/AOD) and (ii) reinstate the building line of SPDZ 5B through the removal 
of condition LCS0.290 (Ref: 14/00036/VAR). The latter application was made 
under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act and effectively resulted in 
a reissue of the original consent for the LCS scheme, with relevant conditions 
removed and varied. This had the effect of creating a new planning permission for 
the LCS scheme and required variations to the s106. 

6.8. East Wick primary school (14/00464/REM): An application for the reserved matters 
approval for the first primary school within the outline LCS planning permission, 
was approved in September 2015 (ref. 14/00464/REM). At the time of this 
application, a zonal masterplan for PDZ 5 had not been approved. Whilst the 
conditions of LCS require zonal masterplans for each PDZ to be submitted and 
approved in advance of any reserved matters application being submitted, schools 
fall within the definition of ‘Excepted Infrastructure’ and therefore East Wick primary 
school was able to be brought forward in advance of zonal masterplans being 
approved for PDZ 5. The primary school also necessitated non-material 
amendments to the LCS outline planning permission to allow for a reduction in the 
minimum height in development parcel 5.10, relocation of local play, alterations to 
cut and fill and levels, alterations to the parcel boundary for 5.10 and a reduction 
in the minimum floorspace from 4,912sqm to 3,148sqm (ref. 14/00461/NMA). The 
school is located within development parcel 5.10 on the western side of PDZ5. 

6.9. Zonal Masterplan – Planning Delivery Zone 5 – (15/00473/NMA and 
15/00472/AOD): The East Wick Zonal Masterplan (ZMP) for PDZ5 was approved 
in December 2015. These permissions granted non- material amendments to vary 
certain Site Wide and PDZ5 Parameter Plans, the PDZ5 Design Codes and the 
Revised Development Specification and Framework approved under the LCS 
outline planning permission. These included amendments to approved ground and 
upper floor predominant land uses, maximum and minimum building heights, open 
spaces and play spaces, access and routes and residential density parameters.  

6.10. The approved zonal masterplan builds upon the framework set out within the LCS. 
A key design move approved within the ZMP is the introduction of a new “diagonal 
link” through East Wick, linking Hackney Wick with the North Park and Velodrome. 
The diagonal link will establish a key visual connection between the new 
neighbourhood, the Olympic Park and the City of London and act as a visual 
wayfinding tool. A walk through the sequence of squares will provide expanding 
views of the North Park and the legacy buildings as the view gradually opens up. 
This design intervention necessitated the majority of the changes to the 
arrangement of uses across the PDZ and the placement of buildings of height. 

Page 23



6.11. East Wick - Phase 1 (16/00520/REM): PDZ 5 is located in the north-western part 
of the LCS site and comprises 11 development parcels. Phase 1 of PDZ5 which is 
known as ‘East Wick’ and relates to development parcels 5.5 and 5.9 and 
Reserved Matters were approved in February 2017 for 302 residential units 
1,772.6sqm GIA of retail/leisure (A1-A5), 1,013.1sqm GIA of flexible employment 
space (B1b/c), a 202.3sqm GIA estate management office (B1a) and a 410sqm 
GIA nursery (D1), with associated car parking, hard and soft landscaping, public 
realm, streetscape and associated works. Construction of phase 1 is to commence 
later this year.  

6.12. Mobile Garden (17/00012/FUL) – Development Parcel 5.3A: Planning permission 
was granted in June 2017 for the relocation of a mobile garden in Chobham Manor 
to East Wick Development Parcel 5.3A, which is the application site for the 
application currently being considered. The permission consented temporary use 
of the land (1,036sqm) until 31st December 2020 for a community garden 
comprising raised planters, storage containers, water tanks, flexible programming 
space, boundary treatment and associated infrastructure. Approval is now being 
sought to relocate the mobile garden on the lower level of the site, as a result of 
the proposal for interim uses as part of the Clarnico Quay application. 

6.13. Canal Park (13/00305/REM): Also relevant was the approval of a reserved matters 
application for hard and soft landscaping within the Canal Park (ref. 
13/00508/REM) in August 2013 which runs along the western edges of PDZ5.  

6.14. Interim Uses Protocol (13/00087/AOD): Details in relation to the Interim Uses 
Protocol were approved in April 2013. The Interim Uses Protocol sets out the 
process for when the protocol is to be used (following an initial consideration of 
whether the use/event is in itself EIA development), the environmental filters to be 
applied to the uses and events to determine whether their impact should be 
mitigated in environmental terms and how mitigation is then to be secured. The 
protocol also covers monitoring and review (an Interim Use Tracker is to be 
updated and submitted with each application for interim use/events; a six-month 
forward programme of events/uses to be provided as part of the Events 
Management Coordination Framework requirements and the protocol document 
itself to be reviewed after 6 months and thereafter as agreed. 

7. APPLICATION PROPOSALS 

7.1. The applicant is seeking a temporary seven-year planning permission for the uses 
set out below, prior to permanent development coming forward as part of the East 
Wick phase 4 development at Clarnico Quay.  

7.2. The proposals would be managed by the Make Shift (joint applicant), including 
overseeing the construction. Make Shift would lease the Mobile Garden to Our 
Park Life. A management agreement would be in place between Make Shift and 
LLDC, as landowners.  Make Shift design, build and manage new public 
destinations that house communities of local, independent businesses. They offer 
support to users and actively connect members. They are the management team 
behind, ‘Pop Brixton’ a successful meanwhile use operating from an underused 
multi-story carpark until 2020 which houses a number of businesses, and 
‘Peckham Levels’ a similar meanwhile use. 

7.3. Whilst the expected opening hours for the A3/A4 and Sui Generis space would be 
subject to separate licensing applications the general opening hours are proposed 
to be as follows: 

 Sunday – Wednesday: 7AM – Midnight 

 Thursday – Saturday: 7AM – 1AM 

Page 24



7.4. It is currently proposed that the licensed hours would be: 

 Sunday – Wednesday: 10AM – Midnight 

 Thursday – Saturday: 10AM – 1AM 

 It is proposed that there would be no amplified music after 10PM 

7.5. The applicant proposes the following uses to be split between the five building 
blocks and outside space:

Table 2 - Summary Area Schedule (GIA)

Use Block A Block B Block C Block D Block
E

Outdoor Total

Shops/Cafes/B
ars (A1/A3/A4) 

244.3m²  - 75.8m²  - 96.5 m²  -  416.6 m²   

Pop-up
Retail/Food
Hall/Market
Stalls
(A1/A3/A4)

- 458.6 m²  - - - 174.0 m²   632.6 m²   

Workshops/St
udios (B1) 

- - -  346.8 m²  428.8
m²  

-  775.6 m²   

Maker/Retail
(B1/A1) 

- - - 38.4m²  92.0 m²    130.4 m²   

Event/Commu
nity Space (Sui 
Generis)

158.9m²   - 330.5m²  - - - 489.4 m²   

Community
Meeting
Rooms (D1) 

- - - - 36.7 m²    36.7 m²   

BOH/Services 92.2 m²   60.5 m²   15.5 m²   86.4 m²   257.1 
m²   

-  511.7 m²   

Total  496.1 m²   519.1 m²  421.8 m²  471.6 m²  911.1 
m²   

174.0 m²   2,993m²  

7.6. Block A (public space and public facilities) would be located to the north-western 
section of the site and comprise a pub, community hall and two restaurants. Block
A houses two floors of private units for hire by artists, designers and small 
businesses.  These are designed as compact dedicated spaces that would offer a 
semi-permanent home to the area’s creative workers. The building would include 
a steel structure in order to be easily disassembled and reused. The façade would 
be made up of corrugated metal cladding, clear glass windows and translucent 
corrugated roof lights. Block A would be heated and insulated and there would be 
provision for mechanical extract ventilation. 

7.7. Block B (food stalls) would be located to the west side of the upper level adjacent 
to Block A. Block B would comprise pop-up food stalls and a food hall over two 
storeys. They are designed as compact and would offer affordable space for early-
stage entrepreneurs. The building would comprise of corrugated metal cladding, 

Page 25



clear glass windows, translucent corrugated roof lights but would also have sliding 
façade panels which would allow the building to be opened up to the courtyard in 
warm weather. Block B would not be heated or insulated, but would include 
mechanical ventilation.  

7.8. Block C (culture and events space) would be located in the south west section of 
the upper level of the site and would form the end of the long west elevation facing 
the canal. Block C would comprise a flexible event space and bar within a double 
height building It would function as the large event space designed to 
accommodate up to 400 people. The uses would include live music, theatre 
performances and entertainment events.  The applicant has advised that the space 
would be available for free hire to the local community 25% of the time.  The 
building would include a steel structure in order to be easily disassembled and 
reused. The façade would be made up of corrugated metal cladding, clear glass 
windows and sliding doors. Block C would be insulated including acoustic 
insulation and mechanical ventilation.  

7.9. Block D (‘heart’ of the maker space) would be located on the east side of the upper 
level adjacent to the access road. Block D would comprise of workshops, maker/ 
retail units and co-working spaces over two storeys. Block D would have its own 
yard serving as spill-out maker space for the workshops. The maker units may also 
have a shopfront to sell their products to passing visitors. The structure would be 
made from load bearing block-work walls with timber trusses. Charred vertical 
timber boards are proposed for the building façade, a weather-proof and durable 
materials, and clear glass openable windows and sliding doors. Block D would be 
heated and insulated.  

7.10. Block E (maker retail units, co-working, café/canteen, studios and offices) would 
be located at the north of the upper level of the site and is the largest of the five 
buildings, with three storeys. It would comprise a café, maker/retail units at ground 
floor with studio space and community meeting rooms over the first and second 
floors. Block E is the largest building on the site, acting as a multifunctional block 
that includes the majority of Clarnico Quay’s studio space, as well as community 
café and dual-purpose maker and retail units. The building would be made from a 
steel structure of corrugated metal cladding, clear glass windows and translucent 
roof lanterns. Block E would be heated and insulated and there would be provision 
for mechanical extract ventilation.  

7.11. All of the units would have 3.5m floor to ceiling heights. 

7.12. Open Space: In terms of landscaping, the proposals would maintain the existing 
Canal Park landscaping approved under ref: 13/00508/REM. The upper level 
would be surfaced with tarmac and shingle which is proposed to be the most 
durable material for the proposed activities.  

7.13. Additionally, a temporary community garden is proposed to the north west of the 
lower site of this part of the Canal Park. The mobile garden would be moved from 
Chobham Manor and is designed to be flexible with the ability to move again at a 
later date to an alternative location on the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park once 
development commences on East Wick Development Parcel 5.3A. 

Page 26



Table 3 – Building Dimensions 

Buildings Total GIA 

(m2)

Maximum
Storeys 

Maximum
height to 
ridge
(metres)

Length of 
Building

(metres)

Depth of 
Building

(metres)

Block A 496.1 2 9 25 13 

Block B 519.1 2 9 25 13 

Block C 421.8 1 11 20 23 

Block D 471.6 2 9 27 10 

Block E 911.1 3 14 24 13 

7.14. The Mobile Garden would comprise three zones: 

 Zone 1 – moveable furniture and BBQ area 

 Zone 2 – placement of containers and sheds; and 

 Zone 3 – Fenced garden zone and planting 

8. POLICIES & GUIDANCE 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 

8.1. The policies contained within the NPPF are material considerations in the 
determination of planning applications. The NPPF recommends that due weight 
should be given to relevant Local Plan policies according to their degree of 
consistency with the NPPF. The NPPF makes clear that local planning authorities 
should be positive and proactive in encouraging sustainable growth and addressing 
barriers to investment.  

8.2. The NPPF should be read in conjunction with the National Planning Practice 
Guidance.

8.3. The following sections of the NPPF are considered relevant to this planning 
application: 

Achieving sustainable development 

Section 1: Building a strong, competitive economy 

Section 7: Requiring good design 

Section 8: Promoting healthy communities 

Section 10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 
change 

8.4. The adopted ‘Development Plan’ is the London Legacy Development Corporation 
Local Plan 2015 – 2031 (July 2015) and The London Plan (2016).  

Page 27



8.5. The most relevant policies are listed below:

The London Plan (March 2016) 

Policy 2.4 The 2012 Games and their legacy 

Policy 2.9 Inner London 

Policy 2.14 Areas for regeneration 

Policy 4.1 Developing London’s economy 

Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage 

Policy 5.21 Contaminated Land 

Policy 6.3 Assessing the effects of development on transport capacity 

Policy 6.9 Cycling 

Policy 6.10 Walking 

Policy 6.13 Parking 

Policy 7.2 An inclusive environment 

8.6. The Mayor of London published for the purpose of public consultation a draft new 
London Plan on 29th November 2017. The policies in the draft new London Plan 
currently have only very limited material weight when making planning decisions. 
That weight will increase once the new plan is submitted for its Examination in 
Public. This report may make reference to policies within the new London Plan 
where they are directly relevant to the assessment of the application proposal, 
however, the relevant development plan policies remain those within the current 
London Plan (March 2015) and the LLDC Local Plan (July 2015). 

8.7. London Legacy Development Corporation Local Plan (July 2015) 

Policy SD.1: Sustainable Development 

Policy B1: Location and maintenance of employment uses 

Policy B.2: Thriving town, neighbourhood and local centres 

Policy B.3: Creating vitality through interim uses 

Policy B.4: Providing low-cost and managed workspace 

Policy B.5: Increasing local access to jobs, skills and employment training 

Policy SP.3: Integrating the built and natural environment 

Policy BN.1: Responding to place 

Policy BN.2: Creating distinctive waterway environments 

Policy BN.3: Maximising biodiversity 

Policy BN.5: Requiring inclusive design 

Policy BN.7: Improving Local Open Space 

Policy BN.9: Protecting key views 

Policy BN.11: Reducing noise and improving air quality 

Policy BN.16: Preserving or enhancing heritage assets 

Policy T.4: Managing development and its transport impacts 

Policy T.8: Parking and parking standards in new development 

Policy T.9: Providing for pedestrians and cyclists 

Policy SP.5: A sustainable and healthy place to live and work 

Page 28



Policy S.2: Energy in new development 

Policy S.3: Energy infrastructure and heat networks 

Policy S.4: Sustainable design and construction 

Policy S.5: Water supply and waste water disposal 

Policy S.6: Waste reduction 

Policy S.7: Overheating and urban greening 

Policy S.8: Flood risk and sustainable drainage measures 

Sub Area 1: Hackney Wick and Fish Island 

8.8. Other Material Considerations: 

Mayor of London – Olympic Legacy SPG (2012) 

Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy (2010) 

9. CONSULTATIONS 

9.1. A total of 377 neighbour notification letters were sent to surrounding residents, 
local businesses and local interest groups. The application was advertised in the 
Hackney Today newspaper publication on the 30th April 2018 and 4 site notices 
were placed around the application site on the 13th April 2018. The notification 
period closed on the 20th May 2018.  

9.2. A local business has written in support of the application stating that they 
appreciate the sensitivity to local conditions and residents means that they have a 
thoughtful approach to economic growth.  

9.3. A local resident has also written in to support the application stating that the 
scheme would add much needed artist, events and performance spaces to an area 
of the park that isn’t being used and would add jobs, entertainment and visitors to 
the area.

9.4. A number of organisations were consulted. The consultation period closed on the 
3rd May 2018.  

9.5. Docklands Light Railway Limited: On the 22nd April 2018 Docklands Light 
Railway Limited commented that they have reviewed the application from an 
infrastructure protection perspective and have no comments to make.  

9.6. LB Hackney Transport (Streetscene): On the 17th May 2018 LB Hackney 
(transport) commented that they have no objection to the proposal subject to: 

 Increase in long term secure, sheltered cycle parking; 

 Commitment to monitor visitor cycle parking; 

 Delivery Service Plan – that includes a commitment to encourage sustainable 
and deliveries; and 

 Travel Plan. 

9.7. Officer Response:  Officers are satisfied that there are suitable conditions that 
respond to the comments raised by LB Hackney. 

9.8. London Borough of Hackney – Sustainable Urban Drainage Team: On the 2nd

May 2018 the LB Hackney Sustainable Urban Drainage Officer commented that 
they have not been able to assess the drainage proposal and as a result they are 
unable to support the application as it has not been demonstrated that the 
proposed development would not increase the risk of flooding on and offsite and 
provide SUDs where appropriate. The drainage strategy should refer and comply 
with the London Plan policy 5.13, supplementary planning guidance (SPG) on 

Page 29



sustainable design and construction and the adopted Hackney Development 
Management Local Plan policy DM43. 

9.9. Applicant Response: A Drainage Strategy Statement has been issued to LB 
Hackney addressing the comments raised. The applicant has advised that the 
drainage network has been designed to accommodate the LCS scheme which is 
significantly larger than the proposed development and is therefore sufficient to 
accommodate the proposed scheme. LB Hackney have asked for clarification from 
Thames Water that the network has the capacity to take the scheme.  Thames 
Water have provided this clarification to officers.  Officers consider that the further 
information submitted addresses the comments raised. 

9.10. Historic England – Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service: On the 
20th April 2018, HE GLAAS recommended that no archaeological requirement is 
necessary for the application. In view of the lightweight non-permanent buildings 
GLAAS do not recommend archaeological investigation. 

9.11. HS1 Ltd: On the 23rd April 2018, Network Rail (High Speed) Asset Protection 
recommended that a number of conditions (7) and 2 informatives are attached to 
any planning permission to ensure that their assets are protected. 

9.12. Applicant response: Clarnico Quay is an interim use scheme which does not 
include deep foundations, nor is piling proposed, or any other works that could 
affect the HS1 safeguarded area. For ease the proposed site layout has been 
overlain with the HS1 safeguarding. This shows that approximately half of Building 
E and a third of Building A are within the safeguarding area.   

9.13. As set out within the planning application, there is no piling proposed as part of this 
scheme.

9.14. For Buildings A to D, the foundations would be 300mm deep and use reinforced 
concrete rafts.  For Building E, the foundations would comprise a 350mm 
reinforced concrete raft. All would be cast over 50mm sand blinding. Very limited 
excavation works are proposed.   Section drawings show the foundations details 
for each building and demonstrates that there would no risk to the HS1 structure 
beneath.

9.15. Health and Safety Executive: On the 12th April 2018, the Health and Safety 
Executive commented that as the proposed development does not lie within the 
consultation distance of a major hazard site or major accident hazard pipeline.

9.16. Metropolitan Police: On the 10th May 2018, the Metropolitan Police responded
that a condition be imposed that requires the proposed development to achieve 
secured by design accreditation, for all the commercial aspects on completion of 
building work. 

9.17. Applicant Response: The arrangements set out in the Site Management Plan 
would reduce the opportunities for crime and contribute to a sense of security 
without being overbearing or intimidating by appropriate design and management 
in accordance with London Plan Policy 7.3.  

9.18. The proposals have considered crime and safety and Security Staff and CCTV 
would operate across the site at all times, 24/7. Security Industry Authority (SIA) 
licensed door supervisors would operate within the licensed space during hours to 
be determined in the licensing application.  

9.19. Security Lighting would be in use to complement the CCTV cameras and motion 
sensors.  

9.20. The scheme would be operated in accordance with the safety and security 
measures set out in the Site Management Plan.  

9.21. Officer Response:  Officers recognise the difficulty the applicant would have in 
achieving Secured by Design accreditation owing to the lightweight nature of the 

Page 30



structures proposed.  It is also acknowledged that some aspects of Secured by 
Design would be achieved via the Licensing route. 

9.22. London Cycling Campaign: On the 13th April 2018, the London Cycling 
Campaign commented that they note that the applicant proposes to exceed the 
minimum cycle parking requirements which they welcome. The London Cycling 
Campaign questioned whether the provision of cycle parking was sufficient for the 
event space. 

9.23. Officer Update: The applicant has stated that the total number of 75 spaces is for 
the whole site. No additional provision is planned for the event space. There would 
be a wide range of events to use the event space all of varying degree of sizes 
therefore it is not anticipated that every event would require the number of cycle 
spaces that is identified within the LCC response. Additionally, certain events 
within the event space would take place out of normal working hours (Monday-
Friday 9-5) meaning a number of spaces for the proposed B1 uses would indeed 
be available for larger events.  

9.24. London Overground Infrastructure Management: On the 22nd April 2018, the 
London Overground Infrastructure Management confirmed that they have no 
objections from an infrastructure protection perspective.  

9.25. London Fire Brigade: On the 2nd May 2018 the London Fire Brigade Fire Safety 
Inspecting Officer commented that the development should comply with Part B5 
Approved Document B for London Fire Brigade Access.  

9.26. Natural England: On the 20th April 2018, Natural England commented that a 
planning condition relating to Construction Code of Conduct should be attached to 
any planning permission 

9.27. PPDT Officer response: Condition attached.  

9.28. Hydrological Pollution: In addition to this Natural England went on to comment that 
any assessment should detail how hydrological pollution via runoff would be 
prevented from entering established habitats.  

9.29. Applicant Response: the existing site is served by an extensive network of surface 
water drainage including Thames Water sewers. The existing Canal Park habitats 
at the lower part of the site will therefore not be affected by hydrological pollution 
via run off from the construction of Clarnico Quay. 

9.30. Lighting: In relation to lighting, Natural England commented that if any major events 
were hosted at the site a condition should be attached to any planning permission 
requiring the details of any lighting associated with such an event to be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority. In relation to major events Natural England went 
on to comment that major events should include appropriate notices and 
informative for site workers and the general public.  

9.31. Applicant Response: External lighting and light spill from inside the buildings will 
not exceed 2 lux over the canal, in accordance with Canal River Trust advice, so 
that it does not impact the bat corridor. The proposals are therefore not considered 
to have any adverse impact on BAP habitats. 

9.32. In relation to species-rich grassland Natural England commented that they would 
advise against revising any area targeted for species rich grassland in favour of 
other habitats listed for creation works on site, for example amenity grassland.  

9.33. Applicant Response: The existing wild lawn and trees, including one legacy tree 
will remain as existing at the lower level of the site, the Canal Park. 

9.34. Specifically, in relation to landscaping, Natural England commented that they 
would recommend that any landscaping uses native species preferably of local 
provenance. Additionally, Natural England stated that they would like to see the 
innovative BAP work extended to the boundaries of the Olympic Park and that an 

Page 31



excellent opportunity exists with this application to take the blueprint of the BAP 
and apply it to the foundations for a legacy on a landscape scale.  

9.35. PPDT Officer Response: BAP habitats are only located at the lower section of the 
site which forms part of the Canal Park. The temporary buildings and hard 
landscaping are proposed on the upper level of the site only. The existing wild lawn 
and trees, including one legacy tree, and the youth play space would remain as 
existing at the lower level of the site, the Canal Park. The development proposed 
on the Canal Park only relates to the temporary mobile garden. It is therefore 
considered that the existing habitats at the Canal Park would not be adversely 
affected by the interim use proposals. 

9.36. Where any additional planting is proposed it would be of local provenance. 

9.37. Natural England recommend that works should commence outside of the breeding 
bird season (March – September). Natural England have also recommended that 
nest boxes for swifts and nesting opportunities for Black Redstarts are included in 
conjunction with habitat creation in and around the Olympic Park.  

9.38. Natural England commented that they would welcome the incorporation of green 
or brown roofs wherever possible.  

9.39. Officer Response: Addressed in paragraphs 10.32 and 10.33. 

9.40. Applicant Response: The proposals for Clarnico Quay have been designed 
alongside the Canal Park landscape and include the mobile garden. External 
lighting and light spill from inside the buildings would not exceed 2 lux over the 
canal so that it does not impact the bat corridor. The proposals are therefore not 
considered to have any adverse impact on BAP habitat. 

9.41. London Underground Infrastructure Protection: On the 2nd May 2018 London 
Underground Infrastructure Protection advised that they have no comments to 
make on the application. 

9.42. Transport for London: On the 30th April 2018 TfL commented that overall the 
impact of the scheme is not expected to be significantly different to the approved 
planning permission for the site in addition to no significant impact on the capacity 
of the local highway or public transport network,  

9.43. TfL welcome that there would not be any car parking provided beyond the five blue 
badge spaces and six delivery and servicing bays.  

9.44. TfL consider the provision of 75 cycle parking spaces to be sufficient, but that the 
applicant should monitor the use of cycle parking as the site is occupied with the 
potential to increase cycle parking in order to avoid ‘fly-parking’.  

9.45. TfL go on to state that the applicant would be aware of LCS site wide Travel Plan 
and Delivery and Servicing Plans and it would be for the occupiers to manage 
schedules of deliveries to avoid disruption to pedestrian and cycle access.  

9.46. In conclusion TfL have stated that they would not object to this application being 
approved.

9.47. Thames Water: On the 8th May 2018 Thames Water commented that in relation 
to both waste and water they would not have any objections and have requested 
that a number of standard informatives are attached to any planning permission. 

9.48. Other Consultees

9.49. The following consultees were notified of the application however did not respond: 

Affordable Wick, British Transport Police, Canal & River Trust, Copper Box 
Arena, DCLG, Department for Transport, E20 Community and Cultural Interest 
Organisation, E20 East Enders Fishing Trust, East End Waterways Group, East 
London Waste Authority, EDF Energy PLC, Emergency Planning Service, Engie 

Page 32



Limited, Environment Agency, Eton Mission Rowing Club, Greater London 
Authority, Greenwich Leisure Limited, Hackney Wick and Fish Island CIC, 
Hackney Wick and Fish Island Regeneration, Health Protection Agency, Here 
East, Heritage of London Trust, Hackney Wick and Fish Island Planning & 
Development Group, London Borough of Hackney Conservation, London 
Borough of Hackney Conservation and Design, London Borough of Hackney 
Development Management, London Borough of Hackney Employment Delivery, 
London Borough of Hackney Environment and Waste Strategy, London Borough 
of Hackney Highways and Transportation, London Borough of Hackney 
Neighbourhoods and Housing, London Borough of Hackney Pollution, Noise and 
Nuisance, London Borough of Newham Planning, London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets Planning, Lea Rivers Trust, Lee Valley Regional Park Authority, London 
& Continental Railways LTD, London Ambulance Service NHS Trust, London City 
Airport, London Power Networks, London Wildlife Trust, Manor Gardening 
Society, Met Police – North East Region, Mobile Garden City, Mossbourne 
Community Academy, National Grid, Network Rail, Sport England, Sustrans, The 
Hackney Society Planning Group and The Regents Network.

10. ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

10.1. The application site is located within the site allocation SA1.7 of the LLDC Local 
Plan which is located within Sub Area 1 – East Wick and Here East, Queen 
Elizabeth Olympic Park. Within PDZ 5 the LCS provides for up to 116,711m2 
floorspace (GEA) within the following use classes and maximum floorspace: 
residential (C3) 96,097m2; retail (A1-5) 3,268m2; employment (B1) 9,000m2; 
leisure (D2) 1,457m2; community facilities (D1) 6,888m2. 

10.2. The Clarnico Quay interim use scheme at Development Parcel 5.3A is proposed, 
to make use of the currently vacant site until work commences on the East Wick 
Phase 4 development, which is anticipated circa 2026. The buildings, structures 
and uses would cease on or before 30th September 2025. No later than 3 months 
after that date the land would be reinstated in accordance with a scheme which 
would have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

10.3. The key issues to be considered are compliance and compatibility with the LCS 
outline planning permission requirements, the scale and urban design and impact 
on setting of the Hackney Wick and the Fish Island and White Post Lane 
Conservation Areas, access arrangements, relationship with neighbouring 
properties including noise and hours of operation, landscape and biodiversity and 
commercial impact.

Principle of Development 

10.4. The Legacy Communities Scheme envisaged the interim use of sites prior to long 
term residential development coming forwards through the use of conditions 
LCS0.247 to LCS0.251 (approved under planning ref 13/00087/AOD) attached 
to the outline planning permission. These conditions set out the requirements for 
interim uses in the following documents:  

 Interim Uses Protocol; 

 Events Management Coordination Framework;  

 Interim Uses Statement Update 

10.5. The Interim Uses Protocol sets out the process for the consideration of the 
environmental impacts of all interim uses and events proposed within the LCS 
site. The Interim Uses Protocol is the principal measure to ensure that where 
interim uses and events are being brought forward, which were not subject to EIA 

Page 33



at LCS, they are mitigated and requires a suitable degree of environmental 
information to be submitted.

10.6. Officers and their environmental advisors are satisfied that the application 
submission has been developed in accordance with the Interim Uses Protocol 
and it is not considered that any of the environmental thresholds set out within 
the protocol are triggered either individually or cumulatively. Evidence of this is 
provided in an updated Interim Use Tracker which has been submitted in support 
of the application.  

10.7. Interim uses are supported by Local Plan Policy B.3 ‘Creating vitality through 
interim uses’ where they would not impact upon the deliverability of the site or 
extant planning permissions. Part 1 of policy B.3 sets out that proposals for 
temporary interim uses would be supported where:  

 ‘Land has been set aside for development in the longer term and the 
proposed interim uses would reinforce the long-term leisure, cultural or 
event-based uses; or  

 Managed or affordable workspace is proposed prior to delivery of long-term 
phased development with planning permission.’  

10.8. Under the LCS plot 5.3A has permission for a mixed-use development of up to 6 
storeys in height, comprising commercial development on the ground floor with 
residential accommodation on the upper floors.  

10.9. As required by parts 4 and 5 of Local Plan Policy B.3 officers are satisfied that 
the proposed interim uses ‘…would not impact upon the deliverability of the site 
allocations within this Local Plan or extant permanent planning permissions; and 
…the uses would have no unacceptable adverse impacts on the amenity or 
function of the existing permanent business or residential community….’ The 
proposed phasing at Clarnico Quay is consistent with the wider LCS 
development. The site would be leased to the applicant by LLDC on a short-term 
basis. Hence the applicant is seeking a 7-year temporary planning permission. 
The land would be reinstated once the interim uses cease. 

10.10. The proposed interim use of the site with small-scale workshops, studios, shops, 
bars and cafes with community and events space and associated public realm 
and landscape, would activate the site which currently lies vacant. The NPPF 
promotes economic growth (such as new employment and commercial uses), in 
order to enhance their vitality and to create jobs and prosperity. This aligns with 
the Local Plan Sub Area 1 policy which identifies this site as being within the new 
Neighbourhood Centre. 

10.11. Officers therefore consider that the proposed development is acceptable in 
principle and in accordance with the approved Interim Uses Protocol, Local Plan 
Sub Area 1 and Policy B.3 of the Local Plan.  

Scale and Urban Design, including Impact on the Setting of the Hackney 
Wick and White Post Lane and Fish Island Conservation Areas 

10.12. Policy SP.3 of the Local Plan requires development to integrate with the natural, 
built and historic environment to ensure a high-quality built and natural 
environment, by ensuring development contributes to place making, enhances its 
surroundings, maintains and promotes local distinctiveness, and supports 
delivery of the priorities for the various sub-areas. 

10.13. The site is located in the wider setting of the Hackney Wick Conservation Area 
and the Fish Island and White Post Lane Conservation Area (located immediately 
across the canal (some 38m to the south west of Hackney Wick Conservation 
Area, which is the nearest of the CAs). The site is vacant and does not contain 
any nationally designated heritage assets or non-designated (locally listed) 
assets. 

Page 34



10.14. PPDT’s Heritage Advisors consider the site in its current form to have a neutral 
impact on the setting of the Hackney Wick Conservation Area and the Fish Island 
and White Post Lane Conservation Area, and conclude that the proposals would 
enhance the wider setting of the Conservation Areas and contribute to the use of 
the area as an industrial/creative precinct. The proposals would enhance the 
visual presentation and appreciation of the presently disused site and wider 
setting of the conservation area. The proposal would contribute to the distinctive 
sense of place. 

10.15. The proposed new development has been designed to be sympathetic to the 
scale and industrial character of the conservation area by way of proposed scale, 
design and materiality. The proposal allows for open spaces and a variety of built 
forms (containing workspaces) which suit the character of the area and reduce 
scale and bulk across the development site by retaining areas of public open 
space, views and landscaping between built form. This is comparable to 
surrounding development in the conservation areas.  

10.16. The proposed design of built form across the site, rather than construction of one 
large building on the site, reduces the visual impact of the proposed new 
development. The proposed scale of the new development would be domestically 
scaled and between 2-3 storeys distributed across the site, which is consistent 
with the character and scale of commercial buildings in the Hackney Wick 
Conservation Area and Fish Island Conservation Area.  

10.17. The proposed built form and variety of gabled and pitched roof forms reflects the 
built and roof forms of industrial buildings in the conservation area. The proposed 
development is contemporary in appearance yet picks up on the design cues and 
material palettes of the surrounding area, such as the use of aluminium cladding 
reflecting the area’s industrial heritage and roof typology. The proposed 
materiality and colour schemes (wrought iron, brick and neutral colour schemes) 
suits the industrial character of the area.  The Quality Review Panel (QRP) 
comment that ‘… the choice of materials can be expected to result in impressive 
and interesting buildings...’ 

10.18. The QRP gives ‘…its enthusiastic support to the proposal for Clarnico Quay and 
looks forward to its early implementation. The plan and layout of the scheme 
generally work well…’ They ‘…support the architectural expression of the five 
blocks that make up the scheme…’, and comment that ‘…the wharf-like typology 
works well…’  They suggest ‘…that an injection of an element of fun – through 
public art, colour, signage and lighting – would enhance its appeal…’ To that end 
the applicant has incorporated coloured signage some of which would be neon lit 
that would act as both wayfinding and patternation for the buildings. The signage 
would be the subject to an application for Advertisement Consent, which has not 
currently been submitted. The use of colour is also extended to window frames, 
interior walls and surfaces. Consequently, in terms of design and appearance 
there is now greater visual impact arising from the use of colour and lighting to 
the proposals encouraging and inviting a relationship with the environment 
outside the development. The applicant has commented that lux levels would not 
exceed 2 lux. Details of all proposed lighting across the site including level of 
luminance and spill would be required to be submitted and would be secured by 
condition.  Officer’s consider that this would address Natural England’s comment 
around ensuring no detrimental on ecology particularly during events.   

10.19. Officers are satisfied that the proposals would create a distinctive and vibrant 
commercial development. It is considered that the design is suitable for this 
location. There would be no adverse impacts on the townscape of Hackney Wick.   

10.20. The proposed built form has been designed with a frontage to the canal. Further, 
a green landscaped area would be maintained, with the proposed new 

Page 35



development set back from the river frontage, which would maintain the character 
of the canal side.  

10.21. Historically, the eastern side of the canal remained largely undeveloped open 
space. However, views from the conservation area (across the open space) 
towards Copper Box Arena are not historically significant and thus new 
development which complements the area and retains views of the Copper Box 
Arena in the background, is acceptable. Views to the river would be maintained 
and due to the scale of the proposed development, views beyond the site to the 
QEOP site should be largely retained; and the proposed development would form 
part of the character of the area.  

10.22. The proposed use of the area as a creative cluster is compatible with the 
outcomes for activities and uses within the Conservation Area appraisal 
statement. The proposed use of the courtyard and external open space to support 
commercial uses is considered a key ‘strength’ in the area under the CA 
appraisal. 

10.23. The proposed temporary development is considered to be acceptable in terms of 
design and in compliance with the relevant policies and the development is 
considered to be compatible with the scale of the existing and emerging 
surrounding development. The mix of uses would provide active frontages to 
keep the streets and public realm animated and vibrant.  

10.24. Officers are satisfied that the proposals support Local Policy 1.6 and BN1 and 
London Plan Policy 7.4 by respecting the height and massing of the local 
surroundings and the unobstructed views to the River Lee Navigational Canal 
and the North Park, in accordance with Local Policy BN.9.  All of these elements 
are considered to be a successful response to the site’s local context and will 
result in buildings that make a positive contribution to Hackney Wick, and is thus 
in accordance with policies 7.1, 7.4, 7.6 and 7.7 of the London Plan and Local 
Plan policies 1.1, 1.2, 1.5, 1.6 and BN.1.  

Commercial Impact  

10.25. The employment offer has been designed to complement that proposed as part 
of the planned East Wick development and the surrounding Hackney Wick and 
Fish Island businesses including Here East. 

10.26. The applicant (Make Shift) advise that their business model is to offer the 
affordable commercial and retail space that start-ups and independent 
businesses need to get their ideas off the ground. The proposed development 
would provide a range of affordable commercial and retail space that would be 
targeted to local and independent businesses.  

10.27. Officers note that LLDC corporately as landowner and joint applicant has 
mechanisms in place to control the managed and affordable workspace within 
the development. LLDC would be able to monitor the rental levels to ensure 
affordability. These include the approved Business Plan / Service Level 
Agreement and the ongoing Steering Group between Makeshift LLDC and East 
Wick and Sweetwater.  Officers have also been advised that there is also a 
requirement within the lease for a certain percentage of units to remain as 
‘supported units’ throughout the term. 

10.28. Make Shift offer a range of membership options that provide access for local 
businesses at any stage. This allows members to grow from a concept to a 
sustainable and successful business. They design their projects in collaboration 
with the local community, prioritise local people as members and actively connect 
members with organisations in the community. Officers note that they have 
engaged widely with the local communities of Hackney Wick and Fish Island over 
the past 12 months, to develop a greater understanding of the local context and 
commercial environment. Officers are satisfied that the scheme will provide a 

Page 36



range and type of accommodation that is currently not available in the immediate 
area and will provide much needed workspace for local businesses including 
those businesses within Hackney Wick and Fish Island looking to relocate. This 
is in line with Local Plan Policies B.3 (3) and B.4. 

10.29. Block C would function as the large event space designed to accommodate up to 
400 people. The uses would include live music, theatre performances and 
entertainment events.  The applicant has advised that the space would be 
available for free hire to the local community 25% of the time. There is a condition 
on this point (condition 13).  

10.30. A condition is also imposed requiring compliance with the LLDC site wide Events 
Management Coordination Framework to ensure the coordination of the 
proposed events activities with the rest of the QEOP.  It is noted that the Interim 
Use protocol also covers monitoring and review; a six-month forward programme 
of events/uses is required to be provided as part of the Events Management 
Coordination Framework requirements and thereafter as agreed. 

10.31. Officers are satisfied that the proposals accord with Local Plan Policies SP.1, B.3, 
B.4 and B.5. 

Landscape and Biodiversity 

10.32. Notwithstanding the recommendations for brown and green roofs set out in the 
accompanying Ecology Report the applicant has advised that owing to the 
design of the development i.e. pitched roofs etc and the light weight nature of 
the structures proposed, those recommendations would not be feasible. Other 
ecological enhancements referred to in the report such as the installation of bird 
and bat boxes, would however be accommodated within the development 
(condition 12 refers). 

10.33. The applicant has submitted plans which provides details on the landscaping. 
There are two types of landscaping proposed: the landscaping proposed within 
the yard/building area landscaping; and the mobile garden discussed below. The 
proposals are supported by QRP. 

10.34. The yard/building area landscaping is proposed to complement the buildings with 
soft landscape and furniture. Planters and seating are proposed to define the 
spaces and create meeting points as well as opportunities for socialising or 
community event space. In response to QRP ’s comment that given the number 
of temporary uses proposed that the landscape and public realm should be 
robust, flexible and cost effective, given the uses proposed.  The landscape area 
on the upper levels and in the yards, is mainly tarmac and gold top which are 
considered to be robust materials and complement the areas that they would 
abut. The design and layout of the proposed soft and hard landscaping is 
considered acceptable. 

10.35. Mobile Garden: The application also includes an interim mobile community 
garden for a temporary period, to cease operation at the same time as the rest of 
the proposals i.e.no later than 30 September 2025, which is prior to the 
commencement of Phase 4 of the East Wick development. The community 
garden would be relocated from Chobham Manor where it has been temporarily 
located until the commencement of the Chobham Manor Phase 3 development. 
The principle of such a facility on the QEOP is established by virtue of the 
Chobham Manor facility, which has proved to be successful. 

10.36. The proposed site of the community garden currently forms part of the Canal Park 
landscaped site and would provide a complementary as well as active use in this 
new location. There would be no incompatibility issues, given that the site is 
currently publicly accessible landscaped open land which would remain the case 
with the proposed relocated community garden. The mobile community garden 
would provide a community and educational facility; it would comprise raised 

Page 37



planters and polytunnels for horticulture, a sedum farm, space for social 
gathering, a tool library and associated facilities.  

10.37. The community garden would provide a new open space, accessible to residents 
of the Hackney Wick and the wider area, supported by policy 7.18 of the London 
Plan. Furthermore, the garden would offer a recreational facility, with the 
opportunity to play and to learn about horticulture for all age groups and tenure 
of household. The Garden would be open for all to access and inclusive to all 
members of the community. 

10.38. The applicant has advised that the community garden would provide the 
opportunity for local people to grow vegetables and fresh food on the site, and in 
turn will promote healthy lifestyles through healthy-eating, participation in 
activities and a relief from the urban context in accordance with London Plan 
policy 7.22. 

10.39. The temporary community garden is strongly supported in the planning policy 
context, through the creation of a new open space, that will activate the public 
realm, providing opportunities for play, recreation, learning about horticulture and 
community cohesion. The QRP strongly supports the inclusion of the Mobile 
Garden and recommended that further consideration of how it might interact with 
the public realm. The applicant has updated the plans since the QRP review and 
advised that the precise arrangement of the elements that make up the garden 
i.e. BBQ area, planters, containers are not fixed that they are designed such that 
they can move and evolve in accordance with what layout works best for users 
and visitors. Given the applicant’s landscape and overall development ethos 
which is around responding to the needs of the community and enabling different 
configurations to evolve, and making it relatively easy to dismantle pieces at the 
end of the period officers are satisfied that the layout and arrangement of the 
community garden is acceptable. 

10.40. Officers are satisfied that the proposals relate well to Hackney Wick and the 
remaining area of Canal Park. The public realm / landscaping strategy maintains 
the public accessible land designation as set out in the Local Plan and accords 
with London Plan policies 7.4 and 7.5 as well as Local Plan policies BN.1 and 
BN.3.

Inclusive Access 

10.41. Accessibility and inclusive design is a key consideration in the design process 
and is specifically promoted by London Plan policies 4.5, 6.1 and 7.2 and Local 
Plan policy BN.5 as well as LLDC Inclusive Design Standards. 

10.42. The upper and lower levels of the site are separated by a drop of approx. 2.5m, 
forming a natural barrier within the site. This is emphasised by two separate main 
entrances for the two parts of the proposal, with a staircase as a short cut 
between the two. The main access for the upper part of the site would be via the 
north-eastern corner identified as the most connected to the exiting movement of 
people through this area. The main access to the lower site would be from the 
tow path - the busiest route along this part of the site. The lower site would contain 
the Mobile Garden as a temporary use for the Canal Park. The QRP comment 
that Clarnico Quay is an exciting initiative which should be as accessible as 
possible so that all can enjoy everything that it has to offer.  

10.43. Officers consider that the resultant layout of the site has been planned with 
inclusivity at its forefront. The main desire lines and point of access are the same 
for all users, and the main routes through the site are accessible for all.  The 
applicant has ensured that throughout the site all routes would be paved and 
wheelchair accessible, and all paths would be at least 2m wide. All buildings with 
an upper floor would have a platform lift, providing wheelchair access to all floors 

Page 38



in all buildings.  Each building containing toilets would offer at least one 
wheelchair accessible WC.  

10.44. Steps are proposed from the lower level to the entrance between blocks A and 
B. Those unable to use the steps would use the path to the north of the site. A 
ramp is precluded because of constraints arising from the Thames Water service 
road. Thames Water Mains runs through a substantial part of the lower site, which 
has to be kept free for access for maintenance purposes. During the applicant’s 
consultation with Thames Water, the maximum amount of structures that was 
considered acceptable by Thames Water is an ambulant staircase (see appendix 
drawing).

10.45. A total of 5 accessible car parking bays are proposed: 4 included to the south-
eastern part of the site and a further space to the northern end at the south of the 
site. The level pathways would connect these blue badge parking spaces to the 
upper part of the site and to the existing ramp leading to the lower part of the site 
and the Mobile Garden.

10.46. Officers are satisfied that the proposals meet the development plan objectives in 
terms of accessibility and inclusive design. The provision of an accessible layout 
and the 5 blue badge parking spaces will ensure that the development is in 
accordance with policy 7.2 of The London Plan and BN.5 of the Local Plan which 
is to ensure that proposals achieve the highest levels of accessibility and 
inclusion. 

Transport and Access 

10.47. The site would be accessed from Copper Street along the east side of the site. 
The development would be car-free with the exception of the accessible parking 
bays discussed above.

10.48. Six loading bays would be provided to the south east of the site for deliveries, 
servicing and waste collection. All deliveries would be scheduled between 
tenants and site management to take place outside of peak trading times to 
mitigate any potential disruption to pedestrian movement through the site. A 
dedicated bin store would be provided in the southeast corner of the site adjacent 
to the bike store and accessible car parking bays. Waste would be collected 
within each building block by the operators and transferred to the dedicated bin 
store by the on-site management, or directly by the tenants. The bins would be 
moved by the site management team to the loading bays for collection at agreed 
times. Refuse collection times would be coordinated with the on-site 
management team. It is noted that the application is accompanied by a Site 
Management Plan which would include access arrangements as well as security, 
opening hours and etc. The management plan would be secured by condition.   

10.49. Cycle Parking: The site would provide a total of 75 cycle parking spaces including 
two sheltered and secure bike stores. Short stay uncovered parking would be 
next to Block D and Block E. There would be 55 short stay/visitor parking spaces 
provided within this area.  Twenty long stay, covered and secure parking for both 
tenants and staff would be located near the blue badge parking bays to the south 
east of the site. 

10.50. LCC welcome the cycle provision noting that it exceeds London Plan policy 
requirements, but nevertheless question whether it is sufficient.  Officers have 
also sought TfL’s advice and they comment that the provision of 75 cycle parking 
spaces would be sufficient, but that the applicant should monitor the use of cycle 
parking as the site is occupied with the potential to increase cycle parking in order 
to avoid ‘fly-parking’. Officers have recommended the imposition of a condition to 
ensure cycle parking is monitored.  It is noted that CCTV is to be installed across 
the site. 

Page 39



10.51. Travel Plan: In order to promote sustainable travel for both users and visitors, TfL 
recommend that the applicant provides a travel plan for the development to 
promote public transport. A condition is recommended to secure a Travel Plan.  

10.52. PPDT Officers, supported by PPDT’s transport advisors, conclude that the 
proposed development is unlikely to have a significant impact on the local 
highway network. No objections have been received from LB Hackney and the 
proposals are broadly supported by TfL. 

10.53. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposals are acceptable subject to the 
imposition of suitable conditions and will be in accordance with policies 6.3, 6.9 
and 6.13 of the London Plan as well as Local Plan policies T.4, T.8, T.7, T.8.  

Noise

10.54. The application is accompanied by a Noise Impact Assessment report which has 
been assessed by PPDT’s environmental consultants. The report details the 
results of a noise survey as well as an assessment of the likely impact of noise 
from mechanical plant and customers' voices. The noise surveys have gathered 
data on the east and west sides of the site, allowing maximum and minimum 
noise levels to be determined and to ensure that the environment next to the 
emerging residential properties in East Wick Phase 1 is suitably captured. Noise 
levels are relatively steady between 7am and 11pm / 1.00am, before dropping 
noticeable overnight. The noise surveys have allowed noise emission limits to be 
calculated in compliance with noise criterion, and to enable an assessment of the 
likely impact of patron-generated noise to be determined. 

10.55. This is an interim use of the proposal on a plot which will eventually be delivered 
for housing (East Wick Phase 4). There is limited housing in the immediate 
vicinity of the site at present. The site is bound by the conservation areas, the 
River Lea, and the railway line to the south. Bar Number 90 and Grow (food and 
drink establishments) are adjacent to the site across the river to the west and 
are open until 11pm Sunday – Thursday and 1am Friday and Saturday.  

10.56. The proposed opening hours are as follows:  

 0700 to midnight Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Sunday and Bank 
Holidays;

 0700 to 0100 Thursday, Friday and Saturday; and 

 External areas would not be used after 10pm.  

10.57. The nearest identified nearby noise sensitive receptors are: 

 Proposed East Wick Phase 1 residential development – 130m from 
application site; 

 Mossbourne Riverside Primary Academy (MRPA) – 88m from application 
site; and 

 Adjacent riverboats moored on the River Lee Navigation (residential 
receptors) – 40m from application site. 

10.58. Patron Noise Impact: The development would feature two external terrace areas 
on the west side of the development. These would be located between Block A 
and Block B and between Block B and Block C. The terrace areas would be 
covered by a lightweight pitched roof which would act to link all buildings facing 
the river and would give the appearance of a single, unbroken roofline and 
building front. 

10.59. These terraces would primarily serve the Block B food hall during the daytime 
and the Block A village hall event space and Block C event space / bar during the 
evenings. The east and west ends of each terrace would be open and the west 

Page 40



ends would extend out from under the pitched roof area approximately five metres 
towards the River Lee Navigation.

10.60. Due to the orientation of the building parade and consequent screening afforded 
to the school and the Phase 1 site by the neighbouring buildings and covered 
pitched roofs, the moored river boats are anticipated to be the receptors most 
potentially affected by external patron noise from the terrace areas. 

10.61. The terraces are each approximately 95m2 in area. Assuming an average 
personal space of 1m2 per person, it is anticipated that up to 95 patrons could be 
on the terrace on very busy evenings. On this basis, it is anticipated that noise 
levels at the nearest moored boats could be up to LAeq,T 54 to 57dB on very 
busy nights of the week, (anticipated to be some Thursdays, Fridays and 
weekends, particularly in fair, dry weather during summer).   

10.62. Residential Amenity: In terms of residential amenity and potential impacts on 
surrounding residents, it is noted that the nearest residential properties are the 
adjacent riverboats moored on the River Lea Navigation and East Wick Phase 1 
located to the west of the site. Following further details submitted by the applicant, 
Officers and their environmental consultants are satisfied that that there is no 
adverse impact on neighbouring residents/premises. Given that the most 
sensitive receptors would be largely screened from both the event venue and bar 
by other intermediate buildings and the imposition of conditions to control noise 
levels ensuring it would be commensurate with similar commercial venues in the 
area.  The opening hours are consistent with similar event and food/drink 
establishments in the locality. The buildings and landscaping would assist with 
noise attenuation on site. The opening hours would be secured by conditions.  

10.63. It is understood that work on East Wick Phase 1 would commence 
summer/autumn of 2018 with completion anticipated circa 2022.  The submitted 
Noise Impact Assessment has assessed the scheme with Phase 1 in 
place.  PPDT’s environmental consultants have reviewed the assessment and 
have raised no objections.   

10.64. There would be some noise from plant, equipment and customers' voices, as well 
as potential cooking smells and to that end conditions are recommended relating 
to submission of details for mechanical extraction and limiting the time that 
patrons can use the outdoor spaces in line with conditions imposed on adjacent 
premises.  Kitchen extract plant is proposed for the development on the western 
side of the site, away from the residential properties. Full details of the plant to be 
installed have not yet been determined but, given the small-scale of the extraction 
equipment that would be required and the distance to residents, no objections 
are raised.  

10.65. The Mossbourne Riverside Primary Academy is sited 130m away from the site. 
The applicant has confirmed that it is unlikely that events featuring volume music 
/ entertainment noise at the site would be concurrent with school hours.  PPDT’s 
environmental consultants and officers are satisfied that this would be the case 
and no objections are raised. The proposals are considered to comply with Local 
Plan policy BN.11. 

Air Quality 

10.66.  The applicant has submitted an air quality assessment which has been assessed 
by PPDT’s environmental consultants in relation to the effect of the development 
on local air quality. The results of the air quality neutral assessment indicated that 
the proposed development would be classed as better than air quality neutral.

10.67. The main likely effects on local air quality would be during construction and would 
relate to dust emissions Officers consider the imposition of a condition 
appropriate to include measures to minimise or prevent construction dust, such 
details required would include wheel washing, appropriate screening etc. This 

Page 41



would ensure that the effects of dust emissions are of minor significance. Officers 
are satisfied that the imposition of a condition would ensure compliance with 
Local Plan condition BN.11 and London Plan policy 7.14.

Sustainability 

10.68. The applicant has provided information regarding energy and sustainability which 
Officers consider appropriate for the proposed lifespan of this temporary 
development. The applicant has advised that in order to be able to provide 
affordable rents while developing an economically viable scheme, the design 
would not be able to meet BREEAM standards.

10.69. Nevertheless, measures have been taken to make it a sustainable scheme. The 
buildings have been designed with structures and materials that can be easily 
dismantled and either re-assembled in another location or recycled. Non-
recyclable or reusable materials have been minimised as far as possible.  

10.70. To reduce energy consumption on site the proposed measures include:  

 Openable windows, doors and roof lights for the use of natural daylight and 
ventilation as much as possible and to avoid overheating;  

 Only localised heating and insulation to Blocks A, D and E;  

 All the blocks would be insulated, apart from Block B which is proposed as a 
sheltered market hall; and  

 Where required, the use of energy efficient plant and equipment.  

10.71. The proposed buildings would require shallow concrete slab foundations using 
minimum material to support the buildings.  

10.72. With regard to water consumption, flow restrictors are proposed in the toilets, 
showers and wash hand basins to prevent excessive use. In terms of lighting, 
LED internal and external lighting would be used in order to reduce electricity 
consumption and CO2 emissions.  

10.73. Officers and their environmental consultants are satisfied that the proposals 
demonstrate compliance with Local Plan polices S.2 and S.4 in so far as 
achieving good standards of sustainable design and construction and minimising 
carbon dioxide emissions by reducing energy requirements having regard to the 
longevity of the proposal. 

Remediation

10.74. A Remediation Technical Note has been submitted with this application in relation 
to the earthworks and construction activities proposed as part of the 
development. PPDT’s environmental consultants have reviewed the report and 
generally agree with its conclusions recommending conditions be imposed to 
secure the further investigative work and associated remediation. Subject to the 
imposition of such conditions, the proposal is considered acceptable in this regard 
and accords with London Plan policy 5.21 and Local plan policy BN.13. 

11. HUMAN RIGHTS & EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1. Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 as 
they relate to the proposal and the conflicting interests of the applicants and any 
third party opposing the application in reaching their decision. The provisions of 
the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the processing of the 
application and the preparation of this report. In particular, Article 6 (1), of the 
European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) in relation civil rights and a fair 
hearing; Article 8 of the ECHR in relation to the right to respect for private and 
family life and Article 1 Protocol 1 of the ECHR in relation to the protection of 
property have all been taken into account. 

Page 42



11.2. In addition, the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in respect 
of certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and sexual orientation. 
It places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to have due regard to the 
advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers including planning powers. 
Officers have taken this into account in the assessment of the application and 
Members must be mindful of this duty when determining all planning applications. 
In particular Members must pay due regard to the need to: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

11.3. Officers are satisfied that the application material and their assessment has taken 
into account these issues. Officers consider that the effects of the proposal would 
not be so adverse as to cause harm and justify a refusal of consent or permission. 

12. CONCLUSION  

12.1. The layout, scale and massing of the proposed development is considered to be 
acceptable and would respect the context, and form of the surrounding area and 
neighbouring Hackney Wick Conservation Area in accordance with Local Plan 
policy. The proposals would not harm the setting of the adjacent conservation 
areas. Indeed, it is considered by officers that the temporary proposals would have 
a enhance the setting of the local conservation areas, and would introduce hard 
and soft landscaping into the urban site.  

12.2. The development would assist in creating an attractive destination by bringing into 
active use a vacant site. The proposed uses (B1 office, A1 retail and the A3/A4 
food and beverage units and D1 community) would contribute to creating vibrancy 
to the Neighbourhood Centre as well as to its wider regeneration. The office 
development would be made available for local artists/businesses and would 
encourage local job creation. The development would be made available for local 
pop-up and start-up businesses, boosting the local economy. The community units 
with outdoor event space and landscaping would contribute to the vibrancy of the 
area.

12.3. In conclusion, the proposed temporary development is considered to be 
acceptable in terms of design and visual appearance and is considered to be 
compatible with the scale of the existing and emerging surrounding development.  

12.4. The proposal would not have a significant impact on the amenity of adjoining 
occupiers, and there would be no adverse impact on traffic generation.  

12.5. The proposed development is therefore, subject to conditions, considered to be 
acceptable with regards to land use, design, amenity, transport, sustainability, land 
contamination and security and is in accordance with the relevant national, regional 
and local planning policies.  

Page 43



13.    PLANNING CONDITIONS 

1. Time limit 

The development shall be commenced before the expiration of three years from the 
date of the permission. 

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1991 

2. Temporary Buildings and Mobile Garden 

The buildings and mobile garden and associated works hereby permitted shall not 
be retained after 30th September 2025 and the structures shall be removed from the 
site and the land reinstated before the 29th December 2025. The site shall be 
reinstated in accordance with a scheme which shall have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to cessation of the uses 
hereby permitted. 

Reason: The structures are not of a type such that the Local Planning Authority is 
prepared to approve other than for a limited period, having regard to the materials 
of the structures proposed and to enable the permanent regeneration of the site to 
occur. 

3. Works in Accordance with Approved Details  

The development hereby permitted, including demolition and construction, shall not 
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the following details and plan 
numbers:

 (Document titles and drawing references to be inserted ahead of issuing the 
decision notice) 

and the description of development contained in the application and any other plans, 
drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been approved by 
the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions. 

Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained. 

4. Construction Activities 

No construction activities shall be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the 
approved LCS Site Wide Code of Construction Practice (CoCP) and the LCS Site 
Wide Construction Transport Management Plan (CTMP). The entrance to the site 
shall be manned by a qualified competent banksman to ensure vehicle and 
pedestrian safety at the access to the site from Copper Street and the Copper Box 
Arena service road. 

Reason: To ensure that the construction of the development minimises its impacts 
on local residents and minimises its impacts upon the strategic transport network in 
accordance with Local Plan Policy T.4. 

5. Verification Report

The development hereby permitted (or a stage of the development as may be agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall not be occupied until a verification 
report demonstrating completion of works (as the works apply to that stage, as 
relevant) set out in the approved Remediation Technical Note (Revision 2, dated May 
2018), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development has been carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance 
with Local Plan policy BN.13. 

Page 44



6. Secured by Design  

The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the details in the 
External Lighting and Surveillance Strategy, as set out in Section 6.10 of the Design 
and Access Statement; and the Safety and Security Strategy set out in Section 5 of 
the Site Management Plan, have been implemented. The development shall 
thereafter be retained.  

Reason: To ensure appropriate regard to Secured by Design in accordance with 
policy 7.3 of The London Plan (2016). 

7. CCTV 

The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until details of a CCTV 
system have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be first occupied until the approved CCTV 
system has been installed and put into use. The CCTV system shall be maintained 
in good working order for the life of the development and shall include a trained 
operative on site at all times during the operation of licensable activities. All CCTV 
recordings shall be kept on site for 31 days and made available for inspection by the 
relevant authorities. CCTV would be monitored and radio link used to assist security 
in preventing crime and disorder.  

Reason: To assist security in preventing crime and disorder in accordance with 
policy 7.3 of The London Plan (2016). 

8. Events Management Co-ordination Framework 

No events shall be held on the site other than in accordance with the approved LLDC 
Events Management Co-ordination Framework. 

Reason: To ensure a coordinated approach to events across the Queen Elizabeth 
Olympic Park and to ensure that the development is adequately managed and 
maintained in accordance with London Plan policies 7.3 and 7.5. 

9. Delivery Servicing Management  

Upon first occupation of the development hereby permitted the Delivery and 
Servicing Management shall be implemented in full compliance with approved 
documents Vectos Makeshift Clarnico Quay Transport Statement dated March 2018 
and Site Management Plan Clarnico Quay Makeshift March 2018t and shall 
thereafter continue to be fully implemented for the period of the development.  

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers of the development site/ 
surrounding premises is not adversely affected by noise, in accordance with Local 
Plan policy BN.11. 

10. Cycle Parking 

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until details of the 75-cycle 
parking arrangement for both employees and customers have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the LPA. The cycle parking spaces shall be installed prior 
to the first use of the premises in accordance with any such approval given, and it 
shall be retained for the lifetime of the development. The use of the cycle parking 
shall be monitored, and a review of this shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for its written approval on each anniversary of the commencement of the 
development; unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If 
additional cycle parking is demonstrated to be required this shall be provided in 
accordance with the details of the approved review.   

Reason: To promote alternative, sustainable forms of transport, in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy T.9. 

Page 45



11. Travel plan 

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a Travel Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in full compliance with the approved details, and 
shall thereafter continue to be fully implemented for the period of the development.  

Reason: To ensure that the development does not generate an excessive number of 
car trips which would be contrary to the Local Plan Policy T.7. 

12. Ecological Enhancements 

Prior to the commencement of above ground works, details of biodiversity 
enhancements (bird and bat nesting boxes etc.) shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be carried out 
prior to first use of the development, and the development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with any such approval given.   

Reason: To ensure the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual 
amenities of the locality and is designed for the maximum benefit of local biodiversity 
in accordance with Local Plan policy BN.3.  

13. Community Hire 

Prior to the occupation of Block C, a Community Hire Strategy shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Community Hire 
Strategy shall detail the arrangements for Block C to be made available for free hire 
to the local community for a period of 25% of its opening days per calendar year. 
The Community Hire Strategy shall detail days, times, management and marketing 
measures; and the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the approved strategy. 

Reason: In the interests of creating vitality through interim uses, in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy B.3.  

14. Commercial Unit and Affordable Rent Strategy 

The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until a Commercial 
Unit and Affordable Rent Strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.

The Commercial Unit and Affordable Rent Strategy shall: 

 identify how the commercial units (including managed and affordable 
workspaces) would meet the needs of small local companies and businesses; 

  identify how the commercial units would be marketed and allocated to local 
companies and businesses; and  

 set out measures for the management of the commercial units thereafter. 

The Commercial Unit and Affordable Rent Strategy shall be updated annually 
detailing the effectiveness of the strategy and shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, and the development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with the approved strategy. 

Reason: In the interests of providing low cost managed workspace, in accordance 
with Local Plan Policies B.3 and B.4. 

15. External Materials 

Prior to the construction of above ground works samples of materials and finishes 
to be used on the external surfaces of the development of the respective area of 
land shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved materials shall be used in the implementation of the development.  

Page 46



Reason: To safeguard the appearance of the buildings and the character of the area 
generally and to enable the Local Planning Authority to properly consider and control 
the development in the interest of visual amenity and to accord with Policies BN.1 
and BN.4 of the Local Plan 2015. 

16. Extract Ventilation 

No A3 use shall commence until suitable equipment to remove and/or disperse 
odours and odorous material has been fitted to the extract ventilation system in 
accordance with a scheme to be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Thereafter, the equipment shall be properly maintained and operated during normal 
working hours. 

Reason: To protect the amenity of occupiers of nearby premises. 

17. Amplified Sound

The level of amplified sound from the proposed development, measured as a 15 
minute LAeq, shall be set at a level such that it is 10dBA below the concurrent 
background LA90(15min) level when measured or predicted at 1.0m from the facade 
of the nearest residential premises. The set level shall be controlled by a noise limiter 
or other device to ensure that the permitted set level is not exceeded.  

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers of the development site/ 
surrounding premises is not adversely affected by noise, in accordance with policy 
BN.11 of the Local Plan.  

18. Amplified Sound - monitoring

Within six months of occupation of the site, noise levels including plant noise shall 
be monitored to ensure that they do not exceed the predicted levels as set out in the 
approved Noise Impact Assessment and this shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in writing. Any mitigation measures identified as 
being required during monitoring, not identified in the Noise Impact Assessment, 
shall be implemented as agreed and thereafter be retained for the period of the 
development.  

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers of the surrounding premises is not 
adversely affected by noise, in accordance with Local Plan policy BN.11. 

19. Hours of Operation 

The use of the premises shall only be permitted during the hours:

 0700 to midnight Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Sunday and Bank Holiday;

 0700 to 0100 Thursday, Friday and Saturday; and 

 The external areas within the premises shall not be used by members of the 
public after 10pm. 

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers of the surrounding premises is not 
adversely affected by noise from activities or people at or leaving the site, in 
accordance with Local Plan policy BN.11.  

20. Deliveries 

No deliveries nor collections/loading nor unloading shall occur at the development 
hereby approved other than between the hours of 07:30 to 20:00.  

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers of the development 
site/surrounding premises is not adversely affected by noise, in accordance with 
Local Plan policy BN.11. 

Page 47



21. Site Management Plan 

Upon first occupation of the development the Site Management Plan Clarnico Quay 
Make Shift March 2018 shall be implemented in full compliance with the approved 
document, and shall thereafter continue to be fully implemented for the period of the 
development.  

Reason: To ensure the Local Plan policy BN.1. 

22. Lighting  

No architectural lighting, security lighting or other external means of illumination of 
the site shall be provided, installed or operated in the development, except in 
accordance with a detailed scheme, which shall include level of luminance and light 
spill, and shall provide for lighting that is low level, hooded and directional, and has 
been previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details and retained thereafter. 

Reason: In the interests of ecology and local amenity in accordance with Local Plan 
policy BN.3.

23. Lighting – lux levels 

External artificial lighting at the development shall not exceed 2 lux levels of vertical 
illumination at the Lea Navigation canal and neighbouring premises and shall be 
minimized and glare and sky glow shall be prevented by correctly using, locating, 
aiming and shielding luminaires, in accordance with the Institution of Lighting 
Professionals in the 'Guidance Notes for The Reduction of Light Pollution 
2011'Guidance Notes.  

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of occupiers of surrounding premises is not 
adversely affected by lighting, in accordance with policy BN.1. 

24. Landscaping 

Relevant landscape works shall not be commenced until the following information 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

 Detailed 1:50 drawings (or at an alternative scale agreed with the LPA) and 
illustrative material (where appropriate) of any hard and soft landscape works 
including planting / species mix, colour, type and patternation treatments hard 
surfaces (including any wind mitigation measures).  

 Samples of materials shall be provided in accordance with Condition [15];  

 Full details of the treatment of site boundaries (including species mix, bollards, 
picket, steel and elephant grating fencing); 

 Details of all existing trees on and adjacent to the land, and details of any to be 
retained, together with measures for their protection, during the course of 
development; 

 Approach to the areas identified for ‘Future Community Planting’ and ‘Future 
Community built furniture and artwork’.  Such details shall set out: 

 Ecological considerations for community planting; 

 Location of tables and chairs; 

 How inclusive access furniture is to be provided;   

 Details including plans, elevations and specifications of any play equipment 
including skate park details to be provided (or anticipated timing, where this is 
not provided at first occupation); and  

 Details of parapet/balustrade around the terraced areas; 

Page 48



 Management arrangements for areas of retained landscape, community 
planting and soft landscape treatments set out above.   

For the avoidance of doubt, the above details shall not relate to the area identified 
as the Mobile Garden.  All landscape to the Mobile Garden works shall be 
implemented as approved.   

The planting, seeding and/or turfing shall be carried out as approved in the first 
planting season following completion of building works comprised in the 
development of the respective area of land and any tree or shrub that is found to 
be dead, dying, severely damaged or diseased within two years of the completion 
of the building works OR two years of the carrying out of the landscaping scheme 
(whichever is later), shall be replaced in the next planting season by specimens of 
similar size and species in the first suitable planting season.  

All landscaping works shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details 
and retained for the period of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing 
in advance by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the proposed development would enhance the visual amenities 
of the locality and in order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the 
design and details are of high quality and to be in accordance with Policies BN.1 
and BN.3 of the Local Plan 2015. 

25. Refuse 

No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied prior to the 
provision of the refuse storage, as indicated on the approved drawings. All refuse 
generated by the development hereby permitted shall be stored within these 
enclosures. The waste management shall be carried out in accordance with the 
'Refuse and Recycling Strategy' as set out in the Design and Access Statement 
and retained for the period of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing 
in advance by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the use does not give rise to smell nuisance and to prevent 
harm to the street scene arising from the appearance of accumulated rubbish, in 
accordance with Local Plan Policy S.6. 

26. Sustainability 

The proposed sustainability measures as set out in the 'Sustainability Strategy' of 
the Design and Access Statement shall be implemented in accordance with the 
strategy upon commencement of the development. The approved measures are to 
be retained for the period of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing in 
advance by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: In the interests of energy conservation, reduction of CO2 emissions and 
wider sustainability, in accordance with policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.6 and 5.7 of The 
London Plan (2016). 

Informatives

1. The applicant is reminded of the need to apply to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval in writing for advertisements consent for any signage proposed to be 
displayed in or around the site. 

2. In accordance with LFEPA guidance the applicant is strongly recommended to 
ensure the installation of sprinklers in the new development. The development 
shall conform with Part B5 of Approved Document B of the Building Regulations. 

3. HS1 Informatives to be added 

Page 49



Appendices

Appendix 1 – Location Plan 

Appendix 2 – Drawings 

Appendix 3 – QRP report 

Page 50



18/00171/FUL   - Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Site Plan

P
a
g
e
 5

1



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Birds Eye View

 

P
a
g
e
 5

2



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Hackney Wick and Fish Island Conservation Area 

 

 

Page 53



18/00171/FUL   - Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Scheme Overview and Uses and Outdoor Space

P
a
g
e
 5

4



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

 

Scheme Overview and Uses - Buildings 

P
a
g
e
 5

5



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

 

Access 

P
a
g
e
 5

6



18/00171/FUL   - Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Views from Canal

P
a
g
e
 5

7



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Views from End of Footbridge

P
a
g
e
 5

8



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Views from Inside the Central Yard 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Views from North-East Corner of the Site 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

0



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Views from Copper Box 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Views from London Overground 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

2



18/00171/FUL   -  Clarnico Quay    Appendices (selection of drawings/images) 

Scheme Overview 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



P
a
g
e
 6

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Report of Formal Review Meeting
8 February 2018
QRP111_Clarnico Quay 

London Legacy Development Corporation Quality Review Panel

Report of Formal Review Meeting: Clarnico Quay

Thursday 8 February 2018

Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ

Panel

Peter Studdert (chair)
Johnny Winter
Fergus Feilden
Keith French
David Bonnett

Attendees

Anne Ogundiya LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Hannah Lambert London Legacy Development Corporation
Tony Westbrook London Legacy Development Corporation
Craig Roberts London Legacy Development Corporation
Katherine Hosea London Legacy Development Corporation 
Joanna Rushton London Legacy Development Corporation 
Tessa Kordeczka Frame Projects 

Apologies / report copied to

Anthony Hollingsworth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Catherine Smyth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team

Andrew Cunningham London Borough of Hackney

Page 65



 

   
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018 
QRP111_Clarnico Quay  

 

 

1. Project name and site address 
 

Clarnico Quay, PDZ 5, Development Parcel 5.3, Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park 

 

2. Presenting team 
 

Philippe Castaing   Makeshift  

Leo Boscherini  Makeshift 

Carl Turner   Carl Turner Architects 

Margaret Kraft  Carl Turner Architects 

Matthew Sharpe Quod  

Anjuli Sethi  Quod 

 

3. Planning authority’s views 
 
The proposal for Clarnico Quay is for meanwhile use – anticipated for seven years – 

for a variety of commercial uses, to include: workshops; event spaces; cafés; bars; 

and restaurants. Clarnico Quay is intended to act as a stepping stone for businesses 

operating within Hackney Wick and Fish Island or those looking to locate to the area. 

The employment offer has been designed to complement that proposed as part of the 

planned East Wick development.  

 

The planning authority supports the way in which the proposal for Clarnico Quay has 

developed and thinks that it has the potential to be an exciting and successful 

initiative.  

 

4. Quality Review Panel’s views 
 

Summary 

 

The Quality Review Panel gives its enthusiastic support to the proposal for Clarnico 

Quay and looks forward to its early implementation. The plan and layout of the 

scheme generally work well, although there may be potential to make more of the 

site’s west facing aspect. The panel recommends continuing careful attention to 

accessibility for all across the site, including from the lower canal side level. The 

architectural expression of the five blocks making up Clarnico Quay shows much 

promise, but the panel suggests that an injection of an element of fun – through public 

art, colour, signage and lighting – would enhance its appeal. It also makes some 

comments about the scheme’s environmental sustainability, including in relation to 

energy performance and eventual re-use of materials. The panel broadly supports the 

landscape and public realm strategy, while suggesting that it could benefit from 

further richness. These comments are expanded below. 

 

  

Page 66



 

   
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018 
QRP111_Clarnico Quay  

 

Strategic approach 

 

· The development of Clarnico Quay is inspired by an exciting and innovative 

concept and can be expected to be incredibly popular.  

 

· The panel notes the importance of effective, active management of all aspects 

of Clarnico Quay: each of the buildings and the associated landscape and 

public realm, including the Mobile Garden. It feels confident that Makeshift will 

successfully fulfil this role.  

 

Plan and layout 

 

· The panel generally commends the plan and layout of the scheme. The 

diagram of the five separate blocks – to create an entrance yard and a central 

main yard –works well. Given the anticipated popularity of Clarnico Quay, 

circulation, access and use of spaces need to be thought through carefully.  

 

· The panel suggests that there may be scope for further exploiting the site’s 

west facing aspect. Blocks A, B and C are planned to extend hard up to the 

retaining wall. While two small terraces are included at the entrances between 

blocks A and B and blocks B and C, additional open public space along the 

west elevation, which will enjoy late afternoon and evening sun, might be 

considered.  

 

· The panel also recommends further thought to the transition from the lower 

level of the canal side to the higher level. While steps are proposed to access 

blocks A and B, an intuitive solution might be a ramp. The panel understands, 

however, the constraints imposed by the Thames Water service road – which 

would preclude such an intervention (see also comments below on inclusive 

design.) 

 

· Block D incorporates a makers’ spill out space. The panel recommends 

careful thought to the fact that this – and the adjoining delivery yard – will be 

highly visible from the Copper Box Arena.  

 

Architectural expression 

 

· Generally, the panel supports the architectural expression of the five blocks 

that make up the scheme. The wharf-like typology works well.  

 

· The choice of materials can be expected to result in impressive and interesting 

buildings – although the panel raises some questions about their re-usability at 

the end of their seven year life (see also comments below on environmental 

sustainability).  

 

· The concept underpinning Clarnico Quay instinctively calls for an element of 

fun – and the panel recommends that, as detailed designs are developed, 

ways to introduce public art, colour, signage and imaginative lighting be 

explored. 

Page 67



 

   
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018 
QRP111_Clarnico Quay  

 

· The entrance yard, bounded by block D and block E, will be the main arrival 

point for Clarnico Quay, and the location of temporary activities. The panel 

suggests that more might be done to make this an enticing and fun space. 

Equally, block C – conceived of as an events space – would benefit from an 

injection of colour. 

 

· The covered routes through blocks A and B and blocks B and C extend to the 

full two storey height of the buildings. The panel suggests that, rather than 

extending the cladding to the roof of the building, the full height of these routes 

be expressed explicitly on the elevation.  

 

Environmental sustainability  

 

· Given that it is intended to be a seven year project, a discussion remains to be 

had as to what extent Clarnico Quay will be required to comply with BREEAM 

standards. There should, however, be an aspiration to make minimise energy 

use. Further detail on projected energy performance would be helpful.  

 

· The panel would recommend maximising natural ventilation as far as possible, 

although many of the spaces to be provided in blocks A, B and E will be single 

aspect.  Noting that it is intended that only blocks A and D will be heated 

(largely by electrical heating), the panel recommends further thought to the 

thermal envelope of the various blocks.  

 

· The panel points to the risk of both condensation in those blocks that will not 

be heated and also overheating in those constructed of galvanised steel. It 

recommends that consideration be given at this stage to how these risks might 

be minimised.   

 

· While conscious of the need to avoid excessive light spill – Clarnico Quay will 

also be an evening / night time venue – the panel thinks that introducing more 

windows and natural light into the blocks should be achievable.  

 

· As noted above, the panel supports the materials proposed for the five blocks. 

It recommends, however, consideration of their environmental sustainability, in 

particular the extent to which they might degrade over seven years and their 

potential re-use at the end of that period. This would apply particularly to the 

polycarbonate proposed for building D. 

 

Landscape and public realm strategy 

 

· The panel broadly supports the proposed landscape and public realm strategy 

– but stresses that it will need to be robust, flexible and cost effective.  

 

· The entrance yard will, for example, be used for a number of temporary 

activities, such as market stalls, and surfacing will need to be robust and 

durable.  

  

Page 68



 

   
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018 
QRP111_Clarnico Quay  

 

· The panel encourages an approach that introduces hierarchy and richness, 

identifying areas that could bring the public realm more to life. This might 

include, for example, exploring in more depth issues such as biodiversity and 

urban ecology. 

 

· The panel strongly supports the inclusion of the Mobile Garden – but 

recommends further consideration of how this might interact with the public 

realm.  

 

· Further information on the water management strategy would be helpful. 

There will, for example, be significant water run off. 

 

Inclusive design  

 

· Clarnico Quay is an exciting initiative which should be as accessible as 

possible so that all can enjoy everything that it has to offer. The panel 

therefore recommends continuing careful consideration of accessibility across 

the site, including from the lower canal side level. 

 

· Steps are proposed from the lower level to the entrance between blocks A and 

B. Those unable to use the steps will have to use the zig zag path to the north 

of the site. If a ramp is precluded because of the constraints of the Thames 

Water service road, the panel suggests exploring the possibility of a platform 

lift at the entrance between blocks B and C.  

 

· Blue Badge parking is included at the south of the site, the zig zag path to the 

north. The panel points to the distances that will need to be negotiated 

through the site – from north to south. Circulation routes through Clarnico 

Quay will be busy and lively – possibly also congested – and careful thought 

will need to be given to how those routes might be navigated by disabled 

people. 

 

· In this context, while asphalt surfacing will work well, gravel may be less 

successful.  

 

Next steps  

 

· The Quality Review Panel gives its warm support to the proposal for Clarnico 

Quay – and looks forward to it being taken forward as early as possible.  

 

 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Subject: Land at Marshgate Lane, Pudding Mill, Stratford, London E15 2NH, 
Reference 17/00669/VAR

Meeting date:  24 July 2018 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anne Ogundiya, Principal Planning Development Manager 

FOR DECISION  

This report would be considered in public 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This application for full planning permission was considered at the meeting of the Planning 
Decisions Committee (PDC) held on 22nd May 2018. Having considered the report (as 
clarified by the update report); received a presentation from the Principal Planning 
Development Manager; and asked questions of the applicants, Members resolved to defer 
consideration of the application for the following reasons: 

 Further detail to be provided by the applicant regarding the driver for the proposed 
increased commercial space; 

 Officers to explore with the applicant an enhanced affordable housing offer; 

 Mix of Units - not enough family units and too many studios; 

 Residential Quality and Density:

 Proposals are poor quality, too small and have too many units per core; 

 Officers to provide further details demonstrating that the quality of the scheme 
would be high despite the proposal exceeding the density thresholds 
recommended in the London Plan; 

 Architectural expression:  

 The provision of the additional floor between Buildings 1 and 2 results in a poorer 
visual appearance. 

1.2. The applicant has provided further detail as requested by Members on the driver for 
increased commercial space, which is included within the assessment. 

1.3. Affordable housing: In order to provide more affordable family homes two 3 bedroom units 
have been offered at London Affordable Rent (LAR) to replace what were formerly two 
shared ownership units. There are no changes to the overall affordable housing provision 
which remains at 19.6% compared to the consented scheme provision of 17.7%.  

1.4. Mix of Units: Following Members concerns about the reduction in 3 bedroom units, 7 three 
bedroom units are now proposed within Building 1 in replacement of what were previously 
two bedroom units.  In addition, in response to Members concerns regarding the number of 

Agenda Item 6

Page 71



studios, in the revised scheme 7 of the originally proposed 10 studio units have been 
enlarged to provide 1 bedroom units.  

1.5. Residential Quality and Density: The proposals as submitted and revised comply with 
adopted policy and design guidance. A number of the consented residential units were 
significantly larger than required by the Housing SPG (2016) space standards. As revised 
Officers are satisfied that all units still meet space standards, and indeed they are typically 
around 10% larger that the Mayor’s Housing SPG standards, and the proposals result in 
more housing.

1.6. Architectural Expression: A deeper recess of 2.5m has been introduced to the south 
elevation. This is compared with 1.15m for the development as previously presented to 
Members and 2.65m for the approved development. The deeper recess reinforces the 
concept of the original design as approved, in response to Members’ concerns that the 
recess is not as visible as the original proposals.  

1.7. Following the review of the additional and updated information, Officers remain of the view 
that the s73 variation to condition 2 (approved drawings) is considered to be acceptable. 
The development meets the tests of regional and local development plan policy in terms of 
density, urban design, and architecture of the buildings. The development successfully 
optimises the capabilities of the site and will deliver housing including affordable housing 
meeting local and strategic need. It is therefore recommended that the application be 
approved.

1.8. The applicant has submitted a section s96A non-material amendment application, which 
would change the description of development so that it is consistent with the conditions as 
altered by the s73, which would be issued at the same time as the s73. 

2.   RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Committee is asked to: 

a) Approve the application for the reasons given in the report and grant 
planning permission subject to: 

1. the satisfactory completion of the deed of variation to the original legal 
agreement under s.106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
other enabling powers to secure the planning obligations set out in the 
recommended heads of terms which are set out in this report; and 

2.  the conditions set out in this report. 

b) Confirm that their decision has taken into consideration the 
environmental information addendum submitted in relation to the 
application, as required by Regulation 26(1) of the EIA Regulations: 

c) Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning Policy and 
Decisions to: 

1. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report including 
such refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions (including 
to dovetail with and where appropriate, reinforce, the final planning 
obligations to be contained in the deed of variation to the original 
section 106 legal agreement) as the Director of Planning Policy and 
Decisions considers reasonably necessary; 

2. Finalise the recommended deed of variation to the original legal 
agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this report,  including 
refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the obligations detailed 
in the heads of terms set out in this report (including to dovetail with 

Page 72



and where appropriate, reinforce the final conditions and informatives 
to be attached to the planning permission) as the Director of Planning 
Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary; and 

3. Complete the deed of variation to the original section 106 legal 
agreement referred to above and issue the planning permission.  

4. Determine the associated S96A application for non-material 
amendments referred to above. 

3.      FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no financial implications. 

4.      LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. The recommendation is that planning permission is granted, subject to conditions and 
completion of a deed of variation to the original s106 agreement in order to tie the originally 
agreed obligations to the new permission to ensure adequate mitigation of the impacts of the 
development. The contents of the deed of variation and summary of the original Heads of 
Terms is described in paragraphs 10.94. 

Page 73



SITE PLAN 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100050265

Location:   Land at Marshgate Lane, Pudding Mill Stratford, London E15 2NH 

London Borough:  Newham 

Proposal: Application under s73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended) for the variation of Condition 2 (approved drawings) of 
planning permission ref. 14/00422/FUL dated 5 May 2017 
(comprehensive mixed use redevelopment comprising: demolition of 

Page 74



existing buildings, and the erection of 8 buildings ranging from 3 to 
12-storeys in height, comprising a total of 254 residential dwellings 
including affordable housing, and 4,257m² Gross Internal Area (GIA) 
of B1 (business) floorspace, together with basement, access, 
servicing, car parking, cycle parking, cycle storage, plant, open 
space and landscaping). 

Submission under s73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended) for variation to condition 2 (approved drawings) of 
planning permission reference 14/00422/FUL, to make changes to 
the approved scheme to include: (1) increase of employment use 
from 4,257m² to 5,671m² (additional 1,414m² (GIA) floorspace); (2) 
decrease of residential floorspace from 28,003m² to 27,210m² 
(decrease of 793m² (GIA) floorspace); (3) optimisation of residential 
floorspace, increasing the number of residential units from 254 to 
275; and (4) alterations to façades. 

Applicants:   Workspace 14 Limited

Agent:   Bilfinger GVA 

Architects:   Squire and Partners 

5.         ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

5.1. The assessment of the application presented in the appended Planning Decisions 
Committee (PDC) report remains applicable. The following deals only with those issues that 
have been raised as being of concern to Members at their meeting on 22nd May 2018. 

Driver for increased commercial space 

5.2. At the May PDC Members requested further details relating to the need for the additional 
commercial floorspace. The applicant has advised that the additional commercial 
floorspace changes proposed (an additional 1,414m² (GIA) i.e. from 4,257m² to 5,671m²) 
through the revised scheme have been progressed in order to enable delivery of the 
development and to secure a joint venture partner, which they advise is critical to the 
delivery of the scheme. The additional floor of commercial development within Buildings 1 
and 2 is required to provide a minimum floorspace for the applicant (Workspace Ltd) to 
viably occupy.  They go on to state that they are "…keen to invest in Pudding Mill as a 
veritable prospect for the future in the next few years and beyond. This project and the 
additional commercial floorspace proposed will kick start the regeneration of Pudding Mill 
and encourage future agglomeration of business floorspace and housing in the Pudding 
Mill Local Centre. In addition, the additional B1 floorspace could equate to an additional 
117 full time jobs…".  

5.3. They also comment that given that the majority of the development earmarked/approved 
for the immediate Pudding Mill area has not yet come forward the additional commercial 
floorspace would ensure their minimum business centre requirements as a “destination 
centre” for this area. As such, the applicant advises that the additional commercial 
floorspace is essential for Workspace to ensure the business centre is successful.  

5.4. Officers consider the delivery and occupation of the commercial floorspace by the applicant 
to be a significant driver to this part of the regeneration of Pudding Mill Lane, which would 
deliver additional benefits including an employment hub for small and medium enterprises 
alongside a significant number of new homes (275 units) together with increased 
connectivity and the provision of high quality public amenity space and playspace, which 
accords with the policy aspirations for the area.

Page 75



Affordable Housing 

5.5. At the May PDC meeting Members raised concerns regarding the applicant’s offer of 19.6% 
by unit of affordable housing, which whilst lower than the Local Plan Policy H.2 requirement 
of 35% (subject to viability) is higher than the extant consent affordable housing provision 
of 17.7%.

5.6. The s73 proposal would result in an additional 9 affordable units (i.e. 42.8% of the 21 
additional units created from the optimised floorspace) when compared to the consented 
scheme, along with the additional floor of commercial floorspace at Buildings 1 and 2.  
Overall this equates to 19.6% of affordable housing across the site compared to the 17.7% 
agreed in the consented scheme. This has been accepted by PPDT’s viability consultant 
as the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing the scheme can deliver. The 
commercial floorspace has been valued at approximately the same value per ft² as the 
London Affordable Rented units, given the sites PTAL rating of between 3 and 4 and the 
lack of amenities in Pudding Mill.  

5.7. Nevertheless, in response to the points raised by Members the applicant has revised the 
affordable offer to include a greater proportion of London Affordable Rent tenure (LAR) 
family units.  All of the additional affordable housing units that would be provided pursuant 
to this s.73 application would be made available at the LAR tenure, which is considered to 
be more affordable than the Affordable Rent tenure approved in in the extant scheme.  

5.8. In response to Members concerns, the revised offer equates to two additional 3 bed units 
at London Affordable Rent rather than Shared Ownership, in addition to those already 
offered as part of the approved scheme (see table 2 below). The additional LAR tenure is 
welcomed in helping to meet affordable housing need. 

5.9. The applicant has also agreed to sign up to the Mayor’s affordable housing review 
mechanism in its SPG which is not included as part of the consented application, thereby 
potentially securing provision for more affordable housing.  This is highlighted in the revised 
Heads of Terms (paragraph 5.26). 

Unit Mix  

5.10. Following Members' concerns regarding the proposed unit mix, which was considered to 
comprise of too many studio apartments and not enough family units. The applicant has 
reviewed the proposals further and has increased the number of family units in the market 
housing tenure by seven units, when compared with the schemes presented to Members 
at its May Committee, by enlarging some of the 2 bedroom units. In addition (as stated 
above), the two 3-bedroom shared ownership units are now offered at London Affordable 
Rent.

5.11. The unit mix as presented to Committee on 22nd May and then compared against the 
proposals set out in the s.73 application is set out in tables 1 and 2 respectively below.  

5.12. In response to Members’ comments with regard to the number of studios, 7 of these units 
have been enlarged to provide 1 bedroom units instead. This has been achieved by 
amending the typical floor plan of Building 1 to replace the private studio apartments with 
one bedroom apartments on each floor from level 5 to level 11, thereby reducing the number 
of studios from 10 to 3. 

5.13. In addition, the typical floor plan of Building 1 has been amended to replace the private two 
bedroom apartments with three bedroom apartments on each floor from level 5 to level 11, 
thereby increasing the number of three bedroom units from 50 to 57. 

5.14. Whilst the number of 3 bed units provided as open market units has been reduced when 
compared with the consented proposals, this allows for the provision of more affordable 
housing for the revised proposals given the impact on viability. 

Page 76



Table 1 – Unit Mix as presented to Committee on 22nd May 

Tenure Studio 1-bed 2-bed 3-bed 4-bed All beds 
Total

Market (80% of total 
housing) 

10 53 119 37 2 221 

Shared Ownership 
(9.5% of total housing, 
48% of total affordable 

housing) 

0 5 14 2 0 21 

London Affordable 
Rent (10.5% of total 
housing, 52% of total 

affordable housing 

0 13 8 11 1 33 

All tenures Total 10 71 141 50 3 275

Table 2 – Revised Unit Mix: 

Tenure Studio 1-bed 2-bed 3-bed 4-bed All beds 
Total

Market (80% of total 
housing) 

3 60 112 44 2 221

Shared Ownership 
(6.9% of total 
housing, 35% of 
total affordable 
housing) 

0 5 14 0 0 19

London Affordable 
Rent (12.7% of total 
housing, 65% of 
total affordable 
housing 

0 13 8 13 1 35

All tenures Total 3 78 134 57 3 275

5.15. Officers welcome the revised mix and affordable housing offer which is over and above 
what is supported on viability grounds as set out in the appended Committee Report 
(paragraphs 10.18 – 10.43), and is regarded as beneficial in terms of helping to meet 
housing need.  

5.16. Officers are of the view that the revised offer is acceptable.  It is considered that the 
proposals offer a unit mix which from the applicant’s viability perspective enables the 
scheme to be deliverable, while contributing to delivering mixed and balanced communities 
and homes for families in line with Local Plan Policy H1. 

Page 77



Architectural Expression, Design Quality, and Density   

5.17. London Plan policy 3.5 seeks to achieve housing development of the highest quality – 
internally, externally and in relation to their context and to the wider environment. As set out 
in the appended Committee Report (paragraphs 10.55 – 10.58) the Mayors Housing SPG 
states that where density ranges are exceeded they should be rigorously tested according 
to different aspects of ‘liveability’.  It also states that the scheme should be exemplary with 
respect to urban design, provision of amenity space, climate change and transport to 
ensure that the site is not being overdeveloped. Those matters are discussed in this report 
below, and in officers’ report from May. Similar objectives are set out in the Local Plan 
Policy H.1. All of these issues are discussed in the appended Committee Report 
(paragraphs 10.44 – 10.85). 

5.18. Architectural Expression: The s73 proposals introduce a third full floor of additional 
commercial accommodation to buildings 1 and 2, which results in a reduction in the recess 
originally proposed separating the commercial areas from the residential floors above.  At 
its May meeting Members were of the view that the reduced recess presented as 1.15m 
would have a detrimental impact on original architectural integrity of the two buildings and 
the development as a whole. Following Members concerns the applicant has re-introduced 
a deeper recess of 2.5m, which compares to the originally approved recess of 2.65m.  
Officers are of the view that the revision successfully reinforces the concept of the original 
design as approved. The reinstatement of the recess, albeit slightly less deep, would ensure 
that the initial architectural expression of the consented scheme is retained without 
compromising the quality of the increased commercial floor plates on this third-floor level.  
Officers are satisfied that the revision ensures that the scheme retains the high-quality 
architecture of the consented scheme while enabling changes which the applicant has 
advised are crucial to the scheme’s delivery.

5.19. Other alterations now proposed are amendments primarily to the fenestration and balconies 
in line with the proposed internal alterations as a result of the optimisation of the residential 
units, and are not unduly visible within the wider scheme.  

5.20. Density: With regard to density, the proposed development as submitted and as revised 
falls within the suggested density parameters of the adopted London Plan (2016) and is 
comparable with the wider Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) for Pudding Mill. 
Furthermore, it should be noted that the direction of travel for the draft London Plan is to 
increase site densities and to remove prescribed limits for housing in London where design 
quality and adequate residential amenity can be provided. The s73 proposals would result 
in a residential density of 675 habitable rooms per hectares. For context, the LCS residential 
density range proposed for the adjoin PDZ 8 Development Parcels are between 450-950 
and 450-650 habitable rooms per hectare. The London Plan maximum density range for 
development proposals is 200-700hr/ha. 

5.21. Overall, and subject to the recommended conditions, the proposal meets the policy 
requirements for residential accommodation and performs well from a ‘liveability’ 
perspective. The proposal is considered to represent high quality design in terms of its high 
performance against the liveability criteria despite the high density. Officers can confirm 
that the size of units and internal room sizes meet and in many cases, exceed the minimum 
standards set out in the London Plan and the SPG.

5.22. Amenity: There is a reduction in residential amenity space by 73m² when compared with 
the consented scheme. However, the provision is still 2,036m² which would exceed the 
baseline requirement of 1,717m² as set out in the Mayor’s Housing SPG; this excludes 
private balconies which are provided in every unit in accordance with the GLA’s Housing 
SPG. In addition, publicly accessible space will be provided to the whole frontage of the 
Bow Back River, a significant benefit of the scheme. Also, the development offers high 
quality residential space including defensible space and high-quality entrances and amenity 
areas.

Page 78



5.23. Furthermore, the reordering of the layout would mean that the proposals provide additional 
amenity space (46m²) for the office accommodation over the extant consent. 

5.24. As set out in the appended Committee Report, Officers are satisfied that taking into account 
the ‘liveability’ and design factors referred to, the density of the proposed scheme would be 
of high quality consistent with the density and character of its context. The proposals 
demonstrate high quality design, and architectural integrity in accordance with Local Plan 
Policies B.4, BN.1 and BN.4 in line with the extant consent. 

5.25. Extant Consent Heads of Terms: The following are the heads of terms set out in the 
original s106 agreement (14/00422/FUL) to mitigate the effects of the development.

5.26. As highlighted below the proposed deed of variation to the original s106 agreement would 
tie in the originally agreed s106 obligations to the proposed s73 permission. It would cover 
the proposed changes to the affordable housing offer, including requiring a review 
mechanism in accordance with the Mayor’s Affordable Housing and Viability SPG. The 
heads of terms set out below reflect what has been secured in the existing section 106 
agreement and the obligations that will need to be amended by the deed of variation are 
shown in bold and underlining: 

 Final details of the treatment of the podium to Block 1 and 2 

To secure the Affordable Housing final offer, and include review mechanisms in
accordance with the Mayors Affordable Housing and Viability SPG. 

 Affordable housing delivery linked to market housing 

 Safeguarding of Land Required for Future Road and Bridge Link 

 The land that is identified for the alignment of the future road link and bridge from Sugar 
House Lane to Pudding Mill shall be laid out in accordance with the details contained 
in the planning application and any subsequent approval of details prior to first 
occupation of the development and shall be maintained by the Developer in that 
condition thereafter until such time as the relevant highway authority request that it be 
made available for the construction of the road and bridge link. 

 Waterway Survey 

 Transportation of Construction and Waste Materials by Water Transport 

 An obligation in the legal agreement to use reasonable endeavours to meet aspirations 
for the water transport of waste arising from demolition at the site and for new materials 
to be delivered by waterway.  

 Marshgate Lane Design Works Contribution  

 Implement design initiatives / proposals arising from the impact of the development on 
Marshgate Lane in order to rebalance the street and enhance provision for users 
including pedestrians and cyclists. 

 Relocation Strategy 

 Relocation strategy as part of the legal agreement to ensure that the applicant uses 
reasonable endeavours to relocate the existing tenants within the Growth Boroughs 

 Employment Workspace Model

 Delivery of workspace as per the model of Workspace14 Limited  

 Workspace to notify the LPA prior to commencement as to whether it would occupy the 
workspace. If it does not occupy, then it should be offered as low-cost workspace for a 
period of 2 years 

Page 79



 Requirement for workspace strategy to ensure employment floorspace is designed and 
managed to meet the needs of small local companies and businesses 

 Local Labour Strategy: To ensure a proportion of the employment during construction 
and operation (end-use) are from the Host Boroughs and to provide training initiatives 

 London Living Wage: The minimum hourly wage as published by the GLA for both 
construction and end jobs. 

 Travel Plan: To implement, monitor and review and provide membership to a car club 
and include electric car charging points 

 Car Park Management Strategy 

 Provision of Car Club spaces and Contribution to Membership Fees 

 Safeguarded Land for TfL Cycle Docking Station  

 Restriction on eligibility of future residents and commercial occupiers for on-street 
parking permits 

 Electric Charging Point Provision

 Waterways Strategy

 Design Monitoring Contribution – In order to maintain design quality in the event that 
the original architect is not retained. 

 Sustainability: Use of reasonable endeavours to secure the extension of the QEOP 
district heating and cooling network to the development site and thereafter an obligation 
to secure connection of all buildings; and in the event that this cannot be achieved to 
submit details of alternative measures by which equivalent carbon savings can be 
achieved; reasonable endeavours to encourage occupiers to reduce their energy 
usage 

 Management and maintenance of new public realm.

 Public pedestrian and cycle access along the east-west in perpetuity

6.         Human Rights & Equalities Implications

6.1. Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 as they 
relate to the application and the conflicting interests of the Applicants and any third party 
opposing the application in reaching their decisions. The provisions of the Human Rights 
Act 1998 have been taken into account in the processing of the application and the 
preparation of this report. In particular, Article 6 (1), of the European Convention on 
Human Rights in relation civil rights and a fair hearing; Article 8 of the ECHR in relation 
to the right to respect for private and family life and Article 1 Protocol 1 of the ECHR in 
relation to the protection of property have all been taken into account. 

Page 80



6.2. In addition, the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in respect of 
certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and sexual orientation. It 
places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to have due regard to the 
advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers including planning powers. Officers 
have taken this into account in the assessment of the application and Members must be 
mindful of this duty inter alia when determining all planning applications. In particular 
Members must pay due regard to the need to: 

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 

3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

6.3. Officers are satisfied that the application material and Officers’ assessment has taken 
into account these issues. Particular matters of consideration have included provision of 
accessible housing and parking bays, as well as the provision of affordable and family 
housing. 

7.        CONCLUSION  

7.1. As set out in section 12 of the appended Committee Report the proposals accord with 
national, regional and local development plan policy.  The development forms a mixed use 
that is respectful of its context and would positively regenerate the area in accordance with 
Local Plan policy.  

7.2. It is considered that the variations proposed as part of the s73 application can be supported, 
noting that they would be limited in their effect on the originally permitted scheme and would 
only constitute minor material amendments to the parent permission (14/00422/FUL). The 
minor material amendments are considered both individually and cumulatively to be 
acceptable and subject to the necessary alteration to the original s106 agreement by way 
of the deed of variation and conditions, the officer recommendation is to grant this s73 
variation planning permission. 

7.3. The s73 application as revised is recommended for approval subject to the satisfactory 
completion of a deed of variation to the existing s106 Legal Agreement. 

8.          PLANNING CONDITIONS  

1. Time limit

S73 - CONSENT LIMITED TO THAT OF ORIGINAL PERMISSION: The development 
hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of [04/05/2020].  

Reason: To ensure the commencement timescale for the development is not 
extended beyond that of the original planning permission granted on [05/05/2017] [ref: 
14/00422/FUL]. Furthermore, to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1)(a) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990  

2. Works in accordance with approved details 

The development, including demolition and construction, shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following details and plan numbers:    

INSERT DRAWING NUMBERS 

Page 81



and the description of development contained in the application and any other plans, 
drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been approved by 
the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions. 

Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained. 

3. Section 106 Obligation 

No development on the 14ML Land shall commence until all of the parties who own 
a freehold interest in the 14ML Land have entered into the Supplemental Agreement 
with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that no development of the 14ML Land can take place until that 
land is bound into the relevant planning obligations contained within the Section 106 
Agreement. 

4. Workspace 14 Build Out 

No part of the development permitted on the 14ML Land shall be occupied until at 
least 84 residential units on the W14 Land have been occupied. 

Reason: To ensure the viability review obligations of the Section 106 Agreement 
capture the achieved sales values of the majority of residential units comprised 
within the development. 

5. Notice of Commencement 

The development shall not be commenced until written notice of intention to 
commence the development has been given to the Local Planning Authority. The 
notice required by this condition shall only be given where there is a genuine prospect 
of development being commenced within 21 days of the notice and the notice shall 
confirm and provide evidence that this is the case. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To enable the LPA to monitor 
development. 

6. Development in accordance with Environmental Statement 

The Development (including other matters submitted for approval pursuant to this 
permission) shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation measures set out 
in the document WIE10067.3.2.1. Marshgate_Mitigation Table - Final July 2016.  

Reason:  To ensure the mitigation measures specified in the Environmental 
Statement are satisfactorily implemented. 

DEMOLITION & CONSTRUCTION 

7. Demolition and Construction Management Plan (DCMP) 

The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until a demolition and construction management plan (CMP) for the respective area 
of land, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
Demolition and Construction Management Plan and the updates thereto shall be in 
accordance with all relevant legislation in force and substantially in accordance with 
all policy adopted and best practice guidance published at the time of submission. 
The DCMP shall include as a minimum the following information: 

a. The arrangements for liaison with the relevant highway authorities; 

Page 82



b. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 

c. The loading and unloading of plant and materials including a construction 

logistics plan; 

d. The storage of plant and materials use in constructing the development; 

e. The erection and maintenance of security hoardings; 

f. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 

g. A scheme for recycling and disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction work; 

h. Dealing with complaints and community liaison; 

i. measures to control the flow of surface water off the slab (temporary 

drainage details); 

j. Attendance as necessary at the LLDC Construction Transport Management 

Group (CTMG) and or Construction Coordination Group; 

k. Details of routes and access for construction traffic. Including lorry holding 

areas; and 

l. Guidance on membership of the Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme and 

implementation of vehicle safety measures and driver training including cycle 

awareness and an on-road cycle module. 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure that the Local Planning 
Authority can assess whether the development would generate any unacceptable 
environmental impacts through demolition and construction that would require 
appropriate mitigation and to be in accordance with London Plan Policy S.3 and Local 
Plan 2015 Policy T.4. 

8. Code of Construction Practice 

The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until a Code of Construction Practice for the respective area of land has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Code of Construction 
Practice shall be in accordance with all relevant legislation in force and substantially 
in accordance with all policy adopted and best practice guidance published at the time 
of submission. The Code of Construction Practice shall include proposals for the 
following: 

 Safeguarding of buried services; 

 Location and height of any proposed stock; 

 Waste generation and materials reuse and recycling; 

 Air quality mitigation measures from demolition and construction activity within 

the Site; and 

 Noise mitigation measures from demolition and construction activity within the 

Site.

The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Page 83



Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure that the Local Planning 
Authority can assess whether the development would generate any unacceptable 
environmental impacts through construction that would require appropriate mitigation 
in accordance with Local Plan Policies BN.11 and S.4. 

9. Demolition and Construction Waste Management Plan 

The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until a Demolition and Construction Waste Management Plan (DCWMP) for the 
respective area of land has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The objectives of the DCWMP shall be to ensure all waste arising from the 
construction works are managed in a sustainable manner, maximising the 
opportunities to reduce, reuse and recycle waste materials. The DCWMP shall also 
detail the compliance and assurance requirements to be maintained on the Site 
during all phases of construction. The DCWMP shall include as a minimum the 
following information: 

 Classification of all waste including hazardous waste according to current 

legislative provisions; 

 Performance measurement and target setting against estimated waste 

forecasts;  

 Reporting of project performance on quantities and options utilised;  

 Measures to minimise waste generation;  

 Opportunities for re-use or recycling;  

 Provision for the segregation of waste streams on the Site that are clearly 

labelled;  

 Licensing requirements for disposal sites;  

 An appropriate audit trail encompassing waste disposal activities and waste 

consignment notes;  

 Measures to avoid fly tipping by others on lands being used for construction.  

 Measures to provide adequate training and awareness through toolbox talks;  

 Returns policies for unwanted materials; and 

 The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: Submission required prior to 
commencement to ensure that the Local Planning Authority to ensure that the impact 
of demolition and construction is appropriately mitigated and ensure high standards 
of sustainability are achieved in accordance with Policy 5.18 of the London Plan and 
Policy S.6 of the Local Plan 2015. 

Page 84



10. Approval of road works necessary 

The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until details of the following works to the highway for the respective area of land have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority. Works to the highway shall only be carried 
out by the Highway Authority: 

 The provision of an on-street loading bay; and 

 The installation of new crossovers and reinstatement of footways where existing 

crossovers are being blocked up. 

The building hereby permitted on the respective area of land shall not be occupied 
until these works have been consented in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure that occupiers of the site 
have adequate facilities to support the use and encourage the uptake of sustainable 
transport methods to and from the site, and to ensure that all road works associated 
with the proposed development are to a standard approved by the Local Planning 
Authority and are completed before occupation and in accordance with Local Plan 
2015 Policy T.4. 

11. Piling/Foundation Designs

Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be 

permitted on either the 14ML Land or the W14 Land other than with the express prior 

written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts 

of the respective area of land where it has been demonstrated that there is no 

resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in 

accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To ensure that the proposed activities safeguard human health and do not 
harm controlled waters and groundwater resources in line with paragraph 109 of the 
NPPF and the Environment Agency’s approach to groundwater protection March 
2017 and in accordance Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy 
BN13 of the Local Plan 2015.  

12. Piling method statement

No piling, including impact piling shall take place on either the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and type of piling to be 
undertaken and the methodology by which such piling would be carried out, including 
measures to prevent and minimise the potential for impact on ground water, damage 
to subsurface water infrastructure, and the programme for the works) for the 
respective area of land has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of 
the approved piling method statement.  

Reason: To ensure that the proposed activities safeguard human health and do not 
harm controlled waters and groundwater resources in line with paragraph 109 of the 
NPPF and the Environment Agency’s approach to groundwater protection March 
2017 and in accordance Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy 
BN13 of the Local Plan 2015 

Page 85



13. Remediation Statement 

No development except demolition to existing slab level shall commence on either 

the 14ML Land or W14 Land until a Remediation Statement has been submitted to 

and approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing.  The Remediation Statement 

shall outline and justify the assessment approach required to be completed and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Remediation Statement shall also 

define the phases of development for which subsequent submissions are required to 

be submitted to discharge the contamination assessment, remediation strategy and 

methodology.

Reason: Submission required prior to commencement to safeguard human health, 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 
neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 
7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local Plan 2015.  

14. Contamination assessment, remediation strategy and methodology 

No phase shall be commenced except demolition to existing slab level until details of 
remediation for that phase as defined in the submitted Remediation Statement have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
contamination assessment, remediation strategy and methodology approach shall be 
detailed in either of the following documents:  

• remediation protection method statement; or 

• site specific remediation strategy and remediation method statement  

Each submission shall contain as a minimum: 

• A review of relevant previous contamination information in conjunction with 
additional ground investigations undertaken as part of the Development. Any 
contamination assessment shall use appropriate assessment criteria.  

• Details of the proposed development and general work methodology and 
programme. 

• General health and safety and environmental controls including any details of 
any required authorisations, permits, licences and consents. 

• Discovery strategy to deal with unexpected contamination. 

• Details of how the remediation works and materials (including site won and 
imported) are to be validated. 

• The remediation method statement shall include details of design, installation 
and verification of gas and vapour protection measures in accordance with 
current guidance and British Standards if required by the Local Planning 
Authority.

The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason:  To safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance 
with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local 
Plan 2015. 

15. Remediation, validation and protection 

Page 86



No occupation of any part of the permitted Development (or stage in development as 
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall take place until a 
verification (or validation) report demonstrating completion of works set out in the 
approved remediation protection method statement, site specific remediation 
statement and remediation method statement has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The verification report shall assess and describe the requirements for long-term 
monitoring and maintenance (including contingency action) to ensure the 
effectiveness of the remediation measures implemented. The long-term monitoring 
and maintenance shall be implemented as approved. 

Reason: To safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development has been carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors and in 
accordance with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of 
the Local Plan 2015 

16. Unexpected contamination 

If during development unexpected contamination is encountered then no further 
development shall be carried out until an addendum to the remediation protection 
method statement, site specific remediation statement and remediation method 
statement (referred to in conditions 13 and 14) has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority). The addendum shall be implemented as approved, in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development is carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance 
with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local 
Plan 2015.

17. Surface Water Drainage 

Development of either the 14ML Land or W14 Land shall not be commenced except 

demolition to existing slab level until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for 

the respective area of land, based on the following agreed documents has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 Marshgate Business Centre and 14 Marshgate Lane, Flood Risk Assessment, 

Document Reference: CIV15409 ES 002, October 2014. 

 Marshgate Lane, London, E15 2NH, Drainage Report, Job No. 5239, August 

2014.

The drainage strategy shall include a restriction in run-off and surface water storage 
on site as outlined in the FRA. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details before the development is completed. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: Submission required prior to 
commencement to the Local Planning Authority to prevent the increased risk of 
flooding, to improve and protect water quality, and improve habitat and amenity in 
accordance with Policy 5.13 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local Plan 
2015.

Page 87



18. Drainage

The drainage works referred to in the approved Marshgate Business Centre Drainage 
strategy prepared by Waterman dated October 2014 shall be implemented in full for 
each relevant phase of the development, and no discharge of foul or surface water 
from the site shall be accepted into the public system until the said drainage works 
have been completed unless minor variations are agreed in writing in advance with 
the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient 
capacity is made available to cope with the new development; and in order to avoid 
adverse environmental impact upon the community and in accordance with Policy 
5.13 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local Plan 2015. 

19. Archaeological investigation  

a) For each of the 14ML Land and the W14 Land no development of the respective 
area of land other than demolition to existing ground level shall take place until 
(i) a programme of archaeological evaluation for the respective area of land has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (ii) the 
approved archaeological evaluation programme has been implemented and (iii) 
a report on that evaluation has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

b) If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by the evaluation under 
Part A, then before development of the respective area of land, other than 
demolition to existing ground level, commences (i) a Written Scheme of 
Investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

c) No development or demolition of the respective area of land other than demolition 
to existing ground level shall take place other than in accordance with the Written 
Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (B) and archaeological works shall 
be carried out by a suitably qualified investigating body acceptable to the Local 
Planning Authority. 

d) D) The development on the respective area of land shall not be occupied until a 
site investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in 
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation 
approved under Part (B), and the provision for analysis, publication and 
dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been secured. 

Reason: To ensure that the archaeological interests are protected and considered 
appropriately and in accordance with London Plan policy 7.8 of the Local Plan and 
policy BN.2 of the Local Plan 2015. 

Page 88



RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS 

20. Residential standard- internal noise levels 

No residential premises shall be occupied unless it has been designed and 
constructed in accordance with BS8233:2014 ‘Sound insulation and noise reduction 
for buildings- Code of Practice’ and attains the following internal noise levels: 

 Bedrooms- 30dB LAeq,T* and 40dB LAfmax 

 Living rooms- 30dB LAeq, D* 

 *T- Night-time 8 hours between 23:00-07:00 

 *D- Daytime 16 hours between 07:00-23:00. 

Reason: To ensure that the occupiers and users of the development do not suffer a 
loss of amenity by reason of excess noise from environmental and transportation 
sources and to be in accordance with Policy 7.15 of the London Plan and Policy BN11 
of the Local Plan 2015. 

21. Sound insulation and noise mitigation details – Residential and Non-
Residential

The development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 Land shall not be occupied 
until details of the proposed sound insulation scheme to be implemented between the 
residential accommodation and any non-residential uses of the respective area of 
land have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall include a glazing specification for all windows to ensure a good 
standard of internal noise can be achieved during day time and night time in 
accordance with the guideline levels of BS8233 1999: "Sound insulation and noise 
reduction for buildings – code of practice" or an equivalent standard. Details should 
include airborne and impact sound insulation. The Development on the respective 
area of land shall not be occupied until the noise mitigation measures approved as 
part of the sound insulation scheme have been installed. The approved scheme is to 
be completed prior to occupation of the Development and thereafter permanently 
retained.  

Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupants and/or neighbours in accordance 
with Policy 7.15 of the London Plan and Policy BN11 of the Local Plan 2015. 

22. Accessible housing 

90% of the residential units hereby permitted shall be designed and constructed in 
accordance with M4 (2) Category 2 of Part M of the Building Regulations. 

10% of the residential units hereby permitted shall be designed and constructed in 
accordance M4 (3) Category 3 of Part M of the Building Regulations (split 
proportionately so that 10% of each of the following tenures of residential units shall 
be so provided: market housing units, intermediate housing units, social rented 
housing units and affordable rented housing units; and 10% of each of the following 
sizes of residential units shall be so provided: one, two and three bedroom units). 

The actual number of units to be provided in accordance with this condition would be 
the number of whole units that is as near as arithmetically possible to the specified 
percentage and 0.5 or above shall be rounded up to the nearest whole. 

Reason: To ensure adequate accessible housing is provided and to be in accordance 
with Local Plan 2015 Policy BN.5: Requiring inclusive design.   

Page 89



23. Refuse storage 

Before the first occupation of the development hereby permitted on either of the 14ML 
Land or the W14 Land, the waste and recycling storage, transfer and collection 
arrangements for the respective area of land shown on the approved drawing/s shall 
be submitted in a Waste Servicing Strategy and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority, and made available for use by the occupiers of the Development. 
The Waste Servicing Strategy shall include the following key pieces of information: 

 Details and plans showing where residents and commercial tenants in each 
building should deposit their waste; 

 Description of the waste containers and equipment to be housed in each waste 
storage area; 

 Explanation of how and when waste containers will be transferred between 
waste rooms, the route the container will take during transfer, and where the 
necessary equipment for facilitating the operations will be stored; and 

 Details of arrangements for collection contractors for municipal and commercial 
waste, including where the waste will be collected from, where the waste 
collection vehicles will park, and the route for transferring bins between waste 
stores and vehicles.  

The facilities and management processes provided shall thereafter be retained and 
maintained for the life of the Development of the respective area of land and neither 
they nor the space they occupy shall be used for any other purpose unless it can be 
demonstrated that these facilities are no longer required or can be reduced in size 
without affecting recycling rates, to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority in accordance with Policy S.6 of the Local Plan. 

Reason: To ensure there are refuse storage and management arrangements in place 
in advance of the use commencing to avoid highway and safety issues and ensure 
that that the refuse would be appropriately stored within the site in the interest of 
protecting the amenity of the site and the area in general from litter, odour and 
potential vermin/pest nuisance. 

PARKING, SERVICING, CYCLES  

24. Deliveries and servicing management plan 

The development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 Land shall not be occupied 
until a delivery and servicing management plan (DSMP) detailing how all elements of 
the respective area of land are to be serviced has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The DSMP shall be prepared in accordance 
with TfL's online guidance on delivery and servicing plans found at 
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/info-for/freight/planning/delivery-and-servicing-plans#on-this-
page-1 or such replacement best practice guidance as shall apply at the date of 
submission of the DSMP. The approved DSMP for the respective area of land shall 
be implemented from first occupation of that respective area of land and thereafter 
for the life of the development on the respective area of land.  

Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and residential amenity 
making adequate provision for deliveries and servicing, and encouraging sustainable 
delivery methods in accordance with Policy 6.11 of the London Plan and Policy T4 of 
the Local Plan 2015.   

Page 90



25. Cycle Storage and facilities- details to be submitted 

The development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 Land shall not be occupied 
until details (1:50 scale drawings) of the facilities to be provided for the secure storage 
of cycles (for both residential and commercial elements) and on site changing facilities 
and showers (for the commercial element) for the respective area of land have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development of the respective area of land shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details and the facilities provided shall be retained for the life of the 
development on the respective area of land and the space used for no other purpose. 

Reason: In order to ensure that satisfactory secure cycle parking and facilities for 
cyclists are provided and retained and in accordance with Policy 6.3 of the London 
Plan and Policy T4 of the Local Plan 2015.  

SUSTAINABILITY 

26. Renewable energy 

The development on the W14 Land and on the 14ML Land shall be constructed and 
operated in accordance with the submitted Price/Myers Energy Assessment dated 
1st April 2015 and achieve reductions in regulated CO2 emissions through the use of 
on-site renewable energy generation sources approved as part of this development.  

Reason: To ensure a high standard of sustainable design and construction and to 
ensure sufficient information is available to monitor the effects of the development in 
accordance with Policy 5.2 of The London Plan and Policies S2 and S5 of the Local 
Plan 2015.

27. BREEAM 

Before any fit out works to the commercial premises hereby authorised begins, an 
independently verified BREEAM report (detailing performance in each category, 
overall score, BREEAM Design Stage rating and a BREEAM certificate of building 
performance) which demonstrates that a minimum 'Excellent' rating has been 
achieved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and the development of the respective area of land shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with any such approval given.  Within three months of occupation 
of any commercial premises hereby permitted, a certified Post Construction Review 
(or other verification process agreed with the Local Planning Authority) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, confirming that 
the agreed standards above have been met. 

Reason: To ensure that high standards of sustainability are achieved in in accordance 
with Policies 5.2, 5.3 and 5.6 of The London Plan and Policies S2 and S4 of the Local 
Plan 2015. 

28. Material samples 

Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land, a schedule detailing brick bonding(s) where appropriate and samples of 
materials and finishes to be used on the external surfaces of the development of the 
respective area of land shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved materials shall be used in the implementation of 
the development. A sample panel(s) of brickwork of not less than 1m x 1m showing 
mortar mix, bonding and pointing type shall be constructed for the Local Planning 
Authority to inspect and approve and shall be retained on site until completion of the 
works, and the brickwork shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
panel(s).  

Page 91



Reason and pre-commencement justification: To safeguard the appearance of the 
buildings and the character of the area generally and to enable the Local Planning 
Authority to properly consider and control the development in the interest of visual 
amenity and to accord with Policies BN.1 and BN.4 of the Local Plan 2015. 

29. Prior to the construction of buildings 1 and 2 details of the architectural design, 
including façade treatment, as well as materials and colour of the external surfaces 
of the podium level (levels 1, 2 and 3) of buildings 1 and 2 (at a scale to be agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority and shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved details.  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To safeguard the appearance of the 
buildings and the character of the area generally and to enable the Local Planning 
Authority to properly consider and control the development and to be in accordance 
with Strategic Policy SP.3 and Policies BN.1 and BN.10 of the Local Plan 2015. 

30. Detailed drawings 

Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land detailed drawings including sections (at a scale to be agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority) of the respective area of land shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority as follows:  

 Commercial façade details (ground level entrances and shopfront): elevations 

and sections through shopfronts, including details of doors, windows and signage 

and junctions with new pedestrian space as well as canopies, security shutters 

and areas for signage; 

 Residential façade details (including elevations facing the internal courtyard): 

elevations and sections annotated with materials and finishes of all windows 

(including reveals and sills), entrances, external bin stores, balconies, and 

balustrades, pipework and parapets; and all openings adjacent to the highways. 

The development of the respective area of land shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the approved drawings.  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To enable the Local Planning Authority 
to properly consider and control the development and to be in accordance and in 
order to ensure a high quality of design and detailing is achieved and to be in 
accordance with Strategic Policy SP.3 and Policies BN.1, BN.4 and BN.10 of the 
Local Plan 2015. 

31. Green/brown roof  

Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land, details of the biodiverse roofs (including a specification and maintenance plan) 
to buildings 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 as relevant to the respective area of land shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the 
development of the respective area of land shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with any such approval given.   

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure the proposed development 
would enhance the visual amenities of the locality and is designed for the maximum 

Page 92



benefit of local biodiversity and to be in accordance with Policy S.4 of the Local Plan 
2015.

32. Landscaping Plan (including roof terrace) 

Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or W14 Land 
as shown on the appended phasing plan detailed drawings, the following information 
regarding the respective area of land shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority: 

 Detailed drawings 1:50 and 1:10 of a hard and soft landscaping scheme showing 

the treatment of all parts of the site not covered by buildings and roof terrace areas 

(including wind mitigation measures, boundary treatments, surfacing materials of 

any parking, access, or pathways layouts, materials and edge details and material 

samples of hard landscaping); 

 Full details of the treatment of site boundaries (including bollards) 

 Details of all existing trees on and adjacent to the land, and details of any to be 

retained, together with measures for their protection, during the course of 

development; 

 Waterside landscaping; 

 Planting schedules; 

 Sections through street tree pits;  

 Species mix; 

 Details of biodiversity enhancements (bird and bat nesting boxes etc); 

 Details of the increased marginal habitat highlighted in Appendix 14.1 of the 2014 

Environmental Statement; 

 Details including plans, elevations and specifications of any play equipment to be 

provided; and

 Details of parapet/balustrade and planting buffer around the roof terrace. 

The planting, seeding and/or turfing shall be carried out as approved in the first 
planting season following completion of building works comprised in the development 
of the respective area of land and any tree or shrub that is found to be dead, dying, 
severely damaged or diseased within two years of the completion of the building 
works OR two years of the carrying out of the landscaping scheme (whichever is 
later), shall be replaced in the next planting season by specimens of similar size and 
species in the first suitable planting season. Planting shall comply to BS:4428 Code 
of practice for general landscaping operations, BS:3996 Nursery stock specification, 
BS:5837 Trees in relation to construction and BS:7370 Recommendations for 
establishing and managing grounds maintenance organisations and for design 
considerations related to maintenance. All other works including hard surface 
materials and play equipment shall be carried out and completed prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure the proposed development 
would enhance the visual amenities of the locality and in order that the Local Planning 

Page 93



Authority may ensure that the design and details are of high quality and to be in 
accordance with Policies BN.1 and BN.3 of the Local Plan 2015.  

33. Overheating 

Before the construction of the façades for the development on either of the W14 Land 
or the 14ML Land, an assessment of the internal temperature in summer of the 
development of the respective area of land shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority, so as to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the Building 
Regulations 2010 (Schedule 1, Part L) such assessment must use the method of 
calculation set out in the SAP 2012 (Appendix P) (or any subsequent edition of the 
SAP as may amend or replace the 2012 edition, as published by BRE). The 
assessment shall include details of any mitigation measures that are proposed to be 
used to reduce overheating, which shall include without limitation and where 
appropriate design of the facades; provision of ventilation; and internal layout. The 
mitigation measures shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following approval of the mitigation measures the building on the respective area of 
land shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and maintained in 
this condition thereafter, unless other minor variations are agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To ensure a comfortable level of amenity for residents of the development 
and in the interests of visual amenity and to be in accordance with Policy S.4 of the 
Local Plan 2015. 

34. Photovoltaics

Prior to the commencement of the development on either of the W14 Land or the 
14ML Land full details of photovoltaic (PV) panels and a strategy for their installation 
on the respective area of land shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development of the respective area of land shall only 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The approved details shall 
be implemented prior to the first use of the building on the respective area of land and 
shall thereafter be permanently maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure that the development 
incorporates renewable technologies and meets a high standard of sustainable 
design and construction and is in accordance with Policy 5.2 of the London Plan and 
Policies S2 and S5 of the Local Plan 2015.  

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT 

35. Land Use 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and/or 
re-enacting that Order) the commercial premises hereby approved shall only be used 
for the purposes specified in the application (being use class B1 as defined in the 
Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended 
at the date of this permission).  

Page 94



Reason: To provide control over the loss of employment generating use in 
accordance with the regeneration objectives for the Legacy Corporation area as set 
out in its purposes and within the Corporation’s Local Plan. 

In granting this permission the Local Planning Authority has had regard to the special 
circumstances of this case and wishes to have the opportunity of exercising control 
over any subsequent alternative use. 

CAFÉ / BREAKOUT AREA 

36. Café / breakout hours of use 

The café / breakout area shall not operate outside the hours of 0800 to 2300 hours 
on any day. 

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity and to be in accordance with Policy 
BN.1 of the Local Plan 2015. 

37. Café / breakout external alterations 

Prior to the use of the café/breakout area, details of the external appearance and 
specification of the flue at roof top level to Building 1 shall be submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and this shall be implemented before first 
use of the café/breakout area, and also retained in accordance with the approved 
details. No other external flue, ventilation equipment or any other external alteration 
shall be installed in relation to the café / breakout use without the prior written approval 
of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In the interest of visual and resident amenity and to be in accordance with 
Policy BN.1 of the Local Plan 2015. 

38. Lighting

No architectural lighting, security lighting or other external means of illumination of 
the site shall be provided, installed or operated in the development, except in 
accordance with a detailed scheme which shall provide for lighting that is low level, 
hooded and directional, and has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details and retained thereafter. 

Reason: In the interest of residential amenity and to protect ecological systems in 
accordance with Local Plan policy BN.3.  

INFORMATIVES: 

1. The Scheme is liable for Mayoral and LLDC CIL 

2. The applicant is reminded that this planning permission is subject to the 
accompanying S106 Legal Agreement. 

3. Please note that this planning application has been assessed against current 
planning legislation only. The applicant (or any subsequent owner or developer) 
is therefore reminded that the onus of responsibility to ensure the development 
meets current fire safety regulations lies fully with them and that they are legally 
obliged to obtain the relevant Building Regulations consent. 

Page 95



4. In accordance with LFEPA guidance the applicant is strongly recommended to 
ensure the installation of sprinklers in the new development. The development 
shall conform with Part B5 of Approved Document B of the Building 
Regulations. 

5. Thames Water Informatives: 

 The applicant is reminded of their responsibility to make proper provision for 

drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer.  

 The applicant is reminded of the need for a groundwater discharge permit  

 The developer should take account of minimum water pressure in the design of 

the proposed development. 

6. English Heritage Greater London Archaeology informatives

 Written schemes of investigation would need to be prepared and implemented 

by a suitably qualified archaeological practice in accordance guidelines.  

 In order to protect groundwater quality from further deterioration. No infiltration 

based sustainable drainage systems should be constructed on land affected by 

contamination as contaminants can remobilise and cause groundwater pollution.  

 Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods should not 

cause preferential pathways for contaminants to migrate to groundwater and 

cause pollution.

 All investigations of land potentially affected by contamination should be carried 

out by or under the direction of a suitably qualified competent person.  

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Marshgate PDC Report from 22nd May 2018 
Appendix 2 – Marshgate PDC - Update Report 22nd May 2018 

Page 96



Subject: Land at Marshgate Lane, Pudding Mill, Stratford, London E15 2NH, 
(Ref: 17/00669/AOD) 

Meeting date:  22 May 2018 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anne Ogundiya, Principal Planning Development Manager 

FOR DECISION 

This report would be considered in public 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. The application site comprises two industrial sites, No. 14 Marshgate Lane (14ML), 
and the Marshgate Business Centre (W14) which would be demolished as part of 
the proposal.  The application site has an area of approximately 1.33 ha and is 
bounded by Marshgate Lane to the west, Bow Back River and City Mill River to the 
south and east and the LLDC Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) redevelopment 
land (Planning Delivery Zone 8 (PDZ 8)) to the north.  The site is located within the 
Pudding Mill Local Centre.  

1.2. This report considers a submission under s73 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) for variation to condition 2 (approved drawings) of planning 
permission reference 14/00422/FUL, which granted consent in May  2017 for a 
mixed-use development comprising 254 residential units within 8 new buildings 
(ranging from 3-12 storeys) and 4,257m² Gross Internal Area (GIA) of commercial 
floorspace on 3 floors within Buildings 1 and 2. The permission also includes 
associated landscaped public realm, basement, access, servicing, car and cycle 
parking, and safeguarded land for the route of a new link road from Stratford High 
Street across the Bow Back River. 

1.3. The proposed s73 variation to condition 2 (approved plans) is submitted as a result 
of the applicant carrying out a post planning permission viability assessment and a 
design development appraisal to determine the optimal amount of employment and 
residential space that the redevelopment could provide. The process revealed that 
the scheme would benefit from additional commercial floorspace, and that a number 
of the residential units were significantly oversized when compared to the minimum 
floorspace requirements set out within the national described space standards 
(DCLG Technical Housing Standards) and referred to in the Mayor’s Housing 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) of March 2016.  

1.4. The s73 seeks to make changes to the approved scheme, described above, to 
increase the amount of commercial floorspace (Use Class B1) to 5,671m² (an 
additional 1,414m² (GIA)) representing an increase of 33%) (within Buildings 1 and 

Page 97



2); the optimisation of the existing residential floorspace resulting in an increase in 
the number of residential units to 275 from the consented 254 units (an increase of 
21 units or 8.3%); and alterations to the approved façades to align with the proposed 
new plan arrangements. The additional residential units are proposed to be 
contained within the existing building footprint and height. 

1.5. The residential component would comprise 71 x one bedroom units, 141 x two 
bedroom units, 50 x three bedroom units, 10 x studios, and 3 x four bedroom units. 
The proposal includes 19.6% (by unit) affordable housing overall, (17.7% under the 
extant consent 14/00422/FUL).  It is noted that of the 21 proposed additional units, 
9 units (42.8%) are affordable units. The development would provide 10% 
wheelchair accessible units. All of the 275 residential units would meet or exceed 
the nationally described space standards. 

1.6. The additional floor of commercial floorspace would be contained within Buildings 1 
and 2 resulting in four floors of employment workspace compared to the consented 
three floors. The additional commercial floorspace would not increase the height or 
massing of the buildings, which would remain at 12 and 8 storeys respectively. 
These first four floors would form a Business Centre for small and medium 
enterprises which would be managed by the applicant, a workspace provider 
(Workspace 14 Ltd). Residential accommodation would continue as before to be 
provided above the Business Centre. 

1.7. In accordance with the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017 as amended (the EIA Regulations) the application 
was submitted with an addendum Environmental Statement. Officers and their 
environmental and transport consultants conclude that the amendments proposed 
in the s73 application have no additional environmental impacts when compared to 
the extant permission (14/00422/FUL). 

1.8. The key issues in considering the s73 variation to condition 2 are:  

 Additional Commercial Floorspace 

 Housing Mix, including affordable housing; 

 Design and Residential Quality;  

 Elevational changes; and 

 Overall impact of the proposed changes including any impacts resulting from 
the increased commercial space (transport matters, environmental matters) 

1.9. The principle of redevelopment of the site is supported by development plan policy 
and is established by virtue of the consented permission (14/00422/FUL). 

1.10. The s73 variation to condition 2 (approved drawings) is considered to be acceptable 
in terms of the proposed amendments to the approved plans, no changes are 
proposed to the footprint or height of the development. The increase in residential 
units would make a contribution to overall housing targets. The development would 
make provision for additional affordable housing on the site and a review 
mechanism has been agreed to re-assess any additional contribution that could be 
made over the agreed level at the time of delivery of the development, depending 
on viability. The increase in office floorspace would help support the provision of 
additional jobs over the consented scheme.   

1.11. Officers are also satisfied that the changes to the design would still ensure a suitably 
high-quality development and that the alterations to the layout would still ensure a 

Page 98



quality residential development.  The proposed amendments would not result in any 
significant loss of amenity to surrounding residents or prospective residents within 
the scheme including in terms of outlook/daylight/sunlight or from increased activity. 
The changes, both individually and cumulatively, are also considered to be 
acceptable amendments to the extant consent on account of their scale and minimal 
impact.

1.12. This is a significant regeneration project in the area and would maximise the use of 
previously developed land and would make a valuable contribution to both local 
housing needs and the local employment offer.  

1.13. The proposal is considered to be acceptable in planning policy terms and the scale 
and nature results in a development which is not substantially different from the one 
which has been approved. It is therefore recommended that the s73 application is 
approved subject to conditions and a deed of variation to the original s106 
agreement in order to amend and tie the originally agreed obligations to the new 
permission. The applicant has been advised to submit a section s96A non-material 
amendment application, which would change the description of development so that 
it is consistent with the conditions as altered by the s73. 

2.   RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Committee is asked to: 

a) Approve the application for the reasons given in the report and grant 
planning permission subject to: 

1. the satisfactory completion of the deed of variation to the original legal 
agreement under s.106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
other enabling powers to secure the planning obligations set out in the 
recommended heads of terms which are set out in this report; and 

2.  the conditions set out in this report. 

b) Confirm that their decision has taken into consideration the 
environmental information addendum submitted in relation to the 
application, as required by Regulation 26(1) of the EIA Regulations: 

c) Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning Policy and 
Decisions to: 

1. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report including 
such refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions (including 
to dovetail with and where appropriate, reinforce, the final planning 
obligations to be contained in the deed of variation to the original 
section 106 legal agreement) as the Director of Planning Policy and 
Decisions considers reasonably necessary; 

2. Finalise the recommended deed of variation to the original legal 
agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this report,  including 
refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the obligations detailed 
in the heads of terms set out in this report (including to dovetail with 
and where appropriate, reinforce the final conditions and informatives 
to be attached to the planning permission) as the Director of Planning 
Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary; and 

Page 99



3. Complete the deed of variation to the original section 106 legal 
agreement referred to above and issue the planning permission.  

4. Determine the associated S96A application for non-material 
amendments referred to above. 

3.      FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no financial implications. 

4.      LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. The recommendation is that planning permission is granted, subject to conditions and 
completion of a deed of variation to the original s106 agreement in order to tie the 
originally agreed obligations to the new permission to ensure adequate mitigation of 
the impacts of the development. The contents of the deed of variation and summary 
of the original Heads of Terms is described in paragraphs 10.94. 

SITE PLAN 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100050265

Location:   Land at Marshgate Lane, Pudding Mill Stratford, London E15 2NH 

London Borough:  Newham 

Proposal: Application under s73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended) for the variation of Condition 2 (approved drawings) of 

Page 100



planning permission ref. 14/00422/FUL dated 5 May 2017 
(comprehensive mixed use redevelopment comprising: demolition of 
existing buildings, and the erection of 8 buildings ranging from 3 to 
12-storeys in height, comprising a total of 254 residential dwellings 
including affordable housing, and 4,257m² Gross Internal Area (GIA) 
of B1 (business) floorspace, together with basement, access, 
servicing, car parking, cycle parking, cycle storage, plant, open 
space and landscaping). 

The variation to Condition 2 (approved drawings) seeks to make 
changes to the approved scheme to include: (1) increase of 
employment use from 4,257m² to 5,671m² (additional 1,414m² (GIA) 
floorspace); (2) decrease of residential floorspace from 28,003m² to 
27,295m² (decrease of 708m² (GIA) floorspace); (3) optimisation of 
residential floorspace, increasing the number of residential units from 
254 to 275; and (4) alterations to façades. 

Applicants:   Workspace 14 Limited

Agent:   Bilfinger GVA 

Architects:   Squire and Partners 

5. SITE & SURROUNDINGS  

5.1 The application site has an area of 1.33 ha and is irregular in shape. It contains No. 
14 Marshgate Lane and the Marshgate Business Centre. It is bounded by Marshgate 
Lane to the west, Bow Back River and City Mill River to the south and east and vacant 
LLDC owned land to the north. The site is currently part open vacant land and part 
buildings forming the Marshgate Business Centre comprising buildings of up to four 
storeys in height but predominantly two and three storey which equates to a total 
floorspace of approximately 8,610m² gross internal area (GIA). Since the grant of 
planning permission for the redevelopment of the site in May 2017 a significant 
proportion of this floorspace is vacant with the remainder in B8 (storage and 
distribution), B1 (business) and B2 (general industry) use with 26 people employed in 
total. The site is located in the Pudding Mill Local Centre.

5.2 The buildings on the site are not listed nor is the site in or adjacent to any conservation 
area. The nearest Conservation Area is Sugar House Lane to the south of Stratford 
High Street (some 83.75m away to the south east of the application site).  

5.3 To the north and west of the site much of the land is vacant having been in transport 
and logistics related uses during the 2012 Games. Much of this land is included in the 
Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) outline planning permission (see History section 
6). Further to the north is the redeveloped Pudding Mill Lane DLR station.  

5.4 To the east and south of the site across the Bow Back and City Mill Rivers the area 
is characterised by large scale existing or projected residential led developments. To 
the north east on Blaker Road is Otter Close, a four-storey flatted development. To 
the east is City Mill Lock and Lock Keeper’s Cottage where a four-storey building of 
flats has recently been completed. To the south east and fronting Stratford High Street 
is a seven and eight storey mainly residential building known as The Lock Building 
the rear elevation of which faces the application site. Adjoining the Lock Building to 
the south west is 68-70 Stratford High Street (former Porsche garage) which is 
currently vacant but with planning permission for residential led redevelopment (see 
History section 6). Further major schemes are under construction or recently 

Page 101



completed in the vicinity on Stratford High Street including 27 storey development at 
Stratford Edge, 80-82 Stratford High Street (Weston Homes) and the 31 and 16 
storeys development at 2-12 Stratford High Street (Galliard). 

5.5 Access to the site is from Marshgate Lane which is a vehicular route from Stratford 
High Street into the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park (QEOP). At Stratford High Street 
access is only from and to the eastbound carriageway. The recently enlarged Pudding 
Mill DLR station is approximately 250m to the north with access from Marshgate Lane. 
Bromley by Bow station (District Line) is 1.1km to the south west and Stratford Station 
is 1.6km away to the north east. Stratford High Street is served by five bus routes and 
the Cycle Superhighway 2 (Stratford to Aldgate). 

5.6 An existing below ground sewer and easement area is located to the western corner 
of the site and precludes development in that area. The application site forms part of 
the wider Pudding Mill Lane development area bounded by Bow Back River and City 
Mills River to the south and east, River Lea to the west and Great Eastern railway to 
the north. 

5.7 The site is in two separate land ownerships: Marshgate Business Centre (W14); and 
14 Marshgate Lane (14ML).  The applicant owns and operates the majority of the 
application site (approximately 80%), which is Marshgate Business Centre.  14 
Marshgate Lane to the north is owned by another party. A plan showing the different 
land ownerships is appended to this report.  

6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

6.1 A planning application for demolition of the existing buildings, and the erection of 8 
buildings ranging from 3 to 12 storeys in height, comprising a total of 254 residential 
dwellings and 4,257m² Gross Internal Area (GIA) of B1 (business) floorspace, 
together with basement, access, servicing, car parking, cycle parking, cycle storage, 
plant, open space and landscaping was approved in May 2017 

6.2 Relevant planning permissions on adjacent sites which have not been implemented 
are set out below and shown in the appendices. 

6.3 Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) (11/90621/OUTODA) 

6.4 This is an outline permission covering 64 ha of the QEOP for a comprehensive 
residential led mixed use scheme to be delivered in phases over a period to 2031.  

6.5 The parcel of land adjacent to the north and west of the current application site is 
known as Planning Delivery Zone (PDZ) 8 and has outline consent for  up  to  
118,290m² of  residential  (Class  C3) floorspace,  5,045m²  of  retail (Class  A1-A5) 
floorspace,  23,791m² of  office  (Class  B1a) floorspace,  12,158m²  light  industrial  
(Class  B1b  /  B1c) floorspace, 169m² leisure  (Class  D1)  and  1,482m²   community  
(Class  D2) floorspace,  in  buildings  of  up  to 39 metres AOD (approximately 11 / 
12 storeys in height) in the parcels closest to the application site and up to 53 metres 
(AOD) (approximately 17 storeys in height) adjacent to Pudding  Mill Station. The 
approved phasing for PDZ 8 is for construction between 2022 and 2031. 

6.6 The design principles for the proposed PDZ 8 LCS development are to create a 
neighbourhood mixing a range of uses (residential, office, light industrial/research and 
development etc), with a permeable block structure and a flexible framework to 
accommodate future change. 

6.7 68-70 Stratford High Street (former Porsche garage site) (11/90619/FUMODA) 

Page 102



6.8 This is a full planning permission for the demolition of existing buildings and erection 
of new development comprising linked buildings of one, five, nine and eighteen 
storeys to provide 731m² of commercial floorspace (for use within classes A1, A2, A3, 
B1, D1 and D2) at ground floor and 173 residential units, with 36 car-parking spaces, 
213 cycle parking spaces, refuse and recycling facilities, access, landscaping and 
amenity areas. 

6.9 The approved building heights e are: 

 5 storey block = 21.8m AOD = approximately 16.8m above ground level 

 9 storey block = 33.8m AOD = approximately 28.8m above ground level 

 18 storey block = 62.3m AOD = approximately 57.3m above ground level 

6.10 The permitted scheme includes a safeguarded area between Stratford High Street 
and Bow Back River for the approach to a pedestrian / cycle / bus bridge which would 
link with the proposed safeguarded area in the current Marshgate Lane application 
site. 

6.11 Planning History - Strategic Industrial Land  

6.12 Pudding Mill Lane has historically been designated Strategic Industrial Land; with the 
Newham Core Strategy (2012) within its strategic site allocation S09 identifying the 
location would be de-designated in order to realise its regeneration potential for mixed 
use comprising employment uses, residential and community uses with a new centre 
focused around Pudding Mill DLR station. The Legacy Corporation Local Plan (July 
2015) Pudding Mill site allocation (SA4.3) has now replaced this policy and while 
continuing much of the previous policy position in relation to the required mix and type 
of uses, does not identify Pudding Mill as strategic industrial land. 

6.13 ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT

6.14 An Environmental Statement (ES) accompanied the extant planning permission 
(14/00422/FUL) to assess the likely significant effects of the proposed development. 
Following the proposed s73 variation to condition 2 (approved drawings) an 
Environmental Statement Addendum has been submitted in accordance with the 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 
(the EIA Regulations).

6.15 The scope of the ES addendum includes updates to the following topics: 

 Socio-economics 

 Transport and access 

 Noise and vibration 

 Air quality 

 Water resources and flood risk 

 Ground conditions and contamination 

 Archaeology and built heritage 

 Ecology 

 Wind and micro climate 

 Daylight, sunlight and overshadowing 

 Townscape and visual impact 

 Cumulative effects  

Page 103



6.16 The ES addendum has been reviewed by PPDT’s Environmental and Transport 
Consultants, who along with officers are satisfied that it appropriately describes the 
environmental effects of the development and identifies appropriate mitigation 
measures, which would be secured by conditions. PPDT conclude that the 
amendments proposed in the s73 application have no significant adverse additional 
environmental impacts when compared to the extant permission 14/00422/FUL. 

7 DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 

7.1 Application under s73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) for 
a minor material amendment to condition 2 (approved drawings) of planning 
permission reference 14/00422/FUL granted on the 5th May 2017 for: -

7.2 Demolition of existing buildings, and the erection of 8 buildings ranging from 3 to 12-
storeys in height, comprising a total of 275 residential dwellings (27,295m² (GIA) 
floorspace) including affordable housing, and 5,671m² Gross Internal Area (GIA) of 
B1 (business) floorspace, together with basement, access, servicing, car parking, 
cycle parking, cycle storage, plant, open space and landscaping)).

7.3 The applicant has been advised to submit a section s96A non-material amendment 
application, which would change the description of development so that it is consistent 
with the conditions as altered by the s73.

7.4 Summary of Extant Consent (14/00422/FUL

7.5 The extant consent consists of 8 building designed around the proposed safeguarded 
link to Stratford High Street and a series of linked, landscaped spaces leading to the 
Bow Back River frontage (see appendices). Two of the buildings at the west of the 
site would be linked (Buildings 1 and 2) and would be the only mixed used buildings 
(residential and commercial) within the development. Building 1 would be 12 storeys 
(40m high) and Building 2 (27.4m high) eight storeys.

7.6 The other 6 buildings to the north and east would be purely residential blocks and 
range from 3 to 8 storeys arranged into 5 residential apartment buildings (6 - 8 
storeys) and 1 x 3 storey town-house block. The residential accommodation would 
comprise 233 apartments, 14 maisonettes and 7 townhouses with associated 
basement car parking, access and landscaping. A business centre (B1a use) is 
proposed to be provided within the mixed-use buildings 1 & 2. 

7.7 The consented scheme includes: associated open space and landscaping; a taxi drop 
off / servicing bay on Marshgate Lane close to the main entrance to the business 
centre (the commercial units could also be serviced from the yard proposed at the 
south of Buildings 1 and 2); a site management office at the north-west corner of 
Building 2 which would act as delivery point and allow controlled vehicle access to 
Bow Back Street; and provision for safeguarding a 15m wide area within the site on 
the south side of the river for a future bridge link.  These elements remain unchanged 
in the s73 variation.

7.8 Proposed s73 Variation Amendments 

7.9 Buildings 1 and 2 (Employment and Residential Buildings): As consented the three-
storey podium to these buildings proposes an employment building providing 4,257m² 
floorspace of B1 (business) with the main entrance on the Marshgate Lane / Pudding 
Mill Lane corner with reception / café, gallery and collaborative space. On the south 

Page 104



side of the building there would be a working yard accessed from Marshgate Lane 
and the proposed Marshgate Square for use of the commercial occupiers. 

7.10 As consented, the central space on top of the podium between the two buildings is a 
shared amenity space for the residential occupiers. The fourth floor above the podium 
contains 6 residential flats, and is set back from the lower podium and the upper 
seven residential floors in Building 1 and upper three residential floors in Building 2.

7.11 s73 Variation – Buildings 1 & 2 - Employment Building: The s73 variation proposes 
an additional 1,414m² to the employment building by removing the central space on 
top of the podium between the two buildings and replacing it with commercial 
floorspace; increasing the total amount of commercial floorspace to 5,671m². 

7.12 s73 Variation Residential Buildings 1 and 2: Arising from the reconfiguration of the 
podium, the 6 residential units and shared amenity space originally proposed on the 
fourth floor above the podium would be removed to accommodate the proposed 
additional commercial floorspace. Five additional units would be provided in 
Building 1 and 1 additional unit in Building 2. These additional units are provided on 
levels 5 to 8, and this is possible because the units in the extant consent were 
oversized compared to the national described space standards.

7.13 Building 3: As consented Building 3 is eight storeys (27.5m) in height and sited along 
the east side of the proposed Marshgate Square. It is wholly residential and as 
consented contains 56 residential units. 

7.14 s73 Variation – Building 3: Building 3 remains eight storeys (27.5m, however it would 
contain 60 residential units.  An additional four units are proposed. This is achieved 
by reducing the originally consented lift cores from two to one, which would be located 
centrally within the building. Reconfigured it would still include some 
maisonettes/duplexes with associated entrances on the lower floors. Nine affordable 
housing units would be accommodated within 2 floors of the block.

7.15 Building 4: As consented building 4 is six storeys (20.6m high), containing 23 units 
and sited approximately at right angles to Building 3. 

7.16 s73 Variation – Building 4: Building 4 remains six storeys (20.6m high), however it 
would contain 29 residential units.  As with Building 3 the second core in the 
consented scheme has been removed with the remaining single core located centrally 
within the building.  As a result, six additional units are proposed within this building.  
Reconfigured there would be five residential units on a typical floor.

7.17 Building 5: As consented building 5 (town houses) comprises seven three storey 
(10.6m high) town houses with private rear gardens. 

7.18 s73 Variation – Building 5: Building 5 has been altered to take account of the boundary 
between the two separate land owners more clearly. The number and mix of units 
remains unchanged albeit there is a change to the interior layout to account for the 
change in boundary, which involves the minor realignment of two entrances and 
adjoining rooms.

7.19 Building 6:  As consented Building 6 is six storeys (20.6m), containing 22 units and 
lies approximately parallel to Buildings 4 and 8. 

7.20 s73 – Building 6: As with all the buildings, the footprint and height has been 
maintained but with optimisation internally to the apartment layouts following the 

Page 105



removal of one of the two cores shown in the consented proposals. An additional unit 
has been added on each floor, including a duplex on ground floor. As a result, five
additional units are proposed overall in this building resulting in a total of 27units.

7.21 Building 7: As consented building 7 is eight storeys (27.4m) and is aligned with 
Building 3 fronting Marshgate Square and Marshgate Lane. The ground floor includes 
the refuse collection point for the residential part of the development. The main 
external material is brick with recessed balconies. As consented, it contains 45 
affordable residential units (17x1 beds; 14x2 beds; 13x3 beds; 1x4 beds).

7.22 s73 – Building 7: The plan arrangement of Building 7 has altered to meet the 
alignment of the ownership boundary between the two land ownerships, with a party 
wall between the two parts of the building introduced along the boundary. Whilst this 
has altered the arrangement of the apartments the number of units which are all 
affordable in the building overall remains the same. 

7.23 At the ground floor, the redesign of refuse arrangements has meant that one 
apartment has been altered from being a duplex unit to being a residential unit at first 
floor only, to enable more room for refuse storage on the southern side of the land 
ownership boundary.

7.24 As consented refuse and recycling collection would be from a centralised storage 
area at Building 7 with refuse collection from a servicing bay on Marshgate Lane. The 
refuse strategy remains as previously, but with the changes at ground floor, the refuse 
spaces have now been split between the two land ownerships. This has required that 
the lift from the basement be moved to be better located for the removal of refuse to 
the collection point. 

7.25 s73 – Building 8: Building 8 remains unchanged as a result of the s73 variation.  

7.26 s73 - Elevational Changes:  The façade treatment to the buildings in the development 
remains the same as consented i.e. brick finish to buildings 3 to 8 and GRP panels 
and glass with vertical pier lines carried down to the ground to buildings 1 and 2. The 
recessed balcony typology and the distribution of windows is similar, albeit with more 
windows introduced to ensure daylight to additional rooms/units.

Table 1 – Summary of Changes 

Extant Permission 
14/00422/FUL

s73 Variation to 
condition 2 - 
approved drawings

Difference 

Residential units 254 275 
Increase of 21 
units (8.3%) 

Residential
Floorspace

23,239m² (GIA) 22,531m² (GIA) 
-708m² (GIA) 

(3%)

For changes to residential unit mix (see 
Table 2 below)

B1 Floorspace 4,257m² (GIA) 5,671m² (GIA) 
Increase of 
1,414m² (33%)

Car Parking  
29 spaces 

(residential and 
commercial)

Unchanged   

Page 106



Cycle Parking  
588 spaces 

(residential and 
commercial)

595 spaces 
(residential and 
commercial)

+7

Amenity Space 2,109m² 2,036m² 
 -73m² (3.4%)

Alterations to façades* 

*No changes are proposed to the height, scale and mass of the development as approved under 
14/00422/FUL

7.27 Affordable Housing: The scheme proposes a total of 54 affordable units, an increase 
of 9 units over the originally consented 45 affordable housing units.  The tenure and 
mix of units is set out in table 2 below: 

Table 2 - Overview of Residential Mix and Affordable Housing 

Extant Permission s73

Number of Units Percentages Number of Units Percentages 

Unit
Type 

Market Affordable Totals Affordable
All

Units 
Market Affordable Totals Affordable

All
Units 

Studio 0 0 0
0 0 

10 0 10 
0 4 

1 Bed 83 17 100 
38 39 

53 18 71 
33 26 

2 Bed 62 14 76 
31 30 

119 22 141 
41 51 

3 Bed 60 13 73 
29 29 

37 13 50 
24 18 

4 Bed 4 1 5
2  2 

2 1 3
2 1 

Total
Number 
of Beds 

209 45 254 100% 100%
221 

(+14) 
54 

      (+9) 
275 100% 100% 

8.        POLICIES & GUIDANCE 

8.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
The policies in the NPPF are material considerations in the determination of 
applications.  The NPPF recommends that as of April 2013, due weight should be 
given to relevant local plan policies according to their degree of consistency with the 
NPPF. The principle of sustainable development permeates the Framework. The 
Framework makes clear that local authorities should be positive and proactive in 
encouraging sustainable growth and addressing barriers to investment.  The NPPF 
should be read in conjunction with Planning Practice Guidance, a new web-based 
resource for all users of the planning system.  This describes the importance of good 
design and how this can be achieved through planning decisions. 
The following NPPF policies are relevant to this submission: 

1. Building a strong, competitive economy 
4. Promoting sustainable transport 

Page 107



6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 
7. Requiring good design 
8. Promoting healthy communities 
10. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
11. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
12. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
Ensuring viability and deliverability (paragraph 173) 

8.2 For the purposes of S.38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 
the adopted ‘Development Plan’ for this site comprises the London Plan (March 
2015) and the London Legacy Development Corporation’s Local Plan 2015-2031 
(August 2015).

8.3 Certain planning guidance documents are also relevant and have been taken into 
consideration. These are referred to below. 

8.4 The most relevant policies are listed below:

8.5 London Plan (2016): 

  The following London Plan policies are relevant to this submission: 

 Policy 3.4   Optimising Housing Potential 

 Policy 3.5  Quality and Design of Housing Developments 

 Policy 3.9   Mixed and Balanced Communities 

 Policy 3.10  Definition of Affordable Housing 

 Policy 3.12  Negotiating Affordable Housing on Individual Private 
Residential and Mixed-Use Schemes  

 Policy 3.12  Affordable Housing Thresholds 

 Policy 4.1  Developing London’s Economy 

 Policy 4.12  Improving Opportunities for All 

 Policy 5.2  Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions 

 Policy 5.3  Sustainable Design and Construction 

 Policy 5.5  Decentralised Energy Networks 

 Policy 5.6  Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals 

 Policy 5.7 Renewable Energy 

 Policy 5.9  Overheating and Cooling 

 Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management 

 Policy 5.13  Sustainable Drainage 

 Policy 5.15  Water Use and Supplies 

 Policy 5.17  Waste Capacity 

 Policy 6.3  Assessing the Effects of Development on Transport Capacity 

 Policy 6.9  Cycling 

 Policy 6.10  Walking 

 Policy 6.13  Parking 

 Policy 7.1  Lifetime Neighbourhoods 

 Policy 7.2  An inclusive environment 

 Policy 7.4  Local character 

 Policy 7.5  Public realm 

 Policy 7.6  Architecture7.7 Location and Design of Tall and Large      
Buildings

 Policy 7.8  Heritage Assets and Archaeology 

 Policy 7.14 Improving Air Quality 

 Policy 7.15  Reducing Noise and Enhancing Soundscapes

 Policy 7.19  Biodiversity and access to nature

 Policy 7.30  London’s canals and other rivers and waterspaces

Page 108



 Policy 8.2  Planning Obligations

8.6 LLDC Local Plan (July 2015): 

  Policy SP.1   Building a strong and diverse economy 
  Policy SA4.3 Pudding Mill  

   Policy B.1   Location and maintenance of employment uses  

  Policy H.1   Providing a mix of housing types 

  Policy H.2  Delivering affordable housing 

  Policy SP.2  Maximising housing and infrastructure provision 

  Policy SP.3  Integrating the built and natural environment 

  Policy BN.1   Responding to place 

  Policy BN.4  Designing residential schemes 

  Policy BN.5  Requiring inclusive design 

  Policy BN.8  Maximising opportunities for play 

  Policy BN.10  Proposals for tall buildings  

  Policy T.2  Transport Improvements 

   Policy T.4   Managing development and its transport impacts to promote        
sustainable transport choices and prioritise pedestrians and cyclists 

  Policy T.5  Street Network 

  Policy T.6  Facilitating local connectivity 

  Policy T.7  Transport assessments and travel plans 

  Policy T.8  Parking and parking standards in new development 

  Policy T.9  Providing for pedestrians and cyclists 

  Policy S.2  Energy in new development 

  Policy S.3  Energy infrastructure and heat networks 

  Policy S.4  Sustainable design and construction 

  Policy S.6  Waste reduction 

  Policy S.7  Overheating and urban greening 

  Policy S.8  Flood risk 

8.7 Other Relevant Material Considerations 

 Mayor of London - Housing SPG (2016)  

 Mayor of London – Affordable Housing and Viability SPG (2017) 

 LLDC Planning Obligations SPD (2015) 

 LLDC Pudding Mill SPD (2017) 

8.8 The Draft London Plan (December 2017) 

The Mayor of London published for the purpose of public consultation a draft new 
London Plan on 29th November 2017. The policies in the draft new London Plan 
currently have only very limited material weight when making planning decisions. 
That weight will increase once the new Plan is submitted for its Examination in 
Public. This report may make reference to policies within the new London Plan 
where they are directly relevant to the assessment of the application proposal. 
However, the relevant development plan policies remain those within the current 
London Plan (March 2016) and the LLDC Local Plan (July 2015). 

9. CONSULTATION 

9.1 The application was advertised in the press, published in the Newham Recorder on 
17th January 2018. A total of 4 site notices were displayed in and around the 
site.368 neighbouring residential and commercial properties were consulted by post. 

Page 109



9.2 Details of the responses received are set out in the paragraphs below. 

9.3 Responses have been received from the following statutory and non-statutory 
consultees as set out below:

9.4 Greater London Authority (GLA)

 The GLA confirmed that given the scale and nature of the proposals that the 
amendments did not give rise to any new strategic planning issues.  
However, they asked that the LLDC continue to ensure that the scheme does 
deliver the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing it can in 
accordance with London Plan and draft London policy. 

9.5 L B Newham Planning (LBN) 

 No comments received 

9.6 L B Newham (Waste Management) 

 Waste capacity should follow the guidance in BS 5906 for residential waste 
and should include an extra 25-30% capacity for recycling 

9.7 L B Tower Hamlets Planning (LBTH) 

 No comments to make 

9.8 L B Tower Hamlets Environmental Health  

No adverse comments to make 

9.9 Transport for London (TfL) 

 TfL has commented that the amended scheme should adopt the amended 
cycle parking standards which are in the draft London Plan. While the 
consented provision was slightly above previous London Plan standards the 
new standards require that 1 bed units provide 1.5 spaces per unit and the 
commercial element provide 1 space per 75m².

9.10 TfL (Infrastructure Team) 

 No comments 

9.11 Canal and Rivers Trust (CRT)

 Responded to say ‘…cannot see changes that are likely to have any further 
impact on the waterway, and therefore have no comments to make...’  

9.12 HSE 

 No Comments  

9.13 Historic England

 Do not consider that it is necessary for this application to be notified to 
Historic England 

9.14 Historic England Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLASS)

 Do not consider it necessary to comment. 

Page 110



9.15 London City Airport 

 No safeguarding objection to the development. 

9.16 London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA)

 Satisfied with the proposals in relation to the fire precautionary arrangements 
for access and water supplies providing they both comply with Approved 
Document b Section B5;

 Extra consideration should be given to water supplies from hydrants; and 

 Attention is drawn to landscaping and other features so as not to impede fire 
brigade access to premises  

9.17 Metropolitan Police Service

 No further comments to make at this stage in relation to the amendments.  

9.18 Natural England:

 No comments to make  

9.19 No comments have been received at the time of the report going to print from the 
following: 
DCLG; Docklands Light Railway; Environment Agency; EDF Energy; Cofely East 
London Energy; CGMS Consulting; Crossrail; Secure by Design; London Wildlife 
Trust; London Cycling Campaign; HS1; National Grid; London Ambulance Service; 
UK and London Power Networks; Lea Rivers Trust; Health Protection Agency; 
Thames Water; Network Rail, and BT UK. 

10. ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

10.1 Principle of Development: 

10.2 The application is made under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended). Applications made under s73 can remove conditions attached 
to an existing planning permission or vary their wording. This application seeks to 
vary condition 2 (approved drawings) of the existing consent which requires the 
development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans. In effect, this 
allows previously approved drawings to be substituted with new drawings. It should 
be noted that the s73 does not allow a change to the description of development. 
The applicant has been advised to submit a s96A non-material amendment 
application, which would change the description of development so that it is 
consistent with the conditions as altered by the s73. 

10.3 The changes have been put forward by the applicant as the design detail of the 
development has progressed following the issuing of planning permission in May 
2017 under application reference 14/00422/FUL. This process has resulted in the 
rationalisation of the floorspace arrangements of the extant scheme as described in 
section 7. 

10.4 The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) states that amendments secured 
under a s73 application must be ‘minor-material amendments’ to the existing 
consent. There is no statutory definition of a ‘minor material amendment’ but NPPG 
states it is likely to include any amendment where its scale and/or nature results in 
a development which is not substantially different from the one which has been 
approved.

Page 111



10.5 The principle of the loss of the previous uses on site including office and warehouse 
accommodation and the erection of a residential led mixed-use development, 
including flexible commercial floor space, was established under the extant consent 
(application reference 14/00422/FUL). The proposed alterations relate to the 
changes to the volume of Buildings 1 to 2 at Level 3 with the provision of an 
additional complete commercial floor and minor alterations to the external façades 
of the buildings to accommodate changes to the internal layout of some of the 
buildings arising from the additional residential accommodation.  

10.6 Given the nature of the s73 proposals, i.e. they do not propose additional height, or 
alter building footprints, Officers are satisfied that the scale and nature of the 
proposed s73 amendment would not be substantially different from the extant 
consent and the proposed minor material amendments are considered both 
individually and cumulatively to be acceptable.  

10.7 This assessment would therefore not revisit every aspect of the proposed 
development, only the proposed amendments to the approved plans are assessed 
in the context of current relevant planning policy/guidance. Officers and their 
transport and environmental consultants have assessed the proposed amendments 
proposed in the s73 application as having no significant adverse additional 
environmental impacts when compared to the consented scheme. 

10.8 The main issues in respect of this application are therefore considered to be as 
follows: 

 Additional Commercial Floorspace 

 Housing Mix, including affordable housing; 

 Design and Residential Quality;  

 Elevational changes; and 

 Overall impact of the proposed changes (transport matters, environmental 
matters)

10.9 Additional Commercial Floorspace 

10.10 The extant consent (14/00422/FUL) provides a consolidated commercial floorspace 
offer within the first three floors of Buildings 1 and 2, with a floorspace of 4,257m² 
Gross Internal Area (GIA).

10.11 The current s73 commercial offer increases this to four floors resulting in a total 
commercial floorspace in Buildings 1 and 2 of 5,671m² Gross Internal Area (GIA). 
Overall, the applicant is providing significantly more B1 employment space 
(5,671m²) than is currently available on the site (1,444m²) and over that provided by 
the extant scheme. The increase over the consented level of commercial space 
would be achieved by in-filling the void area at podium level with the additional 
commercial floorspace. 

10.12 The applicant, Workspace 14 Limited, would manage the commercial workspace.  
They are a reputable workspace provider and currently provide circa 500,000m² of 
managed business accommodation for new and growing companies across 25 
London Boroughs. Their portfolio consists of a range of sizes and types of space 
including converted factory buildings, co-working hubs and new bespoke purpose 
built managed business centres. 

Page 112



10.13 Given not only the track record of Workspace 14 Limited, but the size of the site, its 
accessible location (within walking distance of Pudding Mill station and the High 
Street bus routes), and its Pudding Mill Local Centre location, the additional 
commercial floorspace is considered to be appropriate.  

10.14 In the context of the commercial provision approved in the extant scheme, and given 
the configuration and location of the additional B1 floorspace, Officers are satisfied 
that any additional activity would not be detrimental to the amenity of prospective 
occupiers of the development. 

10.15 Employment: The s73 variation would result in an additional 1,4141m² to the office 
floorspace.  Based on the Homes and Communities Agency’s document, 
‘Employment Densities Guide’ (2010), such additional B1 floorspace could equate 
to an additional 117 full time jobs.  The extant consent is calculated as providing 
337 full time jobs. Officers are satisfied that there is a significant increase in 
employment density on the site consistent with Strategic Local Plan policy SP.1 and 
London Plan policies 4.1 and 4.12. The additional floorspace is therefore considered 
to be acceptable.   

10.16 Officers are satisfied that the proposals support the objectives of the Local Plan site 
allocation (SA4.3) in so far as contributing to achieving the overall target of 25% 
non-residential floorspace within the wider Pudding Mill area, and are in step with 
national aspirations. 

10.17 The proposed additional commercial floorspace is considered to be acceptable and 
is not substantially different in nature from the extant consent and complies with 
London Plan policies 3.3, 4.1 and 4.12 and Local Plan policies SA4.3, SP.1, SP.2, 
B1, B2, B6, H1 and H2.

10.18 Housing Mix

10.19 Local Plan Policy H.1 requires development proposals to provide at least 50% of 
units at two bedrooms or more. The s73 variation complies with policy in that it 
proposes that 71% of the total number of residential units would be 2 bedroom units 
or over (see table 4 below). This is compared to 61% under the extant permission, 
where there was a higher proportion of one, and also three bedroom units (see table 
3 below). 

10.20 The original residential development mix within the consented scheme is as follows: 

               Table 3 

   Extant Consent 14/00422/FUL - Unit Mix 

Unit Type Total
Units

%
Provision

Studio 0 0%

1 bed 100 39%

2 bed 76 30%

3 bed 73 29%

4 bed 5 2%

TOTAL 254 100% 

Page 113



10.21 The proposed s73 variation residential development mix is as follows:  

Table 4

s73 Variation – Unit Mix

Unit Type Total
Units

     Adjustment %
     Provision 

Studio 10 +10 4% 

1 bed 71 -22 26% 

2 bed 141 +65 51% 

3 bed 50 -23 18% 

4 bed 3 -2 1% 

TOTAL 275 100% 

10.22 As demonstrated in the table above, the proposed scheme assumes a reduction in 
1 & 3 bed units underpinning a significant increase in 2 bed units. As per the 
previous consented scheme residential units would be delivered across all eight 
blocks. The increase in overall residential unit numbers would be achieved despite 
a decrease in floorspace of 708m² (GIA), bringing the average unit size down from 
87m² to 78m². Each residential property would still meet the nationally described 
space standards (DCLG Technical Housing Standards) as referred to in the Mayor’s 
Housing SPG. 

10.23 The Housing Requirements Study undertaken as part of the Local Plan review has 
identified that within the LLDC area there is greatest need for 2-bedroom market 
homes, followed by 2 and 3 bed intermediate and then 2 and 3 bedroom low cost 
rent. However, as LLDC are providing for the strategic need for housing across 
London and strategically there is demand for all sizes and tenures but those in 
particular demand are 1 bedroom low cost rent units, 2-bedroom market homes and 
then intermediate tenures across all bedroom sizes. 

10.24 The s73 proposals provide a significant proportion of 1 and 2 bedroom units (circa 
30% and 50%+ respectively). However, it would result in fewer units being 3 
bedrooms or above (total 53 units or 19%) which the applicant has advised is on the 
basis of changes to market demand since the original proposals were approved, 
and to optimise deliverability. Nevertheless, the 21% increase in the 2-bedroom unit 
provision over the extant permission is welcomed, and addresses the need identified 
in the Local Plan Review Housing Requirement Study.  Officers consider the 
proportion of family units (2 or more bedrooms) to be sufficient and it responds to 
the identified need and accords with Local Plan Policy H.1 in so far as requiring half 
of the total provision of residential units to be 2-bedroom or more. 

10.25 Additionally, policies H.1 along with London Plan policy 3.8 require a minimum of 
10% of the development to be accessible wheelchair accommodation. The 
proposals include a 10% provision of wheelchair accessible homes which equates 
to 27 dwellings, and they are comprised of a mix of unit sizes.  

10.26 Officers have assessed the site circumstances, including location and viability. 
Officers are satisfied that in line with policy objectives the s73 variations in terms of 
unit mix and tenure are acceptable and the proposals overall provide an appropriate 
balance and mix of units in accordance with local plan policy.

Page 114



10.27 Affordable Housing 

10.28 The Mayor’s Affordable Housing and Viability (AHV) SPG requires schemes that do 
not meet the 35% affordable housing threshold, to submit to the LPA and where 
relevant the Mayor, detailed viability information. In this instance, the GLA ‘...ask 
that the LLDC continue to ensure that the scheme delivers the maximum reasonable 
amount of affordable housing it can in accordance with London Plan and draft 
London Plan policy…’

10.29 As the s73 proposals do not deliver 35% affordable housing the applicant has 
submitted a financial viability appraisal in accordance with the ‘viability tested route’ 
set out in the AHV SPG, to demonstrate how much affordable housing the scheme 
can deliver. The appraisal has been reviewed by PPDT’s Viability Consultants.  

10.30 London Plan policy 3.12 and the AHV SPG requires planning authorities to seek the 
maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing when negotiating on individual 
private residential and mixed-use schemes having regard to affordable housing 
targets; the need to promote mixed and balanced communities; and the size and 
type of affordable housing needed.  Local Plan policy H2 requires affordable housing 
to be maximised on sites with 10 or more units broken down as 60% affordable rent 
/ social rent and 40% intermediate. The supporting text of policy H2 identifies a 
minimum target of 35% across the LLDC area. 

10.31 Extant Consent (14/00422/FUL) Affordable Housing Provision: The extant consent 
provides for a total of 45 on-site affordable units, which equates to 17.7% by unit. 
The tenure split, is set out in table 5 and is summarised as providing 29 affordable 
rent units and 16 intermediate/shared ownership units, which equates to a 64:36 
split.

       Table 5 

 Affordable Housing Unit Mix Provision (s73 variation & extant consent) 

Unit
Type 

Extant Consent s73 Variation % Provision 

Studio 0 0 0%
1 bed 17 18 34% 
2 bed 14 22 40% 
3 bed 13 13 24% 
4 bed 1 1 2%

TOTAL 45 54 100% 

10.32 s73 Proposal: The s.73 variation proposes an increase in the overall affordable 
housing provision from 45 units (17.7%) in the extant consent to initially 53 units 
(19.2%). This would result in an increase in an affordable housing provision uplift of 
1.5% over the consented scheme.  With respect to tenure mix, the provision would 
equate to a 60:40 split (32 affordable rent units / 21 intermediate/shared ownership 
units).  

10.33 The affordable housing offer takes into account costs to the development arising 
from scheme design (including the provision of basement car parking); the likely 
land remediation costs resulting from its industrial history; and the provision of a 

Page 115



significant quantum of commercial floorspace built on a ‘workspace model’ that 
aligns with the Mayor’s convergence commitment in so far as creating long term 
jobs which would contribute to not just the local economy and regeneration of 
Pudding Mill but to the wider area including the neighbouring Growth Boroughs. 
      

10.34 However, following a review of the applicant’s financial viability appraisal, PPDT’s 
viability consultant argued that an additional 3 units could be provided and be 
converted to the affordable housing tenure at a ratio of 34 affordable rent and 22 
intermediate/shared ownership units increasing the overall provision to 56 units 
(20.3%). As with the overall housing mix, the proposed affordable housing mix (table 
5) reflects a significant increase in the number of 2 bedroom units.   

10.35 Subsequent discussions and negotiations with the applicant have led to an increase 
in the affordable housing offer from their initial position of 19.2% (53 units) to their 
final offer of 19.6% (54 units)), which is less than the PPDT’s viability consultant 
recommended.  However, the applicant has offered the initially proposed affordable 
rented (AR) tenure units as London affordable rented tenure (LAR). 

10.36 PPDT’s viability consultants have reviewed the revised offer. Whilst it is below their 
suggested uplift of the originally proposed 53 units to 56 units, they have advised 
that if the LAR tenure, is to be assumed as a replacement to the AR tenure, it would 
result in a reduction in the overall value present in the scheme. The analysis of 
PPDT’s viability consultant indicates that the blended affordable value would reduce 
and in turn lead to a reduction in the site’s residential land value.  PPDT’s viability 
consultant advises that a shift to the LAR tenure would remove any justification in 
viability terms for an increase in affordable housing unit numbers, to either their 
originally suggested 56 units or indeed above the applicant’s initially proposed offer 
of 53 units albeit with a different tenure split (32 AR and 21 intermediate/shared 
ownership).

10.37 Nevertheless, the applicant has confirmed an offer of 54 units (33 LAR / 21 
intermediate / shared ownership) equating to a circa 60:40 split. This equates to 
19.6% by unit of affordable housing across the site. It is noted that the 9-affordable 
housing units equates to 42.8% of the 21 additional units proposed in the s73 
variation.

10.38 PPDT’s viability consultant concludes that if the LAR tenure is to be assumed as a 
replacement to the AR tenure on a 60:40 split across the development, it would 
equate to the provision of 32 LAR units and 21 intermediate / shared ownership 
units (53 units) and would be the maximum reasonable amount of affordable 
housing the scheme can deliver. 

Page 116



Table 6     

Affordable Housing Tenure Split 

Options Tenure Mix Unit Number      Tenure Split 
Extant Consent 29 Affordable Rent / 

16 intermediate / 
shared ownership

45 64:32 

s73 - Applicant’s 
Original Offer 

32 Affordable Rent / 
21 intermediate / 
shared ownership

53 60:40 

PPDT’s Viability 
Consultant
Maximum Viable 

34 Affordable Rent / 
22 intermediate / 
shared ownership

56 60:40 

Applicant’s
Revised s73 
Offer

33 London Affordable 
Rent / 21 
intermediate / shared 
ownership

54 60:40 

10.39 It should be noted that the extant consent assumes an Affordable Rent (AR) tenure, 
which assumes affordable rent below 80% of market rents inclusive of rates.  
However, as set out in the Mayor’s Affordable Homes Programme 2016-21 the 
Mayor does not consider 80% of market rents to be genuinely affordable in most 
parts of London, and therefore expects most homes let for LAR to be substantially 
below the AR level.  The starting point for London Affordable Rent is the benchmarks 
for homes which are let in 2017/18 (set out in table 7 below).  Updated benchmarks 
would be published by the GLA on an annual basis. 

Table 7 

London Affordable Rent benchmarks for 2017-18 

Bedroom size                                            2017-18 Benchmark 
(weekly rents, exclusive of service charge) 

Bedsit and one bedroom £144.26 

Two bedrooms £152.73

Three bedrooms £161.22 

Four bedrooms £169.70

Five bedrooms £178.18 

Six or more bedrooms £186.66

10.40 Officers have also considered a 70:30 split as recommended in the Mayor’s AHV 
SPG.  In this case the maximum viably reasonable amount of affordable housing 
the scheme can deliver would equate to 35 LAR units and 14 intermediate/shared 
ownership units (49 units).  

10.41 However, evidenced from the Local Plan Review Housing Requirements Study 
which suggests that the 60:40 tenure split is retained for the area, officers are of the 
view that the applicant’s offer of 54 units on a circa 60:40 split, as set in tables 6 and 
8, is the most appropriate in this case.  Officers and their viability consultants are 
satisfied that this is the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing that the 

Page 117



scheme can deliver it can in accordance with London Plan and draft London policy. 
It not only would provide more units overall than could be provided on a 70:30 split 
ratio, it would provide more units overall than the extant consent with a better 
percentage of potentially genuinely affordable housing in line with the aspirations 
set out in the Mayor’s AHV SPG.  The overall housing and tenure mix is set out in 
table 8 below.

Table 8 

Indicative s73Tenure Split 

10.42 Another of the benefits of the s73 scheme is that the affordable housing would be 
distributed within 2 buildings enabling a degree of ‘pepper potting’.  Under the extant 
consent all of the affordable housing would be contained within one building 
(Building 7 (45 units)). In the s73 proposals Building 3 would contain 9 units on 2 of 
its 8 floors, in addition to the 45 affordable housing units contained within Building 
7.

Tenure Studio 1 bedroom 2 bedroom 3 bedroom 4 bedroom All
Bedroom 
Types Total  

Market

10

(1% of 

total

market)

59

(27% of total 

market)

119

(55% of total 

market)

37

(17% of total 

market)

2

(1% of total 

market)

221

80% of total 

housing)

Shared
Ownership

0 5

(24% of total 

intermediate)

14

(67% of total 

intermediate)

2

(9% of total 

intermediate)

0 21

(8% of total 

housing, 

39% of total 

affordable 

housing)

London
Affordable 
Rent (LAR)

0 13

(39% of total 

LAR)

8

(24% of total 

LAR)

11

(34% of total 

LAR)

1

(3% of total 

LAR)

33

(12% of total 

housing, 

61% of total 

affordable 

housing)

All Tenures 
Total

10 (4%) 71 (26%) 141 (51%) 50 (18%) 3 (1%) 275
(100%)

Page 118



10.43 Some of the affordable units would have direct ground floor access. The 
intermediate units would be accessible from the north-west core of Building 7. The 
LAR units would be accessed within the south-east core of Building 7. This would 
enable independent access to both the intermediate and the LAR units. 

10.44 Design and Residential Quality 

10.45 Policy 3.5 of The London Plan and the Mayor’s Housing SPG advises that housing 
developments should be of the highest quality internally, externally and in relation 
to their context and to the wider environment.  

10.46 As previously stated there are no alterations proposed to the footprints or heights of 
the buildings.  The additional floorspace generally impacts the layout of the 
residential units and the elevational treatment of the buildings arising from the 
arrangement of additional doors and windows on the elevations. There has also 
been an increase in number of units per core proposed in some of the blocks 
however this is never above 8, which is in accordance with the Mayor’s Housing 
SPG.

10.47 Officers have sought updated plans as it was noted that whilst elevations had been 
altered to reflect changes in plan, this had not happened consistently leading to 
uncertainty as to the actual proposed façade appearance.  However, subsequent 
additional information/clarification has been provided by the applicant, which 
satisfactorily addresses the concerns raised.   

10.48 Officers are of the view that the internal arrangement of the proposed 
accommodation is well considered. Whilst there would be a loss of dual aspect units 
(from 69% dual aspect in the consented scheme to 58% in the proposed scheme), 
the s73 amendments are considered to be acceptable in this instance as they do 
not present any directly north facing single aspect units. Indeed, it is noted that a 
number of the single aspect units have a south-easterly aspect thereby benefiting 
from some direct sunlight. As with the consented scheme a number of the proposed 
units across the site (44 in total) have a west-north-west aspect enabling units to 
receive sunlight at certain points in the day. Furthermore, the layout, including the 
single aspect units, are in keeping with the floorplans on the upper floors of the 
consented scheme.  Whilst the reduction in the number of cores has led to narrower 
corridors officers are satisfied that this has not impacted detrimentally on residential 
quality i.e. there would be no difference in terms of lighting of the corridors from stair 
cores which would be as per the consented scheme.  

10.49 The revised plans confirm that the façade amendments are minor, some 
imperceptible and would not diminish the original architectural design intent.  

10.50 The volume increase to Buildings 1 and 2 as a result of the additional commercial 
floor at level 3 would provide a continuation of the structural grid from the upper 
buildings to the lower building. The s73 amendments still results in the approved 
vertical patterned re-constituted stone (GRC) cladded finish, punctuated by 
horizontal bands every two floors. The location and design of the recessed balconies 
to the east and west elevation remains unchanged.  The visual appearance and 
design of Buildings 1 and 2 remains largely unchanged from the extant consent.  

10.51 The alterations to the façades of the buildings would allow for the internal changes 
to the apartment layouts. The balconies would generally remain in the same location 
and the distribution of windows is similar, albeit more windows are introduced to 

Page 119



provide daylight to additional rooms.  These amendments would not have a 
significant visual impact and are acceptable. 

10.52 Officers analysis concludes that all the alterations are acceptable in design detailing, 
materials and finish, indeed some of the alterations are imperceptible. The proposed 
changes to the scheme approved in 2017 are minor and raise no new design or 
quality issues. Officers are satisfied that the s73 proposed alteration can be viewed 
as a minor-material amendment.

Table 8 

Unit Size Nationally Described 
Standards (m²)

s73 Proposed Sizes(m²) 
and Unit Numbers

Studio (with shower 
room / bathroom) 

37 / 39 38 – 46 (10 units) 

1 bedroom/2 person    50 Between 50 – 67 
      (71 Units) 

2 bedroom/3 person    61 Between 69 – 86 
      (24 units) 

2 bedroom/4 person    70 Between 71 – 116 
      (117 units) 

3 bedroom/5 person    86 Between 90 – 164  
   (46 units) 

3 bedroom/6 person 90 Between 105 – 151
   (4 units)

4 bedroom/6 person 99 Between 147 – 156  
          (3 units) 

*No studio apartments are approved in the extant consent 

10.53 Officers are satisfied that in both the flatted blocks and the terrace row of houses as 
with the extant consent the quality of the residential accommodation is considered 
to be good not only providing residential units with varying floor space sizes but the 
internal floor areas of all units including their external amenity spaces would still 
meet or exceed the respective minimum standards as per the proposed number of 
rooms and number of occupants they are intended to serve in line with the DCLG 
Technical Housing Standards (nationally described space standards) see table 8). 
Given this it is considered that the proposed development would be in accordance 
with the London Plan Housing SPG (2016) and the flats and houses would provide 
an acceptable amount of space for day to day living. 

10.54 Following receipt of revised drawings officers are satisfied that the overall 
amendments respect the context, quality and design principles associated with the 
extant consent, and visually make a positive contribution to the development 
providing a robust, high quality and considered finish and materiality to these 
buildings. Officers analysis concludes that the alterations both individually and 
cumulatively are acceptable and would not be substantially different from the extant 
consent and is a minor material amendment.  The proposals accord with policies 
7.1, 7.4, 7.6 and 7.7 of the London Plan and Local Plan Sub Area 4 and policies 
BN.1 and BN.10. 

Page 120



10.55 Density

10.56 The site is located within an area that has a PTAL rating of between 3 and 4, and is 
located approximately 250m from Pudding Mill DLR Station, which is about a 5-
minute walk.  Within PTAL 4/6 areas London Plan Policy 3.4 states that the 
maximum density range for development proposals is 200-700hr/ha.  

10.57 The s73 proposals would result in a residential density of 722 habitable rooms per 
hectares, based on 745 habitable rooms taking into account the commercial 
element, which is in line with the specified density ranges for a site within a PTAL 4 
location.  The extant consent would result in 638 habitable rooms per hectare. For 
context, the LCS residential density range proposed for the adjoin PDZ 8 
Development Parcels are between 450-950 and 450-650.  

10.58 Officers are satisfied that, taking into account the ‘liveability’, design factors, 
provision of amenity space, and need to make effective use of previously developed 
land in accessible locations to mitigate climate change and transport impacts, the 
increased density of the proposed s73 scheme will be broadly consistent with the 
density character of surrounding developments including the extant consent and the 
approved LCS scheme. It would fall within the London Plan density ranges for sites 
within PTAL 4. 

10.59 Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing 

10.60 Daylight/Sunlight: An updated sunlight/daylight report has been submitted alongside 
the s73 application. The assessment shows that the internal daylight and sunlight 
conditions within the development would vary but overall effects would be 
characteristic of a dense urban environment.  The report concludes that there would 
be minimal changes to the sunlight/daylight (vertical sky component (VSC) and 
average daylight factor (ADF)) within the proposed scheme and existing nearby 
residential development as a result of the proposals and that good levels of 
sunlight/daylight would be maintained in accordance with BRE guidance.  

10.61 PPDT’s Environmental Consultant’s review of the s73 concludes that there is no 
change to surrounding receptors. They also state that daylight access is considered 
to be good. Whilst sunlight access would as a result of the density, height of the 
blocks, orientation and the provision of balconies remain acceptable as per the 
extant permission. 

10.62 Officers and their consultants agree that in terms of the daylight/sunlight 
assessment the proposals are in accordance with the BRE guidance and would 
provide satisfactory living conditions for future occupiers of the new development 
and would not impact on adjoining developments in terms of achieving minimum 
levels of sunlight to adjoining development.  

10.63 Officers are also satisfied that there would not be any significant impact upon privacy 
or outlook in this instance given that the separation distances between the blocks 
remains unchanged as per the extant consent. As such it is considered that there 
would be minimal actual and perceived overlooking from the new additional units.    

10.64 Overshadowing: PPDT’s environmental consultants are satisfied that 
overshadowing analysis of the surrounding amenity areas shows there would be 
little or no effect on the existing values as approved under the extant consent. To 
that end no objections are raised.  

Page 121



10.65 In terms of daylight/sunlight and overshadowing the proposals are thus in 
accordance with Local Plan policies BN.1, BN.4 and SP.1. 

10.66 Amenity Space and Landscaping and Public Realm

10.67 No alterations are proposed to the location and layout of the public realm. As with 
the extant consent residents would also benefit from the areas of publicly accessible 
open space within the development.

10.68 There is however a reduction of some 73m² (3.4%) of amenity space serving the 
development, which is at the new podium level on the fifth floor, over the originally 
approved 2,109m². The private amenity space provided in the amended scheme 
would amount to 2,036m². Private amenity space for the use of residents would be 
provided in the form of balconies to all units, communal amenity space within the 
courtyard around buildings 5, 6, 7 and 8, podium level roof space at Buildings 1 and 
2 and private gardens to the town houses in Building 5. 

10.69 Nevertheless, despite the increase in the quantum of development proposed and 
the decrease in the proposed level of amenity space, officers are satisfied that the 
amenity space provision is acceptable and would not be substantially different from 
the extant consent and is a minor material amendment.  Given that as with the extant 
consent, the proposed quantum of public realm exceeds the baseline minimum 
requirement set out in the Mayor’s Housing SPG of 1,717m².  Also, the quality and 
quantity of public open space which residents would have access to would provide 
a good living environment and comply with Local Plan policy BN.8 and London Plan 
policies 3.6 and 7.5 which promote quality and good design in new housing 
developments.

10.70 As with the extant consent the revised development would open up the currently 
inaccessible and impermeable site to provide a high quality and extensive public 
realm, with informal and formal play space, alongside a number of other landscaped 
character areas, all of which are linked to create a network of navigable green 
spaces.

10.71 Accessibility and Inclusive Design

10.72 The s73 variation includes 10% (27 units) of the total housing to be suitable for 
wheelchair use of varying mix and tenure in accordance with the London Plan 
Housing Standards.  Officers consider that the quantum and distribution of 
wheelchair housing is satisfactory for this development and have recommended the 
imposition of a condition which secures that 10% of the residential units be designed 
and constructed in accordance with Optional Requirement M4 (3) Category 3 of Part 
M of the Building Regulations (split proportionately).

10.73 As reflected within Local Plan Policy BN5, the applicant has committed to ensuring 
that adaptation may be undertaken at a future date in response to the needs of 
occupiers. Officers recommend that 90% of the residential units (not covered by the 
10% secured above) be designed and constructed in accordance with the M4 (2) 
Category 2 of Part M of the Building Regulations.

10.74 A total of 29 accessible parking bays would be available on site accessed via the 
basement (27 spaces to serve the residential flats including visitor spaces and 2 to 
serve the commercial units. Officers can confirm that the accessible parking 
provision complies with the baseline standards in the Housing SPG.   

Page 122



10.75 The extant consent requires a car park management strategy (secured by s106) to 
ensure that the details of the way in which spaces are allocated and managed to 
ensure on-going availability of accessible parking spaces is approved by the Local 
Planning Authority; and this would carry through to the deed of variation for this S73 
application.  

10.76 Officers are satisfied that the proposals meet the development plan objectives in 
terms of accessibility and inclusive design and are capably of complying with Policy 
BN.5 of the Local Plan. 

10.77 Transport Matters 

10.78 Cycle Parking: TfL have commented that the amended scheme should adopt the 
amended cycle parking standards which are in the draft London Plan.  While the 
consented provision was slightly above previous London Plan standards. The 
consented scheme would provide a total of 590 spaces to serve the scheme. 597 
spaces are proposed to serve the revised s73 scheme.  

10.79 The new standards (draft London Plan) require that 1 bed units have 1.5 spaces per 
unit and the commercial element have 1 space per 75m². The new residential 
requirement would therefore be 508 long stay and 7 short stay, and the employment 
requirement would be 76 long stay and 11 short stay, for an overall total of 584 long 
stay and 18 short stay spaces. TfL, comment that the long stay element should be 
increased from 533 by 51 spaces to reach a total of 584 spaces while the short stay 
element of 18 spaces is still acceptable. The increased commercial area would 
provide showers and changing facilities to promote cycle use. 

10.80 The total increase in cycle spaces over the extant consent is 7 spaces.  It is noted 
that the provision in the extant consent is an overprovision against the current 
London Plan standards. The applicant has confirmed that there would be sufficient 
space within the basement parking area to incorporate the increase in residential 
provision as suggested by TfL and have provided an updated plan, which identifies 
across the site where employment long stay cycle parking would be provided.  

10.81 Car Parking: The s73 variation proposes no changes to the car parking provision. A 
parking plan is provided as part of the revised scheme. Car parking is provided in a 
basement area for a total of 69 vehicles and would be sold on a first come-first serve 
principle. The commercial element would have 2 accessible spaces. For the 
residential element 67 spaces are provided including 29 accessible spaces which is 
at a ratio of 0.25 spaces per unit, which is below London Plan standards and is 
welcomed by TfL. The applicant has confirmed that there would be a restriction on 
the number of spaces that can be purchased by an individual dwelling. If a space is 
unsold it would remain unallocated. Commercial parking would be managed through 
a Parking Management Strategy, which as part of the extant consent is secured by 
a s106 obligation; and would also be secured in the Deed of Variation.

10.82 Officers are satisfied that the provision of accessible parking bays is in accordance 
with London Plan standards. London Plan policy 6.13 para 6A.2 states that the non-
residential element of a development should provide at least one accessible on or 
off-street car parking bay designated for accessible parking badge holders.  

10.83 The London Plan Housing SPG states that each accessible wheelchair dwelling 
(10% of the development) ‘should’ have a car parking space. Local Plan Policy T.8 
requires amongst other things the provision of on or off street accessible parking to 

Page 123



be appropriate to the size, nature and location of the development. The total 
required provision to serve this development according to the London Plan and 
Housing SPG (i.e. in terms of accessible wheelchair dwellings and non-residential) 
this would be 29 spaces (29 accessible spaces are to be provided within the 
basement car park (27 for the residential units and 2 for the commercial unit)).

10.84 It should be noted that the extant consent includes a s106 obligation requiring a 
Parking Management Strategy which would monitor the provision and management; 
and this would also apply to the section 73 permission via be in the Deed of 
Variation.

10.85 Officers are satisfied that the parking provision strikes an appropriate balance 
between meeting expected demand from residents and providing a degree of 
restraint to deter car ownership. Officers analysis concludes that the proposals meet 
the aspirations of regional (London Plan policies 6.9, 6.10 and 6.13) and local 
development plan policy (T.4, T.6, T.8, and T.9 refers), in proposing a development 
which supports sustainable transport objectives.

10.86 Waste Collection: As a result of the s73 proposals there are alterations to the refuse 
arrangements at the ground floor of Building 7, as revised the building would now 
have two separate storage areas. The changes have been made to the waste and 
servicing arrangements due to the land ownership delineation (building 7 straddles 
two land ownerships).  This is to enable refuse collection from both parts of the site 
and has required that the lift from the basement is moved to be better located for 
the removal of refuse to the collection point. 

10.87 PPDT’s environmental consultants have commented that the provision of household 
bulky waste storage within the Building 7 bin store does not meet LBN requirements 
(i.e. developments of 25+ units should have a household bulky waste store that is 
separate from storage areas containing normal refuse and recycling bins). 
Furthermore, the proposed 15m² allowance for bulky waste is below the calculated 
requirement of 55m² store that is separate from storage areas containing normal 
refuse and recycling bins) and does not accord with LB Newham’s Waste 
Management Guidelines for Architects and Property Developers.  

10.88 The applicant commented that the provision of a 55m² space on the ground floor 
would be excessive and that a 15m² space would be sufficient on the grounds that 
it is highly unlikely that the number of bulky waste items requiring storage at any 
time will exceed the space provided. For reference, a sofa represents less than 3m² 
and a fridge less than 1m². They go on to state that the reason why a separate space 
is not provided is that the Building 7 bin store would only be at full capacity on 
collection days and would largely be available for bulky waste on the other days. LB 
Newham (Waste department) have commented that the capacity should follow the 
guidance in BS 5906 for residential waste and should include an extra 25-30% 
capacity for recycling. 

10.89 The applicant has shared with PPDT’s environmental consultants and LB Newham 
an updated refuse service plan, and revised drawings illustrating how the 
development would accord with LB Newham’s waste strategy and advised that the 
bins would be transferred by the management company servicing the development 
to the collection point in Building 7. The applicant has provided confirmation to 
officers that the waste strategy has been accepted by LB Newham. Officers and 
their advisors are satisfied the proposals demonstrate how the development would 
be serviced in order to avoid vehicle obstructions and awkward manoeuvres and 
bins being stored to the detriment of the safe and free flow of pedestrians/ cyclists. 

Page 124



However due to the journey lengths involved for waste collection/management 
(8km) PPDT’s environmental consultants advise that condition 23 is revised to 
ensure that transfer operations are conducted safely, including any provision for 
storing manual handling aids. 

10.90 Other Environmental Impacts 

10.91 Sustainability: Officers and their environmental advisors are satisfied that the 
original approach and targets for the development have been followed in the 
amended design. All of the conditions from the extant consent would be retained 
and separately discharged.  

10.92 Ecology: The amended design remains within the original footprint and this does not 
trigger any further ecological impacts or require any further surveys. All of the 
conditions from the extant consent would be retained and separately discharged.  

10.93 Air Quality: PPDT’s environmental consultants required the applicant to carry out 
further work on air quality as the ES addendum initially did not address the changes 
to information on background air quality concentrations, emission factors and 
assessment of significance.  The applicant has made revisions and provided further 
detail and PPDT’s advisors are satisfied, that as with the extant consent, there are 
no negligible impacts and therefore no objections are raised. 

10.94 Wind: PPDT’s environmental consultants are satisfied that the amendments do not 
significantly change the massing or the location of entrances proposed on the extant 
consent.  The environmental consultants agree that as with the extant consent the 
effect of wind is considered to be negligible and no objections are raised.  

10.95 Noise and Vibration: PPDT’s environmental advisors consider that the noise and 
vibration impacts arising from the development as being acceptable and suggest 
the imposition of a condition to deal with construction impacts. Condition 7, re-
imposed from the extant consent, would mitigate the impact of the works and 
safeguard amenity and limit noise levels in accordance with London Plan policies 
5.3 and 5.8 and Local Plan policy BN.11. Officers are satisfied that the proposed 
minor material amendments raise now new issues.  

10.96 Archaeology and Contamination: PPDT’s environmental advisors have also 
commented that the revisions raise no residual concerns with respect to 
archaeology.  It should be noted that to ensure to better alignment with the on-site 
development process as well as best practice contamination conditions (nos. 13 to 
16) from the extant consent have been reworded. 

10.97 Extant Consent Heads of Terms: The following are the heads of terms set out in 
the original s106 agreement (14/00422/FUL) to mitigate the effects of the 
development.

10.98 As highlighted below the proposed deed of variation to the original s106 agreement 
would tie in the originally agreed s106 obligations to the proposed s73 permission. 
It would cover the proposed changes to the affordable housing offer, including 
requiring a review mechanism in accordance with the Mayors Affordable Housing 
and Viability SPG. 

 Final details of the treatment of the podium to Block 1 and 2 

Page 125



To secure the Affordable Housing final offer, and include a review 
mechanism in accordance with the Mayors Affordable Housing and 
Viability SPG. 

Affordable housing delivery linked to market housing 
Delayed commencement 

 Safeguarding of Land Required for Future Road and Bridge Link 
- The land that is identified for the alignment of the future road link and 

bridge from Sugar House Lane to Pudding Mill shall be laid out in 
accordance with the details contained in the planning application and 
any subsequent approval of details prior to first occupation of the 
development and shall be maintained by the Developer in that 
condition thereafter until such time as the relevant highway authority 
request that it be made available for the construction of the road and 
bridge link. 

- Waterway Survey 

 Transportation of Construction and Waste Materials by Water Transport 
 An obligation in the legal agreement to use reasonable endeavours 

to meet aspirations for the water transport of waste arising from 
demolition at the site and for new materials to be delivered by 
waterway.

 Marshgate Lane Design Works Contribution  
 Implement design initiatives / proposals arising from the impact of the 

development on Marshgate Lane in order to rebalance the street and 
enhance provision for users including pedestrians and cyclists. 

 Relocation Strategy 
- Relocation strategy as part of the legal agreement to ensure that the 

applicant uses reasonable endeavours to relocate the existing 
tenants within the Growth Boroughs 

 Employment Workspace Model
- Delivery of workspace as per the model of Workspace14 Limited  
- Workspace to notify the LPA prior to commencement as to whether 

it would occupy the workspace. If it does not occupy, then it should 
be offered as low-cost workspace for a period of 2 years 

- Requirement for workspace strategy to ensure employment 
floorspace is designed and managed to meet the needs of small local 
companies and businesses 

 Local Labour Strategy: To ensure a proportion of the employment during 
construction and operation (end-use) are from the Host Boroughs and to 
provide training initiatives

 London Living Wage: The minimum hourly wage as published by the GLA 
for both construction and end jobs.

 Travel Plan: To implement, monitor and review and provide membership to 
a car club and include electric car charging points

 Car Park Management Strategy 

 Provision of Car Club spaces and Contribution to Membership Fees 

 Safeguarded Land for TfL Cycle Docking Station  

 Restriction on eligibility of future residents and commercial occupiers for on-
street parking permits

 Electric Charging Point Provision

 Waterways Strategy

 Design Monitoring Contribution – In order to maintain design quality in the 
event that the original architect is not retained.

 Sustainability: Use of reasonable endeavours to secure the extension of the 
QEOP district heating and cooling network to the development site and 

Page 126



thereafter an obligation to secure connection of all buildings; and in the event 
that this cannot be achieved to submit details of alternative measures by 
which equivalent carbon savings can be achieved; reasonable endeavours 
to encourage occupiers to reduce their energy usage

 Management and maintenance of new public realm.

 Public pedestrian and cycle access along the east-west in perpetuity

10.99 Community Infrastructure Ley (CIL) 

10.100 The site is liable for both Mayoral and LLDC CIL which is based on the current 
proposals. The s73 application would trigger additional Mayoral CIL which would 
only apply to the additional commercial floor space being provided which is 
1,414m².

11  Human Rights & Equalities Implications

11.1 Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 as 
they relate to the application and the conflicting interests of the Applicants and any 
third party opposing the application in reaching their decisions. The provisions of 
the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the processing of the 
application and the preparation of this report. In particular, Article 6 (1), of the 
European Convention on Human Rights in relation civil rights and a fair hearing; 
Article 8 of the ECHR in relation to the right to respect for private and family life and 
Article 1 Protocol 1 of the ECHR in relation to the protection of property have all 
been taken into account. 

11.2 In addition, the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in respect 
of certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and sexual orientation. 
It places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to have due regard to the 
advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers including planning powers. 
Officers have taken this into account in the assessment of the application and 
Members must be mindful of this duty inter alia when determining all planning 
applications. In particular Members must pay due regard to the need to: 

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and; 

3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

11.3 Officers are satisfied that the application material and Officers’ assessment has 

taken into account these issues. Particular matters of consideration have included 

provision of accessible housing and parking bays, as well as the provision of 

affordable and family housing. 

12 CONCLUSION  

12.1 It is considered that the variations proposed as part of the s73 application can be 
supported, noting that they would be limited in their effect on the originally permitted 
scheme and would only constitute minor material amendments to the parent 
permission (14/00422/FUL). The minor material amendments are considered both 
individually and cumulatively to be acceptable and subject to the necessary 
alteration to the original s106 agreement by way of the deed of variation and 

Page 127



conditions, the officer recommendation is to grant this s73 variation planning 
permission. 

12.2 The design of the development would remain of a high quality and there would be 
no detrimental impact upon local or strategic views, nor would harm be caused to 
local amenity in relation to an unacceptable loss of sunlight/daylight, sense of 
enclosure or loss of privacy or outlook.   

12.3 The quality of the residential accommodation provided within the development 
would remain at a high standard. The increased number of residential units in 
comparison to the extant permission would make a contribution to housing targets 
(as well as affordable housing) and the increase in commercial floorspace would 
improve the quality of the space and help increase job density on the site.   

12.4 The scheme would remain a sustainable form of development that would continue 
to deliver a range of public benefits.   

12.5 The alterations proposed under this s73 application would be in general compliance 
with national, regional and local plan policies and guidance.  Officers are therefore 
recommending approval of the scheme in accordance with the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development as per the requirement of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF).

12.6 As set out in the National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) the s106 obligations 
that were required to mitigate against the parent consent would be tied to the new 
consent via a deed of variation.  

12.7 The NPPG also states that where an application under s73 is granted, the effect is 
the issuance of a new planning permission, sitting alongside the original permission, 
which remains intact and un-amended. A decision notice describing the new 
permission should be issued, setting out all of the conditions related to it. To assist 
with clarity decision notices for the grant of planning permission under section 73 
should also repeat the relevant conditions from the original planning permission, 
unless they have already been discharged. It should be noted that no conditions or 
obligations under the parent application have been discharged.   

12.8 As a s73 application cannot be used to vary the time limit for implementation, this 
condition must remain unchanged from the original permission (see condition 1). 
The conditions have been reapplied albeit with minor revisions (highlighted below) 
to include policy reference and modification to the remediation conditions (see 
conditions 13 to 16) to better align with the on-site development process as well as 
best practice. The applicant is expected to submit a section s96A non-material 
amendment application, which would change the description of development to 
ensure that it is consistent with the conditions as altered by the s73. 

12.9 No objections have been received from statutory consultees. 

12.10 The analysis concludes that the proposal is acceptable in planning policy terms and 
the scale and nature results in a development which is not substantially different 
from the one which has been approved. In light of the above assessment it is 
recommended that the application be approved subject to the conditions set out 
below and the satisfactory completion of a deed of variation to the existing s106 
Legal Agreement. 

13 PLANNING CONDITIONS  

1. Time limit  
S73 - CONSENT LIMITED TO THAT OF ORIGINAL PERMISSION: The development 
hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of [04/05/2020].  

Page 128



REASON: To ensure the commencement timescale for the development is not 
extended beyond that of the original planning permission granted on [05/05/2017] [ref: 
14/00422/FUL]. Furthermore, to comply with the provisions of Section 91(1)(a) of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004  

2. Works in accordance with approved details 
Unless minor variations have been agreed by the Local Planning Authority and to the 
extent that it does not deviate from this permission, the development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the following details and plan numbers:    

INSERT DRAWING NUMBERS 

and the description of development contained in the application and any other plans, 
drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been approved by 
the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions. 

Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained. 

3. Section 106 Obligation 
 No development on the 14ML Land shall commence until all of the parties who own 
a freehold interest in the 14ML Land have entered into the Supplemental Agreement 
with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that no development of the 14ML Land can take place until that 
land is bound into the relevant planning obligations contained within the Section 106 
Agreement. 

4. Workspace 14 Build Out 
No part of the development permitted on the 14ML Land shall be occupied until at 
least 84 residential units on the W14 Land have been occupied. 

Reason: To ensure the viability review obligations of the Section 106 Agreement 
capture the achieved sales values of the majority of residential units comprised 
within the development. 

5. Notice of Commencement 
The development shall not be commenced until written notice of intention to 
commence the development has been given to the Local Planning Authority. The 
notice required by this condition shall only be given where there is a genuine prospect 
of development being commenced within 21 days of the notice and the notice shall 
confirm and provide evidence that this is the case. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To enable the LPA to monitor 
development. 

6. Development in accordance with Environmental Statement 
The Development (including other matters submitted for approval pursuant to this 
permission) shall  be  carried  out  in  accordance  with  the mitigation measures  set 
out  in  the document WIE10067.3.2.1.Marshgate_Mitigation Table - Final July 2016. 

Page 129



Reason:  To ensure the mitigation measures specified in the Environmental 
Statement are satisfactorily implemented. 

DEMOLITION & CONSTRUCTION 

7. Demolition and Construction Management Plan (DCMP) 
The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until a demolition and construction management plan (CMP) for the respective area 
of land, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
Demolition and Construction Management Plan and the updates thereto shall be in 
accordance with all relevant legislation in force and substantially in accordance with 
all policy adopted and best practice guidance published at the time of submission. 
The DCMP shall include as a minimum the following information: 
a. The arrangements for liaison with the relevant highway authorities; 

b. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 

c. The loading and unloading of plant and materials including a construction logistics 

plan;

d. The storage of plant and materials use in constructing the development; 

e. The erection and maintenance of security hoardings; 

f. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 

g. A scheme for recycling and disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction work; 

h. Dealing with complaints and community liaison; 

i. measures to control the flow of surface water off the slab (temporary drainage 

details); 

j. Attendance as necessary at the LLDC Construction Transport Management 

Group (CTMG) and or Construction Coordination Group; 

k. Details of routes and access for construction traffic. Including lorry holding areas; 

and

l. Guidance on membership of the Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme and 

implementation of vehicle safety measures and driver training including cycle 

awareness and an on-road cycle module. 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure that the Local Planning 
Authority can assess whether the development would generate any unacceptable 
environmental impacts through demolition and construction that would require 
appropriate mitigation and to be in accordance with London Plan Policy S.3 and Local 
Plan 2015 Policy T.4. 

8. Code of Construction Practice 
The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until a Code of Construction Practice for the respective area of land has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Code of Construction 
Practice shall be in accordance with all relevant legislation in force and substantially 
in accordance with all policy adopted and best practice guidance published at the time 
of submission. The Code of Construction Practice shall include proposals for the 
following: 

Page 130



 Safeguarding of buried services 

 Location and height of any proposed stock  

 waste generation and materials reuse and recycling  

 air quality mitigation measures from demolition and construction activity within 

the Site 

 noise mitigation measures from demolition and construction activity within the 

Site

The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure that the Local Planning 
Authority can assess whether the development would generate any unacceptable 
environmental impacts through construction that would require appropriate mitigation 
in accordance with Local Plan Policies BN.11 and S.4.

9. Demolition and Construction Waste Management Plan 
The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until a Demolition and Construction Waste Management Plan (DCWMP) for the 
respective area of land has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The objectives of the DCWMP shall be to ensure all waste arising from the 
construction works are managed in a sustainable manner, maximising the 
opportunities to reduce, reuse and recycle waste materials. The DCWMP shall also 
detail the compliance and assurance requirements to be maintained on the Site 
during all phases of construction. The DCWMP shall include as a minimum the 
following information: 

 classification of all waste including hazardous waste according to current 

legislative provisions; 

 performance measurement and target setting against estimated waste 

forecasts;  

 reporting of project performance on quantities and options utilised;  

 measures to minimise waste generation;  

 opportunities for re-use or recycling;  

 provision for the segregation of waste streams on the Site that are clearly 

labelled;  

 licensing requirements for disposal sites;  

 an appropriate audit trail encompassing waste disposal activities and waste 

consignment notes;  

 measures to avoid fly tipping by others on lands being used for construction. 

Returns policies for unwanted materials; 

 measures to provide adequate training and awareness through toolbox talks; 

and

 returns policies for unwanted materials.  

 The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: Submission required prior to 
commencement to ensure that the Local Planning Authority to ensure that the impact 
of demolition and construction is appropriately mitigated and ensure high standards 
of sustainability are achieved in accordance with Policy 5.18 of the London Plan and 
Policy S.6 of the Local Plan 2015. 

Page 131



10. Approval of road works necessary 
The development on either the W14 Land or the 14ML Land shall not be commenced 
until details of the following works to the highway for the respective area of land have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority. Works to the highway shall only be carried 
out by the Highway Authority: 

 The provision of an on-street loading bay 

 The installation of new crossovers and reinstatement of footways where 

existing crossovers are being blocked up 

The building hereby permitted on the respective area of land shall not be occupied 
until these works have been consented in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure that occupiers of the site 
have adequate facilities to support the use and encourage the uptake of sustainable 
transport methods to and from the site, and to ensure that all road works associated 
with the proposed development are to a standard approved by the Local Planning 
Authority and are completed before occupation and in accordance with Local Plan 
2015 Policy T.4. 

11. Piling/Foundation Designs
Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be 

permitted on either the 14ML Land or the W14 Land other than with the express prior 

written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be given for those parts 

of the respective area of land where it has been demonstrated that there is no 

resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in 

accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To ensure that the proposed activities safeguard human health and do not 
harm controlled waters and groundwater resources in line with paragraph 109 of the 
NPPF and the Environment Agency’s approach to groundwater protection March 
2017 and in accordance Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy 
BN13 of the Local Plan 2015.  

12. Piling method statement  
No piling, including impact piling shall take place on either the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and type of piling to be 
undertaken and the methodology by which such piling would be carried out, including 
measures to prevent and minimise the potential for impact on ground water, damage 
to subsurface water infrastructure, and the programme for the works) for the 
respective area of land has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of 
the approved piling method statement.  

Reason: To ensure that the proposed activities safeguard human health and do not 
harm controlled waters and groundwater resources in line with paragraph 109 of the 
NPPF and the Environment Agency’s approach to groundwater protection March 
2017 and in accordance Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy 
BN13 of the Local Plan 2015 

Page 132



13. Remediation Statement 
No development shall commence on either the 14ML Land or W14 Land until a 

Remediation Statement has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Authority in writing.  The Remediation Statement shall outline and justify the 

assessment approach required to be completed and approved by the Local Planning 

Authority prior to any commencement of Development. The Remediation Statement 

shall also define the phases of development for which subsequent submissions are 

required to be submitted to discharge the contamination assessment, remediation 

strategy and methodology.  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: Submission required prior to 

commencement to safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely 

without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in 

accordance with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of 

the Local Plan 2015.

14. Contamination assessment, remediation strategy and methodology 
No Phase shall be commenced until details of remediation for that Phase as defined 
in the submitted Remediation Statement have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The contamination assessment, remediation 
strategy and methodology approach shall be detailed in either of the following 
documents:

• remediation protection method statement; or 
• site specific remediation strategy and remediation method statement  

Each submission shall contain as a minimum: 

• A review of relevant previous contamination information in conjunction with 
additional ground investigations undertaken as part of the Development. Any 
contamination assessment shall use appropriate assessment criteria.  
• Details of the proposed development and general work methodology and 
programme. 
• General health and safety and environmental controls including any details of any 
required authorisations, permits, licences and consents. 
• Discovery strategy to deal with unexpected contamination. 
• Details of how the remediation works and materials (including site won and 
imported) are to be validated. 
• The remediation method statement shall include details of design, installation and 
verification of gas and vapour protection measures in accordance with current 
guidance and British Standards if required by the Local Planning Authority. 

The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason:  To safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance 
with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local 
Plan 2015. 

15. Remediation, validation and protection 

Page 133



No occupation of any part of the permitted Development (or stage in development as 
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall take place until a 
verification (or validation) report demonstrating completion of works set out in the 
approved remediation protection method statement, site specific remediation 
statement and remediation method statement has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The verification report shall assess and describe the requirements for long-term 
monitoring and maintenance (including contingency action) to ensure the 
effectiveness of the remediation measures implemented. The long-term monitoring 
and maintenance shall be implemented as approved. 

Reason: To safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development has been carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors and in 
accordance with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of 
the Local Plan 2015 

16. Unexpected contamination 
If during development unexpected contamination is encountered then no further 
development shall be carried out until an addendum to the remediation protection 
method statement, site specific remediation statement and remediation method 
statement (referred to in conditions 13 and 14) has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority). The addendum shall be implemented as approved, in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To safeguard human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development is carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance 
with Policies 5.21, 5.14 and 7.19 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local 
Plan 2015.

17. Surface Water Drainage 
Development of either the 14ML Land or W14 Land shall not be commenced except 

demolition to existing slab level until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for 

the respective area of land, based on the following agreed documents has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 Marshgate Business Centre and 14 Marshgate Lane, Flood Risk Assessment, 

Document Reference: CIV15409 ES 002, October 2014. 

 Marshgate Lane, London, E15 2NH, Drainage Report, Job No. 5239, August 

2014.

The drainage strategy shall include a restriction in run-off and surface water storage 
on site as outlined in the FRA. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details before the development is completed. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: Submission required prior to 
commencement to the Local Planning Authority to prevent the increased risk of 
flooding, to improve and protect water quality, and improve habitat and amenity in 
accordance with Policy 5.13 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local Plan 
2015.

Page 134



.

18. Drainage  
The drainage works referred to in the approved Marshgate Business Centre Drainage 

strategy prepared by Waterman dated October 2014 shall be implemented in full for 

each relevant phase of the development, and no discharge of foul or surface water 

from the site shall be accepted into the public system until the said drainage works 

have been completed unless minor variations are agreed in writing in advance with 

the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient 

capacity is made available to cope with the new development; and in order to avoid 

adverse environmental impact upon the community and in accordance with Policy 

5.13 of the London Plan and Policy BN13 of the Local Plan 2015. 

19. Archaeological investigation  

A) For each of the 14ML Land and the W14 Land no development of the respective 
area of land other than demolition to existing ground level shall take place until 
(i) a programme of archaeological evaluation for the respective area of land has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (ii) the 
approved archaeological evaluation programme has been implemented and (iii) 
a report on that evaluation has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

B) If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by the evaluation under 
Part A, then before development of the respective area of land, other than 
demolition to existing ground level, commences (i) a Written Scheme of 
Investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

C) No development or demolition of the respective area of land other than demolition 
to existing ground level shall take place other than in accordance with the Written 
Scheme of Investigation approved under Part (B) and archaeological works shall 
be carried out by a suitably qualified investigating body acceptable to the Local 
Planning Authority. 

D) The development on the respective area of land shall not be occupied until a site 
investigation and post investigation assessment has been completed in 
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation 
approved under Part (B), and the provision for analysis, publication and 
dissemination of the results and archive deposition has been secured. 

Reason: To ensure that the archaeological interests are protected and considered 
appropriately and in accordance with London Plan policy 7.8 of the Local Plan and 
policy BN.2 of the Local Plan 2015.

RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS 

20. Residential standard- internal noise levels 
No residential premises shall be occupied unless it has been designed and 
constructed in accordance with BS8233:2014 ‘Sound insulation and noise reduction 
for buildings- Code of Practice’ and attains the following internal noise levels: 

Page 135



 Bedrooms- 30dB LAeq,T* and 40dB LAfmax 

 Living rooms- 30dB LAeq, D* 

 *T- Night-time 8 hours between 23:00-07:00 

 *D- Daytime 16 hours between 07:00-23:00. 

Reason: To ensure that the occupiers and users of the development do not suffer a 
loss of amenity by reason of excess noise from environmental and transportation 
sources and to be in accordance with Policy 7.15 of the London Plan and Policy BN11 
of the Local Plan 2015.

21. Sound insulation and noise mitigation details – Residential and Non-
Residential
The development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 Land shall not be occupied 
until details of the proposed sound insulation scheme to be implemented between the 
residential accommodation and any non-residential uses of the respective area of 
land have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall include a glazing specification for all windows to ensure a good 
standard of internal noise can be achieved during day time and night time in 
accordance with the guideline levels of BS8233 1999: "Sound insulation and noise 
reduction for buildings – code of practice" or an equivalent standard. Details should 
include airborne and impact sound insulation. The Development on the respective 
area of land shall not be occupied until the noise mitigation measures approved as 
part of the sound insulation scheme have been installed. The approved scheme is to 
be completed prior to occupation of the Development and thereafter permanently 
retained.  

Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupants and/or neighbours in accordance 
with Policy 7.15 of the London Plan and Policy BN11 of the Local Plan 2015. 

22. Accessible housing 
90% of the residential units hereby permitted shall be designed and constructed in 
accordance with M4 (2) Category 2 of Part M of the Building Regulations. 

10% of the residential units hereby permitted shall be designed and constructed in 
accordance M4 (3) Category 3 of Part M of the Building Regulations (split 
proportionately so that 10% of each of the following tenures of residential units shall 
be so provided: market housing units, intermediate housing units, social rented 
housing units and affordable rented housing units; and 10% of each of the following 
sizes of residential units shall be so provided: one, two and three bedroom units). 

The actual number of units to be provided in accordance with this condition would be 
the number of whole units that is as near as arithmetically possible to the specified 
percentage and 0.5 or above shall be rounded up to the nearest whole. 

Reason: To ensure adequate accessible housing is provided and to be in accordance 
with Local Plan 2015 Policy BN.5: Requiring inclusive design.   

23. Refuse storage 
Before the first occupation of the development hereby permitted on either of the 14ML 
Land or the W14 Land, the refuse and recycling storage arrangements for the 
respective area of land shown on the approved drawing/s shall be provided and made 
available for use by the occupiers of the Development and the facilities provided shall 
thereafter be retained for the life of the Development of the respective area of land 
and neither they nor the space they occupy shall be used for any other purpose unless 

Page 136



it can be demonstrated that these facilities are no longer required or can be reduced 
in size without affecting recycling rates, to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure there are refuse storage arrangements in place in advance of the 
use commencing to avoid highway and safety issues and ensure that that the refuse 
would be appropriately stored within the site in the interest of protecting the amenity 
of the site and the area in general from litter, odour and potential vermin/pest 
nuisance. 

Before the first occupation of the development hereby permitted on either of the 14ML 
Land or the W14 Land, the waste and recycling storage, transfer and collection 
arrangements for the respective area of land shown on the approved drawing/s shall 
be submitted in a Waste Servicing Strategy and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority, and made available for use by the occupiers of the Development. 
The Waste Servicing Strategy shall include the following key pieces of information: 

 Details and plans showing where residents and commercial tenants in each 
building should deposit their waste; 

 Description of the waste containers and equipment to be housed in each 
waste storage area; 

 Explanation of how and when waste containers will be transferred between 
waste rooms, the route the container will take during transfer, and where the 
necessary equipment for facilitating the operations will be stored; and 

 Details of arrangements for collection contractors for municipal and 
commercial waste, including where the waste will be collected from, where the 
waste collection vehicles will park, and the route for transferring bins between 
waste stores and vehicles.  

The facilities and management processes provided shall thereafter be retained and 
maintained for the life of the Development of the respective area of land and neither 
they nor the space they occupy shall be used for any other purpose unless it can be 
demonstrated that these facilities are no longer required or can be reduced in size 
without affecting recycling rates, to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure there are refuse storage and management arrangements in place 
in advance of the use commencing to avoid highway and safety issues and ensure 
that that the refuse would be appropriately stored within the site in the interest of 
protecting the amenity of the site and the area in general from litter, odour and 
potential vermin/pest nuisance in accordance with Policy S.6 of the Local Plan. 

PARKING, SERVICING, CYCLES  

24. Deliveries and servicing management plan 
The development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 Land shall not be occupied 
until a delivery and servicing management plan (DSMP) detailing how all elements of 
the respective area of land are to be serviced has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The DSMP shall be prepared in accordance 
with TfL's online guidance on delivery and servicing plans found at 
http://www.tfl.gov.uk/info-for/freight/planning/delivery-and-servicing-plans#on-this-
page-1 or such replacement best practice guidance as shall apply at the date of 
submission of the DSMP. The approved DSMP for the respective area of land shall 

Page 137



be implemented from first occupation of that respective area of land and thereafter 
for the life of the development on the respective area of land.  

Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and residential amenity 
making adequate provision for deliveries and servicing, and encouraging sustainable 
delivery methods in accordance with Policy 6.11 of the London Plan and Policy T4 of 
the Local Plan 2015.   

25. Cycle Storage and facilities- details to be submitted 
The development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 Land shall not be occupied 
until details (1:50 scale drawings) of the facilities to be provided for the secure storage 
of cycles (for both residential and commercial elements) and on site changing facilities 
and showers (for the commercial element) for the respective area of land have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development of the respective area of land shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details and the facilities provided shall be retained for the life of the 
development on the respective area of land and the space used for no other purpose. 

Reason: In order to ensure that satisfactory secure cycle parking and facilities for 
cyclists are provided and retained and in accordance with Policy 6.3 of the London 
Plan and Policy T4 of the Local Plan 2015.  

SUSTAINABILITY 

26. Renewable energy 
The development on the W14 Land and on the 14ML Land shall be constructed and 
operated in accordance with the submitted Price/Myers Energy Assessment dated 
1st April 2015 and achieve reductions in regulated CO2 emissions through the use of 
on-site renewable energy generation sources approved as part of this development.  

Reason: To ensure a high standard of sustainable design and construction and to 
ensure sufficient information is available to monitor the effects of the development in 
accordance with Policy 5.2 of The London Plan and Policies S2 and S5 of the Local 
Plan 2015.

27. BREEAM 
Before any fit out works to the commercial premises hereby authorised begins, an 
independently verified BREEAM report (detailing performance in each category, 
overall score, BREEAM Design Stage rating and a BREEAM certificate of building 
performance) which demonstrates that a minimum 'Excellent' rating has been 
achieved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and the development of the respective area of land shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with any such approval given.  Within three months of occupation 
of any commercial premises hereby permitted, a certified Post Construction Review 
(or other verification process agreed with the Local Planning Authority) shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, confirming that 
the agreed standards above have been met. 

Reason: To ensure that high standards of sustainability are achieved in in accordance 
with Policies 5.2, 5.3 and 5.6 of The London Plan and Policies S2 and S4 of the Local 
Plan 2015. 

28. Material samples 

Page 138



Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land, a schedule detailing brick bonding(s) where appropriate and samples of 
materials and finishes to be used on the external surfaces of the development of the 
respective area of land shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved materials shall be used in the implementation of 
the development. A sample panel(s) of brickwork of not less than 1m x 1m showing 
mortar mix, bonding and pointing type shall be constructed for the Local Planning 
Authority to inspect and approve and shall be retained on site until completion of the 
works, and the brickwork shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
panel(s).  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To safeguard the appearance of the 
buildings and the character of the area generally and to enable the Local Planning 
Authority to properly consider and control the development in the interest of visual 
amenity and to accord with Policies BN.1 and BN.4 of the Local Plan 2015.

29. Prior to the construction of buildings 1 and 2 details of the architectural design, 

including façade treatment, as well as materials and colour of the external surfaces 

of the podium level (levels 1, 2 and 3) of buildings 1 and 2 (at a scale to be agreed 

with the Local Planning Authority) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority and shall be constructed in accordance with the 

approved details.  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To safeguard the appearance of the 
buildings and the character of the area generally and to enable the Local Planning 
Authority to properly consider and control the development and to be in accordance 
with Strategic Policy SP.3 and Policies BN.1 and BN.10 of the Local Plan 2015. 

30. Detailed drawings 
Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land detailed drawings including sections (at a scale to be agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority) of the respective area of land shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority as follows:  

 Commercial façade details (ground level entrances and shopfront): elevations and 

sections through shopfronts, including details of doors, windows and signage and 

junctions with new pedestrian space as well as canopies, security shutters and 

areas for signage; 

 Residential façade details (including elevations facing the internal courtyard): 

elevations and sections annotated with materials and finishes of all windows 

(including reveals and sills), entrances, external bin stores, balconies, and 

balustrades, pipework and parapets; and all openings adjacent to the highways. 

The development of the respective area of land shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the approved drawings.  

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To enable the Local Planning Authority 
to properly consider and control the development and to be in accordance and in 
order to ensure a high quality of design and detailing is achieved and to be in 
accordance with Strategic Policy SP.3 and Policies BN.1, BN.4 and BN.10 of the 
Local Plan 2015.

Page 139



.
31. Green/brown roof  

Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or the W14 
Land, details of the biodiverse roofs (including a specification and maintenance plan) 
to buildings 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 as relevant to the respective area of land shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the 
development of the respective area of land shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with any such approval given.   

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure the proposed development 
would enhance the visual amenities of the locality and is designed for the maximum 
benefit of local biodiversity and to be in accordance with Policy S.4 of the Local Plan 
2015.

32. Landscaping Plan (including roof terrace) 
Prior to the construction of the development on either of the 14ML Land or W14 Land 
as shown on the appended phasing plan detailed drawings, the following information 
regarding the respective area of land shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority: 

 Detailed drawings 1:50 and 1:10 of a hard and soft landscaping scheme showing 

the treatment of all parts of the site not covered by buildings and roof terrace 

areas (including wind mitigation measures, boundary treatments, surfacing 

materials of any parking, access, or pathways layouts, materials and edge details 

and material samples of hard landscaping); 

 Full details of the treatment of site boundaries (including bollards) 

 Details of all existing trees on and adjacent to the land, and details of any to be 

retained, together with measures for their protection, during the course of 

development; 

 Waterside landscaping; 

 Planting schedules; 

 Sections through street tree pits;  

 Species mix; 

 Details of biodiversity enhancements (bird and bat nesting boxes etc); 

 Details of the increased marginal habitat highlighted in Appendix 14.1 of the 2014 

Environmental Statement  

 Details including plans, elevations and specifications of any play equipment to be 

provided and

 Details of parapet/balustrade and planting buffer around the roof terrace 

The planting, seeding and/or turfing shall be carried out as approved in the first 
planting season following completion of building works comprised in the development 
of the respective area of land and any tree or shrub that is found to be dead, dying, 

Page 140



severely damaged or diseased within two years of the completion of the building 
works OR two years of the carrying out of the landscaping scheme (whichever is 
later), shall be replaced in the next planting season by specimens of similar size and 
species in the first suitable planting season. Planting shall comply to BS:4428 Code 
of practice for general landscaping operations, BS:3996 Nursery stock specification, 
BS:5837 Trees in relation to construction and BS:7370 Recommendations for 
establishing and managing grounds maintenance organisations and for design 
considerations related to maintenance. All other works including hard surface 
materials and play equipment shall be carried out and completed prior to the 
occupation of any part of the development. 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure the proposed development 
would enhance the visual amenities of the locality and in order that the Local Planning 
Authority may ensure that the design and details are of high quality and to be in 
accordance with Policies BN.1 and BN.3 of the Local Plan 2015.  

33. Overheating 
Before the construction of the façades for the development on either of the W14 Land 
or the 14ML Land, an assessment of the internal temperature in summer of the 
development of the respective area of land shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority, so as to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the Building 
Regulations 2010 (Schedule 1, Part L) such assessment must use the method of 
calculation set out in the SAP 2012 (Appendix P) (or any subsequent edition of the 
SAP as may amend or replace the 2012 edition, as published by BRE). The 
assessment shall include details of any mitigation measures that are proposed to be 
used to reduce overheating, which shall include without limitation and where 
appropriate design of the facades; provision of ventilation; and internal layout. The 
mitigation measures shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following approval of the mitigation measures the building on the respective area of 
land shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and maintained in 
this condition thereafter, unless other minor variations are agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To ensure a comfortable level of amenity for residents of the development 
and in the interests of visual amenity and to be in accordance with Policy S.4 of the 
Local Plan 2015. 

34. Photovoltaics 
Prior to the commencement of the development on either of the W14 Land or the 
14ML Land full details of photovoltaic (PV) panels and a strategy for their installation 
on the respective area of land shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development of the respective area of land shall only 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The approved details shall 
be implemented prior to the first use of the building on the respective area of land and 
shall thereafter be permanently maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason and pre-commencement justification:  To ensure that the development 
incorporates renewable technologies and meets a high standard of sustainable 
design and construction and is in accordance with Policy 5.2 of the London Plan and 
Policies S2 and S5 of the Local Plan 2015.  

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT 

35. Land Use 

Page 141



Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and/or 
re-enacting that Order) the commercial premises hereby approved shall only be used 
for the purposes specified in the application (being use class B1 as defined in the 
Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended 
at the date of this permission).  

Reason: To provide control over the loss of employment generating use in 
accordance with the regeneration objectives for the Legacy Corporation area as set 
out in its purposes and within the Corporation’s Local Plan. 

In granting this permission the Local Planning Authority has had regard to the special 
circumstances of this case and wishes to have the opportunity of exercising control 
over any subsequent alternative use. 

CAFÉ / BREAKOUT AREA 

36. Café / breakout hours of use 
The café / breakout area shall not operate outside the hours of 0800 to 2300 hours 
on any day. 

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity and to be in accordance with Policy 
BN.1 of the Local Plan 2015. 

37. Café / breakout external alterations 
Prior to the use of the café/breakout area, details of the external appearance and 
specification of the flue at roof top level to Building 1 shall be submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and this shall be implemented before first 
use of the café/breakout area, and also retained in accordance with the approved 
details. No other external flue, ventilation equipment or any other external alteration 
shall be installed in relation to the café / breakout use without the prior written approval 
of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In the interest of visual and resident amenity and to be in accordance with 
Policy BN.1 of the Local Plan 2015.

38. Lighting 
No architectural lighting, security lighting or other external means of illumination of 

the site shall be provided, installed or operated in the development, except in 

accordance with a detailed scheme which shall provide for lighting that is low level, 

hooded and directional, and has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 

approved details and retained thereafter. 

Reason: In the interest of residential amenity and to protect ecological systems in 
accordance with Local Plan policy BN.3.  

INFORMATIVES: 

1. The Scheme is liable for Mayoral and LLDC CIL 

2. The applicant is reminded that this planning permission is subject to the 

accompanying S106 Legal Agreement. 

Page 142



3. Thames Water Informatives: 

 The applicant is reminded of their responsibility to make proper provision 

for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer.  

 The applicant is reminded of the need for a groundwater discharge 

permit

 The developer should take account of minimum water pressure in the 

design of the proposed development. 

4. English Heritage Greater London Archaeology informatives

 Written schemes of investigation would need to be prepared and 

implemented by a suitably qualified archaeological practice in 

accordance guidelines.  

 In order to protect groundwater quality from further deterioration. No 

infiltration based sustainable drainage systems should be constructed 

on land affected by contamination as contaminants can remobilise and 

cause groundwater pollution.  

 Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods should 

not cause preferential pathways for contaminants to migrate to 

groundwater and cause pollution.  

 All investigations of land potentially affected by contamination should be 

carried out by or under the direction of a suitably qualified competent 

person.  

Appendices

Appendix 1 Location Plan 

Appendix 2 Drawings 

Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Subject: Land at Marshgate Lane, Pudding Mill, Stratford, London E15 2NH
(Reference 17/00669/VAR)

Date: 22 May 2018

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee

Report of: Anne Ogundiya, Principal Planning Development Manager

FOR DECISION 

This report will be considered in public

1. Introduction

1.1 This report updates members on the following:

· Residential GIA amendments

· Amends Tables 1, 2, 4 and, 8 of the PDC report

· Amends the triggers to conditions 13 and 14

· Additional informative included

· Density error

· Typographical error

· Section 96a non-material amendment application

2. The applicant has updated the residential GIA floorspace as follows:

2.1 Proposal Description page 391 - The variation to Condition 2 (approved 
drawings) seeks to make changes to the approved scheme to include: (1) 
increase of employment use from 4,257m² to 5,671m² (additional 1,414m² (GIA) 
floorspace); (2) decrease of residential floorspace from 28,003m² to 27,295m²
27,210m² (decrease of 708793m² (GIA) floorspace); (3) optimisation of 
residential floorspace, increasing the number of residential units from 254 to 275; 
and (4) alterations to façades.

2.2 Paragraph 10.22: The residential GIA reference in the third sentence should read 
793m² and not 708m².  It should be noted that the overall residential floorspace 
decrease still equates to 3%.

3. Table Amendments

Table 1 – Summary of Changes

Extant 
Permission 
14/00422/FUL

s73
Variation to 
condition 2 -
approved 
drawings

Difference

Item 8 Update Report 

Page 145



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Residential 
units 

254 275 
Increase of 
21 units 
(8.3%) 

Residential 
Floorspace 

23,239m²  
28,003m² 
(GIA) 

22,531m²  
27,210m² 
(GIA) 

-708m²  
-793m² 
(GIA) (3%) 

  
For changes to residential unit 
mix (see Table 2 below) 

B1 
Floorspace 

4,257m² (GIA) 
5,671m² 
(GIA) 

Increase of 
1,414m² 
(33%) 

Car Parking 40 spaces 40 spaces unchanged 

Plus 
Accessible 
Car Parking  

29 spaces 
(residential 
and 
commercial) 

29 spaces 
(residential 
and 
commercial) 

Unchanged  

Cycle 
Parking  

588 590 
spaces 
(residential 
and 
commercial) 

597 
595 spaces 
(residential 
and 
commercial) 
 

+7 

Amenity 
Space 

2,109m² 2,036m² 
  
 -73m² 
(3.4%) 

   
  Alterations to façades* 

 
 

Table 2 - Overview of Residential Mix and Affordable Housing 

 Extant Permission s73 

 Number of Units Percentages Number of Units Percentages 

Unit Type Market  
Afforda

ble  
Totals Affordable  

All 
Units 

Market  Affordable Totals Affordable  All Units 

Studio 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 10 0 4 

1 Bed 83 17 100 
38 39 53 

 
18 71 

33 26 

2 Bed 62 14 76 31 30 119 22 141 41 51 

3 Bed 60 13 73 
29 29 

37 13 50 
24 18 

4 Bed 4 1 5 2  2 2 1 3 2 1 

Total Number 
of Beds 

209 45 254 100% 
100
% 

 
 

221 
(+12) 
(+14) 

 

54 (+9) 275 100% 100% 

 

Page 146



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
Table 4 -  s73 Variation – Unit Mix  

 
Unit Type Total Units  Adjustment % 

     Provision 
Studio 10 +10 4% 
1 bed 71 -22-29 26% 
2 bed 141 +65 51% 
3 bed 50 -23 18% 
4 bed 3 -2 1% 
TOTAL 275  100% 

 
 

Table 8 
 

Indicative s73Tenure Split 
 

 

 

Tenure Studio 1 bedroom  2 
bedroom  

3 bedroom  4 bedroom All 
Bedroom 
Types 
Total  

  

Market 

10 

(1% of 

total 

market) 

59 53 

(27% of 

total 

market) 

119 

(55% of 

total 

market) 

37 

(17% of total 

market) 

2 

(1% of total 

market) 

221 

80% of total 

housing) 

  

  

Shared 
Ownership 

  

0 

  

5 

(24% of 

total 

intermediat

e) 

  

14 

(67% of 

total 

intermediat

e) 

  

2 

(9% of total 

intermediate) 

  

0 

  

  

21 

(8% of total 

housing, 

39% of total 

affordable 

housing) 

  

London 
Affordable 
Rent (LAR) 

  

0 

  

13 

(39% of 

total LAR) 

  

8 

(24% of 

total LAR) 

  

11 

(34% of total 

LAR) 

  

1 

(3% of total 

LAR) 

  

33 

(12% of 

total 

housing, 

61% of total 

affordable 

housing) 

All Tenures 
Total  

10 (4%) 71 (26%) 141 (51%) 50 (18%) 3 (1%) 275 
(100%) 

Page 147



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
4. Amendments to the triggers to the remediation conditions 13 and 14 

 
4.1 In order to be consistent with the consented scheme officers have included the 

phrase ‘…except demolition to existing slab level…’ after the words ‘…No 
development …’ to condition 13 and after the words ‘…No phase shall be 
commenced…’ to condition 14.  This would enable demolition works to be carried 
out prior to the submission of remediation details to PPDT. 

  
5. Informative (Fire Safety Regulations) 

 
5.1 Please note that this planning application has been assessed against current 

planning legislation only. The applicant (or any subsequent owner or developer) 
is therefore reminded that the onus of responsibility to ensure the development 
meets current fire safety regulations lies fully with them and that they are legally 
obliged to obtain the relevant Building Regulations consent. 
 

5.2 In accordance with LFEPA guidance the applicant is strongly recommended to 
ensure the installation of sprinklers in the new development. The development 
shall conform with Part B5 of Approved Document B of the Building Regulations. 

 
6. Density Error 

 
6.1 The s73 proposals would result in a residential density of ‘…722 675 habitable 

rooms per hectares…’  
 
7. Typographical Error 
 
7.1 Paragraph 10.15.  The figure in the first sentence should read as 1,414m2 and 

not 1,4141m2. 
 

7.2 Refer to the subject heading on page 387 – the application reference suffix is 
recorded as AOD.  It should read 17/00669/VAR. 

 
8. Section 96a Non-material amendment submission 
 
8.1 The applicant has recently submitted a section 96a non-material amendment 

application (NMA) which seeks to change the description of development to 
match the proposed variations to the approved drawings permitted under 
14/00422/FUL.  Should the variations (17/00669/VAR) be approved by 
members, officers would seek to approve the submitted NMA, with a decision 
issued at the same time as the variation 17/00669/VAR.  

Page 148



Subject: Meridian Square: Application for Advertisement Consent for Internally 
Illuminated digital media screen (3m high x 11.3m wide x 0.40m deep) 
fixed to the south-western elevation of the Westfield Office Block 
(approved under application reference 16/00524/FUL) at Great Eastern 
Road, Stratford (18/000225/ADV) 

Meeting date:  24 July 2018 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anne Ogundiya, Principal Planning Development Manager 

FOR DECISION 

This report will be considered in public 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report considers an advertisement consent for an internally illuminated digital 
media screen affixed to the south-western elevation of the proposed 18 storey (83.1m 
AOD high) Westfield office block (phase 2 development) approved under application 
reference 15/00524/FUL (a two-phased development comprising phase 1 the 14 storey 
YHA building and phase 2 an 18-storey office block), but yet to be implemented.  The 
proposal would replace an existing standalone media advertising screen of similar 
dimensions on the site. The media screen would be used for general commercial 
advertising. 

1.2. The proposed digital media screen was shown illustratively on the YHA/office 
proposals and at the time of its consideration Members expressed a desire for the 
advertising proposals to be considered by the Planning Decisions Committee.  

1.3. The application site is located within Stratford Metropolitan Centre and is situated on 
Great Eastern Road.  The site is located within Meridian Square at the bottom of the 
town centre link bridge stairs.   

1.4. Applications for advertisement consent have to be assessed on grounds of visual 
amenity and public safety, taking into account relevant planning policies and any other 
relevant factors.

1.5. The assessment is that having regard to relevant planning policies, the context of the 
site i.e. its town centre location and the position and orientation of the office block to 
which the advertisement would be affixed, the digital media screen is visually 
acceptable and does not give rise to any amenity or safety issues. The media screen 
would add to the vibrancy of this part of the town centre. In this context, it is considered 
that the proposed media screen would be appropriate in the proposed location, and 
the scale and design would not be detrimental to the visual amenity of the building and 
the street scene. 

1.6. The proposal is considered to be acceptable in planning policy terms. As such, it is 
recommended that advertisement consent is granted, subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 149



2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

2.1. The Committee is asked to: 

1. Grant advertisement consent for the application ref 18/00225/ADV for the 
reasons given in the report subject to the conditions set out at section 13 of 
this report; and 

2. Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 
to finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report including 
such refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the Director of 
Planning Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no financial implications.

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1.   There are no financial implications.

Page 150



Site Plan 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100050265

Location:    Great Eastern Road, Stratford
London Borough:   Newham 
Applicants:    Westfield UK Property Developments Ltd
Agent/Design Team:  Dp9 / Suttonca Architects 

Page 151



5. SITE & SURROUNDINGS  

5.1. The site is located to the south east of Great Eastern Road where it adjoins the steps 
and escalator accessing the Town Centre Link Bridge between Meridian Square and 
the Westfield Centre.  The site is the land currently used as a British Transport Police 
facility and Network Rail parking. There are station assets and an emergency access 
from the station within the site. There is also a coach bay along the northern end of 
Great Eastern Road. 

5.2. Stratford Regional Station and Stratford Bus Station are located immediately to the 
south of the application site on Meridian Square with an additional station entrance on 
the halfway level of the steps to the Town Centre Link Bridge. 

5.3. On the opposite side of Great Eastern Road is the Stratford Centre and associated 
multi storey car park within the LB Newham planning authority area. Great Eastern 
Road (A118) currently forms part of the one-way Stratford gyratory traffic system and 
is part of the Strategic Road Network. The LB of Newham’s / TfL Stratford Gyratory 
Project proposes to convert the roads around Stratford town centre including Great 
Eastern Road to two-way traffic together with cycle route, public realm and pedestrian 
crossing improvements. 

5.4. The site falls within the boundary of Zone 1 of the Stratford City development area. 
This part of Zone 1 to the south east of the railway is occupied by three other 
development sites between the application site and the junction with Angel Lane. 
These are: the 33-storey residential development (Stratford Central - 181 units) (under 
construction); the 8-storey completed Moxy Hotel development which provides 279 
bedrooms and the completed Unite student accommodation (699 single rooms and 60 
studios) up to 14 storeys at the Angel Lane junction.  

6. DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 

6.1. The proposed digital media screen would be 7.75m above ground level at its highest 
point and be 11.3m wide x 3m in height and 400mm deep. The media screen is 
proposed to replace an existing standalone digital media screen (3.6m high x 12.7m 
wide x 500mm deep) of slightly larger dimensions on the adjoining site. However, as 
proposed the digital media screen would be located on the south-western elevation of 
the ‘phase 2 office block’ (described in paragraphs 7.2 to 7.5 below), and would be 
affixed to the building’s concrete columns. It should be noted that the phase 2 office 
block has not yet been constructed. 

6.2. The digital media screen would be located on level 3 of the office block i.e. above the 
split-level mezzanine floor which would accommodate a mix of retail uses. It would be 
4.4m from the ground level. The proposed media screen is smaller than the existing 
screen. 

6.3. The digital media screen would be erected in line with the reconstituted stone façade 
above with a separation gap from the building façade of 350mm. The screen would sit 
back from the level 2 retail use glass balcony which aligns with the town centre link 
bridge escalators.  The shroud to the media screen is proposed to be stainless steel. 

6.4. The advertisement would be internally illuminated. The applicant states that the media 
screen would be internally lit with an luminance level of 300cd/m2.  

6.5. Elevations and visuals are included in the appendices. 

6.6. The existing standalone digital media screen within Meridian Square, which is part of 
a host of advertisements (11/90036/ADVODA – see paragraph 7.8) covering zone 1 
was granted a 5-year advertisement consent in 2011 expiring in August 2017.  The 
applicant has advised that they would be seeking to regularise the consent i.e. by 

Page 152



submitting an advertisement consent application for its extension. Should 
advertisement consent be granted for the proposed digital media screen the existing 
standalone digital media screen would be in place until the office development is 
completed and the new digital media screen would be incorporated within the office 
block.  

7. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

On and Around the Application Site: 

7.1 The site lies within Zone 1 of the Stratford City Development area that was    originally 
used for a range of railway related uses. 

7.2 The original Stratford City outline consent was granted in 2005 and included consent 
for a range of commercial, retail and residential uses including hotels. A number of 
variations and related submissions have been made since the original consent. 
Application reference 10/90061/OUMODA covered the Cherry Park area (north of the 
railway) and part of the Angel Lane area of Zone 1 (but excluded the current application 
site). This outline consent was approved in March 2012 and was mainly for residential 
uses (99,870m2) but included some commercial uses including 6,311m2 of hotel 
floorspace (C1) in the Cherry Park area. 

7.3 11/90036/ADVODA - Advertisement consent granted on the 17th August 2011 for 13 
advertisements, of two types. Five media screens surface mounted to buildings and 8 
free standing digital advertisements located on the Town Centre Link and within the 
public realm of zone 1. 

7.4 Application reference 13/00275/VAR to vary permission 10/90061/OUMODA was 
approved on the 17th October 2013. The effect of this variation was to increase the 
density and amount of residential floorspace to be built on the Cherry Park area.  

7.5 Application reference 15/00358/OUT was approved on the 13th February 2018, and is 
under construction for retail and residential development on the Cherry Park site. 

7.6 Application reference 12/00221/FUM was granted on the 30th September 2013 for the 
Unite student housing scheme on land at Angel Lane immediately to the east of the 
application site. The development provides 759 student bedrooms This development 
is completed and occupied. 

7.7 Application reference 13/00322/FUL was granted on the 24th August 2014 for a 33- 
storey tower to provide 181 residential units in a mix of 1, 2 and 3 bedroom dwellings 
with ancillary gym. This is under construction. 

7.8 Application reference 14/02289/FUL – Considered by LB Newham (Stratford Centre) 
granted in January 2016 for a mixed use residential led scheme providing 587 
residential units in 42 and 25 storey towers in addition to commercial uses, access 
changes and new public routes. This application is located directly to the south of the 
Legacy Corporation’s boundary. The scheme has not been implemented. 

7.9 Application reference 15/00053/ADV - Application for Advertisement Consent for the 
display of vinyl adhesive adverts on northern and southern glazed panels of the Town 
Centre Link Bridge for three x temporary four week periods per year, including 
associated permanent lighting. Advertisement consent granted on appeal 7th March 
2015.

7.10 Application reference 15/00536/ADV – Application for advertising consent for the 
display of vinyl adhesive adverts on northern and southern glazed panels on the Town 
Centre Link Bridge for 1x temporary four-week period to be completed within one year 
from the date of planning permission, including associated permanent lighting. 
Withdrawn 27th November 2015. 

Page 153



Application Site:  

7.11 On the 27th March 2018 under planning reference 16/00524/FUL planning permission 
was granted for a part eighteen-storey part fifteen-storey building comprising 22,726 
sqm (GEA) of office (use class B1a) and 369 sqm (GEA) of retail floorspace (use class 
A1-A5) and a fourteen-storey building comprising a 192-bedroom youth hostel facility 
(sui generis use), together with landscaping, public realm and other associated works. 

7.12 The proposed office and youth hostel buildings will form separate phases of 
development, be structurally independent, and will both front onto Great Eastern Road 
to the east/south east.  

7.13 The Youth Hostel building (phase 1) is on the eastern part of the site adjoining the 
Stratford Central residential tower under construction. The building is 14 storeys with 
a total of 192 rooms providing a total of 846 bed spaces with each room having ensuite 
toilet / shower. 

7.14 The office building (phase 2) to which the proposed digital media screen would be 
affixed would be sited immediately adjoining the stairs and escalator accessing the 
Town Centre Link Bridge from Meridian Square.  

7.15 On the 12th October 2017, under planning reference 17/00280/FUL planning 
permission was granted for the demolition of the existing British Transport Police 
building, together with the construction of a new temporary station escape ramp and 
associated works. 

7.16 On the 4th July 2018, under planning reference 18/00245/FUL planning permission was 
granted for the construction of a temporary station escape stair and associated works. 

8.         POLICIES & GUIDANCE 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

8.1. Planning policies contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (March 
2012) are relevant to the application and the over-arching principle of the Framework 
is that local   authorities should be positive and proactive in encouraging sustainable 
growth and addressing barriers to investment. The NPPF should be read in conjunction 
with the national Planning Practice Guidance, a web-based resource for all users of 
the planning system.  This describes the importance of good design and how this can 
be achieved through planning decisions. 

8.2. Paragraph 67 - control over outdoor advertisements confirms that advertisements 
should be subject to control only in the interests of amenity and public safety, taking 
account of cumulative impacts.

The London Plan (March 2016) 

The following London Plan policies are relevant to this submission:

 7.4 Local character 

 7.5 Public realm 

 7.6 Architecture 

The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) 
Regulations 2007 

Planning Practice Guidance - Advertisements 

LLDC Local Plan (2015) 

8.4. The London Legacy Development Corporation Local Plan 2015-2031 was adopted on 
21st July 2015 and provides the formal local policy basis for planning decisions. 

Page 154



8.5. The site is within the Central Stratford and Southern Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park 
Sub Area as defined in the Local Plan; the entire site is also within the defined 
Metropolitan Centre. The site has no specific allocation in the Local Plan. Great 
Eastern Road and the pedestrian route from Meridian Square via steps to the Town 
Centre Link Bridge are shown as key connections where improved connectivity and 
public realm improvements are promoted (Policy 3.2).

8.6. Policies which are relevant to the consideration of this submission are:

 BN.9 - Protecting Key Views 

 BN.15 - Designing Advertisements 

8.7. The Draft London Plan (December 2017) 

The Mayor of London published for the purpose of public consultation a draft new 
London Plan on 29th November 2017. The policies in the draft new London Plan 
currently have only very limited material weight when making planning decisions. That 
weight will increase once the new Plan is submitted for its Examination in Public. This 
report may make reference to policies within the new London Plan where they are 
directly relevant to the assessment of the application proposal. However, the relevant 
development plan policies remain those within the current London Plan (March 2016) 
and the LLDC Local Plan (July 2015). 

9. CONSULTATION SUMMARY 

9.1. Four site notices were placed in various location within the vicinity of the site on the 1st

May 2018. No responses have been received. 

9.2. LB Newham Planning, Highways and Environmental Health – No response at the 
time of writing. Members will be advised of any comment received at Committee.

9.3. Transport for London (TfL) – TfL does not object to this proposal. However, TfL 
would like to include informatives that: 

 All vehicles associated with construction and maintenance shall only park or stop 
away from the Stratford regional rail and bus station and Great Eastern Way bus 
and coach stops, in order to avoid obstruction to bus and coach operations. 

 TfL would be interested in exploring the opportunity for this screen to also display 
any important travel news or information which would be to the assistance of all 
people in the vicinity of the screen, and would be pleased to discuss this with the 
relevant controller of the screen. 

9.4. Applicant response: Conversations are ongoing between Westfield and TfL 
regarding the display of messaging on Westfield screens in general.  The applicant has 
advised that the approach and particular screens are yet to be determined therefore at 
this stage Westfield cannot commit to any resolution on a specific screen. 

9.5. PPDT Environmental Consultants -  PPDT’s environmental consultants have 
reviewed the applications in particular to advise whether the illumination levels 
proposed are appropriate. They comment: 

 Assuming the average luminance will not exceed 300cd/m² it will be compliant with 
the maximum building luminance limit in Table 2 of the Institution of Lighting 
Professionals (ILP), Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light 
GN01:2011 for an E4 Environmental Zone (High district brightness (town centres 
with high levels of night-time activity)).  

 The proposed lighting is unlikely to be obtrusive in the context of this location.  

Page 155



9.6. PPDT Transport Consultants - PPDT Transport Consultants comment that the 
proposed digital media screen does not raise concerns from a transport perspective 
and it is not considered likely to be a material distraction for drivers. They also note 
TfL’s comments submitted on 17th May 2018 stating their interest in exploring the 
opportunity for this screen to also display any important travel news or information. 
PPDT Transport Consultants echo this and support the possibility of the screen being 
used to provide travel information. 

10. ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

Background to Submission:  

10.1 On the 27th March 2018 under planning reference 16/00524/FUL planning permission 
was granted for a two-phased development (known as Angel Lane) as set out below: 

10.1.1 Phase 1 a fourteen-storey building comprising a 192-bedroom youth hostel facility (sui 
generis use), together with landscaping, public realm and other associated works;  

10.1.2 Phase 2 eighteen-storey building comprising 22,726 sqm (GEA) of office (use class 
B1a) and 369 sqm (GEA) of retail floorspace (use class A1-A5). 

10.1.3 Whilst the development is yet to be commenced as set out in paragraphs 7.13 and 
7.14 planning permission was recently granted for enabling infrastructure works which 
includes the demolition of the existing British Transport Police building on the site, 
together with the construction of a new temporary station escape ramp/stairs and 
associated works.   

10.2 These Angel Lane proposals included illustrative images of a media screen 
incorporated within the phase 2 office block proposals. The proposals were for a 
significantly larger media advertising screen than that currently proposed and the 
existing standalone media screen. At the time (pre-application stage) Officers and QRP 
expressed concern at the proposed retention and size of the media screen. The 
applicant was advised that should they wish to proceed and submit an application for 
advertisement consent the proposals would need to explore ways of incorporating the 
media screen into the building’s façade whilst having regard to Local plan policy BN.15 
(Designing Advertisements) which provides the criteria within which visual amenity and 
safety of advertisement proposals can be assessed.  

10.3 The applicant has taken on board officers’ and QRP’s comments and the office building 
has been designed from the outset to include a media screen of dimensions smaller 
than the existing standalone media screen within Meridian Square.  The proposed 
screen was identified albeit indicatively in the documents submitted with the 
16/00524/FUL planning application. 

10.4 The Control of Advertisements is governed by the provisions of the Town and Country 
Planning (Control of Advertisement) Regulations 2007 and provides the scope of the 
relevant considerations. The regulations and the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) specify that, when determining advertisements applications Local Planning 
Authorities shall exercise their powers in the interests of amenity and public safety, 
taking into account material provisions of the development plan so far as they are 
material and any other relevant factors. 

Amenity:

10.5 Local Plan policy BN.15 provides criteria against which amenity and safety of 
advertisement proposals can be assessed. The policy states that advertisements 
would be acceptable where they do not have an adverse impact on amenity, outlook 
from residential properties, the character or scale of the building or street or on a 
heritage asset or its setting. Advertisements are also considered acceptable where 
they do not protrude above the roofline of a building, are not attached to a residential 

Page 156



building, do not obscure architectural features and do not result in proliferation of signs 
and visual clutter. 

10.6 The proposed media screen would sit within the commercial environment that is the 
Stratford Metropolitan Town Centre. The signs are therefore viewed in this context. 
This site is located close to the mezzanine level entrance to Stratford Regional Station 
and Stratford Bus Station. The proposal effectively replaces a larger digital media 
screen already in existence in this location and broadly retains the scale and proportion 
of the existing screen.  The applicant has provided a verified view to give a sense of 
the proportions of the screen and its new context. In particular, it is noted that the 
position and orientation of the office block and the south-west elevation on which the 
display is proposed is such that the media screen would primarily be visible from the 
commercial areas of Stratford.

10.7 The new digital media screen would sit proud of the columns but be in line with the 
reflective glass cladding above (approved under application reference 15/00524/FUL). 
It would therefore appear as an integrated part of the architecture on the building’s 
elevation.  Officers are satisfied that it would not dominate or overwhelm the elevation, 
and there would be a good proportion of solid cladding remaining around the new 
screen and its size would be offset by the size of the Westfield office building. 

10.8 Officers consider that the proposed location allows the screen to sit logically in the 
composition of the new office building’s south-western elevation having due regard to 
the architectural features of the building, such as the stainless-steel media screen 
shroud casing reflecting the metal framework of the office façade. The proposal would 
not compromise the proposed retail frontages or the aspect of the office floors.  Officers 
are of the view that overall the proposals are an improvement over the current 
condition.  It is considered that the signage would be proportional and well-ordered 
within the elevation.

10.9 The proposal would respect the appearance and scale of the host building and would 
have an acceptable impact upon the street scene and the Meridian Square public 
realm. It is noted that there are within the town centre, including Westfield, a number 
of large digital screens located on similarly large facades. Indeed, there is an existing 
digital media screen affixed to the front entrance of the main Stratford Regional Station 
adjacent to Meridian Square. However, the existence of existing large adverts, and the 
approval of the proposed media screen if forthcoming, should not be considered to set 
a precedent for further such signs. The proposed media screen, both in isolation and 
having regard to existing signage within the town centre, is assessed to not have an 
unacceptable impact upon amenity.  Officers are satisfied that what is in effect a 
replacement media screen would not result in a proliferation of signs or visual clutter. 

10.10 The nearest residential properties to the media screen are approximately 200m from 
the application site; officers are satisfied that given the orientation of the screen which 
would face south-west and the orientation and distance to the nearest residential 
properties (due south) there would be no harm to residential amenity, including outlook.  
PPDT’s environmental consultants have reviewed the submission and have raised no 
objections. The illuminance of the signage would be restricted to 300 cd/m2, which is 
in accordance with the guidance contained within the Institute of Lighting Professionals 
with regards to the brightness of illuminated adverts. The applicant has also advised 
that in addition, the screen would be of a maximum luminance of 300 cd/m2 during the 
hours of daylight, reduced to a maximum of 240 cd/m2 during the hours of darkness. 
It is understood that the display brightness is remotely programmed to change with the 
seasons.

Page 157



Public safety:  

10.11 The signage to the façade of the office building would be located at a high level and 
would not pose a hazard to pedestrian safety. The existing signage is visible from the 
public and to vehicular traffic travelling in a northern direction along Great Eastern 
Road. It is not considered that the proposed advertisement would give rise to any 
material highway or other safety issue. PPDT’s Transport Consultants have reviewed 
the submission documents and conclude that the media screen does not raise 
concerns from a transport perspective, and it is not considered likely to be a material 
distraction for drivers. TfL do not raise any objection to the proposal. 

10.12 Officers conclude that the proposed media screen is considered to be proportionate to 
the scale of the office building and the scale of the surroundings and would not result 
in unnecessary clutter.

10.13 Officers are satisfied that the proposed signage would not harm the visual amenity of 
the surrounding area or the architectural integrity of the office block.  Officers are also 
satisfied that it would not adversely affect the visual amenity of the area nor have any 
detrimental impacts on highway safety.

10.14 The media screen is acceptable and in accordance with policies, 7.4, 7.5 and 7.6 of 
the London Plan, and policy BN.15 the Local Plan. 

11. HUMAN RIGHTS & EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1.   Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 as they 
relate to the application and the conflicting interests of the Applicants and any third 
party opposing the application in reaching their decisions. The provisions of the Human 
Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the processing of the application and 
the preparation of this report. In particular, Article 6 (1), of the European Convention 
on Human Rights in relation civil rights and a fair hearing; Article 8 of the ECHR in 
relation to the right to respect for private and family life and Article 1 Protocol 1 of the 
ECHR in relation to the protection of property have all been taken into account. 

11.1.1.In addition, the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in 
respect of certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and 
sexual orientation. It places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to 
have due regard to the advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers 
including planning powers. Officers have taken this into account in the 
assessment of the application and Members must be mindful of this duty inter 
alia when determining all planning applications. In particular Members must pay 
due regard to the need to: 

11.1.2.Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

11.1.3.Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and; 

11.1.4.Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

11.2. Officers are satisfied that the submitted details have taken into account these issues.  

12. CONCLUSION  

12.1. It is considered that the proposed integrated media screen would be acceptable within 
the commercial context of Stratford Town Centre, and is of an appropriate size and scale 
to ensure it would not be unduly dominant, or create visual clutter in accordance with 

Page 158



both The London Plan and Local Plan.  As assessed by PPDT’s transport and 
environmental consultants the media screen would not be a hazard to amenity or public 
safety.

12.2. Taking into account all relevant factors, including the existing standalone slightly larger 
screen, which would be removed as part of the proposal, officers’ analysis concludes 
that the impact on visual amenity is acceptable; and the proposal would not be 
detrimental to public safety. It is therefore recommended that advertisement consent is 
granted subject to the conditions set out below.

13. Conditions 

13.1 Works in accordance with approvals

The approved scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the following details: 
Application form dated 6 April 2018; Drawings ref: CS 1251 0331; and CS 1251 0332 
Rev A; and the description of development contained in the application and any other 
plans, drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been approved 
by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions. 

Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained in accordance 
with the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 
2007.

13.2 Luminance Levels  

The luminance of the signage hereby permitted and any other associated lighting with 
the screen shall not exceed 300cd/m2.  

Reason: To comply with the recommendations of the Institution of Lighting 
Professionals, Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light (GN01:2011) in the 
interests of amenity. 

13.3 Installation 

Prior to the installation of the digital media screen hereby permitted the existing 
standalone media screen permitted under application reference 11/90036/ADVODA and 
highlighted in green on the plan attached to the decision notice shall be removed in its 
entirety and the site reinstated to its former condition or in accordance with planning 
permission reference 15/00524/FUL. 

Reason: To avoid visual clutter through the proliferation of advertisements in accordance 
with Local Plan Policy BN.15.  

13.4 Standard condition  

The consent hereby given shall expire five years from the date of this notice. 

No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or 
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission. 

No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to: 

 endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or 
aerodrome (civil or military); 

 obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or 
aid to navigation by water or air; or 

 hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or surveillance 
or for measuring the speed of any vehicle. 

Page 159



Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall 
be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site. 

Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying 
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public. 

Where an advertisement is required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of 
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 to be removed, the site shall be left in a 
condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity. 

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Regulation 14(7) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 

13.5 All vehicles associated with construction and maintenance shall only park or stop away 
from the Stratford regional rail and bus station and Great Eastern Way bus and coach 
stops, in order to avoid obstruction to bus and coach operations. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Local Plan policy 
BN.15.

Informatives:

 The applicant is advised to continue discussions with TfL regarding the opportunity 
to display important travel news/information. 

 The applicant is reminded that the advertisement consent relating to the existing 
standalone media screen, highlighted in green on the attached decision notice, has 
expired. The standalone media screen should therefore be removed or a further 
advertisement consent application should be submitted to the LPA for the 
assessment of its retention.  

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Location Plan 
Appendix 2 – Drawings 
Appendix 3 – Photographs / Visualisation 

Page 160



Appendices - Meridian Square Steps Digital Media Screen 

Site Location 

Proposed Plan - Section – Elevation

Page 161



Appendices - Meridian Square Steps Digital Media Screen 

Existing Site Plan

Existing Digital Media Screen

Page 162



Appendices - Meridian Square Steps Digital Media Screen 

Visualisations of Proposed Digital Media Screen

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Subject:  The Pavilion, Endeavour Square, International Quarter London 
(IQL), Stratford City Zone 2, London, E15 2EG – reference: 
18/00252/REM. 

Meeting date:  24 July 2018 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Josh Hackner, Planning Development Manager 

 
FOR DECISION 
 

This report will be considered in public 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report presents the planning assessment of a reserved matters application, 
relating to Zone 2 in Stratford City, also known as the International Quarter 
London (IQL). The reserved matters application is submitted pursuant to 
Conditions B1, B8 and B9 of the Stratford City Outline Planning Permission (SC 
OPP) (ref: 10/90641/EXTODA) and seeks the approval for the siting, design, 
external appearance and means of access elements for a Pavilion, which would 
be situated within Endeavour Square (formerly known as International Square). 
Endeavour Square received reserved matters approval (ref: 16/00523/REM) on 
13 July 2017.  

1.2. The wider overarching SC OPP and accompanying Section 106 Agreement (in 
so far as it relates to the HS1 and LCR Land) dated 30th March 2012 and 
subsequent Deed of Variations dated 22nd January 2014 and Modification 
Agreement dated 18th September 2015 set the requirement for, and general 
location of a Pavilion and visitor centre to be located within Endeavour Square.  

1.3. The “Pavilion” is defined within Part 8 of the Stratford City Section 106 
Modification Agreement as  

“’Pavilion’ means the pavilion café to be provided in International Square, 
which shall include the Visitor Centre”. 

1.4. The S106 Modification Agreement also defines the “Visitor Centre”: 

“’Visitor Centre’ means an area of no less than 6 square metres to be 
provided in the Pavilion in accordance with paragraph 8.29”. 

1.5. The reserved matters application seeks approval for a building of two storeys in 
height for complementary retail (Use Classes A1 to A5) at ground and first floor 
levels, with pop up space at roof level, comprising a total of 1,343sqm (GEA) in 
floorspace, along with the provision of a visitor centre at ground floor. 

1.6. The proposals are in conformity with the parameters described in the Outline 
Consent, Section 106 Agreement and Zonal Masterplan for Zone 2. 

Agenda Item  

Agenda Item 8

Page 165



1.7. Officers consider the design of the Pavilion to accord with the aspirations for high 
quality described in the approved Zonal Masterplan, however planning 
conditions are recommended, securing the submission of further design details 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval as the scheme progresses to ensure 
the design aspirations for the Pavilion are delivered.  

1.8. No objections have been raised by consultees, or the local community. 

1.9. It is considered that the siting, design, external appearance and means of access 
for the Pavilion are acceptable. It is therefore recommended that the application 
be approved. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. The Committee is invited to APPROVE the application as follows: 

APPROVE Application for the approval of reserved matters pursuant to 
conditions B1, B8 and B9 attached to the Outline Consent comprising 
details of layout, scale, appearance, access and landscaping of the IQL 
Pavilion, comprising a part two, part three storey building for 
complementary retail (Use Classes A1-A5) with associated works.  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1. None 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. None 

  

Page 166



Site Plan 

 
 

Location:  The Pavilion, Endeavour Square, International Quarter London 
(IQL), Stratford City Zone 2, London, E15 2EG  

London Borough:  London Borough of Newham 

Proposal:   18/00252/REM: Application for the approval of Reserved 
Matters pursuant to conditions B1, B8 and B9 of the Stratford 
City Outline Planning Permission (Ref: 10/90641/EXTODA) 

Page 167



comprising details of layout, scale, appearance, access and 
landscaping of the IQL Pavilion, comprising a part two, part three 
storey building for complementary retail (Use Classes A1-A5) 
with associated works. 

Applicants:   Stratford City Business District Limited 

Agent   Quod  

Architects   ACME (as architects for the Pavilion)  

  Gustafson-Porter and Bowman (as landscape architects) 

 

Figure 1: Site Context 

 

 

Page 168



5. SITE & SURROUNDINGS  

5.1. The application site comprises part of Zone 2 of the wider Stratford City 
development and is located within International Quarter London (IQL) South. 
Zone 2 is bounded by Westfield Avenue to its eastern edge and railway 
infrastructure and lines to its western edge. Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park 
(QEOP) is located further west of the site and what is largely considered to be 
the main entrance to the Park is accessed through Zone 2 and via the F10 
Bridge. 

5.2. IQL comprises Zone 2 in its entirety (Plots S1-S10, IQL South), and also Plots 
N17 and N20-23 (IQL North) in Zone 3. Zone 2, shown below, comprises the 
south-western part of Stratford City which sits between Zone 1 (predominantly 
comprising Westfield Shopping Centre) to the north east and the QEOP to the 
south west. 

Figure 1: Zone 2 of Stratford City 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.3. Outline Planning Permission (ref: P/03/0607) was approved on 17th February 
2005 by the London Borough of Newham for the comprehensive redevelopment 
of the site comprising offices, residential, retail, commercial leisure uses, hotels 
and conference facilities, community, health and education facilities, open 
space, landscaping, water features, parking, transport interchanges, associated 
infrastructure and a town centre link. 

5.4. Zone 2 comprises a number of development plots as defined in the Zonal 
Masterplan approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA) in March 2012 under 
application reference 11/90463/AODODA (ZMP). When completed, Zone 2 as 
approved will provide 257,267sqm of new commercial floorspace, 333 new 

Page 169



homes, 3,000sqm of new retail shops and restaurants together with community 
uses and open space.   

5.5. In January 2014, Plots S7 and S8 received reserved matters approval (ref: 
13/00409/REM) for 333 residential units consisting of two towers (17 and 30 
storeys in height). Occupation of Glasshouse Gardens began in October 2016. 
This also included the first open space areas to secure reserved matters 
approval, known as Balcony Park. The opening of Balcony Park was phased, 
with parts opening in October 2016 and the remainder open in 2017. 

5.6. In October 2015 Plots S5 and S6 received reserved matters approval (refs: 
15/00002/REM and 15/00003/REM respectively) for two commercial buildings 
collectively comprising approximately 94,000sqm of office (Use Class B1) and 
complementary retail (Use Classes A1-A5). Building S6 was completed and 
handed over to the commercial tenant, TfL, for occupation in August 2017. 
Building S5 was handed over to the commercial tenant, FCA, in March 2018. 

5.7. Building S4 received reserved matters approval in November 2017 (ref: 
16/00342/REM) for 74,848sqm GEA commercial floorspace and associated 
retail floorspace.  

5.8. In April 2017, building S9 received reserved matters approval (16/00671/REM) 
for a commercial building of maximum of 10 storeys (60m AOD) providing a total 
35,510sq metres of gross external area (GEA) floorspace.  

5.9. Opposite the site to the north east of Westfield Avenue is the Westfield Shopping 
Centre and to the south of this, the development site known as Cherry Park in 
Zone 1 where planning consent has been granted for 1,224 residential units and 
approximately 10,000sqm of (B1) business, (C1) hotel, and (D2) leisure 
floorspace within the combined sites known as Cherry Park and Angel Lane. To 
the north west of the site lies the currently vacant plots in Zone 2 (Plots S1 to 
S4), with outline planning approval for commercial development to be situated in 
a series of tall buildings.    

5.10. The site has excellent public transport connections with Stratford International 
Station, Stratford Regional Station and Stratford Underground Station 
conveniently located in close proximity to the site. There are numerous rail links 
available at these stations, including London Overground, Jubilee and Central 
Lines, as well as national rail services, all providing convenient and frequent 
services to Central London, Canary Wharf and Essex.  The site is in close 
proximity of Westfield Avenue which is served by London Bus routes.  The site 
has a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 6b, indicating its excellent 
proximity to public transport hubs. 

6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

Outline Planning Permission  

6.1. Outline Planning Permission was granted in February 2005 (reference 
P/03/0603) by the London Borough of Newham for comprehensive 
redevelopment of the rail lands site comprising: 

“Comprehensive mixed use development of rail lands site comprising B1 
offices, residential, retail development in the full range of A1, A2 and A3 
uses, commercial leisure uses, hotels and conference facilities, 
community, health and education facilities, open space, landscaping, 
water features, parking, transport interchanges, associated 
infrastructure and a town centre link.” 

Page 170



6.2. The above permission is subject to a series of planning conditions and Section 
106 Agreement. Eleven Parameter Plans were also approved, which together 
with the Development Specification, defined the parameters for the development 
and the basis for the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA). 

6.3. Outline planning permission was granted on 30th March 2012 (reference 
10/90641/EXTODA) to vary conditions under the outline consent, altering the 
quantum of development and parameters approved (Stratford City OPP). This 
application relates to Zone 2 in Stratford City. Concurrently, a separate 
application was submitted by London Continental Railways (LCR) and Lend 
Lease (subsequently approved in March 2012) to extend the life of the OPP by 
10 years. 

6.4. It is now the outline planning permission approved on 30 March 2012 (reference 
10/90641/EXTODA) and accompanying Section 106 Agreement (known as the 
Section 106 for the LCR and HS1) that governs the development within Zone 2. 

Zone 2 – International Quarter London (IQL)  

6.5. The ZMP for Zone 2 was approved on 28th March 2012 (reference 
11/90463/AODODA), and set out in more detail how Zone 2 would be developed. 

6.6. Application 11/90464/NMAODA sought agreement to the following non-material 
amendments to the OPP (ref.10/90641/EXTODA): 

· Parameter Plan 6 – Access and Circulation: A shortening of secondary road 
S2 and movement of secondary route S3 northwards so that it enters on to 
secondary route S1 to the north of its current location. This shortening only 
affected vehicles, with pedestrians still able to use the entire stretch; 

· Parameter Plan 7 – Development Heights: Increase in height of the north-
west portion of Plot P04 from +41m AOD to +60m AOD. Decrease in height 
of the south-east portion of Plot P04 from +60m AOD to +41m AOD. Increase 
in the southern part of Plot P03 from +50m AOD to +70m AOD; 

· Parameter Plan 11 – Composite Plan: Reflecting the above relevant changes; 
and  

· Revisions to Floorspace Schedule: Increase of complementary retail 
floorspace from 1,000sqm to 3,000sqm. 

6.7. An update to the ZMP was approved on 22 September 2015 (reference 
15/00005/AOD) with the following amendments: 

· The provision of a safeguarded break in Plot P04 and modifications to the 
boundaries of Plots P01 and P02;  

· Modifications to access and circulation arrangements (in terms of alignment 
of Secondary Road S2 access route between Plots P01 and P02);  

· Introduction of points of orientation and interest to help create interest and 
activity along key pedestrian routes and to assist with legibility and integration 
of IQL with its context; and  

· Modifications to the shape of Carpenter’s Square and International Square 
with no loss in area.  

Reserved Matters 

6.8. Buildings S7 & S8 - Reserved matters approval was granted in January 2014 
(ref: 13/00409/REM) for the residential component of IQL, where occupation 
commenced in October 2016. This comprised two buildings up to a maximum 
height of 30 storeys, providing 333 residential units, associated car parking and 

Page 171



landscaped open spaces. This also included the first open space area to secure 
reserved matters approval (known as Balcony Park). The landscaped open 
space is fully open to the public.  

6.9. Building S6 – Reserved matters approval for substructure works was granted in 
February 2015 (ref: 14/00483/REM) for Building S6 (commercial building) being 
details of the siting and engineering works, in-ground drainage services and 
utilities and associated substructure works. Later approval for the superstructure 
was granted under reference 15/00003/REM in October 2015 comprising the 
construction of a building up to a maximum of 12 storeys (+70m AOD approx.) 
to provide approximately 32,700sqm of office (Use Class B1), complementary 
retail (Use Classes A1-A5) and a crèche (Use Class D1) (consistent with Part 5, 
5.7, of the LCR and HS1 Section 106 Agreement for the Stratford City OPP dated 
30th March 2012 (as amended) being the provision of day care facilities of not 
less than 300sqm) with associated parking for cars, motorcycles and bicycles. 
Building S6 was completed and handed over to the commercial tenant, TfL, for 
occupation in August 2017.  

6.10. Building S5 – Reserved matters approval for substructure works was granted in 
February 2015 (ref.14/00482/REM) for Building S5 (commercial building) being 
details of the siting and engineering works, in-ground drainage services and 
utilities and associated substructure works. Later approval was granted for the 
superstructure under reference 15/00002/REM in October 2015 for a commercial 
building up to a maximum of 20 storeys (+107m AOD approx.) to provide 
62,120sqm floorspace, consisting of 61,233sqm of office floorspace (Class B1) 
and 887sqm of complementary retail (Class A1-A5). Building S5 was handed 
over to the commercial tenant, FCA, in March 2018. 

6.11. Building S4 – Building S4 (Commercial Building) received reserved matters 
approval in November 2017 (ref: 16/00342/REM) for 74,848sqm GEA 
commercial floorspace and 604sqm GEA of complementary retail floorspace. 
This permission has not yet been implemented and the applicant has informed 
the LPA that they do not expect to implement this permission. A new Reserved 
Matters Application has been submitted to the LPA for Building S4 and is 
currently pending consideration.  

6.12. Building S9 – Reserved matters approval for Building S9 (Commercial Building) 
was granted on 3rd April 2017 (ref: 16/00671/REM) being details of layout, scale, 
siting and access including engineering works for the below ground basement, 
in-ground drainage, services and utilities and associated substructure work for a 
commercial building of maximum 10 storeys (60m AOD) providing a total 
35,510sq metres of gross external area (GEA) floorspace. Building S9 is 
currently under construction and will be occupied by the British Council and 
Cancer Research UK in October 2019. 

Public Realm Reserved Matters Applications  

6.13. Balcony Park – The first open space area received reserved matters approval 
(ref: 15/00015/REM) in September 2015, comprising a Multi-Use Games Area 
(MUGA) and Local Equipped Area of Play (LEAP) and car parking associated 
with buildings S7 and S8 (approved under reference: 13/00409/REM as 
amended by 13/00324/NMA). Balcony Park is now open to the public. 

6.14. Endeavour Square – International Square, Olympic Promenade and Secondary 
Road S2 (part) (collectively known as Endeavour Square [formerly known as 
International Square]) received reserved matters approval (reference 
16/00523/REM) in July 2017. The Pavilion is to be located within the Endeavour 
Square red line boundary, albeit the detailed design of which is subject to this 

Page 172



separate and current Reserved Matters Approval (RMA) now being presented to 
members for their consideration. An application for non-material amendments 
(reference 18/00292/NMA) to the Endeavour Square RMA has been submitted 
concurrently with the Pavilion RMA to ensure both the Pavilion and the 
surrounding area of public realm would fully align; and is being reported here. 

6.15. Carpenter’s Square – Reserved maters approval (reference 16/00683/REM) 
was granted in July 2017 for Carpenter’s Square (part), secondary road S2 (part) 
and the landscape around Buildings S4 and S9 (collectively known as Redman 
Place, previously known as Carpenter’s Square). This has not yet been 
implemented. 

Endeavour Square Relevant Applications 

6.16. Planning permission (reference 18/00180/FUL) was granted 30th May 2018 for 
the temporary provision of a food and drink event space consisting of a shelter 
structure and outdoor seating to be used as a multi-purpose space. From May 
2018 until October 2018 (6 months) in Endeavour Square. Uses comprise a café 
(Use Class A3), Bar (Use Class A4), an event space (Use Class D2), 
indoor/outdoor workspace (Sui-generis) and two WC facilities. 

6.17. Other Relevant Planning Applications  

6.18. Full planning approval was granted (ref: 14/00481/FUL) for the temporary and 
phased diversion of the pedestrian route between Westfield Avenue and Bridge 
F10 through ‘The International Quarter’ Zone 2, known as ‘The Stitch’. The 
temporary ‘Stitch’ was relocated opposite John Lewis, however has now reverted 
to its permanent position, between Buildings S5 and S6 through to bridge F10. 

6.19. A bridge (Carpenter’s Land Bridge) is proposed to connect Zone 2 to Stratford 
Waterfront (now known as East Bank), PDZ 1 from the north west of IQL South. 
The application for the bridge will be submitted as part of the East Bank 
proposals.  

6.20. 15/00006/NMA application under Section 96a of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) to make non-material changes to the Stratford City 
Outline Planning Permission (ref: 10/90641/EXTODA) as follows: 

i. to relocate the Secondary Road S2 access as shown on Parameter Plans 
6 (‘Access to Circulation’) and 11 (‘Composite Drawing’) pursuant to 
Conditions D9 and D9A (‘Parameter Plans’); 

ii. to allow Buildings S5 and S6 to deviate from Parameter Plan 7 (‘Height 
Parameters’) pursuant to Conditions D9 and D9A (‘Parameter Plans’); 

iii. to allow the emerging proposals within IQL to exceed the community 
facilities floorspace (Class D1) permissible under the outline planning 
permission pursuant to Conditions D2 and D2A (‘Development 
Thresholds and Phasing’) consistent with the requirements of Part 5 of 
the accompanying Section 106 Agreement (in so far as it relates to the 
HS1 and LCR land dated 30 March 2012). 

6.21. This application was approved 22 September 2015. 

6.22. Zone 2 Site-Wide In-Ground Services and Utilities: Reserved matters approval 
was granted in February 2015 under application 14/00479/REM. An extension 
to the site-wide in-ground services and utilities relating to development within 
Zone 2 only was approved on 18 May 2016 under planning application ref: 
15/00582/REM. 

 

Page 173



Environmental Impact Assessment:  

6.23. The proposed development has been subject to a Screening Opinion requested 
on 11th May 2018 (Reference 18/00253/SCRES). The original Stratford City was 
subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment and the submitted Screening 
Report associated with this reserved matters application, describes that the 
proposals would not lead to any new or different significant environmental effects 
that were not previously assessed at the outline stage.  Therefore, in accordance 
with Part 3, section 8 (2) of The Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011, it was decided on 9th July 2018 that a 
further Environmental Impact Assessment is not required at this time. 

7. APPLICATION PROPOSAL 

7.1. The application seeks the approval of Reserved Matters pursuant to Conditions 
B1, B8 and B9 of the Stratford City Outline Planning Permission (SCOPP) 
(Reference: 10/90641/EXTODA) comprising details of layout, scale, 
appearance, access and landscaping of the International Quarter London (IQL) 
Pavilion, comprising a part two, part three storey building for complementary 
retail (Use Class A1-A5) with associated works. 

7.2. The wider overarching SCOPP and accompanying Section 106 Agreement (in 
so far as it relates to the HS1 and LCR Land) dated 30th March 2012 and 
subsequent Deed of Variations dated 22nd January 2014 and Modification 
Agreement dated 18th September 2015 set the requirement for, and general 
location of a Pavilion and visitor centre.  

7.3. The “Pavilion” is defined within Part 8 of the Stratford City Section 106 
Modification Agreement as  

“’Pavilion’ means the pavilion café to be provided in International Square, 
which shall include the Visitor Centre”. 

7.4. The S106 Modification Agreement also defines the “Visitor Centre”: 

“’Visitor Centre’ means an area of no less than 6 square metres to be 
provided in the Pavilion in accordance with paragraph 8.29”. 

7.5. Paragraph 8.29 in the S106 Modification Agreement states (inter alia): 

“8.29.1 Subject to paragraph 8.29.4, SCBD shall provide and maintain the 
Visitor Centre within the pavilion or a Retail Unit in Building S5 or 
Building S6. 

8.29.2 The Visitor Centre shall provide as part of a commercially operated 
café the following: 

(A) maps, brochures and event information relating to the Queen 
Elizabeth Park and Stratford City; and 

(B) facilities for dealing face to face queries from visitors, workers and 
residents about facilities and events at the Queen Elizabeth Park and 
Stratford City. 

And the LLDC shall assist SCBD in delivering and maintaining the 
facilities above by providing to SCBD relevant maps, brochures and 
event information for display and providing appropriate training for staff 
working in the Pavilion to deal with face to face queries about facilities 
and events at the Queen Elizabeth Park and Stratford City. 

Page 174



7.6. A Zonal Masterplan (ZMP) for Zone 2 was also approved in March 2012 
(reference: 11/90463/AODODA) and a subsequent Addendum on 22nd 
September 2015 (reference: 15/00005/AOD).  

7.7. The extract below, taken from the ZMP, shows the indicative location for a 
potential Pavilion within Endeavour Square (formerly known as International 
Square). 

Figure 3 – ZMP Plot Boundaries  

 

7.8. As such, the Reserved Matters Approval is submitted pursuant to Condition B1, 
B8, B9, B10, Q1 and Q4 of the Stratford City Outline Planning Permission (ref: 
10/90641/EXTODA) and seeks approval for the layout, scale, appearance, 
access and landscaping of the Pavilion. 

7.9. Details of the conditions is provided below: 

· Condition B1 relating to details of siting, design and external appearance of 
buildings, as well as means of access and landscaping; 

· Condition B8 relating to the form and content of Reserved Matters 
Applications (RMAs); and 

· Condition B9 relating to re-profiling of site and earthworks. 

7.10. The IQL Pavilion is proposed to be a two and partial three storey retail and 
commercial building with basement plant room and accessible roof. The scheme 
has a GIA of 1,343 sqm.  

7.11. The ground and first floors would be complementary retail use (Classes A1, A2 
and A3) incorporating a Visitor Centre at ground floor level. 

7.12. An accessible roof terrace is located on the second floor with a pop-up bar (Class 
A4) providing additional flexibility for use. 

7.13. Below is an indicative image of the proposed Pavilion. 

Page 175



Figure 4 – IQL Pavilion 

 

7.14. The applicant team have engaged in a comprehensive pre-application 
consultation process with the London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC) 
Planning Policy and Decision Team (PPDT), the LLDC’s Quality Review Panel 
(QRP), LLDC Design Officers and LLDC Accessibility Officers. 

7.15. The proposals were presented to the Quality Review Panel on two occasions, 
12th July 2017 and 8th February 2018. It was also presented to the Built 
Environment Access Panel on 8th June 2018. 

An application for non-material amendments (ref: 18/00292/NMA) made under 
Section 96A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) have 
been approved to the Endeavours Square RMA (ref; 16/00523/REM) consisting 
of alterations to the public realm. The amendments largely relate to the areas 
surrounding Building S5, as well as the Pavilion. Should reserved matters be 
approved for the Pavilion, the amendments will ensure the surrounding public 
realm is fully aligned. 

8. POLICIES & GUIDANCE 

8.1. National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 

8.2. The policies in the NPPF are material considerations in the determination of 
applications.  The NPPF recommends that as of April 2013, due weight should 
be given to relevant local plan policies according to their degree of consistency 
with the NPPF. The principle of sustainable development permeates the NPPF. 
The Framework makes clear that local authorities should be positive and 

Page 176



proactive in encouraging sustainable growth and addressing barriers to 
investment. 

8.3. The following NPPF policies are relevant to this planning application: 

Section 1 Building a Strong, Competitive Economy 

Section 2 Ensuring the vitality of town centres 

Section 4 Promoting sustainable transport  

Section 7 Requiring Good Designs 

Section 8 Promoting healthy communities 

Section 11 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

8.4. London Plan (2016)  

2.4  ‘The 2012 Games and Their Legacy’; 

2.9 ‘Inner London’; 

2.14  ‘Areas for Regeneration’; 

4.1  ‘Developing London’s Economy’; 

4.12  ‘Improving Opportunities for All’; 

5.2  ‘Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions’; 

5.3  ‘Sustainable Design and Construction’; 

5.12  ‘Flood Risk Management’; 

5.13  ‘Sustainable Drainage’; 

5.15  ‘Water Use and Supplies’; 

5.12  ‘Contaminated Land’; 

6.9 ‘Cycle parking’ 

7.4  ‘Local Character’; 

7.5  ‘Public Realm’; 

7.6  ‘Architecture’; 

8.5. The Draft London Plan (December 2017) 

The Mayor of London published for the purpose of public consultation a draft 
new London Plan on 29th November 2017. The policies in the draft new London 
Plan currently have only very limited material weight when making planning 
decisions. That weight will increase once the new Plan is submitted for its 
Examination in Public. This report may make reference to policies within the new 
London Plan where they are directly relevant to the assessment of the 
application proposal. However, the relevant development plan policies remain 
those within the current London Plan (March 2016) and the LLDC Local Plan 
(July 2015). 

8.6. London Legacy Development Corporation (LLDC) Local Plan (July 2015) 
(LLDCLP) 

Development management policies within the London Legacy Development 
Corporation Local Plan, relevant to the current application, are listed below: 

Policy SP.1  Building a strong and diverse economy 

Policy SP.3 Integrating the Built and Natural Environment 

Page 177



Policy B.1 Location and maintenance of employment uses 

Policy B.2 Thriving town, neighbourhood and local centres 

Policy B.5 Increasing local access to jobs, skills and employment training 

Policy BN.1 Responding to Place 

Policy BN.5 Requiring Inclusive Design 

Policy BN.7  Improving Local Open Space 

Policy BN.11  Reducing noise and improving air quality 

Policy BN.13 Improving the Quality of Land 

Policy T.2 Transport Improvements 

Policy T.4 Managing development and its transport impacts 

Policy T.5 Street Network 

Policy T.6 Facilitating local connectivity 

Policy T.8 Parking and parking standards for new development 

Policy T.9 Providing for pedestrians and cyclists 

Policy S.2 Energy in new development 

Policy S.3 Energy infrastructure and heat networks 

Policy S.4 Sustainable design and construction 

Policy S.5 Water supply and waste water disposal 

Policy S.6 Waste reduction 

Policy S.8 Flood risk and sustainable drainage measures 

Site Allocation SA3.1 Stratford Town Centre West 

9. CONSULTATION 

Pavilion – RMA (reference 18/00252/REM) 

9.1. Site notices were displayed around the application site on 30th May 2018 and an 
advertisement was published in the Newham Recorder newspaper on 30 May 
2018. No responses have been received.  

Representations from statutory and non-statutory consultees 

9.2. Details of those consulted and their responses are set out in the table below  

 

Consultee  Response  

London Borough of Newham 
Planning 

No comments received  

London Borough of Newham 
Transport 

No comments received 

London Borough of Newham 
Highways  

No comments received 

Page 178



London Borough of Newham 
Environmental Health  

No objection to the proposals  

Transport for London (TfL) 

The primary concern of TfL is around loading 
structures above the Dockland Light Railway 
(DLR) railway corridor, where there is a loading 
restriction on the tunnel below the proposed 
building and a ‘no build zone’ as well as 
requirements for emergency egress and access 
from the DLR access stair, and access for 
inspection and maintenance.  

Officers response: The applicant has had 
regular engagement with DLR from an early 
stage of design and have presented proposals 
for both building above the tunnel and 
maintaining access to the DLR emergency 
stairs. The applicant has agreed with DLR that 
an Approval in Principle will be issued following 
Stage 3 design release (end July) providing 
details of how the building design is compliant 
with the WLE loading restrictions and permanent 
building design remaining outside the ‘no build 
zone’ 

TfL commented that the walkway alongside the 
parapet to the rear of the proposed development 
would be more practical if the width was 
increased from 600mm – 800mm to 800mm – 
1000mm. 

Officer response: Minutes have been provided 
by the applicant of a meeting held on 15th May 
2018 between DLR and Lendlease that the 
access route will be 600mm. 

TfL suggested that the height of the foliage 
along the walkway to the rear of the proposal be 
reduced from 2m to allow better access 
alongside the parapet and not conceal the route 
from the DLR access stair towers nor the fire 
box on the side of the F10 bridge. A lower 
foliage height, would help to define the 
dimension requirements for a DLR access 
corridor, and this in particular will need to be 
discussed further and agreed. 

Officer response: The minutes provided by the 
applicant of a meeting held on 15th May 2018 
between DLR and the applicant confirm 
agreement that any planting would be reduced 
to ensure that the fire box is visible.  

TfL advised that DLR and / or emergency 
services may require access through both gates 
proposed to the rear of the Pavilion for ease of 
any vehicles or mechanical access and to avoid 

Page 179



reversing manoeuvres in close proximity to 
public spaces and bridge parapets.  

Officer response: The applicant has provided a 
Vehicle Access Tracking Plan, which the 
applicant has discussed with DLR. Vehicles will 
be able to access within 10m of the Woolwich 
Line Enclosure escape stairs with no through 
vehicle access. 

TfL welcomed the provision of 6 secure cycle 
parking spaces for member of staff. 

In summary, TfL have acknowledged the 
applicants response and confirm they are 
satisfied and require no further actions. 

Network Rail No comments received 

Crossrail 
Reviewed the application and do not wish to 
make any comments. 

Dockland Light Railway 
(DLR) 

No comments received 

Metropolitan Police No comments received 

Thames Water (TW) 

Waste Comments  

No objection to the proposals with regard to foul 
water sewage network infrastructure. 

Water Comments  

No objection to the proposals with regard to 
water network infrastructure capacity. TW 
recommend an informative advising the 
applicant that TW will aim to provide customers 
with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx. 
1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the 
point where it leaves TQ pipes. The developer 
should take this minimum pressure in to account 
in the design of the proposed development. 

Natural England 

The innovative work on the QEOP Biodiversity 
Action Plan should be extended beyond the 
boundaries of the Park wherever possible. We 
would welcome the incorporation of green or 
brown roofs and green walls wherever possible 
as this greatly increases the area of potential 
wildlife habitat. 

Officer response: The proposal includes green 
roofs which is assessed in the assessment 
section of this report. 

Page 180



London Fire and Emergency 
Planning Authority (LFEPA) 

Confirmed they are satisfied with the proposals 
subject to compliance with the Access 
Statement submitted in support of the 
application.  

LFEPA also recommended that sprinklers 
systems are installed. 

Officer response: Should planning permission be 
granted, it is recommended that this document 
be listed as an approved document which 
requires the development to be carried out in 
accordance with the Access Statement. 

An informative is recommended reminding the 
applicant to install sprinkler systems in line.  

Environment Agency (EA) 
Reviewed the application and have no 
comments or objections toward the proposals. 

Historic England  
Reviewed the application and do not wish to 
comment.  

Historic England (GLAAS) 
Reviewed the application and conclude that the 
proposals are unlikely to have a significant effect 
on heritage assets of archaeological interest. 

E20 Ltd No comments received 

Lee Valley Regional Park 
Authority (LVRPA) 

No comments received 

LLDC Development No comments received 

LLDC Park Operations and 
Venues  

No comments received 

LLDC Park Security  No comments received 

LLDC Safety Advisory Group 
(SAG) 

No comments received 

 

Internal Consultees  

PPDT’s Environmental Consultant (Arup) 

9.3. Confirmed that the proposals are in line with the Zone 2 Zonal Masterplan; and 
the conditions and ES commitments have been adhered to. 

9.4. Recommended a planning condition requiring details of hard and soft 
landscaping in relation to the proposed roof terrace. Details should include 
information demonstrating how the proposed extensive and intensive green roof 
respond to the biodiversity strategy and provide biodiversity improvements. Soft 
landscaping should include planting species, specification, densities, size for 
both the extensive and intensive green roofs and planting schedule.  

Page 181



9.5. Officer response: The suggested planning condition has been recommended 
should planning permission be granted. 

9.6. Environmental Consultants advised target wind conditions by all entrance should 
be ‘short term sitting’, however the submitted Environmental Compliance 
Statement detailed several entrance locations on the ground level and first floor 
terrace above this limit and therefore should be mitigated. Consultants also 
advised that wind mitigation would be needed on the southern proportion of the 
roof terrace to achieve improved conditions. As such, consultants have advised 
that a planning condition is imposed requiring the applicant to submit details of 
mitigation to improve the wind conditions for the entrance locations and southern 
proportion of the terrace, which exceed ‘short term sitting’ for the ground floor. 
Further wind tunnel testing should be carried out to verify the effectiveness of 
the proposed mitigation measures. 

9.7. Officer response: The suggested planning condition has been recommended 
should planning permission be granted. 

PPDT’s Transport Consultant (CH2M) 

9.8. Requested clarification regarding the cycle parking provision in relation to the 
proposed Pavilion given a slight disparity with the submitted Design 
Development Report. The applicant confirmed that 6 employee cycle parking 
spaces are proposed within the Pavilion, whilst 8 cycle parking spaces for visitors 
are provided within the public realm. This is compliant with the minimum 
standards set out in the S106. 

9.9. Transport consultants noted that the proposed lifts are to be designed in line with 
the Approved Documents K and M of the Building Regulations including the 
minimum size requirements in these regulations. However, consultants 
recommended by way of best practice, that this should also take note of relevant 
guidance in LLDC’s Inclusive Design Guidance 2013 (IDS 39), in order to provide 
sufficient capacity for internal pedestrian flow. An inclusive design statement has 
been submitted in support of the application which confirms compliance with said 
guidance. 

9.10. Consultants confirmed that the vehicle access via Westfield Avenue is 
acceptable and in line with the principles established in the RMA for Endeavour 
Square (reference 16/00523/REM). 

  

Page 182



LLDC Quality Review Panel (QRP) 
 

9.11. The Pavilion has been presented to the LLDC QRP on two occasions. The table 
below provides a summary of their comments. 

 

 

 

Page 183



Applicant’s Response to QRP 

9.12. With regard to the southern side of the building, the direction of the southern stair 
has been reversed, and would provide clearer circulation to the roof terrace, no 
longer obstructing the ground floor retail façade providing greater transparency 
and active frontage.  

9.13. The west façade has been re-aligned by repositioning storage requirements 
within the building. The planters adjacent to the railway parapet have been 
coordinated with the building outline to ensure that a minimum walkway width of 
3 metres would be achieved. 

9.14. The architects have done a number of studies looking at re-locating the service 
core, however site constraints, particularly the railway tunnel below has made 
alternative options extremely limited. 

9.15. The location of the lifts has been altered to maximise their visibility from the main 
pedestrian routes crossing Endeavour Square in response to QRP comments. 
Strong tonal contrasting graphics have also been incorporated to enhance their 
visibility.  

9.16. Officer response: A planning condition is recommended requiring the applicant 
to submit a signage strategy for approval by the LPA. 

9.17. The applicant has engaged with LLDC Inclusive Design Officers and presented 
the scheme to the Built Environment Access Panel (BEAP). All areas are 
considered to be accessible to all visitors. Specifically ramps at 1:21 have been 
introduced on the roof terrace and the level changes at first floor level have been 
omitted. The mobility scooters would be located outside the Visitor Centre in a 
convenient position from the taxi drop-off. 

10. ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

Principle of Development 

10.1. The LLDC Local Plan includes site allocation SA3.1 ‘Stratford Town Centre 
West’, which highlights IQL South as a development parcel, with expectations of 
active frontages onto Olympic Promenade and identification of this route as a 
key connection. The site is identified for office and residential use with localised 
retail at ground floor. Key local connections for enhancement are also identified. 

10.2. Stratford City is an area that benefits from Outline Planning Consent for 
extensive redevelopment as part of the wider regeneration aspirations for the 
area. The parameters of the development that can be carried out in Zone 2 have 
also been described in the approved Zone 2 Zonal Masterplan (ZMP) and 
strategies submitted in accordance with conditions on the outline consent. 

10.3. The ZMP for Zone 2 identifies an indicative location for a Pavilion within 
Endeavour Square (Figure 3). The S106 attached to the Stratford City Outline 
Planning Permission also secures the delivery of a Pavilion within Endeavour 
Square (formerly known as International Square) as defined below: 

 “’Pavilion’ means the pavilion café to be provided in International 
Square, which shall include the Visitor Centre”. 

10.4. The Outline Planning Permission and S106 have therefore established the 
principle of a Pavilion within Endeavour Square. 

Page 184



10.5. Condition C1 of the Outline Consent (10/90641/EXTODA) states that prior to the 
approval of any Zonal Masterplan or Reserved Matters application, details of the 
Site Wide Strategies for sustainable design, estate management, construction 
method, air quality and housing shall be approved by the LPA. 

10.6. The Site Wide Strategies for Zone 2 have been approved; therefore this 

application for Reserved Matters Approval can be assessed in accordance with 

the parameters set out in the Outline Consent, Zonal Masterplan and other policy 

and material considerations acknowledged through that consent. 

Overall Conformity with Parameter Plans, Outline Consent and Zonal 
Masterplan 

10.7. Condition A4 of the Outline Consent requires all RMAs submitted in respect of 

each Zone to be in accordance with the Zonal Masterplan (ZMP) approved for 

that Zone. In accordance with the requirements of this condition, a ZMP 

Conformity Report has been submitted in support of the application explaining 

how the application conforms to the approved parameters for Zone 2. A summary 

of the application proposals and conformity with these parameters is provided 

below, with more detail on the proposed development form and design provided 

in the wider assessment at paragraph 10.30 onwards. 

Siting of the Building 

10.8. Parameter Plan 4 (Appendix 6) defines the Development Zones within limits of 

deviation for the Stratford City Site. The Zonal Masterplan (ZMP) ‘Plot 

Boundaries’ (Appendix 8) defines the indicative location for the ‘potential 

Pavilion’ to be provided within Endeavour Square. The proposed siting of the 

Pavilion is situated within the general area of the indicative location defined by 

the ZMP for Zone 2 and is therefore compliant with this parameter.  

Design and Use of the Building 

10.9. Condition D2 of the Outline Consent sets out the total quantum of built floorspace 

and land use distribution for the Stratford site in its entirety. 

10.10. Condition D2 acknowledges that all figures are given in gross external area and 

exclude roof top plant, basement plant and car parking areas within buildings. 

Part (h) of Condition D2 also states: 

“Apart for figures for community facilities and health facilities, the 
distribution within Zones is subject to a tolerance of + or – 2,000sqm”. 

10.11. Under the provision of part (h) of Condition D2, 2,000sqm of Commercial 

Floorspace (Class B1) has been transferred to Complementary Retail (Class A1-

A3). The conversion of floorspace was agreed by way of letter on 20th March 

2018 (Appendix 9) and condition D2 updated. 

10.12. The table below details the allocation for Zone 2 (International Quarter London 

South). 

Page 185



 

10.13. The approved floorspace for the IQL development relevant to this RMA is set out 

in the table below. 

 

10.14. Whilst Building S4 benefits from RMA approval (reference 16/00339/REM and 

16/00342/REM), it has not been implemented. Stratford City Business District 

(SCBD) are also progressing a new RMA for Building S4 pursuant to the 

Stratford City Outline Planning Permission (SC OPP), which has been submitted 

and is pending consideration. 

10.15. The proposed Pavilion comprises a total of 1,343sqm (GEA) of floorspace 

comprising complementary retails uses at ground and first floor levels, as well 

as a Visitor Centre with a floorspace of 25sqm (GEA). 

Page 186



10.16. The following table provides a breakdown of the overall limits of development 

floorspace permitted under condition D2 and areas relevant to the Pavilion.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.17. As demonstrated by the table, the proposed quantum of floorspace associated 

with the Pavilion is compliant with the total quantum of complementary retail 

floorspace for Zone 2. 

10.18. The Visitor Centre is required by Part 8 of the S106 Modification Agreement 

attached to the SC OPP and is defined in the S106 as: ‘“Visitor Centre” means 

an area of no less than 6 square metres to be provided in the Pavilion”. The 

proposed floorspace of the Visitor Centre generously exceeds the requirements 

of the S106 by 19sqm.  

Development Heights 

10.19. Parameter Plan 7 ‘Development Heights’ (Appendix 10) and ZMP Drawing 

‘Maximum Building Heights’ (Appendix 7) defines the maximum height and 

building envelopes for the area in which the proposed Pavilion would sit.  

10.20. The maximum permitted height for the Pavilion sits between +41m AOD and 

+60m AOD. The Pavilion would have a maximum height of +28.94m to the top 

of the lift overrun and therefore sits well within the permitted thresholds. 

Levels, Services and Earthworks 

10.21. Parameter Plan 3 ‘Stratford City Land Profiles’ (drawing no. S-98-003 Rev D) 

sets the ground levels for the development across the site. This confirms a site 

level of 13.5m AOD and makes provision for deviation of ground levels of +/- 5m 

from the levels shown. The proposed finish level for the building is +15m AOD 

and is therefore compliant with the parameter.   

Environmental Compliance 

Sunlight and Daylight  

10.22. Conditions V1 and V2 of the SC OPP require any RMA to demonstrate that the 

development has been designed to accord with the BRE Practice Guidance ‘Site 

Layout Planning for Sunlight and Daylight: A Guide to Good Practice’ and the 

guidance in BS8206: Part II and the Applications Manual: Day Lighting and 

Window Design – Lighting Guide LG10 (1999). 

10.23. A Daylight and Sunlight Assessment has been provided in support of the 

application to describe the effects of the proposed development on the 

Page 187



surrounding buildings; effects of the proposed development on future users and 

compliance with conditions V1 and V2 of the SC OPP. 

10.24. The assessment establishes whether the proposed development subtends more 

than 25° at the lowest window of neighbouring properties, S5 and S9. The report 

concludes that due to the proposed building height, the Pavilion would not be 

within 25 degrees of the site lines of the lowest windows of adjacent buildings 

and therefore is unlikely to have an adverse effect on sunlight availability. 

10.25. PPDT Environmental Consultants have reviewed the submitted document and 

consider the development to be acceptable with conditions V1 and V2 of the SC 

OPP. 

Wind 

10.26. Conditions V3 and V4 of the SC OPP require demonstration that all buildings 

and outdoor spaces are subject to wind tunnel testing to ensure that all outdoor 

spaces would have a comfortable wind environment for occupiers and users of 

the area. 

10.27. FD Global have undertaken a wind assessment for the RMA in the context of the 

ZMP Environmental Compliance Statement. The study submitted in support of 

the application has provided an assessment of the wind environment at key 

pedestrian locations in and around the site, in terms of pedestrian comfort and 

safety. The study concludes that with the introduction of wind mitigation 

measures within the context of future surrounds, wind conditions in and around 

the proposed development are rates as suitable in terms of pedestrian safety 

and comfort, for their intended use.  

10.28. However, PPDT Environmental Consultants advised target wind conditions by 

all entrance should be ‘short term sitting’, however the submitted Environmental 

Compliance Statement detailed several entrance locations on the ground level 

and first floor terrace above this limit and therefore should be mitigated. 

Consultants also advised that wind mitigation would be needed on the southern 

proportion of the roof terrace to achieve improved conditions. As such, a planning 

condition is recommended requiring the applicant to submit details of mitigation 

to improve the wind conditions for the entrance locations and southern proportion 

of the terrace. The condition also requires further wind tunnel testing should be 

carried out to verify the effectiveness of the proposed mitigation measures. 

10.29. Overall, the proposals are in generally conformity with the development structure 

set out in conditions and parameter plans for Zone 2, as well as the ZMP. The 

detail of the submission and accordance with the Outline Consent is assessed 

in more detail below.  

Design  

Form, Massing and Height 

10.30. ‘Building in the round’ is the main concept of the Pavilion’s building form, 

ensuring access is provided on all sides of the building to create a sense of public 

engagement for people approaching the Olympic Park. QRP support this 

concept.  

Page 188



10.31. The Pavilion is not orthogonal which enables the development to frame and 

address three urban spaces known as Redman Place, Endeavour Square and 

the area to the south of Endeavour Square. 

10.32. The massing of the structure has been designed to hold and anchor Endeavour 

Square, extending the public realm into the building via the Pavilion’s 

amphitheatre.  

10.33. During the pre-application discussion process LLDC Design officers raised 

reservations over the overall quantum of development being proposed by this 

scheme, however acknowledge that the proposed quantum’s fall within the 

allowances of the applicant’s ZMP permission. On balance, design officers are 

accepting of the proposed scale of the scheme as the applicant has 

demonstrated a clear strategy for how they intend to fill the building and how it 

would sit within the context of their overall commercial strategy for the 

masterplan. The form and massing of the Pavilion was supported by QRP; 

however they highlighted the importance of careful detailing and use of high 

quality materials, which is assessed in more detail below. 

10.34. During the pre-application process, LLDC Design officers also had reservations 

regarding the form of the roof popup elements (bar, toilets and lifts) and how they 

would appear on approaching the building. However, Design officers consider 

the submitted proposal to have made improvements to the form of these 

elements, with incorporation of a brown roof finish and more flowing integration 

into the overall roof-scape proposal. Design officers also recommended close 

attention should remain on the development of these forms as the proposal is 

worked through in technical detail to ensure they don’t become ungainly. A 

planning condition is recommended securing the submission of a planting 

strategy to be submitted for approval by the local planning authority. The Section 

106 Agreement associated with the SC OPP also requires the architects to be 

retained, which will ensure continuity through the detailed design stage. 

Uses, Layout and Access 

10.35. The Pavilion’s design would encourage access from all sides to promote public 

engagement, which has been the driving concept for the building’s form with 

external stairs encouraging movement up to the building’s roof from all 

approaches. The main access point to the first level and the roof level would be 

via the lifts located in the north-east corner. 

10.36. With regard to the external stairs, this is considered to be successful in ensuring 

the building is engaging and dynamic from all angles, however it has created a 

challenge in providing a fully inclusive design given the separation between the 

lifts and stairs. This has been discussed extensively during the pre-application 

process and has triggered alterations to the scheme.  

10.37. QRP questioned whether the prominence of the lifts could be improved. The 

architects presented a number of studies looking at re-locating the service core. 

However due to site constraints, in particular the Woolwich Line Enclosure, 

alternative options were extremely limited. In order to improve the prominence, 

strong tonal contrasting colour graphics are proposed to further enhance the 

Page 189



visibility and to identify the vertical core (visualisations provided in the 

appendices).   

10.38. Design Officers accept the final proposed design, however encourage the 

applicant to give careful consideration as to how clear wayfinding and visual 

presence of the lift could be enhanced during detailed design to ensure the 

experience of those with accessibility needs are enhanced. A planning condition 

is recommended requiring these details to be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority for approval. 

10.39. The Visitor Centre, which would be located in the north-east corner, would be 

close to the taxi drop-off point and is considered to be in a visible position when 

approaching from Westfield Avenue. However, LLDC Design officers 

recommend that the visibility of the Visitor Centre needs to be protected and 

enhanced through detailed design, with consideration given to the signage 

strategy and placement of tables, chairs and parasols to ensure the entrance is 

clearly visible on approach from The Stitch and access is not hindered by seating 

in front of the entrance. Planning conditions are recommended securing a 

signage strategy and an Estate Management Plan detailing the arrangement of 

street furniture associated with the Pavilion. 

Architectural Expression, Materials and Quality 

10.40. The Pavilion is to consist of a timber structural design, with the architectural 

intent to ensure the timber remains exposed in order to create a Pavilion which 

differentiates itself from the surrounding concrete/glazed office buildings. The 

main structural elements would be 2-way spanning CLT panels and a Glulam 

structure, with shallow concrete foundations to support the building over the 

sensitive loading F10 Bridge structure.    

10.41. The proposed design is considered to be striking and ambitious and would create 

a presence in Endeavour Square. The choice of timber for the predominant 

material is welcomed by both officers and QRP as a countenance to the 

neighbouring office buildings. Design officers envisage the ambitious glulam 

structure, if detailed with care, to feel quite unique and iconic without being 

overbearing. Design Officers have requested further detail on areas of opaque 

panels on the elevations as the design develops, to ensure a quality finish. A 

planning condition is recommended securing the submission of these details for 

approval by the Local Planning Authority.  

10.42. QRP recommended further consideration regarding the southern side of the 

Pavilion, as approached from the Aquatics Centre and Bridge F10. In response, 

the direction of the southern stair has been reversed providing clearer circulation 

to the roof terrace and it would no longer obstruct the ground floor retail façade 

allowing greater transparency and active frontage. The revisions were presented 

to the panel and they confirmed the elevation was better resolved. 

10.43. QRP and LLDC Design officers have advised that the success of the scheme 

will come down to meticulous detailing given the many complex interfaces 

including, the integration of the balustrade and security gates; how the structure 

meets the ground and how different types of timber on the building sit together 

as an overall composition; how the timber is detailed to cope with weathering; 

Page 190



and how the glazing meets the undulating timber soffit. Both PPDT officers and 

Design officers consider it acceptable for these details to be secured by way of 

planning condition.  

Landscape - Roof Terrace  

10.44. The roof terrace area proposes a bar facility which would provide the opportunity 

for space to host pop-up events and activation. The roof terrace has been 

designed to respond to key views by incorporating three lower viewing terraces, 

which would allow views to Redman Place, Endeavour Square, the Aquatics 

Centre, and across the wider Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. Slopes at a 1:21 

gradient have been incorporated in the south and east for inclusivity. The roof 

would incorporate extensive and intensive green roofs to maximise biodiversity.  

10.45. Planning and Design Officers are satisfied with the overall arrangement of the 

roof terrace and consider the level changes to be integrated successfully. A 

planning condition is recommended securing the submission of a planting 

strategy for the roof area. Design Officers recommend that the applicant consider 

variety and seasonality when developing these proposals, to create a more 

intimate ‘garden-like’ atmosphere. 

10.46. QRP recommended careful consideration towards the quality of the environment 

of the route between the Pavilion and the railway parapet. In response, the west 

façade has been re-aligned by re-positioning storage requirements with the 

building. The planters adjacent to the railway parapet have been coordinated 

with the building outline to ensure that a minimum walkway width of 3 metres 

would be achieved.  

Transport  

Vehicle access 

10.47. The proposed development does not incorporate any car parking area and there 

is no proposed means of vehicle access into the Pavilion. 

10.48. There would be vehicle taxi-off points to the north of the Pavilion in the taxi drop-

off area, which was approved under the Endeavours Square RMA (ref: 

16/00523/REM). This area is within close proximity of the Pavilion, which would 

allow disabled people, employee and visitor drop-off.  

Car Parking  

10.49. Condition T2 of the Outline Planning Permission sets the maximum standards 

for car parking provision across the Stratford City development. For 

complementary retail it confirms there are to be no parking spaces within Zone 

2. As such, in accordance with this requirement, the Pavilion does not provide 

any car parking.   

Cycle Parking  

10.50. London Plan policy 6.9 requires developments to provide secure, integrated, 

convenient and accessible cycle parking facilities in line with the minimum 

standards sets. 

Page 191



10.51. Based on the total complementary retail floorspace proposed, a total of 6 

employee cycle parking spaces and 8 visitor cycle parking spaces are required 

as set out within the Section 106 Agreement (Part 2) Modification Agreement.  

10.52. The RMA proposals comprise 6 cycle parking spaces within the ground floor for 

employees, whilst a further 8 are integrated into the public realm, thus meeting 

the cycle parking standards set out in the S106 Agreement (and subsequent 

modifications). PPDT Transport Consultants and TfL have confirmed the 

proposed provision is acceptable. 

Mobility Scooters 

10.53. As part of the services offered at the Visitor Centre, provision has been made for 

the charging and storing of 6 mobility scooters. In response to QRP’s comments, 

the mobility scooters are to be outside on display during the operating hours of 

the Visitor Centre to help advertise their availability. Outside these hours, the 

mobility scooters would be stored inside the Visitor Centre.  

Servicing and Delivery  

10.54. Service access to the Pavilion would be directly from Westfield Avenue via 

Secondary Road S2 (situated between Building S5 and Plot S4). The majority of 

service rooms, plant and refuse store have been positioned to the north façade 

at ground floor level, adjacent to the taxi drop off and service route. A goods lift 

is included for deliveries to be received to the first and second floors. Deliveries 

for the ground level retail units would be through the back of house (BOH) 

corridor connecting directly to tenant’s BOH/kitchen area.  

10.55. The proposed servicing arrangements and access are consistent with the 

servicing arrangements proposed for Building S9, extending Secondary Road 

S2, running between Buildings S4 and S5. 

11. HUMAN RIGHTS & EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1. Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 
as they relate to the application and the conflicting interests of the Applicants 
and any third party opposing the application in reaching their decisions. The 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. In particular, 
Article 6 (1), of the European Convention on Human Rights in relation civil rights 
and a fair hearing; Article 8 of the ECHR in relation to the right to respect for 
private and family life and Article 1 Protocol 1 of the ECHR in relation to the 
protection of property have all been taken into account 

11.2. In addition, the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in 
respect of certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and 
sexual orientation. It places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to 
have due regard to the advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers 
including planning powers. Officers have taken this into account in the 
assessment of the application and Members must be mindful of this duty inter 
alia when determining all planning applications. In particular Members must pay 
due regard to the need to: 

Page 192



· Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

· Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 

· Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

11.3. Officers are satisfied that the application material and Officers’ assessment has 
taken into account these issues. 

12. CONCLUSION 

12.1. Overall, the proposals are in conformity with the Outline Consent, Section 106 

Agreement and Zonal Masterplan for Zone 2. The proposed development is 

considered to represent high quality architecture that would positively respond 

to Endeavour Square which is supported by QRP, meeting the requirements of 

Local Plan Policies BN.1 ‘Responding to place’. No objections to the scheme 

have been received. 

12.2. It is therefore recommended that the submitted Reserved Matters application be 

granted, subject to conditions set out below. 

12.3. The Committee is invited to APPROVE the application as follows: 

12.4. FULL DISCHARGE of conditions B1, B8 and B9 attached to the Outline Consent 

in relation to reserved matters comprising details of layout, scale, appearance, 

access and landscaping of the IQL Pavilion, comprising a part two, part three 

storey building for complementary retail (Use Classes A1-A5) with associated 

works.  

 

Conditions  

Time limit  

1. The development shall be commenced before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 

 

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 

Works in accordance with approved details 

2. The development, including demolition and construction, shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following details and plan numbers: 

· (Document titles and drawing references to be inserted ahead of issuing the 
decision notice) 

and the description of development contained in the application and any other 
plans, drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been 
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions. 

 

Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained. 

Page 193



Estate Management Plan 

3. The development hereby approved shall not be used or open to the public prior 
to the submission and approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority of a 
site specific Estate Management Plan for the public realm. The plan shall be in 
accordance with the approved Site Wide Estate Management Strategy. 

The site specific Estate Management Plan shall include as a minimum the 
following details: 

· Details of the roles and responsibilities to be held by an Estate 
Management Company for the site, and the location of the Estate 
Management Company office; 

· Details of loose tables, chairs, parasols and mobility scooters 
accommodated adjacent to the Pavilion and spill out areas;  

· Details of maintenance and management for planting, including a 
programme of works to be undertaken as part of identified roles (in 
accordance with the above requirement). 

The details approved in the submitted Estate Management Plan shall be put in 
place as part of the operation of the site, prior to use/opening of the open space 
hereby approved; and thereafter the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with such approval. 

 

Reason: In order to ensure that the outside spaces on the site and the new public 
realm is maintained and managed appropriately. 

Detailed Drawings  

4. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until the following 
detailed drawings shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

Detailed drawings including sections (at 1:50 / 1:20) of:  

· Bay study of glazing system including incorporation of features to assist 
solar shading;  

· Principal features on all facades (including the opaque facades); 

· Layout of plant;  

· Security gates to the rear of the Pavilion; 

· Green roofs and green screens (walls); and 

· Parapets / roof edges; 

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with any 
such approval given.  

 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: In order to ensure that a high 
quality of design and detailing. 

 

 

 

 

Page 194



Materials  

5. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until, the final proposal 
for  materials to be used on the building have  been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Submissions shall include detailed 
drawings at a scale to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, alongside 
materials as required under condition B10 of the Outline Planning Permission 
(ref: 10/90641/EXTODA).  

 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: In order to ensure that a high 
quality of design and detailing. 

Construction Management  

6. The development hereby permitted shall not commence (other than preparatory 
works) until a Construction Method and Management Statement (CMMS) 
Review has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in 
writing . The review shall refer to the approved CMMS for Zone 2 and incorporate 
any required revisions and / or additional mitigation as necessary, specifically as 
a result of new development approved surrounding the site.  

 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: In order to minimise disruption 
and disturbance. 

7. Landscaping and Cycle Parking    

· Provision for external cycle parking associated with this development 
(approved under application 15/00252/REM) shall be made available for use 
prior to first occupation of the development;  

· Prior to first opening/use of the development hereby permitted details of 
landscaping to the roof terrace areas, including planting and furniture, shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
shall include, as a minimum, the wind mitigation measures described in the 
submitted Environmental Compliance Report. The landscaping shall be put 
in place prior to first occupation/use of the building and retained / maintained 
thereafter.  

 

Reason: In order to ensure that a high quality of design and public realm. 

Use Class A3 - Food  

8. H02 Grease Trap (A3 & Food Factories)  

The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied/used until full 
details of the grease trap or grease digester system to be installed for the 
commercial kitchen have  been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Details shall include plan and sectional drawings with 
measured drain sizes and invert levels, full manufacturers specifications etc. The 
approved scheme shall be completed prior to first occupation/use of the 
restaurant and shall be permanently maintained thereafter.  

Reasons: To protect the amenity of future occupants and/or neighbours. 

Signage Strategy  

9. The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied/used until a 
signage strategy for the Pavilion has been submitted to and approved in writing 

Page 195



by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall detail the signage associated 
with the complementary retail uses, the Visitor Centre and the lift core. 

 

Reason: To ensure high quality wayfinding. 

Wind Mitigation  

10. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of wind 
mitigation to improve the wind conditions for the areas detailed below have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;  

· entrance locations with measured exceedances above ‘short term sitting’; 

· southern portion of the roof terrace; 

Further wind tunnel testing should be carried out to verify the effectiveness of the 
mitigation proposed.  

 

Reason and pre-commencement justification: To ensure a comfortable level of 
amenity for visitors of the development and in the interest of visual amenity. 

Informatives  

Thames Water 

1. Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m 
head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves 
Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum 
pressure in the design of the proposed development. 

2. The applicant is advised that the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 
(LFEPA) recommend that fire brigade access and water supplies for fire fighting 
purposes to the proposed development is compliant with Building Regulations 
Approved Document B B5.   The LFEPA also recommend that sprinklers are 
considered for new developments and major alterations to existing premises.   

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Site Location 
Appendix 2 – Basement GA 
Appendix 3 – Ground Floor GA 
Appendix 4 – First Floor GA  
Appendix 5 – Roof Level GA 
Appendix 6 – Parameter Plan 4 
Appendix 7 – Zonal Masterplan Maximum Building Heights 
Appendix 8 – Zonal Materplan Plot Boundaries – To follow 
Appendix 9 – Condition D2 Floorspace Letter  
Appendix 10 – Parameter Plan 7 Development Heights 
Appendix 11 – QRP reports 
Appendix 12 – Visualisations  
 

Page 196



S5

S7

S9

AQUATIC CENTRE

CAR PARK

JOHN LEWIS

WESTFIELD

CED

F10 BRIDGE

S6

OLYMPIC STADIUM

ENDEAVOUR
SQUARE

REDMAN
PLACE

PROPOSED

PAVILION

project

drawing title

brought to you by

76 Tabernacle Street, London, EC2A 4EA. United Kingdom

Tel +44 20 7251 5122

M: mail@acme.ac  W: www.acme.ac

notes Dimensions govern.

All dimensions are in millimeters unless noted otherwise.

All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding.

All discrepancies to be notified in writing to ACME.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant 

architectural and engineers information.

All rights reserved. Copyright ACME Ltd.

Area measurements must not be taken to represent
contractual documentation.

UK Projects only:

This drawing may contain data under lease from

Ordnance Survey.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes

crown copyright.

Planning

masterplan

S5

S6

S7 S8

S11

S10
S9

S1 S2 S3

Pav

S4

key plan

purpose of issue

drawing number

drawing date

Revision

rev description by chk date

project number 183

IQL PAVILION

scale

N

P00

P00 Planning BY/SBH FL

1:2500 @ A3

04/05/2018

04.05.2018

1:1250 @ A1

legends

Existing / under construction

Red line application boundary

ZMP Zone 2 boundary

IQL boundary line

Site Location Plan

Subject of this RMA is building works shown within

boundary line on this drawing and all surrounding public

realm and landscaping works are subject of separate

RMA for Endeavour Square.

P
a
g

e
 1

9
7



P
a
g
e

 1
9
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



IRRIGATION

+11.30
WATER FEATURE PLANT

LANDLORD PLANT

IRRIGATION

+11.30
WATER FEATURE PLANT

LANDLORD PLANT

WOOLWICH LINE ENCLOSURE

+5.20

DLR TRACK

+5.20

DLR TRACK

project

drawing title

brought to you by

76 Tabernacle Street, London, EC2A 4EA. United Kingdom

Tel +44 20 7251 5122

M: mail@acme.ac  W: www.acme.ac

notes Dimensions govern.

All dimensions are in millimeters unless noted otherwise.

All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding.

All discrepancies to be notified in writing to ACME.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant 

architectural and engineers information.

All rights reserved. Copyright ACME Ltd.

Area measurements must not be taken to represent
contractual documentation.

UK Projects only:

This drawing may contain data under lease from

Ordnance Survey.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes

crown copyright.

Planning

masterplan

S5

S6

S7 S8

S11

S10
S9

S1 S2 S3

Pav

S4

key plan

purpose of issue

drawing number

drawing date

Revision

rev description by chk date

project number 183

IQL PAVILION

scale

N

Basement Level Plan

1:200 @ A3 1:100 @ A1

04/05/2018

P00

P00 Planning BY/SBH FL 04.05.2018

legends

Existing underground utilities

Woolwich Line Enclosure exclusion zone

222

01

221

01

P
a
g

e
 1

9
9



P
a
g
e

 2
0
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



HISTORY TREE

PUBLIC ART

GAS

LIFT LOBBY

SECURITY GATE

BASEMENT OUTLINE

+15.10

STORAGE

SECURITY GATE

+15.10

CAFE

F&B UNIT 1

VISITOR
CENTER

MOBILITY

SCOOTERS

(6)

MOBILITY

SCOOTERS

DISPLAY

(3)

DISTRICT HEATING & COOLING

PLANT ROOM

UKPN

SUBSTATION

ACCESSIBLE

TOILET

REFUSE STORE

CYCLE

STORE

(5)

COMMS

CLEANER'S

CUPBOARD BOH CORRIDOR

LV SWITCH ROOM

LIF
T

P
A
S
S
E
N

G
E
R

G
O

O
D

S

LIF
T

DLR MAINTENACE ZONE

600 - 800 mm

FINAL DIMENSION TO BE

AGREED WITH DLR

A

C

F

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

A

D

9

8

7

6

5

D

E

F

5

4

3

2

1

B

+5.20

DLR TRACK

DLR

ACCESS

STAIR

DLR

ACCESS

STAIR

project

drawing title

brought to you by

76 Tabernacle Street, London, EC2A 4EA. United Kingdom

Tel +44 20 7251 5122

M: mail@acme.ac  W: www.acme.ac

notes Dimensions govern.

All dimensions are in millimeters unless noted otherwise.

All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding.

All discrepancies to be notified in writing to ACME.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant 

architectural and engineers information.

All rights reserved. Copyright ACME Ltd.

Area measurements must not be taken to represent
contractual documentation.

UK Projects only:

This drawing may contain data under lease from

Ordnance Survey.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes

crown copyright.

Planning

masterplan

S5

S6

S7 S8

S11

S10
S9

S1 S2 S3

Pav

S4

key plan

purpose of issue

drawing number

drawing date

Revision

rev description by chk date

project number 183

IQL PAVILION

scale

04/05/2018

N

Ground Level Plan

P00

P00 Planning BY/SBH FL 04.05.2018

Subject of this RMA is building works shown within

boundary line on this drawing and all surrounding public

realm and landscaping works are subject of separate

RMA for Endeavour Square

ENDEAVOUR SQAURE

222

01

221

01
1:200 @ A3 1:100 @ A1

legends

Red line application boundary

P
a
g

e
 2

0
1



P
a
g
e

 2
0
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



+19.90

+19.90

+17.98 TERRACE

+19.90

LIF
T

P
A
S
S
E
N

G
E
R

G
O

O
D

S

LIF
T

+17.98

+19.90

F&B UNIT 2

BOH CORRIDOR

REFUGE

REFUGE

A

C

F

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

A

D

9

8

7

6

5

D

E

F

5

4

3

2

1

B

project

drawing title

brought to you by

76 Tabernacle Street, London, EC2A 4EA. United Kingdom

Tel +44 20 7251 5122

M: mail@acme.ac  W: www.acme.ac

notes Dimensions govern.

All dimensions are in millimeters unless noted otherwise.

All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding.

All discrepancies to be notified in writing to ACME.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant 

architectural and engineers information.

All rights reserved. Copyright ACME Ltd.

Area measurements must not be taken to represent
contractual documentation.

UK Projects only:

This drawing may contain data under lease from

Ordnance Survey.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes

crown copyright.

Planning

masterplan

S5

S6

S7 S8

S11

S10
S9

S1 S2 S3

Pav

S4

key plan

purpose of issue

drawing number

drawing date

Revision

rev description by chk date

project number 183

IQL PAVILION

scale

N

First Level Plan

04/05/2018

P00

P00 Planning BY/SBH FL 04.05.2018

1:200 @ A3 1:100 @ A1

222

01

221

01

P
a
g

e
 2

0
3



P
a
g
e

 2
0
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



KITCHEN EXTRACT

M-08

(FF)

KITCHEN EXTRACT

M-07

(GF)

+24.82

ROOF TERRACE

LIF
T

P
A
S
S
E
N

G
E
R

G
O

O
D

S

LIF
T

+26.32

+26.32

FEMALE WC

ACCESSIBLE
WC

POP UP BAR

CLEANER'S

CUPBOARD

+24.22

MALE WC

Slope 1:21

S
lo

p
e
 1

:2
1

S
lo

p
e
 1

:2
1

S
lo

p
e
 1

:2
1

+24.22

+24.22

REFUGE

A

C

F

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

A

D

9

8

7

6

5

D

E

F

5

4

3

2

1

B

project

drawing title

brought to you by

76 Tabernacle Street, London, EC2A 4EA. United Kingdom

Tel +44 20 7251 5122

M: mail@acme.ac  W: www.acme.ac

notes Dimensions govern.

All dimensions are in millimeters unless noted otherwise.

All dimensions shall be verified on site before proceeding.

All discrepancies to be notified in writing to ACME.
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant 

architectural and engineers information.

All rights reserved. Copyright ACME Ltd.

Area measurements must not be taken to represent
contractual documentation.

UK Projects only:

This drawing may contain data under lease from

Ordnance Survey.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes

crown copyright.

Planning

masterplan

S5

S6

S7 S8

S11

S10
S9

S1 S2 S3

Pav

S4

key plan

purpose of issue

drawing number

drawing date

Revision

rev description by chk date

project number 183

IQL PAVILION

scale

N

Roof Level Plan

1:200 @ A3 1:100 @ A1

04/05/2018

P00

P00 Planning BY/SBH FL 04.05.2018

222

01

221

01

P
a
g

e
 2

0
5



P
a
g
e

 2
0
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



4

A0

Dwg No.

Date:

Scale bar:

Scale:

TITLE
Rev:

G:\Jobs\39097-00 Stratford\Settings\Borders\Copyright2.jpg

S-98-044

1:2500 @A0 INFORMATION

DEVELOPMENT ZONES

PARAMETER PLAN

B

Planning Application

Boundary.

Rev Description Drn DateChk

/ Description XX 091007

Rev Description Drn DateChk

B SH 291007

The material contained in this drawing has

been based upon Ordnance Survey Map with

the permission of the Controller of Her

Majestry's Stationary Office, Crown

Copywright reserved. Ove Arup & Partners,

13 Fitzroy Street, London, W1T 4BQ.

Licence number AL100021949

Zones 4, 5, 6 amended for

variations submission and

environm. screening July 07.

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



PREDOMINANT LAND USE
4

1

2

5

6

3

KEY PLAN

ZONE 2 BOUNDARY

50m OFFSET

DEVELOPMENT HEIGHT

ZONES

LEGEND

PLOT BOUNDARY

5m LIMIT OF DEVIATION TO

DEVELOPMENT HEIGHT ZONE

+

-

P 01

P 02

P 04

P 03

Job No

Drawing Status

Discipline

Scale at A1

Drawing No Issue

Drawing Title

Job Title

Client

Issue Date By Chkd Appd

A0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

© Arup

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N

Do not scale

TIQ-AUD-06-X-014 C215930-00

1:1000 @ A0

FOR APPROVAL

URBAN DESIGN

ZMP PLAN ZONE 2
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHTS

THE INTERNATIONAL QUARTER

LEND LEASE

13 Fitzroy Street

London W1T 4BQ

+44 (0)20 7636 1531

www.arup.com

0 10 m 20 m 50 m

P
a

g
e
 2

0
9



P
a
g
e

 2
1
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Level 10, 1 Stratford Place
Montfichet Road
London E20 1EJ

Tel: +44 (0) 20 3288 1800
Fax: +44 (0) 20 3288 1851

saradawes@londonlegacy.co.uk

Steffan Rees       
Quod
Ingeni Building
17 Broadwick Street
W1F 0AX

20 March 2018

Dear Steffan, 

RE: Conversion of Floorspace pursuant to Condition D2 Note (h) of planning permission 
ref: 10/90641/EXTODA in so far as it relates to International Quarter London (IQL)

I write in response to your letter dated 28th February 2018 notifying the London Legacy 
Development Corporation (LLDC) Planning Policy and Decisions Team (PPDT) of Stratford City 
Business District Ltd’s intention to utilise note (h) of Condition D2 ‘Development Thresholds and 
Phasing’ attached to the Stratford City Outline Planning Permission (10/90641/EXTODA) 
specifically to convert:

2000 m2 of Commercial floorspace (Use Class B1) to complementary retail floorspace in
Zone 2; and

2000 m2 of Commercial floorspace (Use Class B1) to leisure floorspace (Use Class D1
and D2) in Zone 3 of the Stratford City development.

Having reviewed your letter I am satisfied that condition D2 of the outline planning permission 
does not require a formal application to be submitted to make these changes.  

Yours sincerely, 

Daniel Davies 
Principal Planning Development Manager

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 213



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



CONFIDENTIAL

Report of Formal Review Meeting
8 February 2018
QRP95_IQL South pavilion 

London Legacy Development Corporation Quality Review Panel

Report of Formal Review Meeting: IQL South pavilion 

Thursday 8 February 2018 

Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ

Panel

Peter Studdert (chair)

Johnny Winter

Fergus Feilden

Keith French

David Bonnett

Attendees

Josh Hackner LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Sophie Backhouse London Legacy Development Corporation
Tessa Kordeczka Frame Projects 

Apologies / report copied to

Anthony Hollingsworth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Catherine Smyth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Ben Hull London Borough of Newham

Confidentiality

This is a pre-application review, and therefore confidential. As a public organisation the 

LLDC is subject to the Freedom of Information Act (FOI), and in the case of an FOI 

request may be obliged to release project information submitted for review.  

Page 215



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018  
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

1. Project name and site address 
 

Pavilion, International Quarter London (IQL), Zone 2, Stratford City 

 

2. Presenting team 
 
Stefano Dal Piva ACME 

Jan Saggau  ACME 

Mary Bowman  Gustafson Porter + Bowman  

Andrew Tobin  Lendlease 

Fiona Beaverson Lendlease 

Sarah Singfield  Lendlease 

Marco Viviano  Lendlease 

Helen Rodger   Quod 

 

3. Planning authority’s views 
 
Among issues that continue to be explored since the Quality Review Panel’s previous 

review of the IQL pavilion in November 2017 are: accessibility between the pavilion’s 

different ‘layers’; the quality of the pedestrian route between the pavilion and the parapet 

to the railway lines; and the south elevation of the pavilion, in particular how it is viewed 

on the approach from the London Aquatics Centre and Bridge F10.  

 

4. Quality Review Panel’s views 
 

Summary 

 

This is an ambitious concept for a small but prominent building. The Quality Review 

Panel provides its support – albeit rather nervously as there is some apprehension about 

how successfully the building can be delivered as designed. Its elaborate form poses 

particular challenges, and success will depend on meticulous detailed design, 

exceptionally high quality materials, including timber, and highly skilled construction.  The 

panel raises some questions about the plan and layout, including in relation to the visitor 

centre and the service / plant area. The special quality of the pavilion derives principally 

from the external stairs, with lifts comparatively downplayed, and the panel asks whether 

some lessening of this disparity might be possible. The panel recommends further 

thought to the landscape design of the roof to ensure that it becomes an attractive 

destination. These comments are expanded below and those made at the previous 

review that remain relevant are repeated for clarity. 

 

  

Page 216



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018  
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

Response to context 

 

· The panel appreciates the design team’s clear presentation of the proposal for the 

IQL pavilion – and also the positive responses to some of its earlier comments.  

 

· The elevation of the southern side of the pavilion – viewed when approaching 

from the London Aquatics Centre and Bridge F10 – is now better resolved with 

the omission of stairs rising to the first floor and increased ground floor activation. 

  

· The revised design also results in improvements to the quality of the space 

between the pavilion’s western side and the parapet to the railway lines. This is 

identified as a secondary pedestrian route but can be expected to be heavily used 

by those walking between Bridge F10 and IQL. Re-aligning the building’s footprint 

results in increased width to the pathway – up to five metres at its widest point.  

 

· The panel recommends careful consideration of the building’s resilience on days 

when matches or other events take place at the London Stadium. Its robustness 

to withstand the movement of large crowds will need to be tested. The panel 

notes that security gates to the rear pathway will be closed on event days and 

that public access to the roof can be restricted by security gates on the stairs. 

 

Form and massing 

 

· The panel finds the proposed design for the pavilion innovative and interesting – 

but it points to the stark contrast between the simple, sleek design of the London 

Aquatics Centre and the complex, exuberant design of the pavilion. 

  

· Revisions to the design result in the building now being read more strongly as a 

pavilion. Its elaborate form, however, poses particular challenges.  

 

· For example, the proposed concave façades do not make for easy reconciliation 

with integration of services / plant, for example bin stores.   

 

· While understanding that an objective is to maximise access to the building – by 

three routes from three directions – the panel suggests that a simpler form to the 

building, allowing more flexibility, could be achieved with fewer external stairs. 

  

Plan and layout  

 

· The arrangement of the service / plant area appears complex and the panel 

suggests consideration of how it might be better resolved. Thought also needs to 

be given to the impact of the location of services / plant on views of the pavilion’s 

northern elevation. The panel had previously suggested shifting the service core 

further into the centre of the building – but understands that the site’s constraints, 

most notably the railway tunnel below, offer little flexibility.  

Page 217



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018  
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

· The panel questions both the location and size of the visitor centre. Tucked away 

at the north of the building, it will not be highly visible and prominent signage will 

be needed to signal its presence. This is a small space – particularly when 

compared to spaces designated for the pavilion’s other uses – and the panel asks 

whether it will be able to adequately perform its purpose.  

 

Architectural expression 

 

· While the panel finds much of interest in the pavilion’s proposed design, its 

success will depend on particularly skilful and meticulous detailed design. Its 

immense complexity could pose considerable challenges in constructing it as 

designed.  

 

· The panel had previously expressed reservations, for example, about the 

complexity of the proposed glazing – including the geometry of the glass walls 

and interaction with soffits above. The glazing lines now appear clearer.  

 

· The panel remains broadly enthusiastic about the extensive use of timber, but this 

will also pose challenges. Careful thought will need to be given, for example, to 

weathering and slip resistance. The choice of timber will be critical – not least for  

durability.  

 

Landscape design  

 

· The proposal presents an intriguing continuation of the public realm on its eastern 

side – with the stone surfacing of Endeavour Square giving way to the timber of 

the building’s steps / seating. The panel stresses the importance of creating a 

perception of fluidity – with the steps flowing up from the ground.  

 

· The roof of the pavilion should be an alluring and attractive destination – the 

panel is not yet convinced that this is the case. It recommends that it be more 

garden-like, with a stronger sense of enclosure – but still allowing filtered views 

out.  

 

· The landscape design strategy for the roof should seek to introduce interest and 

seasonality. The panel recommends exploring lightweight substrates, perennial 

and herbaceous planting.  

 

· The provider / operator of the bar on the roof can be expected to add tables, 

chairs and umbrellas. The design and quality of any additions will have to be 

carefully specified in order not to detract from the pavilion’s appearance.  

 

· Those visiting and using the roof will require shade – and the panel suggests 

incorporating an architectural canopy as an integral part of the building’s design.  

 

  

Page 218



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
8 February 2018  
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

Inclusive design  

 

· The panel again stresses the importance of ensuring that the pavilion benefits 

from exemplary standards of accessibility and inclusivity. 

 

· The distinctive quality of the pavilion very much stems from the expression – and 

to large extent celebration – of the external stairs. The stairs will not, however, be 

accessible to all. The lifts appear rather relegated, disconnected from the stairs 

and not easily legible from outside the building. The panel suggests that it may be 

possible to find a way in which both stairs and lifts can be celebrated and enjoyed 

together.  

 

Next steps   

 

· The Quality Review Panel encourages the design team to continue to develop the 

design for the IQL pavilion, taking into account the comments above, and in 

consultation with planning officers. 

 

· The success of this ambitious proposal will depend on meticulous detailed design, 

exceptionally high quality materials and highly skilled construction.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



CONFIDENTIAL

Report of Formal Review Meeting
12 October 2017
QRP95_IQL South pavilion 

London Legacy Development Corporation Quality Review Panel

Report of Formal Review Meeting: IQL South pavilion 

Thursday 12 October 2017

Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ

Panel

Mike Martin (chair)
Fergus Feilden
Lee Bennett

Attendees

Catherine Smyth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Josh Hackner LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Sophie Backhouse London Legacy Development Corporation
Tessa Kordeczka Frame Projects 

Apologies / report copied to

Anthony Hollingsworth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team
Ben Hull London Borough of Newham

Confidentiality

This is a pre-application review, and therefore confidential. As a public organisation the 

LLDC is subject to the Freedom of Information Act (FOI), and in the case of an FOI 

request may be obliged to release project information submitted for review.  

Page 221



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
12 October 2017 
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

1. Project name and site address 
 

Pavilion, International Quarter London (IQL), Zone 2, Stratford City 

 

2. Presenting team 
 

Friedrich Ludewig ACME 

Jan Saggau  ACME 

Mary Bowman  Gustafson Porter + Bowman  

Simone Santi  Lendlease 

Fiona Beaverson Lendlease 

Sarah Singfield  Lendlease 

Helen Rodger   Quod 

 

3. Planning authority’s views 
 

Of particular interest to the planning authority is the proposed scale of the IQL pavilion 

and how successfully it relates to its location in Endeavour Square. It also encourages 

further consideration of access to different parts of the building, including ensuring its 

accessibility and inclusivity. The success of the pavilion will depend very largely on the 

quality of detailed design and materials. 

 

4. Quality Review Panel’s views 
 

Summary 

 

The Quality Review Panel appreciates the opportunity to comment on the proposal for 

the IQL pavilion at an early stage. The design shows considerable potential – and the 

panel makes some suggestions for how it might be successfully taken forward. The 

pavilion’s special quality will come from a perception of a ‘building in the round’ – with 

each side equally distinctive and accessible. The panel recommends further thought, in 

particular, to the building’s southern side, as approached from the London Aquatics 

Centre and Bridge F10. The quality of the environment of the route between the pavilion 

and the railway parapet will also need to be carefully considered. The form and massing 

of the pavilion are generally supported, although further details of the proposed structure 

and how it will be carried through would be helpful. Careful detailing and high quality 

materials, including timber, will be essential for the building’s success. The panel 

suggests exploring alternatives to the plan and layout, within the constraints of the site, 

and stresses the importance of clear wayfinding, as well as exemplary standards of 

accessibility and inclusivity. It also encourages following closely the broader landscape 

design strategy already established for the public realm in which the pavilion sits. 

 

These comments are expanded below. 

 

 

  

Page 222



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
12 October 2017 
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

Response to context 

 

· The strength and special quality of the pavilion will come from a perception of a 

‘building in the round’ – and this should be read strongly from its design. 

Achieving an equally distinctive appearance from all viewpoints, and with access 

from all sides, does pose a challenge, however. 

 

· While the approach and view from Endeavour Square appears impressive, that 

from the London Aquatics Centre and Bridge F10 is less so.  

 

· The panel thinks that this southern side of the building should be more 

celebratory – and therefore recommends that its design be given further thought.  

It also questions the location of commercial space – the food and beverage offer 

– rather than more public spaces on this side of the building, which will enjoy the 

most sun and light.   

  

· The proposal presents an intriguing continuation of the public realm on its eastern 

side – with the stone surfacing of Endeavour Square giving way to the timber of 

building’s steps / seating. This fluidity would appear to work well. The panel feels 

strongly that the steps / seating should have a harder, more urban quality – and 

therefore not be surfaced in grass.  

 

· The panel recommends careful consideration of the quality of the space between 

the pavilion’s western side and the parapet of the railway. This is identified as a 

secondary pedestrian route – but can be expected to be heavily used by those 

walking between Bridge F10 and IQL. Even at a width of three metres, with 

planting along the parapet edge, this route could appear narrow.  

 

· Effective management and maintenance will be essential to ensure that the 

quality of this space is not downgraded with bins and other clutter.  

 

Form and massing 

 

· Generally, the panel finds merit in the form and massing of the building. It would 

welcome, however, additional information on its structure and details of how this 

might be made to work. 

 

· The building can be perceived as a ‘bridge’ – with three corners spanning a large, 

open space. Incorporating columns internally could detract from that space’s 

expansive quality. The panel recommends maintaining as simple a form as 

possible. 

 

  

Page 223



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
12 October 2017 
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

Plan and layout  

 

· The panel acknowledges the constraints of the pavilion’s location, in particular the 

railway tunnel below. This has to a large extent dictated the location and form of 

the service core on the northern side of the building. The panel asks, however, 

whether an alternative might be possible. 

 

· The orthogonal arrangement of the service core appears rather at odds with the 

building’s generally more exuberant character. Shifting the core further into the 

centre of the building might be an option – if this can be accommodated around 

the site’s constraints.    

 

· The panel acknowledges that the design of the pavilion is at an early stage – with 

the market still to be tested and providers identified. Clarification of potential 

access between the different components of the pavilion –visitor centre, café, 

restaurant and terraces – would be helpful, however. 

 

· Effective wayfinding and navigation around and within the building will need to be 

ensured – so that it is obvious where and how to enter the building. 

 

Architectural expression 

 

· While the panel finds much of interest and merit in the design at this early stage, it 

recommends further thought to some of the details. For example, successful 

resolution of the proposed geometry of the glass walls – and its interaction with 

the soffits above – will require skilful detailed design.  

 

· The panel is broadly enthusiastic about the extensive use of timber, but this will 

pose challenges, such as preventing staining. Ensuring the quality and durability 

of the timber used will be critical to the building’s long term success.   

 

Landscape design  

 

· A detailed landscape design strategy for IQL South – including Endeavour Square 

– has been developed by Gustafson Porter + Bowman and broadly supported by 

the panel (see report of meeting of 26 August 2016).  

 

· The panel encourages retention of the planting proposed in the landscape design 

strategy for the areas of public realm around the pavilion. 

 

· Any planting on the upper terraces of the pavilion needs to be carefully integrated 

within the overall design to ensure an appropriate sense of scale and adequate 

depths of growing medium and drainage. 

 
  

Page 224



CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Report of Formal Review Meeting 
12 October 2017 
QRP95_IQL South pavilion   

Inclusive design  

 

· The panel stresses the importance of ensuring that the pavilion benefits from 

exemplary standards of accessibility and inclusivity. 

 

· While provision for mobility scooters is included, the panel recommends that this 

be less tucked away and more visible. 

 

Next steps   

 

· The proposal for the IQL pavilion shows considerable potential. The Quality 

Review Panel encourages the design team to continue to develop the proposal, 

taking into account the comments above, and in consultation with planning 

officers.  

 

· It would welcome the opportunity to provide further comments on the design as it 

evolves, and before a planning application is submitted.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 225



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a
g
e
 2

2
7



 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

2
8



 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

2
9



 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
0



 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
1



 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
2



 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
3



 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
5



P
a
g
e
 2

3
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
 

Subject: 11 Burford Road, Stratford, E15 2ST reference 18/00293/FUL  

Meeting date:  24 July 2018 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Russell Butchers – Senior Planning Development Manager  

 
FOR DECISION  
 

This report will be considered in public 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report concerns an application that seeks planning permission for alterations 
and extensions to an existing commercial building located on Burford Road, 
Stratford. Permission is sought for demolition of the existing fourth floor of the 
building and the erection of a two-storey extension above (to create a six storey 
building), the installation of plant equipment and an acoustic screen at roof level, 
alterations to the ground floor of the building including removal of 12 car parking 
spaces, installation of a cycle parking area and a ground floor change of use from 
Class A1 (Shops) and A2 (Financial and Professional Services) to Class B1 
(Business) with 94sqm of flexible Class B1 or Class A3 (Cafes and restaurants) 
floorspace and alterations to the ground floor façade. The alterations at ground 
floor level have previously been approved under planning application 
17/00368/FUL.   

1.2. The proposed development would result in the loss of 267sqm of Class A1 / A2 
floorspace and the provision of additional 1,319 sqm of Class B1 floorspace and 
the 94sqm of flexible Class B1 or A3 (Café) floorspace, and this aspect of the 
development has previously been granted planning permission under reference 
17/00368/FUL. Of the 1,319 sqm of additional Class B1 floorspace 815sqm is 
provided on the new fourth and fifth floors, with the remainder provided on the 
ground floor and through a 4sqm increase on the first, second and third floors.   

1.3. The main issues relevant to this proposal are:  

· Land use 

· Heritage 

· Design and appearance  

· Neighbouring amenity 

· Transport  

· Inclusive design 

· Flooding  

· Sustainability, energy and biodiversity  

Agenda Item 9

Page 237



1.4. The application site is located 140m outside of the Stratford Metropolitan Centre 
and the loss of the A1 and A2 units would not be resisted in this location. The 
intensification of the Class B1 use is also considered to be acceptable in this 
location and would provide additional workspace suitable for small and medium 
sized businesses.  

1.5. The application site is located opposite the Stratford Workshops, which are a 
locally listed non-designated heritage asset. The application has been reviewed by 
PPDT’s heritage consultants who have advised that there would be harm to the 
setting and significance of the heritage asset; albeit that the harm would be less 
than substantial.  

1.6. Officers are satisfied with the form, massing and height of the proposed fifth and 
sixth floor extension and the impact that it would have on the host building and the 
streetscene. Although the resulting development would be taller than the locally 
listed Stratford Workshops (by between 2m and 3.5m), given its similar height 
(50cm taller) to the neighbouring residential block at 10 Burford Road, its height is 
considered to be appropriate to the character of Burford Road.  

1.7. Objections have been received from 13 neighbouring residential occupiers relating 
to matters including design and appearance, impact upon the Stratford Workshops, 
loss of daylight and sunlight, overbearing impact, security, traffic impacts, noise, 
nuisance, and disturbance.  

1.8. The application site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 6b, which 
is considered ‘excellent’, and 40 on-site cycle parking spaces are proposed. The 
proposal includes the loss of the 12 car parking spaces, which is acceptable in this 
location given its public transport connections and it is considered that the transport 
impacts of the development are acceptable.  

1.9. The inclusive design, flooding, sustainability, energy and biodiversity impacts of 
the development have been assessed and these elements of the development are 
acceptable.  

1.10. A legal agreement would be necessary for the development to secure a carbon 
offset contribution of £4963.60, the provision of Blue Badge parking space, the 
provision of eight short-stay cycle parking spaces within the public realm and a 
highways agreement to remove the dropped kerb and reinstate the footway.  

1.11. On balance, it is considered that the public benefits associated with the provision 
of additional workspace that is suited to small to medium businesses would 
outweigh the less than substantial harm that has been identified to the Stratford 
Workshops. It is recommended that the application is approved subject to the 
conditions set out in part 13 of this report and the heads of terms set out in part 
10.84 and 10.85 of the report.   

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Committee is asked to APPROVE the application for the reasons given 
in the report and grant planning permission subject to: 

a) The conditions set out in this report; and 

b) The satisfactory completion of a legal agreement under section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers to 
secure the planning obligations set out in the recommended heads of 
terms which are set out in this report.  

Page 238



2.2 The Committee is asked to DELEGATE AUTHORITY to the Director of 
Planning Policy and Decisions to: 

a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report, including 
such refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the 
Director of Planning Policy and Decisions considers necessary; 

b) Finalise the recommended legal agreement under section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers as set 
out in this report, including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting 
the obligations detailed in the heads of terms set out in this report as the 
Director of Planning Policy and Decisions considers reasonably 
necessary; and 

c) Complete the section 106 agreement and issue the decision notice.  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1. None.  

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. None.  

 

  

Page 239



Site Plan 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100050265 
 

Application:   18/00293/FUL 

Location:   11 Burford Road, Stratford, E15 2ST 

London Borough:  Newham 

Page 240



Proposal:  Demolition of the existing fourth floor of the building and the 
erection of a two-storey extension above (to create a six storey 
building), the installation of plant equipment and an acoustic 
screen at roof level, alterations to the ground floor of the building 
including removal of 12 car parking spaces, installation of a cycle 
parking area and a change of use from Class A1 (Shops) and A2 
(Financial and Professional Services) to Class B1 (Business) with 
94sqm of flexible Class B1 or Class A3 (Cafes and restaurants) 
floorspace and alterations to the ground floor façade.  

Applicants:   Artesian Property Partnership 

Agent:   Oliver Coleman, Rolfe Judd Planning Ltd  

 

 

 

5. SITE & SURROUNDINGS  

5.1. The application property is a part four-storey and part five-storey commercial 
building that is known as the Burford Business Centre. The building was completed 
in 2003 and is constructed of a grey engineering brick.  

5.2. The building is on the western side of Burford Road, which is located off Stratford 
High Street within the London Borough of Newham. The application site has the 
highest PTAL rating of 6b, which is due to its proximity to Stratford High Street DLR 
Station (100m), Stratford Regional Station (450m) and Stratford High Street bus 
routes.  

5.3. The ground floor of the property comprises 12 car parking spaces, plant and 
equipment rooms, a reception area and four Class A1/A2 retail units. The upper 
floors of the building provide Class B1a office floor space that is occupied by a 
number of different tenants that utilise some shared office facilities. The office unit 
sizes on the upper floors range between 25sqm and 137sqm.  

Page 241



5.4. The building is located 100m south of the Stratford St John’s Conservation Area 
and is located on the opposite side of Burford Road (15m west) to the Stratford 
Workshops, which have been locally listed by the London Borough of Newham and 
are a non-designated heritage asset. Stratford Workshops is a commercial building 
owned by the London Borough of Newham that is made up of 100 affordable self-
contained workshop units ranging between approximately 10sqm and 180sqm in 
size.  

5.5. To the north of the site is the Gala Bingo building, which has a frontage to Stratford 
High Street. To the south is no. 10 Burford Road, which is a seven-storey 
residential development that was erected at the same time as the application site.  

5.6. The site falls within Flood Zone 3 (high probability of flooding), but is within an area 
that benefits from flood defences.   

6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

6.1. On 13 October 1999, the London Borough of Newham approved outline planning 
permission (ref 99/0725) for a wider mixed-use development of Class B1 
(Business), Class B2 (General industrial) and live/work uses (sui generis).  

6.2. On 20 December 2001, the London Borough of Newham approved a reserved 
matters application (ref 01/1597) submitted pursuant to application 99/0725 for the 
erection of three buildings, comprising 5457sqm of Class B1 floorspace, 130 
live/work units, two Class A1-A3 retail units and 127 car parking spaces and 
associated landscaping.  

6.3. On 19 October 2017, the Legacy Corporation approved a planning application (ref 
17/00368/FUL) for alterations to the existing ground floor of 11 Burford Road, the 
removal of the car parking area, installation of a cycle parking area and a change 
of use from Class A1 (Shops) and A2 (Financial and professional services) to Class 
B1 (Business) with 94sqm of flexible Class B1 or A3 (Cafes and restaurants) 
floorspace, and other associated works. The proposed development included 
alterations to the ground floor façade, the installation of an additional door and 
window to the first-floor roof terrace, ventilation panels to the rear elevation. The 
development included the erection of an extension to the existing fourth floor, and 
the installation of plant equipment to the roof and a lift overrun. Works have 
commenced on this planning permission.  

6.4. On 25 May 2018 the Legacy Corporation approved a non-material amendment to 
planning application 17/00368/FUL (NMA ref 18/00200/VAR) alterations to the 
ground floor facade, infill of the south-eastern corner of the building, reduction in 
flexible Class A3/B1 floorspace from 96sqm to 94sqm, the replacement of a 
window with a door to the first floor roof terrace, omission of a door to the first floor 
roof terrace and the omission of ventilation panels and railings to the rear elevation. 

6.5. On 27 March 2018 the Legacy Corporation refused a planning application (ref 
17/00552/FUL) for the demolition of the existing fourth floor and erection of a new 
fourth, fifth and sixth floors for Class B1 (Business) use and the installation of new 
plant equipment (including an acoustic screen) to the roof; alterations to the ground 
floor of the building, including removal of car parking, installation of cycle parking 
area and a change of use from Class A1(Shops) and A2 (Financial and 
professional services) to Class B1 with 96sqm of flexible Class B1 or A3 (Cafes 
and restaurants) floorspace and alterations to the ground floor façade. The reasons 
for refusing the application are set out below: 

1. The proposed development, by reason of its excessive bulk, massing, height, 
scale and adverse appearance would fail to respond to the existing urban fabric 
and would have a detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of 

Page 242



the streetscene and upon the host building. The development does not 
represent high quality design appropriate to its context and, does not enhance 
the site’s architectural or built context, would fail to make a positive contribution 
to the character of Burford Road, and is therefore contrary to), policies 7.4 and 
7.6 of The London Plan (2016) and policies SP3 and BN.1 of the Local Plan 
(2015). 

2. The proposal would result in harm to the setting and significance of the non-
designated heritage asset, albeit that it would be less than substantial harm. 
The bulk, scale, height massing and appearance of the proposed development 
would result in a building that would be obtrusive and out of character with its 
setting, adversely vying for prominence with, and would negatively affect the 
setting and significance of, the non-designated heritage asset at Stratford 
Workshops, including views from Bridge Road and the railway. The 
development would not conserve or enhance the setting of the heritage asset 
and in this case the harm is not outweighed by the other benefits of the 
development and is thereby contrary to policy 7.8 of The London Plan (2016) 
and policies SP.3, BN.1 and BN.16 of the Local Plan (2015). 

3. The proposed development would have a detrimental impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring uses by reason of its obtrusive and overbearing bulk, scale, mass 
and height which would adversely affect the outlook and amenity of occupants 
of 10 Burford Road, contrary to policy 7.6 of The London Plan (2016) and policy 
BN.1 of the Local Plan (2015). 

4. The bulk, scale, height and massing of the development would result in a 
degree of loss of daylight and sunlight to the Stratford Workshops, which would 
have a significant detrimental impact upon the quality of the workspaces, 
contrary to policy 7.6 of The London Plan (2016) and policy SP.3 and BN.1 of 
the Local Plan (2015). 

7. APPLICATION PROPOSAL 

7.1. The proposed development seeks full planning permission for alterations and 
extensions to an existing commercial building located on Burford Road, Stratford. 
Permission is sought for demolition of the existing part length fourth floor of the 
building and the erection of a two-storey extension above (to create a six storey 
building), the installation of plant equipment and an acoustic screen at roof level, 
alterations to the ground floor of the building including removal of 12 car parking 
spaces, installation of a cycle parking area and a change of use from Class A1 
(Shops) and A2 (Financial and Professional Services) to Class B1 (Business) with 
94sqm of flexible Class B1 or Class A3 (Cafes and restaurants) floorspace and 
alterations to the ground floor façade.  

7.2. The applicant states that their vision for the site is to “provide a modern co-working 
office space and business centre with dedicated desks and private offices hired for 
a fee and set timeframe.” The main facets of the proposed development are 
elaborated on below. 

Ground Floor 

7.3. At ground floor level it is proposed to convert the majority of the floorspace into 
Class B1 use, with the provision of 94sqm of flexible floorspace that could be used 
as a café or for Class B1 purposes. The revised ground floor layout would result in 
the loss of 12 car parking spaces and 267sqm of Class A1/A2 retail space. The 
proposed ground floor layout would consist of meeting rooms, 40 cycle parking 
spaces, bathroom and changing facilities, a reception area and plant and 
equipment rooms.  

Page 243



7.4. Alterations to the ground floor façade are proposed, including a new main 
entrance, a new glazed façade, a metal louvered entrance to the refuse store and 
a dedicated cyclist entrance. The southern front corner of the building is currently 
set back from the building line and it is proposed that this is infilled as part of the 
development.  

7.5. The application states that the existing cross over would be levelled to match the 
existing pavement, and a Blue Badge parking space would be installed on the 
public highway, outside of the application site boundary. The proposed highways 
works would require the approval of the London Borough of Newham as the 
highways authority.  

7.6. Officers note that the ground floor works to the building were approved under 
planning permission 17/00368/FUL (as amended by 18/00200/VAR) and are 
currently being constructed.  

Upper Floors  

7.7. At the first to third floors, internal alterations are proposed to improve the quality of 
the office accommodation. Additional doors are proposed to the existing first floor 
terrace at the rear elevation and an additional lift core located centrally within the 
building would result in an increase of 4sqm of floorspace at the existing first to 
third floor levels. 

7.8. It is proposed to demolish the existing part-length fourth floor, and to erect a new 
two-storey extension for Class B1 floorspace. The proposed extensions would 
create an additional 172sqm of floorspace at fourth floor level and 644sqm at fifth 
floor. At roof level a 1.8m high acoustic screen is proposed to house the air-
conditioning condenser units. The height of the proposed extension, from the top 
of the existing fourth floor to the top of the proposed acoustic screen, would be 
2.3m to the top of the fifth floor and 4.1m to the top of the acoustic screen.  

7.9. The south-western corner of the building is proposed to be set in at fifth and sixth 
floor levels by between 3.3m and 6m to reduce the impact upon the residential 
block at 10 Burford Road. The area of flat roof would be a green biodiverse roof 
that would be accessible for maintenance purposes only and would not be 
accessible to occupants of the buildings.  

7.10. The front elevation of the proposed fourth floor would be constructed of glazed 
panels and the fifth floor would be glazed panels with aluminium cladding. The fifth 
floor, which would be set back from the main façade, would include sliding doors 
and a glass balustrade. The rear (west facing) elevation and northern elevation 
would include a mixture of windows and painted rendered walls.  

8. POLICIES AND GUIDANCE 

National Planning Policy 

8.1. National Planning Policy Framework 

8.2. The policies in the NPPF are material considerations in the determination of 
applications. The NPPF states that due weight should be given to relevant local 
plan policies according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. The principle 
of sustainable development permeates the NPPF. The Framework makes clear 
growth and addressing barriers to investment. The NPPF should be read in 
conjunction with the Planning Practice Guidance, a web-based resource for all 
users of the planning system. This describes the importance of good design and 
how this can be achieved through planning decisions. 

 

Page 244



8.3. The following sections of the NPPF are relevant to this development: 

Section 1 – Building a strong, competitive economy  

Section 4 – Promoting sustainable transport  

Section 7 – Requiring Good Design  

Section 10 – Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 

Section 12 – Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

Regional Planning Policy 

8.4. The Draft London Plan (December 2017)  

The Mayor of London published for the purpose of public consultation a draft new 
London Plan on 29th November 2017. The policies in the draft new London Plan 
currently have only very limited material weight when making planning decisions. 
That weight will increase once the new Plan is submitted for its Examination in 
Public. This report may make reference to policies within the new London Plan 
where they are directly relevant to the assessment of the application proposal. 
However, the relevant development plan policies remain those within the current 
London Plan (March 2016) and the LLDC Local Plan (July 2015). 

8.5. The London Plan (March 2016)  

Policy 2.13  Opportunity Areas and Intensification Areas 
Policy 4.1 Developing London’s economy 
Policy 4.2 Offices 
Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions  
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 5.4A Electricity and gas supply 
Policy 5.6 Decentralised energy networks in development proposals 
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy  
Policy 5.9 Overheating and cooling 
Policy 5.10 Urban greening  
Policy 5.11 Green roofs and development site environs 
Policy 5.12 Flood risk management 
Policy 5.13 Sustainable drainage  
Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies 
Policy 5.18  Construction, excavation and demolition waste  
Policy 6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity  
Policy 6.9  Cycling 
Policy 6.10  Walking 
Policy 6.13 Parking  
Policy 7.2  An inclusive environment 
Policy 7.3  Designing out crime 
Policy 7.4  Local character 
Policy 7.5  Public realm  
Policy 7.6  Architecture 
Policy 7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology  
Policy 7.14 Improving air quality  
Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 245



Local Planning Policy 

8.6. LLDC Local Plan (July 2015)  

Policy SD.1 Sustainable development 
Policy SP.1 Building a strong and diverse economy 
Policy B.1 Location and maintenance of employment uses  
Policy B.2 Thriving town, neighbourhood and local centres  
Policy B.4 Providing low-cost and managed workspace   
Policy B.5 Increasing local access to jobs, skills and employment training 
Policy SP.3 Integrating the built and natural environment 
Policy BN.1 Responding to place 
Policy BN.3 Maximising biodiversity  
Policy BN.5 Requiring inclusive design 
Policy BN.11 Reducing noise and improving air quality  
Policy BN.16 Conserving or enhancing heritage assets  
Policy T.4 Managing development and its transport impacts 
Policy T.7 Transport assessments and travel plans  
Policy T.8 Parking and parking standards in new development  
Policy T.9 Providing for pedestrians and cyclists 
Policy SP.5 A sustainable and healthy place to live and work 
Policy S.1 Health and wellbeing 
Policy S.2 Energy in new development 
Policy S.4 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy S.5 Water supply and waste water disposal  
Policy S.6 Waste reduction 
Policy S.7 Overheating and urban greening  
Policy S.8 Flood risk and sustainable drainage measures 

9. CONSULTATION 

9.1. Consultation letters were sent to statutory and non-statutory consultees on 4 June 
2018.  

9.2. A site notice was placed at the site and a press notice was published in the 
Newham Recorder on 13 June 2018.  

9.3. On 4 June 2018 notification letters were sent to 196 neighbouring properties in the 
immediate vicinity of the application site, including both residential and commercial 
properties.  

Representations from members of the public 

9.4. Letters of objection were received from 13 neighbouring properties, all within the 
residential development at 10 Burford Road. These objections are summarised 
below: 

· Loss of daylight and sunlight; (Assessed at part 10.40 to 10.49 of this report); 

· Loss of privacy (Assessed at part 10.51 to 10.53 of this report); 

· Loss of outlook and overbearing impact (Assessed at part 10.54 to 10.56 of 
this report); 

· Concerns over security (Assessed at part 10.50 of this report); 

· Fumes and odour from proposed ventilation ducts (Assessed at part 10.57 to 
10.58 of this report); 

Page 246



· Noise nuisance from proposed plant equipment (Assessed at part 10.59 of this 
report); 

· Nuisance during construction phase (Assessed at part 10.60 of this report); 

· The development would harm the appearance of the Stratford Workshops 
(Assessed at part 10.10 to 10.23 of this report); 

· Concerns over design quality and that the development would have a 
detrimental impact upon the streetscene and character of the neighbourhood 
(Assessed at part 10.24 to 10.36 of this report); 

· Nuisance from proposed café, including litter, noise and odour (Assessed at 
part 10.59 of this report); and 

· Increased traffic and car parking stress; (Assessed at part 10.62 to 10.67 of 
this report).  

Representations from statutory and non-statutory consultees  

9.5. The parties consulted are listed below. Those that provided a response are shown 
in bold. 

Transport for London 

Docklands Light Railway 

Environment Agency 

London Borough of Newham (Planning) 

London Borough of Newham (Environmental Health) 

London Borough of Newham (Flooding) 

London Borough of Newham (Highways) 

LLDC Design 

LLDC Inclusive Design  

PPDT Technical Consultants (Arup) 

PPDT Transport Consultants (Ch2M) 

PPDT Heritage Consultants (MOLA)  

 

Transport for London (TfL) 

9.6. TfL advised that they support the proposal to remove the car parking and activate 
the ground floor with business and café use. The draft London Plan would require 
53 long-stay and eight short-stay cycle parking spaces for a 3981sqm of Class B1 
floor space development, and the proposal for forty cycle parking spaces falls short 
of this. Removal of the existing crossover should be secured through a s278 
agreement with Newham Council.  

9.7. Officers’ comment: The draft London Plan currently carries very little weight and 
the current London Plan requirement would be for 44 cycle parking spaces for an 
entirely new building of 3,981sqm. However, this application proposes 1,319sqm 
of additional floorspace for which the requirement would be 15 long-stay spaces 
and the proposal for 40 is in excess of this. If planning permission were to be 
approved then it would be a requirement that the applicant enters into an 
agreement with the Highways Authority to remove the crossover and reinstate the 
footpath and provide eight short-stay cycle parking spaces within the public realm 
(subject to agreement with the highways authority).   

Page 247



Environment Agency (EA) 

9.8. The EA advised that they have no objection to the proposed development. The site 
is within Flood Zone 3, however benefits from the Thames Tidal flood defence. 
Safe means of refuge would be available on the upper floors of the development 
in the event of a flood.  

London Borough of Newham (Planning)  

9.9. The London Borough of Newham advised that they are supportive of the principle 
of increased employment floorspace and the associated number of jobs that would 
be created. 

London Borough of Newham (Flooding)  

9.10. LB Newham have objected to the proposed development on flooding grounds due 
to the Flood Risk Assessment providing insufficient information on surface water 
flood risk or a satisfactory drainage strategy. To overcome their objection, LB 
Newham have requested that a sustainable drainage condition is imposed should 
the application be approved.  

9.11. Officers’ comment: If planning permission were to be approved, officers would 
recommend including a condition as suggested by LB Newham.  

LLDC Design  

9.12. LLDC Design have advised that they are comfortable with the form, massing and 
height of the fifth and sixth floor extension proposed by the application. Although 
the building would be taller than the Stratford Workshops, the proposed extension 
would be similar in height to the neighbouring building at 10 Burford Road and is 
considered to be appropriate to the character of Burford Road.  

9.13. Design officers raised concern about whether the cycle parking configuration would 
be suitable for the proposed two-tier stacking system. Concern was also raised 
that an accessible WC has not been provided on each floor, the lack of detail 
provided for the proposed fins, the use of Corten steel at the ground floor and 
proposed window arrangements.  

9.14. Officers’ comment: The applicant has amended the cycle parking layout to ensure 
that it would work for the proposed stacking system and the plans have been 
amended to include an accessible WC on each floor. Further details on the 
appearance of the fins has been provided, although a condition is proposed to 
secure materials samples for the fins. The applicant has advised that the window 
arrangements to the rear elevation are to enable to units to be partitioned, ensuring 
their flexible use.  

PPDT Technical Consultants (Arup) 

9.15. Arup were instructed to review the Daylight and Sunlight Report, Energy and 
Sustainability Report, Flood Risk Assessment, Noise Report and Ventilation 
Report submitted in support of the application. Arup have confirmed that the 
findings of the daylight and sunlight assessment are acceptable and have 
requested conditions in relation to flooding, ventilation, BREEAM certification and 
future connection to the district energy network.  

9.16. Officers’ comment: If planning permission were to be approved, officers would 
recommend including the conditions suggested by Arup, with the exception of the 
district energy network connection. The view of officers is that such a condition is 
not commensurate with the scale of development proposed (i.e. an extension to 
an existing building) and therefore does not meet the test of reasonableness.  

 

Page 248



9.17. PPDT Transport Consultants (Ch2M) 

9.18. Ch2M reviewed the Transport Statement and recommended that a Travel Plan 
Statement is secured through a planning condition.  

9.19. Officers’ comment: If planning permission were to be approved, officers would 
recommend including a condition as suggested by Ch2M.  

 

PPDT Heritage Consultants (MOLA)  

9.20. MOLA advised that although the applicant has reduced the bulk of the building 
from the scheme that was refused under reference 17/00552/FUL, the proposed 
building would still vie for prominence with the Stratford Workshops. The proposed 
design would exceed the height of the workshops, which would be particularly 
evident from views south and north. MOLA have advised that the location of the 
AC condenser enclosure would add bulk to the building.  

9.21. MOLA have advised that the proposal would result in a minor adverse impact which 
would lead to ‘less than substantial’ harm on the locally listed Stratford Workshops 
which would need to be outweighed by any public benefits for the development to 
be acceptable.  

9.22. MOLA have advised that the proposed development would have minimal impact 
upon the setting of the Stratford St John’s Conservation Area and the heritage 
listed terraces on the High Street. These terraces are primarily viewed and 
appreciated from the High Street and no key views in CA would be affected by the 
proposed development.  

9.23. Officers’ comment: Heritage is further explored at part 10.10 to 10.23 of this report. 
The applicant has revised the plans and set in the AC condenser enclosure by 
1.5m further from the edge of the building to reduce its bulk and visibility.  

10. ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

10.1. The main issues relevant to this application are: 

· Land use 

· Heritage 

· Design and appearance 

· Neighbouring amenity 

· Transport 

· Inclusive Design 

· Flooding  

· Sustainability, energy and biodiversity  

 

Land use  

10.2. The application site is known as the Burford Business Centre, and offers 
predominantly Class B1 commercial floorspace to small-to-medium sized 
businesses with a typical office size being 40sqm but ranging up to 137sqm.  

10.3. The existing ground floor of the site contains 12 car parking spaces, 267sqm of 
Class A1/A2 commercial floorspace split between four units, a reception area, as 
well as rooms that house plant and equipment.  

Page 249



10.4. Policy 4.2 of The London Plan advises that local planning authorities should 
encourage renewal and modernisation of existing office stock and support the 
redevelopment of office provision. The application site is not within any of the 
employment clusters identified in policy B.1 of the LLDC Local Plan. Policy B.1 
advises that development outside of the clusters should maintain or re-provide 
employment level densities within Class B1 and should not undermine the 
designated employment clusters.  

10.5. The application site is not in a town centre location and the Class A1/A2 uses are 
not protected by the policies of the Local Plan. Given the site’s proximity to other 
retail uses on Stratford High Street as well as Westfield and the Stratford Centre, 
the loss of the A1/A2 units would not result in any significant loss of shopping 
choice for local residents. The conversion of the A1/A2 units to B1 floorspace has 
the potential to increase employment levels at the site and the provision of the café 
use could bring vitality to the street scene. Therefore, the loss of the Class A1/A2 
units and the change of use of the ground floor to Class B1, with 94sqm sqm of 
flexible space for a possible café (Class A3), is acceptable in land use terms. It is 
also noted that the loss of the A1/A2 units has already been approved under 
planning permission reference 17/00368/FUL.  

10.6. Policy B.1 of the LLDC Local Plan advises that office uses should be located within 
town centres and that an impact assessment should be provided where office 
accommodation over 2,500sqm is proposed outside of the Stratford Metropolitan 
Centre boundary. Policy B.2 advises that one of the functions of the Stratford 
Metropolitan Centre is the provision of ‘Grade A, B1office space’.   

10.7. The application site is located approximately 140m outside of the Stratford 
Metropolitan Centre. Notwithstanding this, the principle of an office building in this 
location is already established and given the proximity to the Metropolitan Centre 
and access to public transport, the location is considered to appropriate for an 
extended office use.  

10.8. The existing building provides 2,665sqm of Class B1 floorspace and it is proposed 
to increase this with an additional 1,319sqm. As the existing development already 
provides more than 2,500sqm of B1 office floorspace, and less than 2,500sqm of 
additional floorspace is proposed, it is not considered necessary for the applicant 
to justify the land use through an impact assessment. Notwithstanding this, Officers 
are satisfied that the proposed increase in Class B1 floorspace at the site would 
not have a detrimental impact upon the Metropolitan Centre, and would not 
undermine the designated employment clusters, as it would represent a modest 
quantum of floorspace when considered in the context of the Stratford City Outline 
Planning Permission, where 450,000sqm of office space has been approved.  

10.9. Officers are satisfied that the proposed land use of the development, and the loss 
of the Class A1/A2 uses, is acceptable in principle (and already has planning 
permission under reference 17/00368/FUL) and meets the requirements of Local 
Plan policies B.1 and B.2.   

Heritage  

10.10. The application site is not located within a conservation area, but is located 100m 
south of the Stratford St John’s Conservation Area. The application site is located 
opposite the Stratford Workshops, which have been locally listed by Newham 
Council and are a non-designated heritage asset.  

10.11. With respect to the Stratford St John’s Conservation Area (the CA), the proposed 
extension would be visible from the edge of the CA at the northern end of Bridge 
Road and would be in the background of views from the conservation area across 
the railway line to the Stratford Workshops. PPDT’s heritage consultants have 
advised that the proposed development would have a minimal impact upon the 

Page 250



setting of the CA and that no key views of the CA would be affected as the heritage 
listed terraces are primarily viewed from the High Street and would not be affected 
by the proposed development. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposed 
development would have a minimal impact upon the setting of the CA and would 
not affect any key views and that the development is consistent with paragraph 
132 of the NPPF.  

10.12. Paragraph 135 of the NPPF advises that the effect of an application on the 
significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in 
determining a planning application. In weighing applications that affect directly or 
indirectly non-designated heritage assets, the NPPF advises that a balanced 
judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm to the 
significance of the heritage asset.  

10.13. Policy 7.8 of The London Plan advises that development affecting heritage assets 
and their settings should conserve their significance by being sympathetic to their 
form, scale, materials and architectural detail.  

10.14. Policy BN.1 of the LLDC Local Plan states that developments should respect the 
heritage value of existing typologies and enhance the historic setting within which 
development is proposed. Policy BN.16 advises that proposals will be considered 
acceptable where they conserve or enhance heritage assets and their setting.  

10.15. PPDT’s heritage consultants (MOLA) have reviewed the application and raised 
concerns about the potential impact of the development upon the Stratford 
Workshops. Stratford Workshops opened in 1847 and built carriages and 
locomotives for the Great Eastern Railway and later the London & North Eastern 
Railway. Stratford Workshops are a distinctive building in the area and are 
prominently located alongside the train line. The Workshops are considered to 
have architectural and historic interest, as well as townscape quality and group 
value.  

10.16. MOLA have advised that the development, by way of its additional height and bulk, 
would vie for prominence with the Stratford Workshops. The proposed extension 
would exceed the height of the Workshops and this would be particularly visible 
from the approach to Burford Road and from the north. MOLA have advised that 
this would result in ‘less than substantial’ harm on the setting and significance of 
the heritage asset.  

10.17. The Stratford Workshops range in height between approximately 19.5m (4 storeys) 
and then drop down to two-storeys with a height of between 9.5m to the top of the 
second storey and 12.5m to the top of the V-shaped roofline. The existing 
(application) building at Burford Road responds to this context with a building 
height of between 14.5m and 17.5m that corresponds with the drop in height of the 
Stratford Workshops.  

10.18. The proposed development would result in a building height of 21.5m to the top of 
the sixth storey and 23m to the top of the acoustic screen and is therefore between 
2m and 3.5m taller than the Stratford Workshops. The proposed development 
would be visible in the backdrop of the heritage asset, including in key views from 
the rail line and Bridge Road, which has been identified as important by MOLA.  

10.19. The applicant has submitted a Heritage Statement which concludes that the 
proposed development would preserve and enhance perceptions of the Stratford 
Workshops without adversely affecting its historic interest. The report cites that the 
modern design, new active frontage and the improved quality of the workspace 
would be wholly beneficial and ensure the long-term future use and viability of the 
building whilst providing an appropriate level of legibility and reflecting the area’s 
industrial past.  

Page 251



10.20. PPDT’s heritage consultants have advised that the proposed additional height 
would result in a building which is larger in scale than the heritage asset, and one 
that would vie for prominence within the streetscape. MOLA advise that this would 
amount to harm to the significance and setting of the asset, albeit that the harm 
would be less than substantial. In accordance with paragraph 135 of the NPPF, 
MOLA have advised that a balanced judgement will need to be made on the 
acceptability of the proposal as a whole, weighing the benefits of the proposed 
development with the harm to the non-designated asset and its wider setting.  

10.21. The height of the proposed building would be of similar height (50cm higher) to the 
neighbouring residential building at 10 Burford Road, although the AC acoustic 
screen at the northern end of the building would be approximately 1.5m higher than 
10 Burford Road. In the context of the wider development within this part of 
Stratford, the height of the proposed extension is not considered to be excessive 
and is consistent with the prevailing height with Burford Road. Whilst the extended 
floors would be visible from views to the north (i.e. from Bridge Road), this would 
only be above the three-storey part of the Stratford Workshops and the proposed 
extension would not be visible above four-storey element of the building.  

10.22. The proposed development would provide a public benefit in terms of increased 
office floorspace that is suited to small and medium enterprises, for which there is 
demand in the local area. Whilst a significant quantum of Class B1 floorspace has 
been approved and is being developed within Stratford City, that floorspace is 
generally single-occupier floorspace, and is not targeted at small to medium sized 
businesses. The additional 816sqm of modern office floorspace that would be 
provided at the extended fourth and fifth floors has the potential to provide up to 
an additional 130 desk spaces (as shown on the submitted floorplans). The 
applicant has estimated that the proposed development would generate 90 
additional full-time equivalent jobs.  

10.23. Whilst officers accept the advice from MOLA that there would be less than 
substantial harm to the non-designated heritage asset, the harm is not considered 
to be sufficient to justify refusal of the planning application. On balance, and in 
accordance with part 135 of the NPPF, officers consider the public benefit of the 
additional modern office space that is suitable for small to medium enterprises 
outweighs the less than substantial harm that has been identified to the non-
designated heritage asset. 

Design and appearance  

10.24. London Plan policy 7.4 advises that buildings should provide a high-quality design 
response that has regard to the pattern and grain of existing spaces and streets in 
orientation, scale, proportion and mass. Policy 7.6 advises that buildings should 
be of the highest quality and be of a proportion, composition, scale and orientation 
that enhances, activates and appropriately defines the public realm. Building 
should comprise details and materials that complement the local architectural 
character.  

10.25. LLDC Local Plan policy BN.1 advises that developments will be considered 
acceptable where they respond to place in accordance with the following 
principles:  

· Relate well to the area’s defining natural and man-made landscape features; 

· Respect existing typologies within the urban fabric, including those of heritage 
value; and 

· Enhance the architectural and historic setting within which the development is 
proposed. 

Page 252



10.26. Officers note that the ground floor and first floor alterations of the proposed 
development have already been granted planning permission under reference 
17/00368/FUL (as amended by 18/00200/VAR).   

10.27. In approving the reserved matters application for the development in 2001 the 
London Borough of Newham planning officer advised in their officers’ report that: 

“Buildings 2a (the bic building) and 3 have been designed to reflect the nearby Stratford 
Workshops in terms of verticality and fenestration and the use of sympathetic 
materials on these buildings (blue engineering bricks on 2a and grey terracotta 
cladding on 3) and the heights correspond to the Stratford Workshops as 
required by the initial brief.” (Officer comment: Building 2a is the application site, 
and Building 3 is 10 Burford Road).  

10.28. It is clear from the above statement that the design intent for the existing 
development was for the heights to largely correspond with the Stratford 
Workshops, with the Stratford Workshops being approximately 2m higher (the 
heights of the existing buildings are discussed in more detail at paragraph 10.18 
and 10.19 above). Consideration must be given as to whether it is now acceptable 
for the height of the development to exceed that of the Stratford Workshops and it 
is necessary to assess the resultant impact upon the streetscape.  

10.29. The prevailing height of the buildings in Burford Road is generally four storeys 
commercial, or six storeys residential with a seventh floor setback. The proposed 
development would result in a six-storey building that would be similar (50cm 
higher) to the height of the residential building at Burford Road, with the exception 
of the AC enclosure which is 1.8m above the top of the building. The top floor of 
the building would be set back, which would help to reduce the bulk of the building 
from the Burford Road streetscene.  

10.30. Whilst the proposed building would differ from the initial design intent outlined in 
the 2001 London Borough of Newham report, Stratford has undergone significant 
change during this time and the proposed development needs to be considered in 
the context of the modern Stratford environment.  

10.31. Part 12.5 of the Local Plan sets out that the prevailing building height within 
Stratford is 30m (with the exception of sites on Stratford High Street, for which the 
height is 27m), and the proposed building at 21.5 (23m to the top of the AC 
enclosure) is comfortably within this. Within the Burford Road context, the building 
would be similar in height to number 10 Burford Road, which has a height of 21m 
to the top of the seventh floor and 22.8m to the top of the lift overrun.  

10.32. Officers are satisfied that the proposed increase in height is consistent with policies 
7.4 and 7.6 of The London Plan as the increased bulk and massing of the building 
is of a scale that is proportionate and contextually appropriate to the Burford Road 
streetscape and to the modern Stratford environment.  

10.33. The proposed development is considered to be consistent with policy BN.1 of the 
LLDC Local Plan as the extended building would respect the urban fabric of Burford 
Road.  

10.34. The existing fourth floor does not extend along the entire length of the building, and 
the proposed development therefore essentially involves a part single storey part 
two storey extension, with the existing fifth storey proposed to be demolished and 
rebuilt. The proposed extension thus represents an increase in height of 2.3m 
above the existing maximum height of the building (increasing to 4.1m to the top 
of the AC enclosure), which is not considered to be excessive or out of character 
with the surrounding streetscape.  

10.35. The application has been reviewed by LLDC Design officers who have advised that 
the massing and height of the building is acceptable and is appropriate to the 

Page 253



character of Burford Road and that the overall approach to materials and 
architectural expression is acceptable.  

10.36. Comments made by the Design officer relating to accessible toilets, the cycle store 
layout, the proposed fins and materials have been addressed by the applicant and 
revised plans have been submitted.  

Neighbouring amenity 

10.37. London Plan policy 7.6 advises that buildings and structures should not cause 
unacceptable harm to the amenity of surrounding land and buildings, particularly 
residential buildings, in relation to privacy, and overshadowing.  

10.38. Policy BN.1 of the LLDC Local Plan advises that developments should minimise 
impact upon proposed and existing development by preventing overshadowing 
and an unacceptable loss of daylight, sunlight and privacy. Policy BN.11 advises 
that developments should minimise the effect of noise on amenity.  

10.39. Letters of objection have been received from 13 occupants from the neighbouring 
residential block to the south at 10 Burford Road. The neighbouring amenity issues 
raised include loss of daylight and sunlight, loss of privacy and increased 
overlooking, reduced security, construction impacts, noise, nuisance and 
disturbance. As well as assessing residential amenity, officers also consider it to 
be necessary to assess the impact of the development upon the commercial 
development known as the Stratford Workshops with regard to daylight and 
sunlight.  

Daylight and sunlight  

10.40. Objections have been received by neighbouring occupiers in relation to the impact 
of the development upon daylight, sunlight and overshadowing. The applicant as 
submitted a daylight and sunlight report (DSR) for the proposed development that 
assesses the impact upon the residential properties at 10 Burford Road and upon 
the Stratford Workshops.  

10.41. The report has considered the impact upon the vertical sky component (VSC) and 
the no-sky line (NSL). VSC is a ‘spot’ measure of the daylight reaching the mid-
point of a window from an overcast sky. It represents the amount of visible sky that 
can be seen from that reference point, from over and around an obstruction in front 
of the window. BRE guidance advises that if the VSC is greater than 27% then 
enough skylight should still be reaching the window of the existing building. An 
assessment of daylight distribution has also been included, which is an 
assessment of light penetration into a room where the layouts are known. With 
respect to daylight reduction, it should be noted that BRE guidelines state that a 
20% reduction is the threshold for a materially noticeable change.  

10.42. NSL is a measure of the distribution of diffuse daylight within a room. The NSL 
simply follows the division between those parts of a room that can receive some 
direct skylight from those that cannot. 

10.43. With respect to daylight, the DSR has assessed the impact upon 17 sensitive 
windows serving 17 habitable rooms at 10 Burford Road that could be potentially 
affected by the proposed development. The DSR has concluded that all 17 would 
accord with the BRE guidelines for VSC and NSL. In terms of sunlight, the report 
concludes that there would be no material alteration in sunlight to any potentially 
affected windows or rooms at 10 Burford Road. Accordingly, officers are satisfied 
that there would not be any undue impact upon daylight or sunlight to the 
residential properties at 10 Burford Road and that the proposed development is 
acceptable in this regard. The DSR has been reviewed by PPDT’s technical 
consultants who have confirmed that its findings are acceptable.    

Page 254



10.44. The impact upon the Stratford Workshops needs to be considered in the context 
of the building being in commercial use as well as that BRE guidelines are intended 
to be used flexibly and should be viewed in the context of specific site constraints 
such as the dense urban environment of the application site.  

10.45. The submitted DSR assesses the impact of the development upon the Stratford 
Workshops. Although the Stratford Workshops are in commercial use, BRE 
guidance advises that the ’guidelines may also be applied to any existing non-
domestic building where the occupants have a reasonable expectation of daylight’. 
Officers consider that as the building includes small workshops and some offices, 
that its occupants would have a reasonable expectation of daylight.   

10.46. In terms of daylight, the report has highlighted that of the 64 windows assessed, 
59 would meet the VSC daylight criteria. The five windows that would fall below 
the recommended criteria would experience ‘minor’ alterations in VSC of between 
20% and 21.5%, which are only just above the 20% allowed for by the BRE 
guidelines.  

10.47. Furthermore, these five windows serve three rooms, of which two would fully 
comply with the NSL criteria and retain in excess of 95% daylight distribution 
across their room areas, indicating that they would remain adequately lit.  

10.48. With respect to daylight, the DSR indicates that 48 of the 63 (76%) relevant 
windows assessed would meet the BRE guidelines for annual and winter sunlight. 
Whilst this would not be considered ideal for a residential building, for a building 
wholly in commercial use these results are considered to be acceptable.  

10.49. Officers note that a reduction in daylight and sunlight to the Stratford Works was a 
reason for refusing the previous application at this site. However, in that application 
only 21 of the 64 windows tested passed the VSC criteria (compared to 59 of 64 in 
this application) and 31 of 63 windows (49%) passed the annual and winter sunlight 
criteria. The reduced height of the building in this application has therefore 
significantly improved the daylight and sunlight results to the Stratford Workshops 
to a level that the results are now considered to officers to be acceptable.  

Security  

10.50. Objections have been received that the proposed door that would provide access 
to the proposed green roof above the fourth floor at the southern end of the building 
would pose a security risk. The applicant has confirmed that this door is for 
maintenance purposes and would only be accessible by building security and 
management staff. The door would not be an escape or emergency door and would 
be locked at all times (with the exception of any maintenance that is taking place). 
Officers are satisfied that the security concerns could be overcome by a condition 
requiring that the door can only be accessed by security or maintenance personnel.  

Loss of privacy 

10.51. Concern has been raised by neighbouring occupiers that the proposed 
development would result in a loss of privacy and increased overlooking. The south 
facing elevation of the sixth floor would not contain any windows and there are no 
overlooking or privacy concerns in that regard.  

10.52. New windows are proposed to the southern elevation, which could have views from 
workspace towards existing terraces, though they would be oblique; and there 
would not be any direct overlooking to any habitable rooms. To reduce any 
potential overlooking, the applicant proposes to install projecting fins to these fifth 
and sixth floor windows and officers are satisfied that this would restrict any 
overlooking. A planning condition is proposed to ensure that the fins are installed 
prior to occupation of the extension.   

Page 255



10.53. To prevent the potential for the proposed green roof area to be used as an amenity 
space that would result in overlooking to neighbouring residential properties, a 
planning condition is proposed to restrict the use of this area to maintenance 
purposes only and specifying that it is not to be used as an amenity space.  

Overbearing impact and outlook 

10.54. Objections have been received that the proposed development would be 
overbearing and would result in a loss of outlook. Whilst private views are not a 
material planning consideration, loss of outlook can occur where development 
would have an adverse overbearing effect that would result in an unduly 
oppressive living environment.  

10.55. To reduce the impact upon residents of 10 Burford Road the sixth floor of the 
proposed extension has been set in from the southern boundary by between 
approximately 6m (to the main southern elevation) and 3.5m (to the lift core). This 
means that the distance from the edge of the living room window of the sixth floor 
flat to the edge of the proposed extended fifth floor is between 8.5m and 10.8m. 
The proposed flat green roof would also help to soften the appearance of the 
proposed development.  

10.56. Officers consider this separation between the two buildings to be acceptable, 
particularly as the two buildings would be similar in height and it is concluded that 
the development would not unacceptably affect outlook or be overbearing to 
residents.  

Fumes, noise and odour 

10.57. The proposed development includes the provision of ventilation and smoke 
extraction vents at roof level. The applicant has submitted a ventilation statement 
that indicates that these vents are associated with the proposed toilet facilities and 
sixth floor kitchen. The ventilation statement advises that these vents and exhausts 
would be designed and located to minimise any detrimental odour impacts upon 
neighbouring properties and officers are satisfied that the proposed development 
would not result in a fume or odour nuisance.  

10.58. The application proposes to locate air-conditioning condensers at rooftop level, 
and these would be housed within a louvered acoustic screen. The AC condensers 
would be located at the northern end of the roof, 41 metres to the nearest 
residential windows and 25 metres to the nearest windows at the Stratford 
Workshops. The applicant has submitted an acoustic assessment that concludes 
that the noise emissions from the proposed roof plant would not have a detrimental 
impact upon the occupants of the Stratford Workshops or upon the nearest 
residential occupiers. Officers agree with this assessment and a condition is 
recommended to restrict noise levels emitted from any plant or equipment.  

Nuisance from proposed café use 

10.59. Objections have been received that the proposed café use would result in 
additional nuisance in terms of noise, odour and litter. The proposed café use 
would not include any primary cooking facilities and therefore no extraction units 
are proposed. A café use is not generally considered to be a noisy activity. The 
applicant has advised that the café management would be responsible for clearing 
any litter in the immediate vicinity of the site. Waste and recycling for the café use 
would be the same facilities used for the wider development. Officers are satisfied 
that the proposed café use would not result in any undue nuisance.  

Impacts during construction process  

10.60. Objections have been received regarding the construction impacts of the 
development upon nearby residents. Whilst there is the potential for there to be 

Page 256



noise and disturbance to neighbouring occupiers during the construction process, 
this would not amount to a reason to withhold planning permission as these 
impacts would be temporary. Also, a construction management plan is proposed 
to be secured through a planning condition.   

Neighbouring amenity summary  

10.61. In light of the above assessment, officers are satisfied that the potential 
neighbouring amenity impacts of the development could be mitigated by planning 
conditions and that the proposal is consistent with policy 7.6 of The London Plan 
and policy BN.1 of the Local Plan.  

Transport  

Loss of car parking spaces  

10.62. Policy T.3 of the LLDC Local Plan advises that new development should ensure 
that impacts upon public transport and the highway network be minimised and that 
developments should have no or minimum levels of car parking. Policy T.8 states 
that car parking should be a low level that is appropriate to its location.  

10.63. The application site has excellent public transport accessibility, being located 100m 
from Stratford High Street DLR station and 450m from Stratford Regional Station 
and the site has the highest possible PTAL rating of 6b, which is considered 
‘excellent’. The site is also well connected to five bus routes that run along Stratford 
High Street and Burford Road links in to the cycle superhighway.  

10.64. The proposed development would see the loss of 12 off street car parking spaces, 
with the spaces being converted into additional commercial floorspace. Because 
of the site’s ‘excellent’ connections to public transport the loss of these car parking 
spaces is acceptable. Officers note that the loss of car parking is supported by TfL 
and is consistent with Local Plan policies.  

10.65. On-street car parking is available on Burford Road, although a permit is required 
between 10am and 12 noon Monday to Friday. Temporary parking for a two-hour 
period is also available on the public highway immediately outside of the site 
between 6am and 10pm. Officers are satisfied that the loss of car parking is 
acceptable in this location and would encourage sustainable modes of travel. Car 
parking is available within the public highway should it be required, and occupants 
could apply to the Highway Authority for a business parking permit.  

10.66. The ground floor plan indicates that a Blue Badge parking space is proposed 
outside of the entrance to the building. As this space is outside of the red-lined 
application site, this would need to be agreed with the Highway Authority. The 
provision of a Blue Badge space and reinstatement of the footpath are proposed 
to be included within the legal agreement for the development.  

10.67. Objections were received from neighbouring occupiers that the loss of car parking 
spaces would result in additional traffic and car parking stress. Given the excellent 
public transport connections it is not anticipated that occupants would to drive to 
the site. It is also noted that the application site is within a Controlled Parking Zone 
and a permit would be required from Newham Council to park in the surrounding 
streets during restricted hours.  

 Cycle parking  

10.68. Policy T.9 of the LLDC Local Plan states that parking provision for cyclists should 
exceed London Plan standards. Cycle parking should be in a safe and secure 
location and work place cycle facilities should include adequate levels of showering 
and changing facilities.  

Page 257



10.69. The proposed development would provide 1,319sqm of additional Class B1 
floorspace. When assessed against the cycle parking standards contained within 
table 6.3 The London Plan, which requires one long-stay cycle parking space per 
90sqm of Class B1a floorspace, and one short-stay space per 500sqm; this would 
equate to the need for 15 long-stay and eight short-stay cycling parking spaces. If 
the existing and proposed floorspace (total 4,078sqm) are assessed together then 
the requirement would be for 45 long-stay and eight short-stay cycle parking 
spaces.  

10.70. Officers note that the existing development does not provide any dedicated cycle 
parking spaces and that this application proposes a dedicated secure cycle store 
for 40 cycle parking spaces at ground level, as well as changing, showering and 
storage facilities and this exceeds the requirement for the additional floorspace that 
is proposed. Given that the existing development does not provide any cycle 
parking, officers are satisfied that the proposal for 40 spaces is acceptable and 
represents a significant improvement on the existing situation.  

10.71. The submitted Travel Plan states that the cycle store would be for use by tenants 
and visitors, with visitors to the site given access via the reception. Given the nature 
of the use and the potential for short-stay visits by cycle couriers or visitors to the 
site officers consider it important that the proposal include short stay cycle parking 
within the public realm. The London Plan requirement for the site as a whole would 
be for eight short-stay cycle parking spaces and the applicant has agreed for this 
to be included within the heads of terms for the legal agreement, should permission 
be approved.  

Inclusive design 

10.72. Policy BN.5 of the LLDC Local Plan states that non-residential proposals will be 
acceptable where they respond to the needs of all users and provide an accessible 
and inclusive environment.  

10.73.  The proposed ground floor of the development would have a level threshold and 
the lift would provide step free access to the upper floors. An accessible shower 
and two accessible toilets are also proposed at ground floor level.  

10.74. The upper floors of the development currently indicate that each floor would 
provide a unisex accessible WC and the applicant and officers are satisfied that 
the development is consistent with policy BN.5 of the Local Plan.  

Flooding  

10.75. The application site is located within Flood Zone 3 but is within an area that benefits 
from flood defences. The applicant has submitted a flood risk assessment that 
concludes that the risk from any flood event is low and can be overcome by 
mitigation measures in the event of a flood.  

10.76. It is noted that the Flood Risk Assessment has been reviewed by the Environment 
Agency, who have not raised an objection to the proposed development. The 
London Borough of Newham have advised that insufficient surface water drainage 
information has been submitted and they have suggested a condition requiring the 
submission of a drainage strategy for the site. Officers are satisfied that if planning 
permission were to be granted that the concerns raised by LB Newham could be 
satisfactorily controlled by a planning condition. 

10.77. PPDT’s technical consultants have also reviewed the FRA and are satisfied with 
its content. If permission were to be granted, a condition would be imposed 
requiring the submission of a ‘Safe access and egress strategy’. Subject to this, 
officers are satisfied that the development would not pose any unacceptable 
flooding risks and consider that the proposal is consistent with policy S.8 of the 
LLDC Local Plan.  

Page 258



Sustainability, Energy and Biodiversity  

10.78. Policy S.4 of the LLDC Local Plan requires proposals for development to 
demonstrate that they achieve the highest levels standards of sustainable design 
and construction. The policy advises that non-domestic space will be required to 
demonstrate that it is capable of achieving a minimum of BREEAM 2011 ‘Very 
Good’ rating.  

10.79. The applicant has submitted an Energy and Sustainability Statement that advises 
that the proposal is consistent with the relevant policies from 5.2 to 5.9 of The 
London Plan. The Statement advises that the development is not proposing to 
accommodate any on-site renewables, though a carbon off-set contribution of 
£4,953.60 would be made through the legal agreement to bring the emissions to 
below the Target Emission Rate.  

10.80. The application proposes a high efficiency variable refrigerant flow heat pump 
system that would serve the retained floors and would result in reduced carbon 
dioxide emissions and comply with the requirements for consequential 
improvements to carbon dioxide emissions.  

10.81. The Energy and Sustainability Statement also advises that a BREAAM pre-
assessment has been completed that indicates that the development would 
achieve a ‘Very Good’ rating. Further details for the BREEAM assessment are 
proposed to be secured by planning condition, and this would include both the 
refurbished floors and the proposed extension.   

10.82. Policy BN.3 of the LLDC Local Plan requires developments to maximise 
opportunities to protect and enhance biodiversity and that developments provide a 
net gain in the extent of habitat suitable for species to thrive. The proposed 
development would enhance the existing biodiversity through the provision of a 
first floor planted terrace and a green roof on the area of flat roof above the fourth 
floor.  

10.83. In light of the above assessment, it is considered that the proposed development 
would satisfy the energy, sustainability and biodiversity policies of The London 
Plan and the LLDC Local Plan.  

Heads of Terms  

10.84. Policy 8.2 of The London Plan advises that planning obligations should be secured 
to address strategic and local priorities. This is supported by the LLDC Planning 
Obligations SPD which sets out the approach that LLDC will take in relation to s106 
agreements.  

10.85.  It is considered that the following matters should be secured through a legal 
agreement.  

· Carbon off-set contribution of £4953.60; 

· Blue Badge parking space provision; 

· Provision of eight short-stay cycle parking spaces within the public realm; 

· Highways agreement to reinstate the footway and remove the crossover and 
dropped kerb. 

11. HUMAN RIGHTS & EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1. Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 as 
they relate to the application and the conflicting interests of the Applicants and any 
third party opposing the application in reaching their decisions. The provisions of 
the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the processing of the 

Page 259



application and the preparation of this report. In particular, Article 6 (1), of the 
European Convention on Human Rights in relation civil rights and a fair hearing; 
Article 8 of the ECHR in relation to the right to respect for private and family life 
and Article 1 Protocol 1 of the ECHR in relation to the protection of property have 
all been taken into account 

11.2. In addition, the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in respect 
of certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and sexual orientation. 
It places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to have due regard to the 
advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers including planning powers. 
Officers have taken this into account in the assessment of the application and 
Members must be mindful of this duty inter alia when determining all planning 
applications. In particular Members must pay due regard to the need to: 

· Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

· Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and 

· Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

11.3. Officers are satisfied that the application material and Officers’ assessment has 
taken into account these issues. 

12. CONCLUSION  

12.1. The proposed alterations to the ground and first floors to third floors of the building 
are considered to be acceptable and are consistent with the development that was 
approved under reference 17/00368/FUL (as varied by 18/00200/VAR).  

12.2. The proposal to demolish the existing fourth floor of the building and to erect a two-
storey extension to create a six-storey building would result in a building that is 
consistent with the prevailing height of Burford Road and that is very similar in 
height to the neighbouring building at 10 Burford Road. Officers are satisfied with 
the bulk, massing, height, scale and appearance of the proposed building and that 
it would not detract from the character and appearance of the Burford Road 
streetscene.  

12.3. PPDT’s heritage consultants (MOLA) have identified that the proposal would have 
minimal impact upon the setting of the conservation area and that no key views of 
the conservation area would be affected and the proposal satisfies paragraph 132 
of the NPPF. MOLA have also identified that the proposal would have a minor 
adverse impact, that would be less than substantial harm to the setting and 
significance of the Stratford Workshops, which are a non-designated heritage 
asset. Paragraph 135 of the NPPF advises that where there is an effect upon the 
significance of a non-designated heritage asset that a balanced judgement will be 
required having regard to the scale of any harm and the significance of the heritage 
asset.  

12.4. The benefits of the proposal have been considered, including the provision of 
additional Class B1 workspace that would be suitable to small and medium sized 
businesses. It is the view of officers that the level of less than significant harm 
caused to the Stratford Workshops is not sufficient to justify the refusal of planning 
permission, particularly as the building would be similar in scale and height to the 
neighbouring building at 10 Burford Road. On balance, it is considered that the 

Page 260



public benefit of the additional business floorspace outweighs the less than 
substantial harm that would be caused to the Stratford Workshops.  

12.5. The daylight and sunlight impacts of the development upon the Stratford 
Workshops have been assessed and officers are satisfied that the minor 
alterations are to an acceptable level that would not have a material impact upon 
those commercial workspaces.  

12.6. Officers have assessed the impact of the proposed development upon the 
neighbouring residential development at 10 Burford Road and are of the view that 
there would not be any unacceptable harm caused to the residential amenity of 
those occupants. Any potential issues can be addressed through suitably worded 
planning conditions and the proposal is considered to be acceptable in this regard.  

12.7. The application has been assessed against the reasons for refusing the previous 
application (reference 17/00552/FUL), which related to the massing and 
appearance of the building, the impact upon the Stratford Workshops, the impact 
upon neighbouring amenity and a significant reduction of daylight and sunlight to 
the Stratford Workshops. Officers are satisfied that the current scheme has 
overcome those reasons for refusal, as outlined in the report above. Accordingly, 
it is recommended that the application be approved, subject to the conditions set 
out below and the heads of terms for the legal agreement set out at parts 10.84 
and 10.85 of this report.  

13. PLANNING CONDITIONS 

Conditions:  

1. The development hereby permitted (hereinafter referred to as the "Development") 

shall be commenced (meaning initiated as defined in section 56(4) of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, hereinafter referred to as "Commenced") before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

(as amended). 

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following details and 

plan numbers: 

[To be inserted] 

and the description of the development contained in the application and any other 

plans, drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which may have been 

approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to this condition. 

Reason: To ensure that the development is undertaken in accordance with the 

approved drawings. 

Acoustic Screen 

3. The fourth and fifth floors of the development hereby permitted shall not be occupied 

until an acoustic screen for the air conditioning units has been first installed.. The 

acoustic screen shall thereafter be permanently retained and maintained.  

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential occupiers. 

 

Page 261



External Materials 

4. The external materials used in the carrying out of this permission shall match the 

original external materials in type, colour, dimensions, and in the case of brickwork, 

bond and coursing and pointing. 

Reason: To ensure that the new works blend in with the existing building, in the 

interest of visual amenity..  

Aluminium Louvres 

5. The fourth and fifth floors of the develoment hereby permitted shall not be occupied 

until the aluminium louvers for the air conditioning condenser acoustic enclosure 

have been provided as powdercoated, in a colour to match the fifth floor window 

frames. The aluminim louvers shall thereafter be retained and maintained. 

Reason: To ensure that the new works blend in with the existing building in the 

interest of the visual amenity.  

6. The fourth and fifth floor levels of the development hereby permitted shall not be 

occupied until the projecting fins to the rear elevation shown have been installed. The 

projecting fins shall thereafter be permanently retained.  

Reason: To ensure that there is no unacceptable overlooking to neighbouring 

occupants.  

Flood Risk Assessment 

7. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out, and thereafter retained, in 

accordance with the approved Flood Risk Assessment prepared by RJ Fillingham 

Associated Ltd with project reference number 17-041 FRA dated August 2017. 

Reason: To ensure the development is designed safely in reference to flood risk. 

8. Prior to occupation of the development, the applicant shall provide a detailed Flood 

Emergency Plan in line with the recommendations in the FRA and R&D Technical 

Report FD2320/TR2. 

Reason: To ensure the development has an plan in place for a flooding emergency.  

Surface Water Drainage  

9. No works relating to the development hereby permitted at roof level (with the 
exception of the demolition of the existing fifth floor) shall be commenced until the 
following information has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority (in consultation with the Lead Local Flooding Authority): 

i. a surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage 
principles and an assessment of the hydrological and hydro-geological 
context of the development;  

ii. details of how the proposed surface water drainage scheme will be 
maintained; and 

Page 262



iii. a drainage scheme nominating the ownership, management and 
maintenance arrangements. 

The submitted drainage strategy shall demonstrate the surface water run-off 
generated up to and including the 100 years plus Climate Change critical storm 
period will not exceed the run-off from the undeveloped site following the 
corresponding rainfall event. 

Proposed ‘brownfield’ redevelopments classed as major development are required 
to reduce post development runoff rates for events up to and including the 1 in 100 
year return period, with an allowance for climate change (i.e. additional 40%), to not 
more than three times the calculated greenfield rate (calculated in accordance with 
IoH124). It is recommended that a SuDS treatment train is utilised to assist in this 
reduction 

A completed ‘Newham Surface Water Drainage Pro-forma for new Developments 
form’ shall be completed with required detail and submitted for approval by the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with the Lead Local Flooding Authority. 

The development shall only be implemented in accordance with the details approved 
above. 

Reason: To safeguard the public from surface water flood risk, protect the 
environment and respond to climate change. With regard to policy S.8 of the Local 
Plan; Policy 5.3, 5.12, 5.13, 5.14 of The London Plan and paragraphs 103 and 109 
of NPPF. 

Drainage – Verification Report 

10. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a verification report 
stating what works were undertaken, and that the drainage scheme was completed 
in accordance with the approved drainage strategy, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To safeguard the public from surface water flood risk, protect the 
environment and respond to climate change. With regard to policy S.8 of the Local 
Plan; Policy 5.3, 5.12, 5.13, 5.14 of The London Plan and paragraphs 103 and 109 
of NPPF. 

Travel Plan Statement 

11.  

a) Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied, the applicant shall 

submit in writing and obtain the written approval of the Local Planning Authority 

to a Travel Plan Statement setting out the proposed measures to be taken to 

encourage the use of modes of transport other than the car by all users of the 

building, including staff and visitors. 

b) At the start of the second year of operation of the approved Travel Plan Statement 

a detailed survey showing the methods of transport used by all those users of the 

building to and from the site and how this compares with the proposed measures 

and any additional measures to be taken to encourage the use of public transport, 

walking and cycling to the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority and the development shall not be carried out 

otherwise in accordance with any such approval given. 

Page 263



Reason: In order to encourage sustainable means of travel. 

Noise 

12. Noise emitted by all building services plant and vents shall not exceed a level 10dBA 

below the existing lowest LA90(10min) background noise level at any time when the 

plant is operating, and where the source is tonal it shall not exceed a level 15dBA 

below. The noise emitted shall be measured or predicted at 1.0m from the facade of 

the nearest residential premises or at 1.2m above any adjacent residential garden, 

terrace, balcony or patio. The plant shall be serviced regularly in accordance with the 

manufacturer's instructions and as necessary to ensure that the requirements of the 

condition are maintained. If at any time the plant is determined by the local planning 

authority to be failing to comply with this condition, it shall be switched off upon written 

instruction from the local planning authority and not used again until it is able to 

comply.  

Reason: To prevent any significant disturbance to residents of nearby properties.  

Green Roof  

13. The development hereby permitted shall not proceed beyond superstructure level 
until a detailed drawing, full specifications and a detailed management and 
maintenance plan of the green roof with a substrate depth of no less than 80mm, not 
including the vegetative mat have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the details thus approved and shall be fully implemented before the 
premises are first occupied. 

Reason: To promote biodiversity at the site and to assist in reducing surface water 
run-off. 

The green roof area shall not be used as an amenity space or sitting out area at any 
time and shall only be accessed for maintenance purposes only. With the exception 
of access for maintenance purposes, the door to the green roof shall be kept locked 
at all times and shall be accessible by building management or maintenance staff 
only. Tenants and/or occupants of the building shall not be provided access to the 
green roof at any time.   

Reason: To prevent unauthorised access to the green roof and in the interests of 
security and privacy.  

Cycle Storage 

14. The fourth and fifth floor levels of the development hereby approved shall not be 
occupied until the cycle storage facilities as shown on drawing 1343-01-001A have 
been provided; and thereafter such facilities shall be retained and the space used for 
no other purpose. 

Reason: To ensure that satisfactory safe and secure bicycle parking is provided and 
retained for the benefit of the users and occupiers of the building. 

BREEAM 

15. The demolition of the existing fourth floor shall not commence until an interim 
BREEAM certificate has been provided to the Local Planning Authority 
demonstrating that the existing building and the roof level extension hereby permitted 

Page 264



have been registered with the BRE and have achieved an interim BREEAM rating(s) 
of Very Good or above. 

Within three months of practical completion of the existing building’s refurbishment 
and the roof level extension, a final BREEAM certificate shall be provided to the Local 
Planning Authority demonstrating that a final BREEAM rating(s) of Very Good or 
above have been achieved for the refurbishment and the roof level extension. 

Reason: To ensure that high standards of sustainability are achieved and in 

accordance with policies 5.2, 5.3, 5.4A, 5.6, 5.7 and 5.9 of The London Plan and 

policies S.2 and S.3 of the Local Plan.  

Construction Management Plan 

16. The demolition of the existing fourth floor shall not commence until a construction 
management plan (CMP), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Construction Management Plan shall be in accordance with 
all relevant legislation in force and substantially in accordance with all policy adopted 
and best practice guidance published at the time of submission. The CMP shall 
include as a minimum the following information:  

· The arrangements for liaison with the relevant highway authorities;  

· The arrangements for the temporary or permanent relocation of bus stops (if 
required); 

· The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  

· The loading and unloading of plant and materials including a construction 
logistics plan;  

· The storage of plant and materials use in constructing the development;  

· The erection and maintenance of security hoardings;  

· Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;  

· A scheme for recycling and disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction work;  

· Dealing with complaints and community liaison;  

· Attendance as necessary at the LLDC Construction Co-ordination Group  

· Details of routes and access for construction traffic. Including lorry holding areas; 
and  

· Guidance on membership of the Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme and 
implementation of vehicle safety measures and driver training including cycle 
awareness and an on road cycle module.  

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure that the construction of the development uses best 
practicable means to minimise adverse environmental impacts. 

Ventilation 

17. Prior to the occupation of the development, full details of any and all mechanical 
systems including but not limited to heating, cooling, controls, fire systems, means of 
escape, ventilation/extraction or other associated plant equipment, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted 
details shall include full calculations, heating, cooling & ventilation. Equipment data 

Page 265



sheets & specifications of all filtration, deodorising systems, noise output and 
termination points, along with full details of the routing of the mechanical ventilation 
and the passive provision of associated ducting including scaled plans. Particular 
attention shall be given to the potential high-level discharge of kitchen extract air and 
the discharge of toxic or odoriferous extract air where a high level of discharge is 
usually essential. Reference shall be had to Guidance on the Control of Odour and 
Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Systems published by DEFRA. The 
development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The 
approved details shall be implemented prior to the first use of the building by the 
general public and shall thereafter be permanently maintained to the satisfaction of 
the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbours and the safety of future building 
occupants. 

Informatives: 

 

1. The applicant is advised that the works to the highway to provide the Blue Badge 
parking space require the approval of the London Borough of Newham as the 
local highway authority. Please contact the London Borough of Newham on 0208 
430 2000 or enquiries@newham.gov.uk.  

 

 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1 – Existing Front Elevation  

Appendix 2 –  Existing Rear Elevation 

Appendix 3 –  Existing North Elevation 

Appendix 4 –  Existing South Elevation 

Appendix 5 – Proposed Front Elevation 

Appendix 6 – Proposed Rear Elevation 

Appendix 7 –  Proposed South Elevation 

Appendix 8 – Proposed North Elevation 

Appendix 9 – Façade design  

Appendix 10 – Site photograph looking south 

Appendix 11 – Site photograph looking north  

Page 266



10 Stamos Yeoh architects

Existing Elevations
4
0
3
5

3
5
6
8

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
5
1
3

5450 6000 6000 6000 6000 6000 6000 6000

A B C D E F G H I

Roof Level

FFL 4th Floor

FFL 3rd Floor

FFL 2nd Floor

FFL 1st Floor

FFL Ground Floor

Datum

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

Sm
artb

lock
s.co

.uk 
©

Sm
artb

lock
s.co

.uk 
©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

2 Cam Road Application Site Carpark Beyond

Light Light
CCTV

Sign Sign

Sign Sign

Existing Front Elevation 
1343 / ELE / 001

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200 @ A3

P
a
g

e
 2

6
7



P
a
g
e

 2
6
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



11 Stamos Yeoh architects

54506000600060006000600060006000

ABCDEFGHI

2 Cam RoadApplication SiteCarpark

Railing Railing

Light Light

Vent

Vent

Vent

Sign

4
0
3
5

3
5
6
8

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
5
1
3

Roof Level

FFL 4th Floor

FFL 3rd Floor

FFL 2nd Floor

FFL 1st Floor

FFL Ground Floor

Datum

Sign Sign

Sign

Light Light Light Light Light

Existing Rear Elevation 
1343 / ELE / 002

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200 @ A3

P
a
g

e
 2

6
9



P
a
g
e

 2
7
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



12 Stamos Yeoh architects

Existing South Elevation 
1343 / ELE / 003

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200 @ A3

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Application SiteBurford RoadStratford WorkshopsRailway Carpark

7500 6000 5150

1 2 3 4

4
0
3
5

3
5
6
8

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
5
1
3

Roof Level

FFL 4th Floor

FFL 3rd Floor

FFL 2nd Floor

FFL 1st Floor

FFL Ground Floor

Datum

P
a
g

e
 2

7
1



P
a
g
e

 2
7
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



13 Stamos Yeoh architects

Existing South Elevation 
1343 / ELE / 004

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200 @ A3

1234

750060005150

4
0
3
5

3
5
6
8

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
7
5
0

3
5
1
3

Roof Level

FFL 4th Floor

FFL 3rd Floor

FFL 2nd Floor

FFL 1st Floor

FFL Ground Floor

Datum

2 Cam Road Application Site Stratford Workshops RailwayCarpark Burford Road

0 1 2

P
a
g

e
 2

7
3



P
a
g
e

 2
7
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



30 Stamos Yeoh architects

Proposed Elevations

Proposed Front (North East) Elevation
1343 / 03/011 A (plant enclosure reduced - 10/07/2018)

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200@ A3

Cyclist entranceMetal louvered facade

to refuse storeNew main entrance
 New Glazed facade

New main entrance

6610 mm

New Extension

Twin lift shaft overrun Aluminium louvered

AC condenser acoustic

enclosure 1.8m high

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

Sm
artb

lock
s.co

.uk 
©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

5450 6000 6000 6000 6000 6000 6000 6000

A B C D E F G H I

Datum

SSL 7.200mm

First Floor

SSL 10.950mm

Second Floor

SSL 14.700mm

Third Floor

SSL 18.450mm

Fourth Floor

SSL 21.520mm

Fifth Floor

SSL 24.590mm

Roof

FFL 7.410mm

FFL 11.160mm

FFL 14.910mm

FFL 18.585mm

FFL 21.655mm

FFL 24.725mm

10 Burford Road 11 Burford Road Carpark

Existing height

+350 Parapet

SSL 3.7425mm

Ground Floor

FFL 3.875mm

Maintenance door

P
a
g

e
 2

7
5



P
a
g
e

 2
7
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



31 Stamos Yeoh architects

Proposed Rear (South West) Elevation
1343 / 03 / 012 A (plant enclosure reduced - 10/07/2018) 

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200 @ A3

Twin lift shaft overrun

AC condenser acoustic

enclosure 1.8m high

Rendered wall to be painted

900 mm wide windows introduced

per new storey

New first floor

terrace door

10 Burford Road11 Burford RoadCarpark

54506000600060006000600060006000

ABCDEFGHI

Datum

SSL 7.200mm

First Floor

SSL 10.950mm

Second Floor

SSL 14.700mm

Third Floor

SSL 18.450mm

Fourth Floor

SSL 21.520mm

Fifth Floor

SSL 24.590mm

Roof

+350 Parapet

FFL 7.410mm

FFL 11.160mm

FFL 14.910mm

FFL 18.585mm

FFL 21.655mm

FFL 24.725mm

Existing height

SSL 3.7425mm

Ground Floor

FFL 3.875mm

Proj � � � � � � � � � � � �

avoid overlooking

into 1 Cam Road

P
a
g

e
 2

7
7



P
a
g
e

 2
7
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



33 Stamos Yeoh architects

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Sma
rtblo

cks.
co.u

k ©

Projecting window

frames floors 4

New Render

2 Cam Road Stratford WorkshopsApplication SiteCarpark Burford Road

Existing height

1234

750060005150

Datum

SSL 7.200mm

First Floor

SSL 10.950mm

Second Floor

SSL 14.700mm

Third Floor

SSL 18.450mm

Fourth Floor

SSL 21.520mm

Fifth Floor

SSL 24.590mm

Roof

+350 Parapet

FFL 7.410mm

FFL 11.160mm

FFL 14.910mm

FFL 18.585mm

FFL 21.655mm

FFL 24.725mm

SSL 3.7425mm

Ground Floor

FFL 3.875mm

New fire escape door

 from within fire lobby

Proposed Side (South East) Elevation
1343 / 03/ 014

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200 @ A3

P
a
g

e
 2

7
9



P
a
g
e

 2
8
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



32 Stamos Yeoh architects

AC condenser acoustic

enclosure 1.8m high

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Smartblocks.co.uk ©

Existing height

Application SiteBurford RoadStratford WorkshopsRailway

Datum

1 2 3 4

7500 6000 5150

Datum

SSL 7.200mm

First Floor

SSL 10.950mm

Second Floor

SSL 14.700mm

Third Floor

SSL 18.450mm

Fourth Floor

SSL 21.520mm

Fifth Floor

SSL 24.590mm

Roof

+350 Parapet

FFL 7.410mm

FFL 11.160mm

FFL 14.910mm

FFL 18.585mm

FFL 21.655mm

FFL 24.725mm

2 Cam Road

SSL 3.7425mm

Ground Floor

FFL 3.875mm

2360

Projecting fins to avoid overlooking

into 1 Cam Road's roof terrace

Proposed Side (North West) Elevation
1343 / 03 / 013

Rev. Stamos Yeoh architects

0 1m 2m 5m 10m

Scale: 1:200

Scale 1:200 @ A3

P
a
g

e
 2

8
1



P
a
g
e

 2
8
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



P
a
g

e
 2

8
3



P
a
g
e

 2
8
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



P
a
g
e
 2

8
5



P
a
g
e
 2

8
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



P
a
g
e
 2

8
7



P
a
g
e
 2

8
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Subject: Annual review of Planning Decisions Committee’s Terms of 
Reference 

Meeting date:  24 July 2018  

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anthony Hollingsworth, Director of Planning Policy & Decisions 

FOR DECISION  

This report would be considered in public 

1. SUMMARY  

1.1. This report sets out the terms of reference of the London Legacy Development 
Corporation’s (LLDC) Planning Decisions Committee for review and approval of 
proposed changes.  This follows on from an internal audit recommendation to 
regularly review the LLDC Committees’ terms of reference. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

(a) The Committee is invited to note and comment on the proposed changes 
to the terms of reference which will be submitted to the Board for 
approval.

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1. Following an internal audit review of its Governance procedures, LLDC has 
implemented an annual review of the terms of reference of each of its Committees.  
This is the first annual review for the Planning Decisions Committee.

3.2. The Planning Decisions Committee was established in December 2012.  The latest 
version of the Terms of Reference (March 2013) for the Committee are included at 
Appendix 1. 

4. PROPOSED CHANGES 

4.1. The Terms of Reference for the Planning Decisions Committee are consistent with 
those of the other LLDC Committees and, as such, it is not considered that they 
require any significant amendments. The only amendment proposed, highlighted 
by being underlined in Appendix 1, reflects the LLDC’s commitment to diversity 
and inclusion, which is to be included for all LLDC Committees. 

4.2. The proposed revisions to the Terms of Reference are included at Appendix 1 for 
comment. 

5. FINANCIAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

5.1. There are no financial implications from this report. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 289



5.2. The Localism Act, pursuant to section 198 and paragraphs 6 and 7 of Schedule 
21, allows a Mayoral development corporation to establish committees, and to 
delegate powers to them. 

5.3. The procedure for committees is set out in detail in the LLDC’s Standing Orders. 

Appendices
Appendix 1 Revised Planning Decisions Committee’s Terms of Reference  

List of Background Papers: 
Papers for the meeting of the LLDC Board 5 December 2012, Governance Review 
Papers for the meeting of the LLDC Board March 2013, Governance Review 
LLDC Standing Orders

Page 290



Appendix 1 

 
Planning Decisions Committee’s Terms of Reference (proposed changes to existing 
terms shown underlined) 

 

Status:  Taking decisions within its terms of reference.  Part VA of the Local 
Government Act 1972, which deals with access to meetings and 
documents, applies to this committee. 

Membership:   The Committee shall be appointed by the Board and shall comprise 
three Board members, five members co-opted from the Olympic Park 
boroughs (two from the London Borough of Newham, and one each 
from the London boroughs of Hackney, Tower Hamlets and Waltham 
Forest) on their nomination and four independent members agreed 
by the Board and approved by the Mayor of London.   

Substitutions will be allowed: each borough will be asked to nominate 
a named substitute for each of their nominated member/s. 

Chair: The Committee Chair shall be appointed from time to time by the 
Board.  In the absence of the Committee Chair at a meeting of the 
Committee, the Member of the Committee approved by the Chairman 
of the Corporation shall chair the meeting, or the remaining members 
present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting. 

In attendance: Other Board members (with the approval of the chair) 

Chief Executive (at his/her discretion) 

 Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director of Finance, 
Commercial and Corporate Services (at his/her discretion) 

Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 

 Subject to the rights of the public to attend meetings, attendance of 
other officers, advisers or other persons shall be at the invitation of 
the Chair for all or part of the meeting.  The Chair may authorise the 
Director of Planning Policy and Decisions or the Chief Executive to 
issue invitations generally or in specific cases. 

Secretary:  To be agreed by the Proper Officer  

Quorum:  Five members of the Committee,  

 

Frequency of meetings 

1. The Committee will meet as determined by the Committee Chair, in light of the need for 
advice and decisions.  Meetings of the Committee shall be convened by the Chief 
Executive or the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions at the request of its Chair. 

 

Purpose of the Committee  

2. To enable transparent, efficient and effective discharge of the London Legacy 
Development Corporation’s functions to determine planning applications and to respond 
to consultation on applications on which the Corporation is a consultee, and to advise the 
Board on planning policy matters 

 

Page 291



Terms of Reference and Delegated Authority 

3. The Planning Decisions Committee will take decisions in accordance with the Planning 
Scheme of Delegations, which will also set out matters that are delegated to the Director 
of Planning Decisions and Policy. 

4. Advise the Board on planning policy matters. 

5. The Committee will oversee the Corporation’s work on Diversity and Inclusion within the 
remit of its activities. 

 

Procedural and reporting arrangements 

6. The Chief Executive, Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services, and Director 
of Planning Policy and Decisions shall be entitled to attend all meetings of the 
Committee, subject to any limitations in the Planning Code of Practice. Subject to the 
rights of the public to attend meetings, attendance of other officers, advisers or other 
persons shall be at the invitation of the Chair for all or part of the meeting.  The Chair 
may authorise the Chief Executive to issue invitations generally or in specific cases, 
pursuant to Standing Order 5.2. 

7. Unless otherwise agreed, notice to each Committee member confirming the venue, time 
and date, together with an agenda of items to be discussed, shall be forwarded to each 
Committee member and any other person required to attend no later than five (5) clear 
days before the date of the meeting. 

8. The Chief Executive will nominate a secretary for the Committee (and in the case of 
absence a deputy) who shall minute the proceedings and resolutions of all Committee 
meetings, including recording the names of those present and in attendance. 

9. The Secretary or a nominated deputy shall promptly circulate the minutes of the 
meetings to all Committee members and the minutes shall be approved (or amended as 
appropriate) at the next Committee meeting. 

10. Further procedural provisions are set out in Standing Orders, and will be supplemented 
by procedural arrangements to be agreed by the Committee from time to time. 

 

Amendments 

11. Any of these procedures and terms of reference may be altered or amended from time to 
time by resolution of the Board. Notice shall be given of the proposed alteration(s) in a 
paper for the meeting of the Board at which they are to be discussed. 

 

 

Version control 
v.1.0 December 2012 Approved by LLDC Board Approved 

v.2 March 2013 Amended to reflect revised membership structure and quorum Approved 

 

Page 292



Subject: Decisions made under Delegated Authority 

Meeting date:  Tuesday 24 July 2018 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anthony Hollingsworth, Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 

FOR NOTING 

This report will be considered in public 

1. SUMMARY 

This report appends a list of all decisions taken by officers between 1 - 31 May 2018 
and 1 – 30 June 2018. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and the attached Appendix 1 and 2. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 293



Page 294

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Application 

Number
Application Type Registration Date Location Full Development Description Applicant Decision Date Decision Description Officer Name Officer Comments

18/00102/ADV Advert (Express Consent) 06/03/2018
Building S5, Endeavour Square, Westfield 

Avenue, LONDON, Stratford, E20 1GL

Application for Advertisement Consent for the display of vinyl advertisements on the 

complementary retail unit frontages, located within the ground floor of Building S5.

Stratford City Business District 

Ltd
01/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner

Proposed adverts were considered to be acceptable in 

size/design, and in the context of the building.

18/00107/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 07/03/2018

 Chestnut Plaza, Westfield Stratford City, 

Montfichet Road, Queen Elizabeth Olympic 

Park, E20 1GL

Submission of details to fully discharge condition 3 (Maintenance Strategy for Canvas Material 

Panels) of planning permission 17/00616/FUL dated 20 February 2018.
Westfield Europe Ltd 01/05/2018 Approve Sara Dawes

18/00125/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 13/03/2018 25-37 Rothbury Road, London, E9 5LN
Approval of Details submitted pursuant to Condition 9 (Material Samples) of planning 

permission reference 16/00441/FUL dated 12 December 2017.
Rothwick LLP 02/05/2018 Approve Hilary Wrenn

18/00208/NMA
Non-Material Amendment 

(Section 96A applications)
20/04/2018

Land within Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park 

and, Pudding Mill Lane, land at Bridgewater 

Road, and land at Rick Roberts Way.

Non-material amendments to planning permission 17/00236/VAR for the comprehensive, 

phased, mixed use development within the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park as authorised by 

planning permission reference 14/00036/VAR but subject to modifications to the definitions, 

conditions and annexures which were imposed on the original planning permission reference 

11/90621/OUTODA as such conditions were incorporated and modified by planning permission 

reference 14/00036/VAR. The aforementioned definitions, conditions and annexures are 

subject to non-material amendments to give effect to the slot out of the Superseded 

Development in PDZ2 and part of PDZ1

LLDC- Development 03/05/2018 Granted NMA Hilary Wrenn

This application was required to formally amend the red 

line planning application site of the 11/90621/OUTODA .  It 

did not raise any new issues not already considered by 

November 2017 PDC – UCLE planning applications, but 

advised as necessary by PPFT’s legal advisors.

17/00236/VAR
Variation of conditions (Section 

73 applications)
06/06/2017

UCL East Site, located south of the London 

Aquatics Centre, East of Waterworks River 

(Pool Street East and Pool Street West), 

South of the ArcelorMittal Orbit and South 

Plaza, between the Waterworks and City 

Mill Rivers, and railway lines further south 

(M

An application made under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended) to vary planning consent 14/00036/VAR which granted consent for the 

comprehensive, phased, mixed use development within the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park, as 

set out in the Revised Development Specification and Framework (document LCS-GLB-APP-DSF-

005 dated February 2014). The development comprising up to 641,817 sq m of residential (C3) 

uses, including up to 4,000 sq m of Sheltered Accommodation (C3); up to 14,500 sq m of hotel 

(C1) accommodation; up to 30,369 sq m (B1a) and up to 15,770 sq m (B1b/B1c) business and 

employment uses; up to 25,987 sq m (A1-A5) shopping, food and drink and financial and 

professional services; up to 3,606 sq m (D2) leisure space and up to 31,451sq m (D1) 

community, health, cultural, assembly and educational facilities, including two primary schools 

and one secondary school; new streets and other means of access and circulation, construction 

of open and covered car parking; landscaping including laying out of open space with provision 

for natural habitats and play space; new and replacement bridge crossings, re-profiling of site 

levels, demolition and breaking out of roads and hardstanding, utilities diversions and 

connections; and other supporting infrastructure works and facilities as permitted by 

permission reference 11/90621/OUTODA with varied conditions.

LLDC and University College 

London East
03/05/2018 Approve Hilary Wrenn

This was reported to committee in November 2017 and 

delegated authority given to the Director PPDT to sign on 

satisfactory completion of the necessary legal agreements.  

Therefore PDC considered the issues and granted delegated 

authority to determine.

18/00118/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 09/03/2018 25-37 Rothbury Road, London, E9 5LN
Approval of Details submitted pursuant to Condition 7 (Approval of Road Works Necessary) of 

planning permission reference 16/00441/FUL dated 12 December 2017.
Aitch Group 04/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

18/00104/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 09/03/2018
25-37 Rothbury Road, Hackney Wick, 

London, E9 5EN

Approval of Details submitted pursuant to Condition 11 (Deliveries and servicing management 

plan) of planning permission reference 16/00441/FUL.
Aitch Group 04/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

18/00127/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 14/03/2018

Zone 2, Chobham Farm Development, 

Thornham Grove, Penny Brookes Street, 

Stratford, London

Submission of details pursuant to Condition OZ.19 (Cycle parking Zones 2-5) associated with 

planning permission 12/00146/FUM as varied by 14/00439/NMA & 14/00440/NMA as it relates 

to Zone 2 of the Chobham Farm development.

Higgins Homes Plc 08/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

18/00130/LBC Listed building consent 12/03/2018
Station A, Abbey Mills Pumping Station, 

Abbey Lane, Stratford, London, E15 2RW

Application for Listed Building Consent for the polychromy re-painting of decorative iron work 

inside Station A at the Abbey Mills Sewage Pumping Station (SPS) site
Thames Water 09/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner

The proposed re-painting of decorative iron works was 

considered to significantly enhance the interior, and  would 

not detrimentally impact the character of the listed 

building. The works would serve to enhance the heritage 

asset and the significance of the Three Mills Conservation 

Area, which is considered to represent a significant public 

benefit by preserve the building and secure its long-term 

future.  Historic England, were also involved within the 

determination of the application.

18/00054/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 07/02/2018
Lee Valley Hockey And Tennis Centre, 

Leadmill Lane, LONDON, E20 3AD

Submission of details pursuant to condition PGT.28 (Temporary uses) of planning application 

09/90410/FUMODA for the proposed event layout and overlay for the Women’s Hockey World 

Cup.

LVRPA 09/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00055/FUL Full planning application 09/02/2018
Lee Valley Hockey And Tennis Centre, 

Leadmill Lane, LONDON, E20 3AD

Erection of two temporary seating stands at the main hockey pitch together with compounds 

to support the erection of the stands and details of the site overlay for the 2018 Women’s 

Hockey World Cup.

Lee Valley Regional Park 

Authority
09/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

Application for temporary seating and compounds. No 

significant issues raised, so appropriate to determine under 

delegated powers.

LLDC Delegated Decisions Report - May 2018

P
a
g

e
 2

9
5



Appendix 1
Application 

Number
Application Type Registration Date Location Full Development Description Applicant Decision Date Decision Description Officer Name Officer Comments

LLDC Delegated Decisions Report - May 2018

16/00590/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 31/10/2016 33-35 Monier Road, London, E3 2PR
submission of details pursuant to Condition 13 (Sound Insulation and Noise Mitigation- Details) 

of planning permission reference 15/00212/FUL dated 24 March 2016.
Aitch Construction Limited 09/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00113/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 16/03/2018
Chobham Farm Zone 4, Leyton Road, 

Stratford, London, E15 1DN

Submission of details pursuant to Condition AZ.22 (Surface Water Drainage) associated with 

planning permission 12/00146/FUM as varied by 14/00439/NMA & 14/00440/NMA., insofar as 

it relates to Blocks J-Q (Phase 2) of the development.

Telford Homes Plc 10/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

18/00114/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 16/03/2018
Chobham Farm Zone 4, Leyton Road, 

Stratford, London, E15 1DN

Submission of details pursuant to Condition AZ.49 (Energy demand reduction) associated with 

planning permission 12/00146/FUM as varied by 14/00439/NMA & 14/00440/NMA in so far as 

it relates to Zone 4 of Chobham Farm Development.

Telford Homes Plc 10/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

18/00080/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 21/02/2018 1-2 Hepscott Road, London, E9 5HB
Submission of details pursuant to Condition 13 (Deliveries and servicing management plan) of 

planning permission reference 15/00446/FUL dated 20 June 2016

1-2 Hepscott Road Ltd, C/O 

Agent
11/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00138/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 19/03/2018

Zone 2, Chobham Farm Development, 

Thornham Grove, Penny Brookes Street, 

Stratford, London

Submission of details pursuant to Condition AZ.49 (Energy demand reduction) associated with 

planning permission 12/00146/FUM as varied by 14/00439/NMA & 14/00440/NMA as it relates 

to Zone 2 of the Chobham Farm development.

Higgins Homes Plc 11/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

17/00499/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 19/10/2017
Unit 4, Building S6, Endeavour Square, The 

International Quarter London

Submission of details pursuant to condition 8 (Use Class A3 - H02 Grease Trap) of planning 

permission 15/00003/REM
Pret A Manger 11/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00149/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 20/03/2018

Building S5, International Quarter London 

(IQL) South, land adjacent to Westfield 

Avenue, Zone 2 Stratford City, London

Approval of Details submitted for the discharge of condition B10 (Material Samples) attached 

to the outline planning permission 10/90641/EXTODA dated 30/03/2012, insofar as it relates to 

additional plant proposed at roof level of the approved development at Building S5.

UNICEF c/o Agent 14/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner

18/00150/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 20/03/2018

Building S5, International Quarter London 

(IQL) South, land adjacent to Westfield 

Avenue, Zone 2 Stratford City, London

Approval of Details submitted for the discharge of condition 2 (Detailed Drawings) attached to 

planning permission 15/00002/REM dated 29/10/2015, insofar as it relates to additional plant 

proposed at roof level of the approved development at Building S5.

UNICEF c/o Agent 14/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner

16/00690/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 15/12/2016 33-35 Monier Road, London, E3 2PR
Application for Approval of Details pursuant to condition 25 (Overheating) of planning 

permission 15/00212/FUL dated 24 March 2016.
Aitch Construction Limited 14/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00105/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 21/03/2018
Hackney Wick Overground Station, Wallis 

Road, Hackney, London, E9 5ER

Submission of details pursuant to discharge part viii (detailed drawings of the station shutters) 

of condition 16 (Sample Materials & Details) of planning permission 14/00275/FUL dated 23rd 

September 2014.

VolkerFitzpatrick Ltd 15/05/2018 Approve Anne Ogundiya

18/00199/NMA
Non-Material Amendment 

(Section 96A applications)
19/04/2018

Plot N17, Zone 3a, Celebration Avenue, 

Stratford, London, E20 1DB

Application under s96A  of the Town and Country Planning Act for non-material amendments to 

planning permission 16/00212/REM comprising the following:  •�The installation of a canopy 

above the main entrance to the Adagio building; and •�The construction of an external escape 

stair from the Level 1 near terrace to DeCoubertin Street

The Gantry Devco Ltd. 16/05/2018 Granted NMA Grant McClements

This application involved non-material amendments to 

application 16/00212/REM – hotels in Plot N17 of East 

Village. The first involved adding a canopy to the entrance 

of the Adagio Hotel which after extensive pre-application 

discussions with PPDT and LLDC Design was designed to a 

high quality and in-keeping with the wider development. 

The second involved the installation of a fire escape stair 

from a roof garden on the Gantry Hotel. Again, extensive 

pre-application discussions resulted in a design which PPDT 

and LLDC Design could support.

18/00084/FUL Full planning application 28/02/2018
Flat 501 Omega Works, 4 Roach Road, 

London, E3 2GY
Conversion of a 2 bedroom residential unit into 2 self-contained 1 bedroom residential units. G&G Properties Ltd 16/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner

Nature and scale of proposal was considered appropriate 

for delegated decision. 

18/00002/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 10/01/2018
Planning Delivery Zone 5, Queen Elizabeth 

Olympic Park

Submission of details pursuant to conditions LCS0.114 (BREEAM Nursery); LCS0.116 (BREEAM 

Office); and LCS0.118 (BREEAM Retail) in relation to East Wick Phase 1 16/00520/REM of Legacy 

Communities Scheme 11/90621/OUTODA as varied by 14/00036/VAR.

East Wick and Sweetwater 

Projects and LLDC
16/05/2018 Approve Anne Ogundiya

18/00082/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 21/02/2018 52-54 White Post Lane, London, E9 5EN
Submission of details to discharge condition 12 (Blue Badge Car Parking Scheme) of planning 

permission 15/00416/FUL dated 21st April 2016.

52-54 White Post Lane Ltd, C/O 

Agent
17/05/2018 Approve Anne Ogundiya

17/00607/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 04/12/2017

Zone 2, Chobham Farm Development, 

Thornham Grove, Penny Brookes Street, 

Stratford, London

Partial approval of details submitted pursuant to Condition 2 (Material Samples) of planning 

permission reference 17/00175/REM as it relates to Zone 2 of the Chobham Farm 

development, with respect to block C2 and block C3.

Higgins Homes Plc 17/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

17/00674/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 08/01/2018 1 Beachy Road, London, E3 2ND

Submission of details to discharge conditions 6 (Noise Assessment) 14 (Sound insulation and 

noise mitigation details - Residential) and 15 (Sound insulation and noise mitigation details – 

Residential and Non Residential) of planning permission 16/00560/FUL dated 24th February 

2017.

Falconet Property Development 

Ltd
18/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner

18/00058/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 09/02/2018 1-2, Hepscott Road, LONDON, E9 5HB
Submission of details pursuant to condition 11 (Detailed Drawings) of planning permission 

15/00446/FUL.
1-2 Hepscott Road Ltd 18/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00244/NMA
Non-Material Amendment 

(Section 96A applications)
10/05/2018

Here East, Waterden Road, Queen Elizabeth 

Olympic Park, London, E20 3BS

Application under S.96A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to amend the wording of 

condition IBC.20 of planning permission 13/00534/FUM.
Here East, c/o Agent 18/05/2018 Granted NMA Sophie Hockin

Non-material amendment application to amend wording of 

condition relating to maximum retail floorspace, so that it 

references the permission for V&A East that was approved 

by committee in April 2018.

17/00668/NMA
Non-Material Amendment 

(Section 96A applications)
27/12/2017

Eastwick Phase 1, Development Parcels 5.5 

and 5.9, Planning Delivery Zone 5, Queen 

Elizabeth Olympic Park, London

Application for Non-Material Amendments to the approved permission 16/00520/REM to 

regularise changes to the development including:  -Minor design changes to the East Wick 

Phase 1 Reserved Matters Approval

Eastwick and Sweetwater and 

LLDC
21/05/2018 Granted NMA Anne Ogundiya

P
a
g
e

 2
9
6



Appendix 1
Application 

Number
Application Type Registration Date Location Full Development Description Applicant Decision Date Decision Description Officer Name Officer Comments

LLDC Delegated Decisions Report - May 2018

17/00522/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 13/10/2017

Plot R2, Land to the south of High Street 

Stratford, east of Sugar House Lane and 

west of Three Mills Wall River, Stratford, 

E15

Submission of details pursuant to condition C32 (Airborne and Impact Sound Insulation) of 

planning permission 12/00336/LTGOUT/LBNM in relation to plot R2 only
Vastint UK BV 22/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00014/VAR
Variation of conditions (Section 

73 applications)
16/01/2018

The Clock Mill and Custom House, Three 

Mill Lane, Stratford, LONDON, E3 3DU

Application under s.73 of the Town and Country Planning Act (1990) (As amended) for the 

variation of condition 1 (cessation of use) of planning permission 15/00243/FUL dated 14 April 

2016.

Education and Skills Funding 

Agency
22/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

Minor application to extend the permission for use of the 

building by East London Science School until 2021. Not 

considered to be contentious.

18/00017/VAR
Variation of conditions (Section 

73 applications)
16/01/2018

Clock Mill and Custom House, Three Mill 

Lane, Stratford, LONDON, E3 3DU

Application under section 19 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

(as amended) seeking amendments to Listed Building Consent 15/00251/LBC  to vary  condition 

4 (cessation of use).

Education and Skills Funding 

Agency
22/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

Minor application to extend the permission for use of the 

building by East London Science School until 2021. Not 

considered to be contentious.

18/00166/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 29/03/2018

Land to the east of Hancock Road and west 

of the River Lea Navigation, Bromley by 

Bow E3, (Bow River Village Phase 2)

Approval of Details submitted pursuant to Condition C2 (Design and Access- Material Samples) 

of planning permission reference PA/11/02423/LBTH dated 27th September 2012 as varied by 

16/00427/VAR as it relates to Phase 2 of the development.

Southern Housing Group 23/05/2018 Approve Russell Butchers

18/00220/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 25/04/2018
East Wick commercial mooring adjacent to 

East Bay Lane, Hackney Wick, London

Submission of Details pursuant to condition 4 (Community Use Strategy) of planning permission 

reference 17/00390/FUL dated 11 December 2017 (as varied by non-material amendments 

reference 18/00093/NMA dated 20 March 2018).

London Diocesan House 24/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

17/00004/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 05/01/2017

Neptune Wharf site (Block A), comprising 

land bounded to the north by Hertford 

Union Canal, to the east by Roach Road, to 

the South by Wyke Road and to the west by 

Wansbeck Road

Submission of details pursuant to Condition AZ.85 (Foundation Details- Piling Risk Assessment) 

attached to the outline planning permission 12/00210/OUT in so far as it relates to Blocks A & B-

L of the Neptune Wharf site development.

Peabody / Hill Partnerships c/o 

Agent
24/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

17/00245/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 16/06/2017 7 Wise Road, Stratford, London, E15 2TG
Approval of details pursuant to conditions 14 (Remediation strategy) & 15 (Verification Report) 

and 17 (Code for Sustainable Homes) of planning permission 13/00232/FUL.
Tando 24/05/2018 Refuse Russell Butchers

18/00217/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 24/04/2018

Bobby Moore Academy (Primary), Planning 

Delivery Zone 4, Land east of Lea 

Navigation River and west of the Olympic 

Stadium, (Stadium Island)

Submission of details pursuant to condition LCS0.115 (BREEAM Certfication) in relation to 

outline planning permission 11/90621/OUTODA dated 28 September 2012 (as varied by 

planning references 14/00036/VAR dated 11 August 2014 and 17/00236/VAR dated 03 May 

2018) in so far as it relates to the Bobby Moore Academy (Primary) only.

Balfour Beatty, c/o The Agent 25/05/2018 Approve Russell Butchers

18/00200/VAR
Non-Material Amendment 

(Section 96A applications)
19/04/2018

11 Burford Road, Stratford, London, E15 

2ST

Application for non-material amendments to the approved planning permission 17/00368/FUL, 

seeking alterations to the ground floor facade, infill of the south-eastern corner of the building, 

reduction in flexible Class A3/B1 floorspace from 96sqm to 94sqm, the replacement of a 

window with a door to the the first floor roof terrace, omission of a door to the first floor roof 

terrace and the omission of ventilation panels and railings to the rear elevation.

Artesian Property Partnership 25/05/2018 Granted NMA Russell Butchers

The proposed amendments were considered to improve 

the appearance of the development and were of a non-

material nature. 

18/00209/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 14/03/2018
206-214 High Street, Stratford, London, E15 

2JA

Submission of Details submitted pursuant to condition 8 (Hard and Soft Landscaping) part a) of 

planning permission reference 13/00404/FUM dated 29 July 2014 (as amended) insofar as it 

relates to the ground floor external paving of the development.

Alumno Developments 25/05/2018 Approve Russell Butchers

17/00521/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 13/10/2017

Plot R2, Land to the south of High Street 

Stratford, east of Sugar House Lane and 

west of Three Mills Wall River, Stratford, 

E15

Submission of details pursuant to condition C5 (Hard and Soft Landscaping) of planning 

permission 12/00336/LTGOUT/LBNM in relation to Parts C, D and E and hard and soft 

landscaping scheme part i), ii), iii), iv), vii), viii), ix), xii), xiv), xv), xvi) inrelation to Plot R2 only.

Vastint UK BV 25/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00156/FUL Full planning application 27/03/2018
Lee Valley Hockey And Tennis Centre, 

Leadmill Lane, LONDON, E20 3AD
Application for the erection of height barrier to entrance and exit. LVRPA 25/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

Minor application for the erection of a barrier, that did not 

raise any significant issues. 

18/00180/FUL Full planning application 06/04/2018
Endeavour Square, Westfield Avenue, 

Stratford, London, E20 1GL

Application for full planning permission for the temporary provision of a food and drink event 

space consisting of a sheltered structure and outdoor seating to be used as a multi-purpose 

space, from May 2018 until October 2018 (6 months) in Endeavour Square (formerly known as 

International Square), International Quarter London (‘IQL’) South. Proposed uses comprise a 

café (Use Class A3), bar (Use Class A4), an event space (Use Class D2), indoor/outdoor 

workspace (Sui-generis) and two WC facilities.

Stratford City Business District 

Limited
30/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner

Given the temporary nature of the scheme and relatively 

small scale of the structure, a delegated decision was 

considered to be appropriate. The principle and design of 

the structure were considered to be policy complaint. 

18/00143/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 20/03/2018
Land at Cooks Road, Pudding Mill Lane, 

Stratford, London, E15 2PW

Partial discharge of Part C only of Condition 19 (Archaeology) of planning permission 

15/00392/FUL (as amended by 16/00534/VAR).

Bellway Homes (Thames 

Gateway) C/O Agent
30/05/2018 Approve Richard McFerran

18/00178/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 06/04/2018

Eastwick Phase 1, Development Parcels 5.5 

and 5.9, Planning Delivery Zone 5, Queen 

Elizabeth Olympic Park, London

Submission of details pursuant to conditions LCS0.36 (Zonal Development Platform Frontage); 

LCS0.67 (Perimeter Security Fencing); LCS0.68 (Perimeter Construction Fencing); and LCS0.69 

(Temporary Highway Access) of outline planning permission 11/90621/OUTODA as varied by 

14/00036/VAR (Legacy Communities Scheme), in respect of the Zonal Masterplan for Planning 

Delivery Zone 5 (East Wick), phase 1.

East Wick and Sweetwater 

Projects & LLDC
31/05/2018 Approve Anne Ogundiya

18/00184/ADV Advert (Express Consent) 06/04/2018

Armani Exchange, Unit 1065, Westfield 

Stratford City, LONDON, Montfichet Road, 

E20 1EP

Application for advertisement consent to display 3 x back painted glass fascia signs with 

internally illuminated sand blasted white lettering; 1 x vinyl back painted sign, with internally 

illuminated white lettering affixed to glazing with 2 x metal sheeting panels with non-

illuminated white lettering located either side of the shop front entrance door.

GAA Berlin GmBH 31/05/2018 Approve Josh Hackner
Proposed adverts were considered to be acceptable in 

size/design, and in the context of the building.

18/00133/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 12/03/2018 4 Roach Road, Fish Island, London, E3 2PA
Submission of details pursuant to paragraph 1 of condition 17 (BREEAM) of planning permission 

14/00260/FUL dated 02 April 2015.
Anderson Group 31/05/2018 Approve Sophie Hockin

P
a
g

e
 2

9
7



Appendix 1
Application 

Number
Application Type Registration Date Location Full Development Description Applicant Decision Date Decision Description Officer Name Officer Comments

LLDC Delegated Decisions Report - May 2018

18/00176/ADV Advert (Express Consent) 06/04/2018
265-267 High Street, Stratford, London, E15 

2TF

Application for Advertisement Consent for the Integral illumination and screen to the ATM 

fascia  Internally illuminated Free Cash Withdrawals sign above the ATM Blue LED halo 

illumiantion to the ATM surround.

Notemachine UK Ltd 31/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

Advertisement consent for a new sign and LED lighting 

around an existing ATM on High Street Stratford. Officers 

were satisfied with appearance and lighting levels. 

18/00185/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 05/04/2018 25-37, Rothbury Road, London, E9 5LN
Submission of details pursuant to condition 13 (Cycle Storage and Facilities) of planning 

permission16/00441/FUL
Rothwick LLP 31/05/2018 Approve Grant McClements

17/00665/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 27/12/2017

Eastwick Phase 1, Development Parcels 5.5 

and 5.9, Planning Delivery Zone 5, Queen 

Elizabeth Olympic Park, London

Submission of details pursuant to condition LCS0.1 (Zonal Masterplan) of outline planning 

permission 11/90621/OUTODA as varied by 14/00036/VAR (Legacy Communities Scheme), in 

respect of the Zonal Masterplan for Planning Delivery Zone 5 (East Wick).

East Wick and Sweetwater 31/05/2018 Approve Anne Ogundiya

P
a
g
e

 2
9
8



P
a
g

e
 2

9
9



Application 

N ber
Application Type Re istration Date Location Full Develop ent Description Applicant Decision Date Decision Description Officer Na e

Appendix 

Officer Co ents

LLDC Dele ated Decisions Report - June 201 8

18/00169/FUL Full planning application 1 /04/201 8
 Flat 2, 83, Eastway, Hackney, LONDON, E9 

5JA

Proposed flat-topped two-sided zinc clad mansard roof extension with side elevations 

constructed by extending the existing gable end wall and party wall with yellow stock brick, six 

projecting dormer windows and seven opening rooflights.

J. Bailey 0 Refuse Grant McClements

Application for a mansard roof extension at a demi-

detached Victorian property on Eastway, Hackney Wick. 

The application was refused owing to the negative impact 

of the proposal on the street scene and 83A Eastway.

The application was delegated as it was a residential 

extension which would be small in scale overall.

18/00128/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 1 /0 /201 8
1 Smeed Road and 79-85 Monier Road, 

London, E3 2PS

Application for the approval of details pursuant to Conditions 12 (Deliveries and servicing 

management plan) and 13 (Car Parking) of planning permission reference 14/00374/FUL (as 

amended by 17/00227/VAR).

Weston Homes Plc 0 Approve Josh Hackner

17/00323/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 1 /07/2017
Endeavour Square, Westfield Avenue, 

Stratford, London, E20 1GL

Submission of details pursuant to partially discharge part d (lighting) of condition Q4 

(Landscape) attached to the outline planning permission 10/90641/EXTODA dated 30/03/2012 

in so far as it relates to Endeavour Square.

Stratford City Business District 

Limited
Approve Josh Hackner

18/00117/FUL Full planning application 09/0 /201 8
International Square, Westfield, Zone 1 

Stratford City, London

Full planning permission for the installation of a temporary retail kiosk (class A1) within 

International Square for a period of 2 years.
Westfield Europe Ltd Approve Sara Dawes

The proposed development is considered to be an 

acceptable use in the town centre, minor in nature and non-

controversial,  and for a temporary period so considered 

appropriate to be determined under delegated powers.

18/00193/106 Section 106 Details 16 04/201 8 Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park, London

Details submitted pursuant to Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) Section 106 Agreement - 

Schedule 9, Paragraph 7.1 (Legacy Careers Programme 2 Update Report) in relation to outline 

planning permission ref: 11/90621/OUTODA as varied by 14/00036/VAR.

LLDC- Development S106 Response Letter Sophie Hockin

Application confirming compliance with a clause in LCS S106 

relating to Legacy careers programme. Appropriate for 

delegated decision.

18/00170/FUL Full planning application 1 /04/201 8 83, Eastway, Hackney, LONDON, E9 5JA
Proposed part ground floor rear extension of existing outrigger extension to Flat 1 of 83 

Eastway, and proposed first floor rear extension to Flat 2 of 83 Eastway.
J. Bailey Approve Grant McClements

Application for a rear extension to a semi-detached 

Victorian property on Eastway, Hackney Wick. The 

application was approved as the scale/massing and 

appearance etc were acceptable, the extension would have 

limited visual impact, and it had been designed to minimise 

overlooking and overshadowing of neighbouring properties.

15/00546/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 3 0/10/2015
Chobham Manor, PDZ6, Queen Elizabeth 

Olympic Park, London

Submission of details pursuant to Condition LCS0.203 (Controlled Parking Zone) of the Legacy 

Communities Scheme planning permission 11/90621/OUTODA dated 28 September 2012 (as 

varied by planning references 14/00036/VAR dated 11 August 2014 and 17/00236/VAR dated 

03 May 2018.

CHOBHAM MANOR LLP, c/o 

AGENT
Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00201/FUL Full planning application 1 /04/201 8
Unit 9, Fifth Floor, Queens Yard, 43 White 

Post Lane, London, E9 5EN

Change of use of the fifth floor from Class B1c (light industrial) to a mixed use including 

predominantly Class B1 (Business) floorspace with additional Class A1 (Shops), Class A3 

(restaurants and cafes) and Class A4 (drinking establishment) uses and a 60-seat cinema (Class 

D2 � Assembly and leisure).

London Modular Approve Russell Butchers

The proposed development was consistent with the Local 

Plan policies and no objections were received.  The 

proposed use was suitable for its location within the 

Hackney Wick neighbourhood centre and only relates to the 

top floor of the building and minor in scale. 

18/00230/PRLHE
Prior Approval of a Proposed 

Larger Home Extension
02/05/201 8

22 Rosher Close, Stratford, London, E15 

1AU

Application for Prior Approval for a single storey rear extension with a depth of 6.0 metres, a 

height of 3.0 metres and an eaves height of 3.0 metres.
Mr Andrew Wernick

No Objection to Prior 

Notification
Grant McClements

Application for prior approval for a residential extension 

under the General Permitted Development Order 2015 (as 

amended). Following a consultation response from a 

neighbour objecting to the proposal on amenity grounds, an 

assessment of amenity was undertaken by the local 

planning authority. The assessment concluded that the 

impact on neighbouring amenity would be minimal. 

The application was delegated as applications for prior 

approval (under the GDPO) are normally determined under 

delegated powers.

18/00119/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 12/0 /201 8

Zone 2, Chobham Farm Development, 

Thornham Grove, Penny Brookes Street, 

Stratford, London

Application to discharge Condition 3 (Detailed Drawings) of planning permission reference 

17/00175/REM as it relates to Zone 2 of the Chobham Farm development.
Higgins Homes Plc Approve Grant McClements

18/00065/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 1 /02/
Plot N24, Manhattan Loft Gardens, Zone 3, 

Stratford City, London, E20 1YY

Submission of details to partially discharge Condition 46 (Sound Insulation Measures) attached 

to planning permission 10/90285/FUMODA as amended by 13/00579/VAR, dated 28 October 

2014, insofar as it relates to the glazing of the 7th Floor restaurant.

Manhattan Loft Corporation Ltd Approve Sara Dawes

14/00067/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 05/0 /2014 PDZ 3a

Submission of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park Groundwater Monitoring Report: Banner River 

Terrace Deposits and Southern Plume Study and Groundwater Monitoring Report: PDZ3a 

Thanet Sand and Chalk Aquifiers pursuant to condition SP.0.35 of permission 

07/90011/FUMODA.

London Legacy Development 

Corporation
Approve Sophie Hockin

18/00211/ADV Advert (Express Consent) 24/04

Sugar House Island, Land to South East of 

Stratford High Street, Stratford, London, 

E15

Retention of non-illuminated advertisements to existing site hoardings fronting Stratford High 

Street; and retention of 1 x advertisement vinyl upon existing windows of Print House Bar & 

Restaurant, Stratford High Street.

Vastint UK BV, c/o Agent Approve Sara Dawes

The application for advertisement on existing site hoardings 

is considered minor in nature, non-controversial, so 

appropriate for delegated decision.

18/00218/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 24/04/201

Bobby Moore Academy (Secondary), 

Planning Delivery Zone 4, Land east of Lea 

Navigation River and west of the Olympic 

Stadium, (Stadium Island)

Submission of details pursuant to discharge condition 4 (Details of External Lighting and 

Security) of planning permission 16/00035/FUL dated 27th January 2017.
Balfour Beatty, c/o The Agent Approve Russell Butchers

P
a

g
e

 3
0

0
P

a
g
e

 3
0
0



Application 

Nu ber
Application Type Re istration Date Location Full Develop ent Description Applicant Decision Date Decision Description Officer Na e

Appendix 

Officer Co ents

LLDC Dele ated Decisions Report - June 201 8

18/00216/VAR
Variation of conditions (Section 

73 applications)
25/04/201 8

Three Mills Island, Three Mill Lane, 

Stratford, London, E3 3DU

Application under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to vary 

conditions 2 (Works in Accordance with Approved Details)  in relation to the flood prevention 

works, including replacing the western part of the boundary wall with a new flood defence wall 

and the provision of an earthbund and amendments to conditions 9 (Environmental Method 

Statement) and 10 (Flood Evacuation Plan) of planning permission 14/00235/FUL dated 16 April 

2015.

LLDC- Development 19/0 /201 8 Approve Russell Butchers

The proposed amendment was considered to be a minor 

change to the overall scheme and PPDT�s heritage 

consultants were satisfied with the proposals. 

18/00222/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 25/04/201 8
Neptune Wharf - Block A, Wyke Road, 

London, E3 2PL

Application for Partial Approval of Details in pursuance to Condition 3 (Phases 1 and 2 Signage) 

attached to planning permission 16/00219/REM in so far as it relates to Block A of the Neptune 

Wharf site development.

Peabody and Hill c/o Agent 19/ Approve Grant McClements

17/00304/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 10/07/2017

The International Quarter London, Plots S7 

& S8 and Balcony Park, Zone 2 Stratford 

City, Land adjacent to Westfield Avenue 

(Glasshouse Gardens), E20 1GL

Application for the approval of details pursuant to Condition B10 (Material Samples) of the 

Stratford City Outline Planning Permission (SC OPP) (ref: 10/90641/EXTODA) in so far as it 

relates to Balcony Park located within Zone 2 of the Stratford City development (now known as 

International Quarter London (IQL) South).

Stratford Business District 

Limited
19 Approve Josh Hackner

17/00066/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 1 /02/2017

Balcony Park Entrance (land adjacent to 

Plot S7 & S8) The International Quarter 

(TIQ) South, Land Adjacent to Westfield 

Avenue, Zone 2 Stratford City, E20

Application for the approval of details pursuant to Condition 1 (Permanent Canopy � Balcony 

Park Entrance) of 16/00465/NMA which relates to 15/00015/REM
SCBD Residential Ltd 19 Approve Josh Hackner

17/00065/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 17/02/2017

Balcony Park Entrance (land adjacent to 

Plot S7 & S8) The International Quarter 

(TIQ) South, Land Adjacent to Westfield 

Avenue, Zone 2 Stratford City, E20

Application for the approval of details pursuant to Condition 1 (Permanent Canopy � Balcony 

Park Entrance) of 16/00464/NMA which relates to 13/00409/REM
SCBD Residential Ltd 19 Approve Josh Hackner

18/00280/NMA
Non-Material Amendment 

(Section 96A applications)
24/05/201 8

Hackney Wick Mess Room, Eastway, 

Hackney, London, E9 5JA

Application for non-material amendments to the approved planning permission 17/00129/FUL, 

seeking alterations to increase the size of the plant enclosure.
Transport for London 20 Granted NMA Russell Butchers

The proposed amendment was non-material in nature and 

officers were satisfied with the proposal. 

18/00189/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 12/04/201

Zone 2, Chobham Farm Development, 

Thornham Grove, Penny Brookes Street, 

Stratford, London

Submission of details pursuant to Condition AZ.35 (Code for Sustainable Homes - Certification) 

associated with planning permission 12/00146/FUM as varied by 14/00439/NMA & 

14/00440/NMA as it relates to Zone 2 of the Chobham Farm development.

Higgins Homes Plc 20 Approve Grant McClements

16/00705/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 19/01/2017

Neptune Wharf site comprising land 

bounded to the north by Hertford Union 

Canal, to the east by Roach Road, to the 

South by Wyke Road and to the west by 

Wansbeck Road

Application for the  Approval of Details (Phase 1 and 2) submitted pursuant to condition AZ.53 

(Surface Water Drainage) attached to planning permission reference 12/00210/OUT dated 27 

March 2014.

Peabody, c/o agent 20 Approve Grant McClements

18/00232/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 02/05/201 8
80-84 & 90b Wallis Road, Hackney, London, 

E9 5LW

Approval of details submitted pursuant to conditions 22 (Detailed Drawings) and 23 (Material 

samples/sample-panels/sample-boards) associated with planning permission 14/00387/FUL 

(30th June 2016) and 16/00467/VAR (9th February 2017).

Telford Homes Plc 25 Approve Russell Butchers

18/00157/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 2 /0 /201 8
Neptune Wharf - Phase 1 and 2, Wyke 

Road, London, Tower Hamlets, E3 2PL

Submission of details pursuant to condition AZ.61 (Renewable Energy) of planning permission 

12/00210/OUT in so far as it relates to Phases 1 and 2 of the Neptune Wharf Development.
Peabody / Hill 25 Approve Grant McClements

18/00270/106 Section 106 Details 21/05/201
25-37 Rothbury Road, Hackney Wick, 

London, E9 5EN

Submission of details pursuant to Schedule 1 (Affordable Housing), Clause 4.1.1 (Weekly Rents) 

of the Section 106 Agreement associated with planning permission 16/00441/FUL dated 12 

December 2017.

Aitch Group 2 S106 Response Letter Hilary Wrenn

This application was to confirm the rent levels being in 

accordance with those set out in the s106 agreement.  They 

were and LBTH confirmed no objection.

18/00214/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 2 /04/201 8
Plot N24, Manhattan Loft Gardens, Zone 3, 

Stratford City, London, E20 1YY

Submission of details to discharge Condition 32 (Clean fuels and energy scheme) attached to 

planning permission 10/90285/FUMODA as amended by 13/00579/VAR, dated 28 October 

2014.

Creative Property (UK) LLP 2 Approve Sara Dawes

18/00262/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 17/05/201 8 415 Wick Lane, London, E3 2JG
Submission of details to fully discharge condition 5 (Code of Construction Practice) of planning 

permission 16/00685/FUL dated 13th September 2017.
Taylor Wimpey 2 Approve Richard McFerran

18/00264/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 17/05/201 8 415 Wick Lane, London, E3 2JG
Submission of details to fully discharge condition 6 (Construction & Demolition Noise 

Monitoring and Mitigation) of planning permission 16/00685/FUL dated 13th September 2017.
Taylor Wimpey Approve Richard McFerran

18/00266/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 17/05/201 415 Wick Lane, London, E3 2JG
Submission of details to fully discharge condition 8 (Construction & Demolition Transport 

Management Plan) of planning permission 16/00685/FUL dated 13th September 2017.
Taylor Wimpey Approve Richard McFerran

18/00267/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 17/05/201 8 415 Wick Lane, London, E3 2JG
Submission of details to fully discharge condition 9 (Construction & Demolition Waste 

Management Plan) of planning permission 16/00685/FUL dated 13th September 2017.
Taylor Wimpey Approve Richard McFerran

18/00279/AOD Approval of details (conditions) 24/05/201 8 415 Wick Lane, London, E3 2JG
Submission of details to fully discharge condition 7 (Construction & Demolition Dust Monitoring 

and Mitigation) of planning permission 16/00685/FUL dated 13th September 2017.
Taylor Wimpey Approve Richard McFerran

18/00101/DEM Full planning application 01/0 /201 8
Rear of 59, Wallis Road, Hackney, LONDON, 

E9 5LH

Demolition of existing single storey workshop (Class B1c) and the construction of a four storey 

building with basement to create an office (Class B1) at ground and basement levels with 4 flats 

(Class C3) (2 x 1 bed, 1 x 2 bed and 1 x 3 bed) with associated refuse storage and cycles spaces.

EFri  Limited Approve Russell Butchers

Although an objection was received, officers were satisfied 

with the proposals and that the development was 

consistent with the Local Plan policies. 

18/00196/VAR
Variation of conditions (Section 

73 applications)
2 /04/2018 259 High Street, Stratford, London, E15 2LS

Application under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to vary 

condition 4 (Hours of Operation) of full planning permission 17/00305/FUL dated 31st October 

2017.

Gbenga Ajewole Approve Grant McClements

Application to vary hours of operation to include Saturdays 

and additional hours on weekdays for a church associated 

with a previous change of use application. The hours were 

concluded to be reasonable (0830 � 2100 on weekdays and 

1000 � 1600 on weekends). In addition, only offices would 

be used for training and counselling on Mondays to 

Saturdays with church services on Sundays only. 

The application was considerd acceptable; it sought a minor 

increase in hours of operation, and would include 

Saturdays.

P
a

g
e

 3
0

1
P

a
g

e
 3

0
1



Application 

Nu ber
Application Type Re istration Date Location Full Devel nt Description Applicant Decision Date Decision Description Officer N me

Appendix 

Officer Co ents

LLDC Dele ated Decisions Report - June 201 8

18/00198/ADV Advert (Express Consent) 20/04/2018
Tonkotsu, Unit 1 Building S6, Westfield 

Avenue, London, E20 1EL

Application for advertisement consent for two sets of static internally illuminated fascia text 

signs, two sets of static internally illuminated text on a pergola and two internally illuminated 

projecting signs at Tonkotsu, Unit 1, Building S6 (ground floor corner at Westfield Avenue and 

Endeavour Square), International Quarter, Stratford, London, E20 1EL.

Tonkotsu Limited 29/0 201 8 Approve Grant McClements

Application for signage outside of Unit 1, Building S6, IQL 

associated with the new tenant, Tonkotsu. The signage 

complied with the emerging retail design strategy for IQL. 

Officers advised the applicant to remove a signage totem 

from the application as officers were not satisfied that the 

totem complied with the emerging retail design strategy.

The application was delegated it was relatively small in 

scale, and considered to be compliant with the emerging 

retail design strategy for IQL.

P
a

g
e

 3
0

2
P

a
g
e

 3
0
2



P
a
g
e
 3

0
3



P
a
g
e
 3

0
4


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 22 May 2018
	5 Clarnico Quay 18/00171/FUL
	05b Appendix 1 Clarnico Quay Makeshift 18/00171/FUL
	05b Appendix 2 Clarnico Quay Makeshift 18/00171/FUL

	6 Land at Marshgate Lane 17/00669/VAR
	06b Appendix 1 Land at Marshgate Lane 17/00669/VAR
	06c Appendix 2 Land at Marshgate Lane 17/00669/VAR

	7 Meridian Square 18/000225/ADV
	07b Appendix 1 Meridian Square 18/000225/ADV

	8 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08b Appendix 1 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08c Appendix 2 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08d Appendix 3 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08e Appendix 4 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08f Appendix 5 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08g Appendix 6 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08h Appendix 7 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08j Appendix 9 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08k Appendix 10 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08l Appendix 11b The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08m Appendix 11 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM
	08n Appendix 12 The Pavilion, Endeavour Square 18/00252/REM

	9 11 Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09b Appendix 1 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09c Appendix 2 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09d Appendix 3 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09e Appendix 4 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09f Appendix 5 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09g Appendix 6 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09h Appendix 7 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09i Appendix 8 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09j Appendix 9 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09k Appendix 10 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL
	09l Appendix 11 report of Burford Road 18/00293/FUL

	10 Annual review of Planning Decisions Committee's Terms of Reference
	10b Appendix 1 report of PPDT ToR

	11 Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority
	11b Appendix 1 Decisions made under Delegated Authority
	11c Appendix 2 Decisions made under Delegated Authority


